
 

1 

 

 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  

Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 
1687 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa 

      September 12, 2017 
 

 

AGENDA 
 
The Rincon Valley Union School District complies with ADA requirements and upon request, 
will attempt to reasonably accommodate individuals with disabilities by making meeting 
material available in appropriate alternative formats (pursuant to Government Code Section 
54953.2).  Anyone requiring reasonable accommodation to participate in the meeting should 
contact the Rincon Valley Union School District at 542-7375, 48 hours prior to the meeting. 
 
 
   
1. OPEN SESSION                  5:00 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are on the closed session agenda. Persons 
 addressing the Board are requested to state their names and whether or not they are a 
 resident of the district. The Board President reserves the right to limit comments from 
 the public as well as limit the total number of minutes used on any one topic.   
 
3. CLOSED SESSION:  Items discussed in closed session are confidential in nature 

and may not be discussed by participants outside of this session.  Any action 
taken by the Board during closed session shall be reported upon in open 
session.  

 
3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 

Gov. Code 54957.6: 
  

3.1 a Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 
certificated employees) 

 
3.1 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 

Chapter #284 
 

 3.2 Personnel Issues. Gov. Code 54957.6 
 
 3.3 Public Employee Performance Evaluation Gov. Code 54957 

 -Superintendent 
 

 



 

2 

 

The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 
 
4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    6:00 p.m. 
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 
6. PUBLIC HEARING         6:01 p.m. 
 Assurance of Pupil Textbooks and Instructional Materials 
 Williams Settlement Legislation 2016-2017 
 
7. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS  
 
8. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 
 (Consent Items a Board Member wishes to discuss will be moved to the  
 Action Item section) 
 

8.1 Minutes of August 8, 2017   Regular Board Meeting 
 Minutes of August 10, 2017 Special Board Study Session 
 Minutes of August 15, 2017 Special Board Meeting-Closed Session 
   

 8.2 Schools of Hope Sonoma County Tutoring Program Memorandum of   
  Understanding 
  Agreement for Services between Rincon Valley Union School District and   
  United Way of the Wine County for the 2017-2018 academic year. 
 

8.3 Approval of District Organizational Chart 2017-18 
 

8.4 Board Policy Updates – CSBA July 2017 
The Board will approve the CSBA July 2017 Board Policy updates as follows: 
 
Adopt Revisions: 
BP/AR 0000, Vision 
BP 0100, Philosophy 
E 0420.41, Charter School Oversight 
BP 2140, Evaluation of the Superintendent 
AR 4112.2, Certification 
AR 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
BP E 6161.1, Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
BB 9121, President 
BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 
BB 9230, Orientation 
BB 9400, Board Self-Evaluation 
 



 

3 

 

Adopt New 
BP 7212, Mello-Roos Districts 
 

   Delete 
  AR 0000, Vision 

BP 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
  
 8.5 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  These are purchase orders dated August 1, 2017 – September 4, 2017. 
 

8.6 Approval of Warrants: 
8/9/17  - 1582472 – 1582536 
8/16/17 - 1583551 – 1583604 
8/23/17 - 1584961 – 1584981 
8/30/17 - 1586895 – 1586956 

 

9.       ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
 
September 22   Buyback Day #2 
 
September 25-Oct. 6  Fall Conferences 
 
September 28   Agenda Setting 
     8:00 a.m. – Superintendent’s office 

      School Site Visits 
     9:00 – 12:00   

 
 October 5    Binkley Dedication Ceremony 
      5:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
 

October 9    Rincon Valley Education Foundation 
     7:00 – 8:00 p.m., District Office 
 

October 10    Regular Board Meeting   
      6:00 p.m., District Office 
 
 October 11    Madrone Dedication Ceremony 
      5:00 – 7:00 p.m. 
 
10. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 

This time is reserved for citizens, employees, and representatives of school groups 
 to address the Board on items that are not on the agenda.  By law, the Board 
 cannot take action upon or discuss items that are not on the approved agenda, but 
 welcomes your comments.  Persons addressing the Board are requested to state 
 their names and whether or not they are a resident of the district. The Board President 
 reserves the right to limit comments from the public as well as limit the total number of 
 minutes used on any one topic.  



 

4 

 

  
If you wish to address the Board on any item on the agenda, please make your request 
at the time the item is being discussed.  Persons wanting to address the Board will be 
recognized and requested to state their name and whether or not they are a resident of 
the district.  The Board President will also reserve the right to limit comments as well as 
limit the total number of minutes used on any agenda item.   

 
11.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 
12. AWARDS          

 
12.1 Classified Employee of the Month  

Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Roldolfo Castro, 
Classified Employee of the Month of September, 2017. 

 
12.2 Certificated Employee of the Month 

Recommend Approval of the Resolution for Danya Dranow, 
Certificated Employee of the Month of September, 2017. 

 
13. INFORMATION 
 
 Fiscal 
 
 13.1 Lease-Leaseback 

Board of Trustees will receive an update on the Lease-Leaseback process for 
contractor selection. 

  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

Instruction 
 

13.2 Summer Intervention Program Report 
Mrs. Noone, Summer School Principal, will report on the 2017 summer school 
intervention programs.  

 --Mrs. Erika Noone 
 

13.3 Curriculum & Instruction Update 
 Dr. Terry Metzger will report on the following: 

a. Home Study Enrollment 
b. New Teacher Training 
c. CAASPP Results  
d. PE Testing Results 

--Dr. Terry Metzger 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 

 

13.4 Student Services Update 
 Mrs. Myhers will report on the following: 

a. Student Support Model  
b. AED status update 
c. Parent University 

--Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
 
 Human Resources 
 

13.5 Professional Development Plan for Site Administrators  
Dr. Roehrick will report on the Site Administrator Professional Development Plan 
for 2017-18.  
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
14. ACTION 
  
 Instruction 
 

14.1 Declaring that Each Pupil in the District has Sufficient Textbooks and/or 
Instructional Materials, 2017-2018, Resolution #09-17-02 
In order to receive state funds for purchase of textbooks, the district must declare 
that we provide each student with appropriate materials, Resolution #09-17-02. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
 Fiscal 
 
 14.2 2016-2017 Unaudited Actual Report, Rincon Valley Union School District 
  This document summarizes the district’s financial transactions for FY2016-2017. 
  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

14.3 Resolution #09-17-03, GANN Limit 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the annual GANN Limit, Resolution  
#09-17-03. 

  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 

14.4 Resolution #09-17-04, a resolution of the board of trustees of the Rincon 
Valley Union School District, Sonoma County, California, authorizing the 
issuance of Rincon Valley Union School District (Sonoma County, 
California) election of 2014 general obligation bonds, Series B, and actions 
related thereto 

 Board of Trustees will consider approving Resolution #09-17-04, which approves 
the issuance of $17 million of current interest general obligations, which are 
authorized to be sold at a negotiated sale to Piper Jaffrey as well as approve the 
Purchase Contract and the Preliminary Official Statement. 

  --Dr. Joe Pandolfo 
 
 



 

6 

 

 Human Resources 
 

14.5 Revised Employee Salary Schedule / Confidential and Classified 
Supervisory 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the revised salary schedules to include 
longevity for the following employee groups: 
14.6 a Confidential 
14.6 b Classified Supervisory 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 

 14.6 Job Description – Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 
Board of Trustees will consider approving the job description for the position of 
Assistant Superintendent for Student Services. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

 
14.7 Assistant Superintendent for Student Services Contract 

Board of Trustees will consider approving the contract for, Mrs. Cathy Myhers, 
Assistant Superintendent for Student Services. 
--Dr. Tony Roehrick 

   
14.8 Behavioral Contracts 

Board of Trustees will consider ratifying the contract with “Gateway” for 
behavioral services:   

  --Mrs. Cathy Myhers 
 
 Governance 
 
 14.9 RVUSD Governance Handbook 2017-18 

Board of Trustees will consider approving the Rincon Valley Union School District 
Governance Handbook, 2017-18. 

  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
 14.10 Board/District Goals 2017-18 Cover Sheet and Governance Calendar 

Board of Trustees will consider approving the 2017-18 Board/District Goals cover 
sheet and revised Governance Calendar. 

  --Dr. Tony Roehrick 
 
15. PERSONNEL 
  

15.1 Certificated – New Hires 

 Amy Bertalovitz, Long Term Sub, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 

 Rebecca Young, Sub Teacher, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 
 

15.2 Classified – New Hires 

 Adiam Asgedom, Food Service Cook, Binkley, effective August 10, 2017 

 Rosa Reyes Diaz, Noon Duty I, Spring Creek, effective August 10, 2017 



 

7 

 

 Christopher Barclay, Noon Duty I & Instructional Assistant, Binkley, effective 
August 14, 2017 

 Alaina Mitchell, Counseling Intern, District, effective August 14, 2017 

 Loree Wilson, Counseling Intern, District, effective August 14, 2017 

 Terrence Young, Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, RVP, effective August 21, 2017 

 Medy Lansangan, Substitute Food Service, District, effective August 24, 2017 

 Leticia Campos Ceja, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective August 30, 
2017 

 Alicia Graves, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective August 31, 2017 

 Lakshmi “Kiran” Acharya, Noon Duty I, Austin Creek, effective September 1, 
2017 

 Debra Winkelman, Instructional Assistant, Austin Creek, effective September 
5, 2017 

 Martha Chavez, SDC Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, RVP, effective September 6, 
2017 

 Miriam Maceda Arenas, Noon Duty I, Madrone, effective September 6, 2017 
 

15.3 Classified - Retirement 

 Barbara Ziesche, Account Technician, District Office, effective November 30, 
2017 

 

15.4 Classified – Resignations 
 Olga Paz Zamora, Food Service Cashier, Spring Creek, effective August 8, 2017 

 Carol Watson, SDC Sp. Ed. Instr. Assistant, Matanzas, effective September 5, 
2017 

 Debra Baldaramos, Instructional Assistant, Madrone, effective September 8, 2017 

 
16. CSEA / RVUTA COMMENTS 
 

17. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 
INFORMATION 

 

18. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 Transportation Report 
 Single School Plans Progress on Goals 
 Middle School Programs 
 RVCS Charter Renewal 
 Facility Plan 2018 
 Teacher Evaluation Report 
 Parent Club Reports (School-Connected Organization Authorization) 
 Site Visits Report 
 William Settlement Complaint-Quarterly Report 
 Sunshine Proposals 

 
19. ADJOURN 



 

1 
 

       RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
Regular Board Meeting, Board of Trustees 

  District Office, 1000 Yulupa Avenue 
August 8, 2017 
 

 

             MINUTES    
      
          

Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
 
Absent:        Mr. Jeff Gospe 
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

      Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent, Busines  
         Mrs. Cathy Myhers. Director Student Service 
 
Others:        Interested Staff and Community Members 
   
 
1. OPEN SESSION:  CALL TO ORDER                   
 PUBLIC COMMMENTS 
 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON CLOSED 
 SESSION ITEMS 
 None   

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to recess to closed session at 5:32 

p.m.:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Conference with the Board’s labor negotiator, Tony Roehrick, regarding 
Gov. Code 54957.6: 

  
3.1 a Negotiations with Rincon Valley Union Teachers’ Association (represented 

certificated employees) 
 
3.1 b Negotiations with California School Employees Association (CSEA) 

Chapter #284 
 

 3.2 Personnel Issues. Gov. Code 54957.6 
 



 

2 
 

The purpose of this Board Meeting is to hear, discuss, or deliberate on matters that are on the 
approved agenda.  This agenda has been carefully planned to reflect the goals and vision of 
our district.  The agenda is available on line 72 hours before the Board Meeting and posted at 
each school site, as required by law 

   
 

4. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,     
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to adjourn closed session and return to 
open session at 6:03 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
5. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 None 
 
7. AGENDA AND CONSENT ITEM APPROVAL 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the agenda and following 
consent items:  Unanimous. 

 
7.1     Minutes of June 8, 2017, Special Board Meeting 

Minutes of June 13, 2017, Regular Board Meeting 
 

7.2  Williams Settlement – Quarterly Report, April 1 – June 30, 2017 
 Board of Trustees will approve the Williams Settlement Quarterly Complaint 

Summary, April 1 – June 30, 2017. 
 

7.3 2017-2018 Consolidated Application Part I, Rincon Valley Union School  
  District 

 Consolidated Application Part I confirms funding for the Rincon Valley   
  Union School District’s state and federally-funded programs. 

 
7.4 Rincon Valley Union School District Auxiliary Rates of Pay 

This represents a revised auxiliary salary schedule for 2017-18. 
 
7.5 Approve Resolution 08-17-02, request to close revolving cash checkbook 

account Exchange Bank for Redwood Consortium for Student Services  
 

7.6 Proclamation of September as Attendance Awareness Month 
 This proclamation certifies that our schools will stand with the nation in 

recognizing September as “Attendance Awareness Month” and will commit to 
improving school attendance and reducing chronic absenteeism.   

 
 
 



 

3 
 

7.7 2017-2018 Retainer Continuation Agreement for Legal Services with   
  School and College Legal Services of California 

 Authorization for Rincon Valley Union School District to continue its    
  Retainer Agreement with School and College Legal Services of California   
  effective July 1, 2017. 

 
7.8 Approval of 2017-2018 Salary Schedule for the Position of School 

Psychologist 
     
 7.9 Board Policy Updates – May 2017 
  The Board will approve the CSBA policy updates from May, 2017. 
 
  Adopt Revisions: 
  BP/AR 1312.3, Uniform Complain Procedures 
  BP 1340, Access to District Records 
  BP 2121, Superintendent’s Contract 
  BP/AR 3551, Food Service Operations/Cafeteria Fund 
  AR 3580, District Records 
  BP/AR 4127/4227/4327, Temporary Athletic Team Coaches 
  BP 4312.1, Contracts 
  AR 5145.3, Nondiscrimination/Harassment 
  BP 6142.93, Science Instruction 
  BP 6145, Extracurricular and Cocurricular Activities 
  BP/AR 6145.2, Athletic Competition 
  BP 7214, General Obligation Bonds  
  BB 9012, Board Member Electronic Communications 
  BB 9320, Meetings and Notices 
 
 7.10 Approval of Purchase Orders 
  These are purchase orders dated 6/6/17 – 7/31/17. 

 
7.11 Approval of Warrants: 

6/9/17`  - 1571681 – 1571763 
6/16/17 - 1573245 – 1573317 
6/23/17 - 1575041 – 1575125 
7/12/17 - 1577305 – 1577371 
7/21/17 - 1579533 – 1579614 
8/2/17  - 1581206 – 1581270 

 
8.     ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CALENDAR 
    Mrs. Wood announced the following calendared events: 

   
 District Welcome Back  August 10, 8:00 – 9:30 a.m.  
      Friedman Center  
 
 Special Board Meeting  August 10, 10:00 a.m. 
      District Office 



 

4 
 

  
 Certificated Buyback Day  August 11 
     
 Kindergarten Orientation  August 11 
 Class Postings  
  
 First Day School   August 14 
 

Back to School Night  August 21, Band (Matanzas Campus) 7-8 p.m. 
       (Spanish – 6:00 – 7:00 p.m.) 
 
     August 22, Band (Whited Campus) 7-8 p.m. 
       (Spanish – 6:00 – 7:00 p.m.) 
 
 

August 23,   RVCS-Sequoia 6:00 – 7:30p.m. 
           RVCS Matanzas, 6:30 – 8:00 p.m. 
 

      August 24,   Matanzas, 6:00-7:00 p.m. 
                 Whited, 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
  
      August 29,    Spring Creek, 6-7:00 p.m. 
         Austin Creek, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m. 
 
      August 30,  Village, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m.  
         Sequoia, 6:30-8:00 p.m. 
 
 August 31,    Binkley, 5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
      Madrone, 6:00 – 7:30 p.m. 
 
 Agenda Setting   August 31 
      District Office, 8:00 a.m. 
 

Rincon Valley Education  September 11  
Foundation    District Office, 7:00 p.m. 
 
 Regular Board Meeting  September 12  

      District Office, 6:00 p.m. 
 
9. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 None 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5 
 

10.      SUPERINTENDENT’S COMMENTS, LEGISLATIVE UPDATE, CORRESPONDENCE 
 Dr. Roehrick commented on the following: 

 IDEA Compliance for 2016-17 – State of California reported that there were no 
findings of disproportionality in our Special Education programs last year.  As a 
result, we have not been selected for a comprehensive review. 

 CAASPP Results – The spring 2017 results will be released on August 29.  
Preliminary results show a 5 percentage point gain in both ELA and math. 

 
11. INFORMATION 

 
Instruction 

 
11.1 Curriculum & Instruction Update 

In Dr. Metzger’s absence, Dr. Roehrick gave an overview of the following: 
 Professional Development-Before School Activities  
 Professional Development-Summer Opportunities 

Teachers and support staff had an opportunity to participate in the 
following trainings over the summer: 
- Engage New York (Eureka) Math 
- Benchmark Advance 
- Projec- Based Learning  
- Support for ELA/ELD, Math, and Social Emotional earning 

 
11.2 Student Services Report 
 Mrs. Cathy Myhers reported on the following: 

 Social-Emotional Learning Programs 
The following programs are being implemented at all sites K – 6: 
-Kimochis 
-Toolbox 
-Restorative Practices 
 

In addition, the following activities are planned: 
 School psychologists and counselors will be pairing up to provide five 

trainings per school site for classified staff who work directly with students.   
 In accordance with AB 2246, RVCS staff will receive training on youth 

suicide prevention. 
 The Rincon Valley Partnership is opening a class for students in grades 

first through third who require specialized instruction in social-emotional 
skill development.   

 The Parent University (October 21) will offer sessions on all of the social 
emotional programs that the district is implementing.    
 

 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

 
Fiscal 
 
11.3 2016-2017 Student Transfers 
 The Board reviewed a summary of the 2016-2017 Interdistrict and Intradistrict 

student transfers prepared by Mrs. Cindy Mendenhall, Assistant to the 
Superintendent.  Three areas were reported: 

 Interdistrict Transfers “Out” – (523 known)  It is unknown how many 
students living in the RVUSD boundaries are attending private or charter 
schools. 
*Note:  Our district does not deny transfers out of the district, but we do 
deny transfers in when space is not available. 

 Interdistrict Transfers “In” –(632) The number of new transfer requests 
denied for the 2016-17 school year was not included in this report.   

 Intradistrict transfers –(658) – 29 new transfer requests for 2016-17 were 
denied due to grade level capacities at a requested site.  Intradistrict 
transfers have priority over interdistrict transfers. 

 
11.4 Facilities Update – Summer Construction 

Dr. Joe Pandolfo reported on the construction work completed over the summer, 
2017.   Some Board members toured Matanzas, Madrone and Binkley prior to 
the meeting.  Progress is looking good.  The contractor is thorough and 
responsive.  Village School will begin new construction next.   

 
 11.5 SchoolWorks, Inc. Demographic Study 

The Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the enrollment projections and 
demographic analysis submitted by SchoolWorks, Inc., a consulting firm 
specializing in facility planning and demographic studies for school districts. The 
study’s key findings are: 

 The District’s facilities will be 98.1% of enrollment capacity within 6 years.  
The District is currently at 95.8% of capacity. 

 Development of known land planned for residential units and the 
expansion of the city to its sphere of influence, makes it probable that 
there will be a need for one, if not two schools within 10 – 20 years. 

 
The following community members commented on the SchoolWorks Study: 
 
Lisa Brown 
Topic:  Impact of Interdistrict transfers on district enrollment/facilities 
 
Karen Sanders 
Topic: Impact of Interdistrict transfers/Classroom loads/Southeast 
Greenway/Whited Boundaries/Measure F 
 
Chaney Delaire 
Topic:  Impact of Interdistrict transfers/Potential future bonds 



 

7 
 

 
 Human Resources 
 
 11.6 District Operations Departments’ Purpose Statements 

The Board reviewed the purpose statements submitted by the District Operations 
Departments. The supervisors and managers will use these purpose statements 
as a springboard to develop goals collaboratively with each department.  Goals 
likely to be on all of the plans will address customer service, quality assurance, 
professional development, more efficient use of technology, etc.  Specific plans 
with measurable goals will be developed in these areas. These goals will be 
brought back to the board in the fall with the goal of implementation before the 
end of the school year. 

 
 Governance 
 
 11.7 LCAP Revisions 

The Board reviewed the revisions to the charter Local Control Accountability 
Plans that reflect site-based metrics and outcomes.  The final documents have 
been posted on the website.   

 
 11.8 Board Policy Updates – CSBA July 2017 

The Board reviewed the CSBA July 2017 Board Policy updates and made no 
revisions.  These policies will be on the September consent agenda. 
 
Adopt Revisions: 
BP/AR 0000, Vision 
BP 0100, Philosophy 
E 0420.41, Charter School Oversight 
BP 2140, Evaluation of the Superintendent 
AR 4112.2, Certification 
AR 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
BP E 6161.1, Selection and Evaluation of Instructional Materials 
BB 9121, President 
BB 9220, Governing Board Elections 
BB 9230, Orientation 
BB 9400, Board Self-Evaluation 
 
Adopt New 
BP 7212, Mello-Roos Districts 
 

   Delete 
  AR 0000, Vision 

BP 4112.61/4212.61/4312.61, Employment References 
  
 
 
 



 

8 
 

12.  ACTION 
 
  Fiscal 
 

12.1 Tax Levy Resolution #08-17-01 
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve Resolution #08-17-01, 

requesting Board of Supervisors of the County of Sonoma to establish tax rate for 
bonds of the Rincon Valley Union School District expected to be sold during fiscal 
year 2017-18, and authorizing necessary actions in connection therewith:  
Unanimous. 

 
 Mr. Mark Epstein was present to explain the process.  Adoption of this Resolution 

is necessary to ensure that property taxes are levied during fiscal year 2017-18 
for the payment of the Bonds.   Interest rates are down right now. The district was 
able to issue the bonds in two series rather than three. 

  
12.2 Construction Change Orders #5 – Binkley and Madrone 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve Change Orders # 5 for the   
Binkley and Madrone construction projects:  Unanimous. 

    
Human Resources 
 
12.3 Contract – Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to ratify the two-year contract for 
Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business:  Unanimous. 

 
  12.4 Amend Title of Vice Principal to Site Director 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve amending the 
administrative title of Vice Principal to Site Director for the Rincon Valley Charter 
School administrators:  Unanimous. 
 

12.5 Hiring of a Special Day Class Teacher for the Rincon Valley Partnership on 
the basis of a Provisional Internship Permit 
Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the hiring of Amy Brent to 
teach a 1st – 3rd grade Social Emotional Learning Program (SELP) Special Day 
Class:  Unanimous. 

 
13.  PERSONNEL 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to approve the following personnel items:  
Unanimous. 
 

 13.1 Certificated Management – New Hire 
 Kim Craven, Psychologist, RVP, effective August 3, 2017 
 Heidi Mize, Psychologist (60%), District, effective August 3, 2017 

 
13.2 Certificated Management – Leave Request Amendment 

 Heidi Hahn, return to position January, 8, 2018 at .6 FTE 



 

9 
 

 
13.3 Rehire of Prior Year Temporary Teacher 

 Sara Furch, Teacher, Village, effective August 10, 2017 
 

13.4 Certificated – New Hires 
 Morgan Brady, Teacher, Austin Creek, effective August 10, 2017 
 Nicole Britton, Teacher, Whited, effective August 10, 2017 
 Jaclyn Fogleman, Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Thomas Kimball, RSP Teacher, Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 
 Margo Matthews, Long Term Sub, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 
 Katherine Mazer, SDC Teacher, Whited, effective August 10, 2017 
 Susan Sipe, Speech & Language Therapist, District, effective August 10, 

2017 
 Allison Stuck Speech & Language Therapist (50%), District, effective August 

10, 2017 
 Melanie Teieb, Teacher, RVCS – Sequoia, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.5 Moving to Certificated from Classified 

 Amy Brent, SDC Teacher, Madrone, effective August 10, 2017 
 Teresa Mendoza, SDC Teacher, Matanzas, effective August 10, 2017 

 
13.6 Certificated – Resignations 

 Lynn Martinez, Teacher, Village, effective June 23, 2017 
 Bobbie Schmaus, Teacher, RVP, effective July 3, 2017 
 Janelle Taylor, Teacher, RVP, effective July 23, 2017 

 
13.7 Classified – New Hires 

 Patrick Fay, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVCS – Sequoia, effective August 
10, 2017 

 Emma Millan, Food Service Cashier, Village & Day Care Assistant, Binkley, 
effective August 10, 2017 

 Christine Tholen, SDC Instructional Assistant, Matanzas, effective August 10, 
2017 

 Carol Watson, SDC Instructional Assistant, Matanzas, effective August 10, 
2017 

 Crystal Worthy, SDC Instructional Assistant, Sequoia, effective August 10, 
2017 

 
13.8 Classified – Resignations 

 Dorothy Estrada, EL Assistant & Kindergarten Aide, Binkley, effective July 3, 
2017 

 Judy Hatfield, Library Clerk, Binkley, effective July 17m 2017 
 Patricia Jacobs, Food Service I, District, effective August 9, 2017 
 Jeni James, Food Service I, Binkley, effective July 14, 2017 
 Cheryl Lambert, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, effective August 2, 2017 
 Nikki Marino, Day Care Assistant, Madrone, effective August 10, 2017 
 Gail Maxwell, Food Service I, Whited, effective September 8, 2017 



 

10 
 

 Edward Petitt, Bus Driver, District, effective August 1, 2017 
 Silem Ramirez, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, effective August 2, 2017 
 April Robert, Day Care Assistant, Village & Noon Duty II, Matanzas, effective 

July 25, 2017 
 Olga Rodriguez Alvarez, Speech Assistant, RVP, effective July 24, 2017 
 Mackenzie Volkmuth, Day Care Assistant, Whited & Madrone, effective July 

26, 2017 
 

13.9 Classified – Leave of Absence Request 
 Candy Rico Ayala, SDC Instructional Assistant, RVP, August 10 - September 

29, 2017 
 
14. RVUTA/CSEA COMMENTS 

RVUTA:  Debbie Perry, President, and Robin Horgan, Lead Negotiator, were present to 
introduce themselves as RVUTA’s new leaders.  They commented that they are excited 
for the new school year and the opportunity to work collaboratively with the district. 

 
15. BOARD OF TRUSTEE COMMENTS/COMMITTEE REPORTS/REQUESTS FOR 

INFORMATION 
Mr Cook:  Reviewed the RVEF strategic plan and it looks very good.  RVEF is looking 
for community members to be on their Board.  Would like to add RVEF to a study 
session or retreat. 
 

16. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
 Summer School Report 
 Student Support Model 
 CAASPP Results 
 Home Study Report 
 PE Testing Results 
 Public Hearing---Assurance of Pupil Textbooks 
 Unaudited Actuals 
 GANN Limit Resolution  
 Professional Development Plan 
 New Teacher Training 
 Biennial Notice – Conflict of Interest Code 
 Rincon Valley Education Foundation Report 
 Affordable housing for staff 

 
17. ADJOURN 

Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Cook seconded to adjourn the meeting at 7:40 p.m.:  
Unanimous. 



 

1 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD MEETING/STUDY SESSION 

1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa 
August 10, 2017 

10:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. 
 

MINUTES 
 

         
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  

      Mr. Jeff Gospe 
 
Administrators:       Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 
Interested Community Member 
.  
1. OPEN SESSION:  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE,    
 CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 10:25 a.m. 
 

2. AGENDA MODIFICATIONS/ADDITIONS 
 One agenda addition:  Closed session:  Public Employment Gov. Code 54957 

 
3.        AGENDA APPROVAL 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Rafanelli seconded to approve the agenda as modified:  Unanimous. 
 
4. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
 None 
  
5.        INFORMATION / DISCUSSION 

 
5.1 Board and District Goals 
 The Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the goals for the 2017-2018 school year. 

 
5.2 Cyber Safety Policies 
 The Board discussed the district’s policies on Cyber Safety. 

 
5.3 2017-18 Governance Calendar and Study Sessions 
 The Board of Trustees reviewed the 2017-18 Governance Calendar and selected Study  

  Sessions. 
  
5.4 Governance Protocols 
 The Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed governance protocols and the Board of  

  Trustees Handbook. 



 

2 
 

 
 
5.5 Professional Development for the Board 
 The Board of Trustees discussed professional development opportunities for the Board. 
  
5.6 Trustee School and Committee Assignments for 2017-18 
 The Board of Trustees discussed and selected their school and committee assignments for 

  2017-18. 
 

5.7 District Facilities Plan 
The Board of Trustees reviewed and discussed the District’s long-term Facilities Plan. 

  
6. ACTION 
 
 6.1 Approval of Contract for Architectural Services 

Mr. Gospe moved and Mrs. Evers seconded to approve contracts with Dan Hardin, 
Architect, for Binkley’s and Madrone’s  final phase of construction:  Unanimous. 

 
7. CLOSED SESSION 

Mr. Cook moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to recess to closed session to discuss the following: 
 7.1 Public Employment, Gov. Code 54957 
 
8. OPEN SESSION 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn closed session and return to open session 
at 2:58 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
9. ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 
 Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
10. ADJOURN 
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn the study session at 3:00 p.m.: 
 Unanimous. 
 
 
 
 
 
Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. 
Secretary to the Board 



 

1 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
Special Board Meeting 

5574 Pepperwood Road, Santa Rosa 
August 15, 2017 

 
MINUTES 

 
 
Present:              Mrs. Carol Lynn Wood 
         Mrs. Cynthia Evers 
         Mr. Jeff Gospe 
         Mr. Chris Rafanelli  
         Mr. Mike Cook  
 
  
1.        OPEN SESSION          
 CALL TO ORDER, PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 Mrs. Wood called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. PUBLIC AND EMPLOYEE REQUEST TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON 

CLOSED SESSION ITEMS 
None   

 
3. CLOSED SESSION:   
 Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to recess to closed session at 

6:03 p.m. to discuss the following:  Unanimous. 
 

3.1 Public Employee Performance Evaluation Gov. Code 54957 
 -Superintendent 

 
4.      OPEN SESSION/CALL TO ORDER          

  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE/ROLL CALL     
Mr. Rafanelli moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn closed session 
and return to open session at 8:45 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

   
5.     ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION DECISIONS 

Mrs. Wood announced that no action was taken in closed session. 
 
6. ADJOURN 

Mrs. Evers moved and Mr. Gospe seconded to adjourn the meeting at 
8:45 p.m.:  Unanimous. 

 
 
 
Cynthia Evers 
Clerk to the Board  















Rincon Valley Union School District
Organizational Chart 2017-2018

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

SUPERINTENDENT

ASSISTANT 
SUPERINTENDENT 
STUDENT SERVICES

 DEPUTY 
SUPERINTENDENT,      
BUSINESS SERVICES

 ASSISTANT 
SUPERINTENDENT 
CURRICULUM AND 

INSTRUCTION

 MAINTENANCE & 
OPERATIONS 
SUPERVISOR

CUSTODIAL & 
FOOD SERVICE 
COORDINATOR

 MUSIC
TEACHERS

 PAYROLL 
TECHNICIAN

TRANSPORTATION 
SUPERVISOR

 DIRECTOR OF 
TECHNOLOGY 

SERVICES

 NURSES

PSYCHOLOGISTS 

SPEECH AND 
LANGUAGE 
THERAPISTS

 COUNSELORS/
INTERNS

ADAPTIVE PE 
TEACHER 

 SPECIAL ED 
OFFICE MANAGER CURRICULUM 

OFFICE MANAGER

 SCIENCE 
FACILITATORS

EL ASSISTANTS / 
BFLS 

 STUDENT 
SUPPORT 

COORDINATORS

 CONSULTING 
TEACHERS

 LIBRARY CLERKS

ART/DANCE DOCENT 
COORDINATOR 

 HUMAN RESOURCES 
OFFICER 

(CONFIDENTIAL)

 ADMINISTRATIVE 
ASSISTANT

(CONFIDENTIAL) 

 PE PARAEDUCATORS

DIRECTOR OF 
FISCAL SERVICES

 ACCOUNTS 
PAYABLE 

TECHNICIAN

 DISTRICT 
TECHNICIANS

 COOKS

 CASHIERS

MAINTENANCE 
WORKERS 

CUSTODIANS 

BUS DRIVERS 

 BUS AIDES

 AFTER SCHOOL 
PROGRAMS 
DIRECTOR

SITE DAY CARE 
COORDINATORS WAREHOUSE 

 PRINCIPALS

HUMAN 
RESOURCES 
ASSISTANT

DISTRICT OFFICE 
ASSISTANT

AFTER SCHOOL 
PROGRAMS 

COORDINATOR

SITE DAY CARE 
ASSISTANTS

VAN DRIVERS

RSP TEACHERS

BEHAVIORISTS

SPECIAL ED 
PROGRAM 
SPECIALIST

OCCUPATIONAL 
THERAPISTS

RVP PROGRAM 
MANAGER

RVP TEACHERS

RVP 
INSTRUCTIONAL 

ASSISTANTS

SDC TEACHERS

SPECIAL ED 
SPECIALIST

SPECIAL ED 
ASSISTANTS



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0000(a) 
 
VISION 
 
 
The Governing Board believes that a clearly stated purpose and direction for the district 
provide the foundation for continuous improvement and accountability. The Board shall 
adopt a long-range vision for district programs and activities that focuses on the achievement 
and well-being of all students and reflects the importance of preparing students for the future 
academically, professionally, and personally. The vision shall recognize the unique role of 
students, parents/guardians, staff, and community partners in contributing to a high-quality 
education for all students. The district's vision may be incorporated into its mission or 
purpose statement, philosophy or motto, long-term goals, short-term objectives, and 
comprehensive plans such as the local control and accountability plan (LCAP). 
 
(cf. 0100 - Philosophy) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall recommend an appropriate process, with clearly 
defined procedures, timelines, and responsibilities, for establishing, reviewing, and updating 
the district's vision statements. This process shall include a review of relevant district 
documents and data including, but not limited to, information about student demographics, 
student achievement, current programs, and emerging educational issues. The process shall 
incorporate an analysis and identification of district strengths and areas in which growth is 
needed. Input shall be solicited from parents/guardians, students, staff, and community 
members through methods such as surveys, focus groups, advisory committees, and/or public 
meetings and forums. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
(cf. 2230 - Representative and Deliberative Groups) 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
The Board shall review the district's vision statements annually, in conjunction with the 
update to the LCAP, to ensure consistency among all documents that set direction for the 
district. Following these reviews, the Board may revise or reaffirm the direction it has 
established for the district. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall communicate the district's vision to staff, 
parents/guardians, and the community. 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
(cf. 1100 - Communication with the Public) 
 
Board decisions regarding curriculum, policies, the budget, collective bargaining agreements, 
and other district operations shall be aligned with the district's vision. In addition, the 
Superintendent or designee shall ensure that staff's implementation of district programs and 
activities supports attainment of the district's vision. 
 



 BP 0000(b) 
 
 
VISION  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall regularly report to the Board regarding district progress 
toward the vision. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 
May 2017 
Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 
Achievement, August 7, 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 4: Governance Decisions, Governance Brief, June 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans BP 0100(a) 
 
PHILOSOPHY 
 
 
In order to establish and support a guiding vision for the district, the Governing Board shall 
develop, articulate, and regularly review an overarching set of fundamental principles which 
describe the district's core beliefs, values, and tenets. The Board and district staff shall 
incorporate these principles into all programs, activities, and operations of the district. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
 
It is the philosophy of the district that: 
 
1. All students can learn and succeed. 
 
2. Every student should have an opportunity to receive a quality education regardless of 

his/her social, cultural, or economic background. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
3. Every student in the district has a right to be free from discrimination, harassment, 

intimidation, and bullying, as prohibited by law or district policy. 
 
4. The future of our nation and community depends on students possessing the skills to 

be lifelong learners, collaborative and creative problem solvers, and effective, 
contributing members of a global and technologically advanced society. 

 
5. Highly skilled and dedicated teachers and educational support staff have the capacity 

to guide students toward individual achievement and growth, and have a direct and 
powerful influence on student learning and life experiences. 

 
6. A safe, nurturing environment and positive school climate are necessary for learning, 

academic achievement, and student development. 
 
(cf. 5131.2 - Bullying) 
(cf. 5137 - Positive School Climate) 
 
7. Parents/guardians have a right and an obligation to be engaged in their child's 

education and to be involved in the intellectual, physical, emotional, and social 
development and well-being of their child. 

 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
8. The needs of the whole child must be addressed, as the ability of children to learn is 

affected by social, health, and economic conditions and other factors outside the 
classroom. 



 BP 0100(b) 
 
 
PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 
 
 
9. Early identification of learning and behavioral difficulties and timely and appropriate 

support and intervention contribute to student success. 
 
10. Students and staff are encouraged and motivated by high expectations and recognition 

for their accomplishments. 
 
11. School improvement is a dynamic process requiring flexibility and innovation to meet 

the needs of students in a changing world. 
 
12. Professional development for the Board and district staff is essential for the growth 

and success of the district and its students. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4231 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4331 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
13. The diversity of the student body and school staff enriches the learning experience, 

promotes cultural awareness and acceptance, and serves as a model for citizenship in 
a global society. 

 
14. A common set of norms and protocols is crucial to effective governance. 
 
15. Communication, trust, respect, collaboration, and teamwork strengthen the 

relationship among Board members and between the Board and Superintendent, and 
contribute to the effectiveness of the governance team. 

 
16. The community and district are inextricably connected partners, wherein the 

community's engagement in issues that impact the schools enhances the district's 
programs and student learning. 

 
(cf. 1000 - Concepts and Roles) 
 
17. Two-way communication with all stakeholders is essential for establishing continuity, 

support, and shared goals both within the district and with the surrounding 
community. 

 
18. The Board has a responsibility to advocate on behalf all students, keep current on 

legislative issues affecting education, and build positive relationships with local, 
state, and federal representatives. 

 
19. A fiscally sound budget which is reflective of the district's vision is imperative to the 

financial stability of the district and to the attainment of its goals. 
 



 BP 0100(c) 
 
 
PHILOSOPHY  (continued) 
 
 
20. Responsibility for district programs and operations is shared by the entire educational 

community, with ultimate accountability resting with the Board as the basic 
embodiment of representative government. 

 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
51002  Local development of programs based on stated philosophy and goals 
51019  Definition of philosophy 
51100-51101  Parental involvement 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
The School Board Role in Creating the Conditions for Student Achievement: A Review of the Research, 
May 2017 
Governing to Achieve: A Synthesis of Research on School Governance to Support Student 
Achievement, August 7, 2014 
Defining Governance, Issue 2: Governing Commitments, Governance Brief, February 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
National School Climate Center: http://schoolclimate.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Philosophy, Goals, Objectives, and Comprehensive Plans E 0420.41(a) 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT 
 
 

REQUIREMENTS FOR CHARTER SCHOOLS 
 
Charter schools shall be subject to the terms of their charters, any memorandum of 
understanding with their chartering authority, and other legal requirements that are expressly 
applicable to charter schools, including, but not limited to, requirements that each charter 
school: 
 
1. Be nonsectarian in its programs, admission policies, employment practices, and all 

other operations  (Education Code 47605) 
 
2. Not discriminate against any student on the basis of the characteristics listed in 

Education Code 220  (Education Code 47605) 
 
3. Not charge tuition  (Education Code 47605) 
 
4. Not charge student fees for any activity that is an integral component of the 

educational program, except as authorized by those Education Code provisions that 
explicitly apply to charter schools 

 
5. Adhere to all laws establishing the minimum age for public school attendance 

(Education Code 47610) 
 
6. Serve students who are California residents and who, if over 19 years of age, are 

continuously enrolled in a public school and making "satisfactory progress" toward a 
high school diploma as defined in 5 CCR 11965  (Education Code 47612) 

 
7. Serve students with disabilities in the same manner as such students are served in 

other public schools  (Education Code 47646, 56145) 
 
8. Admit all students who wish to attend the school, according to the following criteria 

and procedures: 
 
a. Admission to the charter school shall not be determined according to the 

student's place of residence, or that of his/her parents/guardians, within the 
state, except that any existing public school converting partially or entirely to 
a charter school shall adopt and maintain a policy giving admission preference 
to students who reside within the school's former attendance area.  (Education 
Code 47605) 
 
If a charter school will be physically located in a public elementary school 
attendance area in which 50 percent or more of the student enrollment is 
eligible for free or reduced-price meals, it may also establish an admission  
 
 



 E 0420.41(b) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 

 
preference for students who are currently enrolled in the public elementary 
school and for students who reside in the public school attendance area.  
(Education Code 47605.3) 

 
b. If the number of students who wish to attend the charter school exceeds the 

school's capacity, attendance, except for existing students of the charter 
school, shall be determined by a public random drawing. Preference shall be 
extended to students currently attending the charter school and students who 
reside in the district, except as provided for in Education Code 47614.5.  
(Education Code 47605) 

 
c. Other admission preferences may be permitted by the chartering district on an 

individual school basis consistent with law.  (Education Code 47605) 
 
9. Immediately enroll a homeless student, except where such enrollment would conflict 

with Education Code 47605(d)  (Education Code 48850; 42 USC 11431-11435) 
 
10. Comply with the requirements of Education Code 48850-48859 regarding the 

enrollment and placement of foster youth  (Education Code 48853.5, 48859) 
 
11. If the school offers a kindergarten program:  (Education Code 48000) 

 
a. Offer a transitional kindergarten (TK) program to students whose fifth 

birthday is from September 2 through December 2 
 
b. Ensure that any credentialed teacher first assigned to teach a TK class after 

July 1, 2015 meets the qualifications specified in Education Code 48000 by 
August 1, 2020 

 
12. Require its teachers to hold a certificate, permit, or other document issued by the 

Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC) equivalent to that which a teacher in 
other public schools would be required to hold  (Education Code 47605) 

 
13. Provide annual training on child abuse and neglect reporting requirements to 

employees and persons working on the school's behalf who are mandated reporters, 
within the first six weeks of each school year or within six weeks of employment  
(Education Code 44691) 

 
14. Not hire any person who has been convicted of a violent or serious felony except as 

otherwise provided by law, and, if the school contracts with an entity for specified 
services, verify that any employee of that entity who will have contact with students 
has had a criminal background check  (Education Code 44830.1, 45122.1, 45125.1) 

 



 E 0420.41(c) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
15. Report to the CTC any change in a certificated employee's employment status 

(dismissal, nonreelection, resignation, suspension, unpaid administrative leave for 
more than 10 days, retirement, or other decision not to employ or reemploy) as a 
result of an allegation of misconduct or while an allegation of misconduct is pending 
(Education Code 44030.5) 

 
16. Meet the requirements of Education Code 47611 regarding the State Teachers' 

Retirement System  (Education Code 47610) 
 
17. Meet the requirements of Government Code 3540-3549.3 related to collective 

bargaining in public education employment  (Education Code 47611.5) 
 
18. If the school serves students in grades 7-12, adopt a policy on suicide prevention, 

intervention, and postvention with specified components (Education Code 215) 
 
19. If the school serves students in grade 9, adopt a fair, objective, and transparent 

mathematics placement policy with specified components (Education Code 51224.7) 
 
20. Meet all statewide standards and conduct any statewide assessments applicable to 

noncharter public schools  (Education Code 47605, 47612.5, 60605, 60850-60859) 
 
21. Until July 31, 2018, grant a high school diploma to any student who completed grade 

12 in the 2003-04 school year or a subsequent school year and who has met all 
applicable graduation requirements other than the passage of the high school exit 
examination  (Education Code 60851.6) 

 
22. Offer at least the number of instructional minutes required by law for the grade levels 

provided by the charter school  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
23. If the school provides independent study, meet the requirements of Education Code 

51745-51749.3, except that the school may be allowed to offer courses required for 
graduation solely through independent study as an exception to Education Code 
51745(e)  (Education Code 47612.5, 51747.3; 5 CCR 11705) 

 
24. Identify and report to the Superintendent of Public Instruction (SPI) any portion of its 

average daily attendance that is generated through nonclassroom-based instruction, 
including, but not limited to, independent study, home study, work study, and 
distance and computer-based education  (Education Code 47612.5, 47634.2; 5 CCR 
11963.2) 

 
25. If the school offers competitive athletics, annually post on the school's web site or on 

the web site of the charter operator the total enrollment of the school classified by  
 



 E 0420.41(d) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
 gender, the number of students who participate in competitive athletics classified by 

gender, and the number of boys' and girls' teams classified by sport and by 
competition level  (Education Code 221.9) 

 
26. If the school offers an athletic program, annually provide information sheets about 

concussions/head injuries and sudden cardiac arrest to athletes and their 
parents/guardians, which must be signed and returned to the school before the athlete 
initiates practice or competition. In the event that an athlete is suspected of sustaining 
a concussion or head injury, passes out, or faints during or immediately after 
participation in an athletic activity, he/she shall be immediately removed from the 
activity for the remainder of the day and shall not be permitted to return to the activity 
until he/she is evaluated by a licensed health care provider and receives written 
clearance to do so.  (Education Code 33479-33479.5, 49475) 

 
27. On a regular basis, consult with parents/guardians and teachers regarding the school's 

educational programs  (Education Code 47605) 
 
28. Provide students the right to exercise freedom of speech and of the press including, 

but not limited to, the use of bulletin boards; the distribution of printed materials or 
petitions; the wearing of buttons, badges, and other insignia; and the right of 
expression in official publications  (Education Code 48907, 48950) 

 
29. Maintain written contemporaneous records that document all student attendance and 

make these records available for audit and inspection  (Education Code 47612.5) 
 
30. If a student subject to compulsory full-time education is expelled or leaves the charter 

school without graduating or completing the school year for any reason, notify the 
Superintendent of the school district of the student's last known address within 30 
days and, upon request, provide that district with a copy of the student's cumulative 
record, including a transcript of grades or report card, and health information 
(Education Code 47605) 

 
31. If the school serves high school students, submit to the Student Aid Commission, for 

use in the Cal Grant program, the grade point average (GPA) of all students in grade 
12 and verification of high school graduation or its equivalent for students who 
graduated in the prior academic year. However, such information shall not be 
submitted when students opt out or are permitted by the rules of the Student Aid 
Commission to provide test scores in lieu of the GPA.  (Education Code 69432.9, 
69432.92) 

 
32. Develop a transportation safety plan that includes procedures to ensure that a student 

is not left unattended on a school bus, student activity bus, youth bus, or child care  
 



 E 0420.41(e) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
 motor vehicle and procedures and standards for designating an adult chaperone, other 

than the driver, to accompany students on a school activity bus (Education Code 
39831.3) 

 
33. Comply with the California Building Standards Code as adopted and enforced by the 

local building enforcement agency with jurisdiction over the area in which the charter 
school is located, unless the charter school facility meets either of the following 
conditions:  (Education Code 47610, 47610.5) 

 
a. The facility complies with the Field Act pursuant to Education Code 17280-

17317 and 17365-17374. 
 
b. The facility is exclusively owned or controlled by an entity that is not subject 

to the California Building Standards Code, including, but not limited to, the 
federal government. 

 
34. Provide reasonable accommodations on campus to a lactating student to express 

breast milk, breastfeed an infant child, or address other needs related to breastfeeding  
(Education Code 222) 

 
35. Ensure the availability and proper use of emergency epinephrine auto-injectors by:  

(Education Code 49414) 
 
a. Providing school nurses or other voluntary, trained personnel with at least one 

regular and one junior device for elementary schools and, for secondary 
schools, one regular device if there are no students who require a junior device 

 
b. Distributing a notice at least once per school year to all staff requesting 

volunteers and describing the training that volunteers will receive 
 
c. Providing defense and indemnification to volunteers for any and all civil 

liability from such administration 
 
36. If the school chooses to make an opioid antagonist available to persons suffering, or 

reasonably believed to be suffering, from an opioid overdose, comply with the 
requirements of Education Code 49414.3, including, but not limited to, providing 
training to personnel who volunteer to administer the opioid antagonist 

 
37. Promptly respond to all reasonable inquiries from the district, the county office of 

education, or the SPI, including, but not limited to, inquiries regarding the school's 
financial records  (Education Code 47604.3) 

 
 



 E 0420.41(f) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
38. Annually prepare and submit financial reports to the district Governing Board and the 

County Superintendent of Schools in accordance with the following reporting cycle: 
 
a. By July 1, a preliminary budget for the current fiscal year. For a charter school 

in its first year of operation, financial statements submitted with the charter 
petition pursuant to Education Code 47605(g) will satisfy this requirement.  
(Education Code 47604.33) 

 
b. By July 1 each year, an update of the school's goals and the actions to achieve 

those goals as identified in the charter, developed using the local control and 
accountability plan template adopted by the State Board of Education. This 
report shall include a review of the progress toward the goals, an assessment 
of the effectiveness of the specific actions toward achieving the goals, a 
description of changes the school will make to the specific actions as a result 
of the review and assessment, and a listing and description of expenditures for 
the fiscal year implementing the specific actions.  (Education Code 47604.33, 
47606.5, 52064) 

 
 When conducting this review, the governing body of the school may consider 

qualitative information including, but not limited to, findings that result from 
any school quality reviews conducted pursuant to Education Code 52052 or 
any other reviews. To the extent practicable, data shall be reported in a 
manner consistent with how information is reported on a school accountability 
report card. The update shall be developed in consultation with teachers, 
principals, administrators, other school personnel, parents/guardians and 
students.  (Education Code 47606.5) 

 
c. By December 15, an interim financial report for the current fiscal year 

reflecting changes through October 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 
 
d. By March 15, a second interim financial report for the current fiscal year 

reflecting changes through January 31.  (Education Code 47604.33) 
 
e. By September 15, a final unaudited report for the full prior year.  The report 

submitted to the Board shall include an annual statement of all the charter 
school's receipts and expenditures for the preceding fiscal year.  (Education 
Code 42100, 47604.33) 

 
f. By December 15, a copy of the charter school's annual, independent financial 

audit report for the preceding fiscal year, unless the charter school's audit is 
encompassed in the district's audit. The audit report shall also be submitted to 
the State Controller and the California Department of Education.  (Education 
Code 47605) 



 E 0420.41(g) 
 
 
CHARTER SCHOOL OVERSIGHT  (continued) 
 
 
39. Post specified information related to the prohibition against discrimination under Title 

IX of the Education Amendments of 1972 in a prominent and conspicuous location 
on the school web site or on the web site of the charter operator (Education Code 
221.61) 

 
40. If a direct-funded charter school, adopt and implement uniform complaint procedures 

to resolve complaints of unlawful discrimination or alleged violation of a state or 
federal law or regulation governing educational programs, in accordance with 5 CCR 
4600-4670  (5 CCR 4600) 

 
41. Annually adopt a school accountability report card (Education Code 47612; 

California Constitution, Article 16, Section 8.5) 
 
In addition, charter schools shall comply with the state and federal constitutions, applicable 
federal laws, and state laws that apply to governmental agencies in general, such as the 
Brown Act requirements in Government Code 54950-54963 and the conflict of interest laws 
in Government Code 1090-1099 and 87100-91014. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: July 2017 



Administration BP 2140(a) 
 
EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes its responsibility to establish an evaluation system that 
enables a fair assessment of the Superintendent's effectiveness in leading the district toward 
established goals, serves to support his/her continued growth in leadership and management 
skills, and provides a basis for Board decisions regarding contract extension and 
compensation. The Board shall annually conduct a formal evaluation of the Superintendent's 
performance and may provide additional opportunities throughout the year to review the 
Superintendent's progress toward meeting established goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
(cf. 2121 - Superintendent's Contract) 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
The Board shall determine, with the Superintendent's input, the criteria, schedule, method(s), 
and instrument(s) to be used for the Superintendent's evaluation. Evaluation criteria shall 
include, but are not limited to, district goals and success indicators; educational, 
management, and community leadership skills; and the Superintendent's professional 
relationship with the Board. 
 
(cf. 2110 - Superintendent Responsibilities and Duties) 
(cf. 2111 - Superintendent Governance Standards) 
 
Prior to the evaluation, the Superintendent shall provide to the Board for its review a report 
of progress toward district goals, the Superintendent's self-appraisal of accomplishments and 
performance, and a statement of actions taken to address any Board recommendations from 
the previous evaluation. 
 
Each Board member shall independently evaluate the Superintendent's performance based 
upon the evaluation criteria, after which the Board shall produce a single document that 
integrates the individual evaluations and represents the consensus of the Board. 
 
(cf. 9121 - President) 
 
The evaluation shall provide commendations in areas of strength and achievement and 
recommendations for improving effectiveness in any areas of need, concern, or 
unsatisfactory performance. 
 
The Board shall meet in closed session with the Superintendent to discuss the evaluation.  
(Government Code 54957) 
 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
(cf. 9321.1 - Closed Session Actions and Reports) 
 
 



 BP 2140(b) 
 
 
EVALUATION OF THE SUPERINTENDENT  (continued) 
 
 
At this meeting, the Superintendent shall have an opportunity to ask questions, respond 
verbally and in writing to the evaluation, and present additional information regarding his/her 
performance or district progress. 
 
The discussion shall include the establishment of performance goals for the next year and 
may identify professional development opportunities for the Superintendent and/or the entire 
governance team to address areas of concern, strengthen the relationship between the 
Superintendent and Board, or enhance the Superintendent's knowledge of current educational 
issues and leadership and management skills. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
(cf. 9400 - Board Self-Evaluation) 
 
After the Board and Superintendent have discussed the evaluation, the Board president and 
Superintendent shall sign the evaluation and it shall be placed in the Superintendent's 
personnel file. The evaluation, including personal performance goals, shall be confidential to 
the extent permitted by law. 
 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
6254.8  Public Records Act; employment contracts 
54957  Closed session, personnel matters 
COURT DECISIONS 
Versaci v. Superior Court, (2005) 127 Cal.App.4th 805 
Duval v. Board of Trustees, (2001) 93 Cal.App.4th 902 

 
Management Resources: 

WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 
Association of California School Administrators: http://www.acsa.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Certificated Personnel AR 4112.2(a) 
 
CERTIFICATION 
 
 
Verification of Credentials 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that each employee in a position requiring 
certification qualifications possesses a valid certification document issued by the 
Commission on Teacher Credentialing (CTC). Such verification shall occur not later than 60 
days after the commencement of employment or the renewal of a credential.  (Education 
Code 44857) 
 
(cf. 4112.21 - Interns) 
(cf. 4112.22 - Staff Teaching English Learners) 
(cf. 4112.23 - Special Education Staff) 
(cf. 4121 - Temporary/Substitute Personnel) 
(cf. 5148 - Child Care and Development) 
(cf. 6178 - Career Technical Education) 
(cf. 6200 - Adult Education) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall verify that any person who is employed by the district 
while his/her application for certification is being processed by the CTC possesses a 
temporary certificate based on a demonstration of basic skills and completion of a criminal 
background check.  (Education Code 44332, 44332.5, 44332.6) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain records of the appropriate certification of all 
employees serving in certificated positions. 
 
(cf. 3580 - District Records) 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
 
Basic Skills Proficiency 
 
The district shall not initially hire a person in a position requiring certification, on a 
permanent, temporary, or substitute basis, unless that person has demonstrated basic skills 
proficiency in reading, writing, and mathematics or is specifically exempted from the 
requirement by law.  (Education Code 44252, 44252.6, 44830) 
 
The district may hire a certificated employee who has not taken a test of basic skills 
proficiency if he/she has not yet been afforded the opportunity to take the test, provided that 
he/she takes the test at the earliest opportunity. The employee may remain employed by the 
district pending the receipt of his/her test results.  (Education Code 44830) 
 
An out-of-state prepared teacher shall meet the basic skills requirement within one year of 
being issued a California preliminary credential by the CTC unless he/she has completed a 
basic skills proficiency test in another state or is otherwise exempted by law.  The district 
shall develop a basic skills proficiency test, which shall be at least equivalent to the district 
test required for high school graduation, for purposes of assessing out-of-state prepared 
teachers pending completion of the basic skills requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 
44274.2; 5 CCR 80071.4, 80413.3) 



 AR 4112.2(b) 
 
 

CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6146.2 - Certificate of Proficiency) 
(cf. 6162.5 - High School Exit Examination) 
 
Any person holding or applying for a "designated subjects special subjects" credential which 
does not require possession of a bachelor's degree shall pass a district proficiency test in lieu 
of meeting the state basic skills proficiency requirement.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 

The district may charge a fee to cover the costs of developing, administering, and grading the 
district proficiency test.  (Education Code 44252, 44830) 
 
Short-Term Staff Permit 
 

The district may request that the CTC issue a short-term staff permit (STSP) to a qualified 
applicant whenever there is a need to immediately fill a classroom based on unforeseen 
circumstances, including, but not limited to:  (5 CCR 80021) 
 
1. Enrollment adjustments requiring the addition of another teacher 
 

2. Inability of the teacher of record to finish the school year due to approved leave or 
illness 

 
3. The applicant's need for additional time to complete preservice requirements for 

enrollment into an approved intern program 
 

4. Inability of the applicant to enroll in an approved intern program due to timelines or 
lack of space in the program 

 

5. Unavailability of a third-year extension of an intern program or the applicant's 
withdrawal from an intern program 

 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that the applicant possesses a bachelor's or 
higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university, has met the basic skills 
proficiency requirement unless exempted by state law or regulations, and has satisfied the 
coursework/experience requirements specified in 5 CCR 80021 for the multiple subject, 
single subject, or education specialist STSP as appropriate.  (5 CCR 80021) 
 

When requesting issuance of an STSP, the Superintendent or designee shall submit to the 
CTC:  (5 CCR 80021) 
 

1. Verification that the district has conducted a local recruitment for the permit being 
requested 

 
2. Verification that the district has provided the permit holder with orientation to the 

curriculum and to instruction and classroom management techniques and has assigned 
a mentor teacher for the term of the permit 



 AR 4112.2(c) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
(cf. 4131.1 - Teacher Support and Guidance) 
 
3. Written justification for the permit signed by the Superintendent or designee 
 
The holder of an STSP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple 
subject, single subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the 
authorizations specified on the permit.  (5 CCR 80021) 
 
Provisional Internship Permit 
 
Before requesting that the CTC issue a provisional internship permit (PIP), the district shall 
conduct a diligent search for a suitable credentialed teacher or intern, including, but not 
limited to, distributing job announcements, contacting college and university placement 
centers, and advertising in print or electronic media.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
(cf. 4111/4211/4311 - Recruitment and Selection) 
 
Whenever a suitable credentialed teacher cannot be found after a diligent search, the 
Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue a PIP to an applicant who 
possesses a bachelor's or higher degree from a regionally accredited college or university, has 
met the basic skills proficiency requirement unless exempted by state law or regulations, and 
has satisfied the coursework/experience requirements specified in 5 CCR 80021.1 for the 
multiple subject, single subject, or education specialist PIP as appropriate.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
When submitting the request for a PIP, the district shall provide verification of all of the 
following:  (5 CCR 80021.1, 80026.5) 
 
1. A diligent search has been conducted for a suitable credentialed teacher or suitable 

qualified intern as evidenced by documentation of the search. 
 
2. Orientation, guidance, and assistance shall be provided to the permit holder as 

specified in 5 CCR 80026.5. 
 
The orientation shall include, but not be limited to, an overview of the curriculum the 
permit holder is expected to teach and effective instruction and classroom 
management techniques at the permit holder's assigned level. The permit holder also 
shall receive guidance and assistance from an experienced educator who is a 
certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a California district or 
county office of education and who has completed at least three years of full-time 
classroom teaching experience. 

 
 
 



 AR 4112.2(d) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
3. The district shall assist the permit holder in developing a personalized plan through a 

district-selected assessment that would lead to subject-matter competence related to 
the permit. 

 
4. The district shall assist the permit holder to seek and enroll in subject-matter training, 

such as workshops or seminars and site-based courses, along with training in test-
taking strategies, and shall assist the permit holder in meeting the credential subject-
matter competence requirement related to the permit. 

 
5. A notice of intent to employ the applicant in the identified position has been made 

public. 
 
The district shall submit a copy of the agenda item presented at a public Governing 
Board meeting which shall state the name of the applicant, the assignment in which 
the applicant will be employed including the name of the school, subject(s), and 
grade(s) that he/she will be teaching, and that the applicant will be employed on the 
basis of a PIP. The district also shall submit a signed statement from the 
Superintendent or designee that the agenda item was acted upon favorably. 

 
6. The candidate has been apprised of steps to earn a credential and enroll in an intern 

program. 
 
The holder of a PIP may be assigned to provide the same service as a holder of a multiple 
subject, single subject, or education specialist credential in accordance with the 
authorizations specified on the permit.  (5 CCR 80021.1) 
 
Teaching Permit for Statutory Leave 
 
Whenever there is an anticipated need for the district to temporarily fill the teaching 
assignment of a teacher of record who will be on sick leave, differential sick leave, industrial 
accident or illness leave, pregnancy disability leave, or family care and medical leave under 
the federal Family and Medical Leave Act or California Family Rights Act, the 
Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue a Teaching Permit for Statutory 
Leave (TPSL) to a qualified individual who will be serving as the interim teacher of record. 
Prior to submitting an application to the CTC, the district shall provide the applicant with 45 
hours of preparation in the content areas listed in 5 CCR 80022.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
(cf. 4161.1 - Personal Illness and Injury Leave) 
(cf. 4161.11 - Industrial Accident/Illness Leave) 
(cf. 4161.8 - Family Care and Medical Leave) 
 
A request for the TPSL shall only be submitted if the district has made reasonable efforts to 
hire a substitute with a full teaching credential that matches the setting and/or subject for the 
statutory leave position and no such candidate is available.  (5 CCR 80022) 



 AR 4112.2(e) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
The district shall verify to the CTC that it will provide the interim teacher:  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
1. An orientation to the assignment before or during the first month of service in the 

statutory leave assignment 
 
2. An average of two hours of mentoring, support, and/or coaching per week through a 

system of support coordinated and/or provided by a mentor who possesses a valid life 
or clear credential that would also authorize service in the statutory leave assignment 

 
3. Lesson plans for the first four weeks of the assignment as well as continued assistance 

in the development of curriculum, lesson planning, and individualized education 
programs 

 
The holder of the TPSL may serve as the interim teacher of record for up to the full length of 
the leave(s) during the school year.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall maintain documentation on the assignment in 
accordance with 5 CCR 80022. He/she shall annually report data on the use of the TPSL to 
the County Superintendent of Schools for assignment monitoring pursuant to Education Code 
44258.9.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
(cf. 4113 - Assignment) 
 
The Superintendent or designee may annually request renewal of the TPSL, provided that no 
substitute with a full teaching credential is available for the assignment. The application for 
each reissuance shall include verification that the interim teacher has completed an additional 
45 hours of preparation and the district is continuing to provide mentoring in accordance with 
items #2-3 above.  (5 CCR 80022) 
 
Long-Term Emergency Permits 
 
As necessary, the Superintendent or designee may request that the CTC issue an emergency 
resource specialist permit, emergency teacher librarian services permit, emergency 
crosscultural language and academic development permit, or emergency bilingual 
authorization permit.  (5 CCR 80024.3.1, 80024.6, 80024.7, 80024.8) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide any first-time recipient of an emergency 
teaching permit with an orientation which, to the extent reasonably feasible, shall occur 
before he/she begins a teaching assignment. The Superintendent or designee may vary the 
nature, content, and duration of the orientation to match the amount of training and 
experience previously completed by the emergency permit teacher. The orientation shall 
include, but not be limited to, the curriculum the teacher is expected to teach and effective  
 



 AR 4112.2(f) 
 
 
CERTIFICATION  (continued) 
 
 
techniques of classroom instruction and classroom management at the assigned grade-level 
span. The emergency permit holder also shall receive guidance and assistance from an 
experienced educator who is a certificated district employee or a certificated retiree from a 
California district or county office of education and who has completed at least three years of 
full-time classroom teaching experience.  (5 CCR 80026.5) 
 
(cf. 4117.14/4317.14 - Postretirement Employment) 
 
Substitute Teaching Permits 
 
The district may employ a person whose credential or permit authorizes substitute teaching 
services, provided that: 
 
1. A person holding an emergency 30-day substitute teaching permit, STSP, PIP, TPSL, 

or any valid teaching or services credential that requires at least a bachelor's degree 
and completion of the California Basic Educational Skills Test, shall not serve as a 
substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school year. He/she 
shall not serve as a substitute in a special education classroom for more than 20 days 
for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025, 80025.3, 80025.4) 

 
2. A person with an emergency career substitute teaching permit shall not serve as a 

substitute for more than 60 days for any one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 
80025.1) 

 
3. A person with an emergency substitute teaching permit for prospective teachers shall 

not serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any one teacher during the school 
year and not more than 90 days total during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.2) 
 

4. A person with an emergency designated subjects 30-day substitute teaching permit 
for career technical education shall teach only in a program of technical, trade, or 
vocational education and shall not serve as a substitute for more than 30 days for any 
one teacher during the school year.  (5 CCR 80025.5) 

 
Before employing a person with an emergency substitute permit pursuant to item #1 or #4 
above, the Superintendent or designee shall prepare and keep on file a signed Statement of 
Need for the school year. The Statement of Need shall describe the situation or circumstances 
that necessitate the use of a 30-day substitute permit holder and state either that a 
credentialed person is not available or that the available credentialed person does not meet 
the district's specified employment criteria.  (5 CCR 80025, 80025.5) 
 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: July 2017 



All Personnel AR 4112.61 
 4212.61 
EMPLOYMENT REFERENCES 4312.61 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall be responsible for processing requests for employment 
references, letters of recommendation, or information about the reasons for separation 
regarding all district employees other than himself/herself. All letters of recommendation to 
be issued on behalf of the district for current or former employees shall be approved by the 
Superintendent or designee. At his/her discretion, the Superintendent or designee may refuse 
to give a recommendation. 
 
The Superintendent or designee may communicate information about the job performance or 
qualifications of a current or former district employee when such information is based upon 
credible evidence and is given to a prospective employer without malice and at the 
prospective employer's request.  (Civil Code 47) 
 
Any reference, letter of recommendation, or information provided about the reasons for 
separation issued on behalf of the district shall provide a truthful and accurate account of the 
employee's job performance and qualifications. 
 
(cf. 4112.6/4212.6/4312.6 - Personnel Files) 
(cf. 4117.5/4217.5/4317.5 - Termination Agreements) 
 
No certificated employee shall write or sign any letter or memorandum which intentionally 
omits significant facts, or which states as facts matters which the writer does not know of 
his/her own knowledge to be true, relating to the professional qualifications or personal 
fitness to perform certificated services of any person who the writer knows will use the letter 
or memorandum to obtain professional employment.  (5 CCR 80332) 
 
No certificated employee shall agree to provide a positive letter of recommendation which 
misrepresents facts as a condition of another employee's resigning or withdrawing action 
against the district.  (5 CCR 80332) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

LABOR CODE 
1050-1054  Reemployment privileges 
CIVIL CODE 
47  Privileged communication 
CODE OF CIVIL PROCEDURE 
527.3  Labor disputes 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
80332  Professional candor and honesty in letters or memoranda of employment recommendation 
COURT DECISIONS 
Randi W. v. Muroc Joint Unified School District et al., (1997) 14 Cal. 4th 1066 

 
 
Regulation CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
approved: July 2017 



Instruction BP 6161.1(a) 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires that district instructional materials, as a whole, present a broad 
spectrum of knowledge and viewpoints, reflect society's diversity, and enhance the use of 
multiple teaching strategies and technologies. The Board shall adopt instructional materials 
based on a determination that such materials are an effective learning resource to help 
students achieve grade-level competency and that the materials meet criteria specified in law. 
Textbooks, technology-based materials, and other educational materials shall be aligned with 
academic content standards and the district's curriculum to ensure that they effectively 
support the district's adopted courses of study. 
 
(cf. 0440 - District Technology Plan) 
(cf. 6000 - Concepts and Roles) 
(cf. 6011 - Academic Standards) 
(cf. 6141 - Curriculum Development and Evaluation) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
(cf. 6161.11 - Supplementary Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6163.1 - Library Media Centers) 
 
The Board shall select instructional materials for use in grades K-8 that have been approved 
by the State Board of Education (SBE) or have otherwise been determined to be aligned with 
the state academic content standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605 or the 
Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 60605.8.  (Education 
Code 60200, 60210) 
 
The Board shall adopt instructional materials for grades 9-12 upon determining that the 
materials meet the criteria specified in law and administrative regulation.  (Education Code 
60400) 
 
Review Process 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall establish a process by which instructional materials 
shall be reviewed for recommendation to the Board. Toward that end, he/she may establish 
an instructional materials review committee to evaluate and recommend instructional 
materials. 
 
(cf. 1220 - Citizen Advisory Committees) 
 
The review process shall involve teachers in a substantial manner and shall encourage the 
participation of parents/guardians and community members.  (Education Code 60002) 
 
(cf. 6020 - Parent Involvement) 
 
In addition, the instructional materials review committee may include administrators, other 
staff who have subject-matter expertise, and students as appropriate. 
 



 BP 6161.1(b) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
If the district chooses to use instructional materials for grades K-8 that have not been adopted 
by the SBE, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that a majority of the participants in 
the district's review process are classroom teachers who are assigned to the subject area or 
grade level of the materials.  (Education Code 60210) 
 
Individuals who participate in the selection or review of instructional materials shall not have 
a conflict of interest, as defined in administrative regulation, in the materials being reviewed. 
 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
The committee shall review instructional materials using criteria provided in law and 
administrative regulation, and shall provide the Board with documentation supporting its 
recommendations. 
 
All recommended instructional materials shall be available for public inspection at the 
district office. 
 
(cf. 5020 - Parent Rights and Responsibilities) 
 
The district may pilot instructional materials, using a representative sample of classrooms for 
a specified period of time during a school year, in order to determine how well the materials 
support the district's curricular goals and academic standards. Feedback from teachers 
piloting the materials shall be made available to the Board before the materials are adopted. 
 
Public Hearing on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 
 
The Board shall annually conduct one or more public hearings on the sufficiency of the 
district's textbooks and other instructional materials.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
OPTION 1:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 
day students attend school for that year.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
OPTION 2:  The hearing shall be held on or before the end of the eighth week from the first 
day of the school year of any district school that operates on a multitrack year-round calendar 
that begins its school year in August or September.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
The Board encourages participation by parents/guardians, teachers, interested community 
members, and bargaining unit leaders at the hearing. Ten days prior to the hearing, the 
Superintendent or designee shall post a notice in three public places within the district 
containing the time, place, and purpose of the hearing. The hearing shall not take place 
during or immediately following school hours.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 



 BP 6161.1(c) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
At the hearing(s), the Board shall determine, through a resolution, whether each student in 
each school, including each English learner, has sufficient textbooks or instructional 
materials which are aligned to the state content standards adopted pursuant to Education 
Code 60605 or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to Education Code 
60605.8 and which are consistent with the content and cycles of the state's curriculum 
frameworks. Sufficiency of instructional materials shall be determined in each of the 
following subjects:  (Education Code 60119) 
 
1. Mathematics 
 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
 
2. Science 
 
(cf. 6142.93 - Science Instruction) 
 
3. History-social science 
 
(cf. 6142.94 - History-Social Science Instruction) 
 
4. English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program 
 
(cf. 6142.91 - English/Language Arts Instruction) 
(cf. 6174 - Education for English Learners) 
 
5. World/foreign language 
 
(cf. 6142.2 - World/Foreign Language Instruction) 
 
6. Health 
 
(cf. 6142.8 - Comprehensive Health Education) 
 
The Board shall also determine the availability of science laboratory equipment, as 
applicable to science laboratory courses offered in grades 9-12.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
In making these determinations, the Board shall consider whether each student has sufficient 
textbooks and/or instructional materials to use in class and to take home.  However, this does 
not require that each student have two sets of materials. The materials may be in a digital 
format as long as each student, at a minimum, has and can access the same materials in the 
class and to take home as all other students in the same class or course in the district and has  
 
 



 BP 6161.1(d) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
the ability to use and access them at home. However, the materials shall not be considered 
sufficient if they are photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 
materials copied to address a shortage.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
If the Board determines that there are insufficient textbooks or instructional materials, it shall 
provide information to classroom teachers and to the public setting forth, for each school in 
which an insufficiency exists, the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-
aligned textbooks or instructional materials in each subject area and the reasons that each 
student does not have sufficient textbooks or instructional materials. The Board shall take 
any action, except an action that would require reimbursement by the Commission of State 
Mandates, to ensure that each student has sufficient materials within two months of the 
beginning of the school year in which the determination is made.  (Education Code 60119) 
 
The degree to which every student has sufficient access to standards-aligned instructional 
materials shall be included in the district's local control and accountability plan.  (Education 
Code 52060) 
 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 
 
Complaints 
 
Complaints concerning instructional materials shall be handled in accordance with law, 
Board policy, and administrative regulation. 
 
(cf. 1312.2 - Complaints Concerning Instructional Materials) 
(cf. 1312.4 - Williams Uniform Complaint Procedures) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BP 6161.1(e) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
220  Prohibition against discrimination 
1240  County superintendent, general duties 
33050-33053  General waiver authority 
33126  School accountability report card 
35272  Education and athletic materials 
44805  Enforcement of course of studies; use of textbooks, rules and regulations 
49415  Maximum textbook weight 
51501  Nondiscriminatory subject matter 
52060-52077  Local control and accountability plan 
60000-60005  Instructional materials, legislative intent 
60010  Definitions 
60040-60052  Instructional requirements and materials 
60060-60063.5  Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60070-60076  Prohibited acts (re instructional materials) 
60110-60115  Instructional materials on alcohol and drug education 
60119  Public hearing on sufficiency of materials 
60200-60210  Elementary school materials 
60226 Requirements for publishers and manufacturers 
60350-60352  Core reading program instructional materials 
60400-60411  High school textbooks 
60510-60511  Donation for sale of obsolete instructional materials 
60605  State content standards 
60605.8  Common Core State Standards 
60605.86-60605.88  Supplemental instructional materials aligned with Common Core State Standards 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 5 
9505-9530  Instructional materials 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Instructional Materials FAQ 
01-05  Guidelines for Piloting Textbooks and Instructional Materials, rev. January 2015 
Standards for Evaluating Instructional Materials for Social Content, 2013 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
Association of American Publishers:  http://www.publishers.org 
California Academic Content Standards Commission, Common Core State Standards: 
http://www.scoe.net/castandards 
California Department of Education:  http://www.cde.ca.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Instruction E 6161.1(a) 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
 
 
Resolution On Sufficiency Of Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, the Governing Board of the (name of school district), in order to comply with the 
requirements of Education Code 60119, held a public hearing on (date), at (time) o'clock, 
which is on or before the eighth week of school (between the first day that students attend 
school and the end of the eighth week from that day) and which did not take place during or 
immediately following school hours, and; 
 
Whereas, the Board provided at least 10 days notice of the public hearing by posting it in at 
least three public places within the district stating the time, place, and purpose of the hearing, 
and; 
 
Whereas, the Board encouraged participation by parents/guardians, teachers, members of the 
community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing detailed the extent to which sufficient 
textbooks or instructional materials were provided to all students, including English learners, 
in the (name of school district), and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of "sufficient textbooks or instructional materials" means that each 
student, including each English learner, has a standards-aligned textbook or instructional 
materials to use in class and to take home, which may include materials in a digital format 
but shall not include photocopied sheets from only a portion of a textbook or instructional 
materials copied to address a shortage, and; 
 
Whereas, textbooks or instructional materials in core curriculum subjects should be aligned 
with state academic content standards adopted by the State Board of Education pursuant to 
Education Code 60605 and/or the Common Core State Standards adopted pursuant to 
Education Code 60605.8; 
 
Finding of Sufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks were provided to each student, 
including each English learner, in the following subjects: 
 
 Mathematics:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for 

each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
 



 E 6161.1(b) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
 Science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 History-social science:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 English language arts, including the English language development component of an 

adopted program:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject 
for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 World/foreign language:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this 

subject for each grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 Health:  (List adopted textbooks or instructional materials for this subject for each 

grade level or school as well as applicable state adoption cycle.) 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
Whereas, laboratory science equipment was available for science laboratory classes offered 
in grades 9-12, inclusive; 
 
Therefore, it is resolved that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has 
provided each student with sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials 
that are consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks. 
 
Finding of Insufficient Textbooks or Instructional Materials 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the Board at the public meeting 
detailed that insufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials were provided 
to students in the following subjects and grade levels at district schools:  (For each school, 
list the percentage of students who lack sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or 
instructional materials in mathematics, science, history-social science, English language 
arts, world/foreign language, and health.) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 



 E 6161.1(c) 
 
 
SELECTION AND EVALUATION OF INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS  (continued) 
 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were not provided at each school 
listed above due to the following reasons:  (For each school at which there is an 
insufficiency, list the reasons that each student does not have sufficient instructional 
materials in each subject and grade level listed above.) 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Therefore, it is resolved, that for the (year) school year, the (name of school district) has not 
provided each student with sufficient textbooks or instructional materials that are consistent 
with the cycles and content of the curriculum framework, and; 
 
Be it further resolved, that the following actions will be taken to ensure that all students have 
sufficient standards-aligned textbooks or instructional materials in all subjects that are 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks within two months of 
the beginning of the school year in which this determination is made.  (List actions to be 
taken to resolve insufficiency.) 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS ______ day of ___________, ________ at a meeting, by 
the following vote: 
 
 AYES:______ NOES:______ ABSENT:______ 
 
Attest: 
 
    
Secretary President 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Exhibit CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
version: July 2017 



Facilities BP 7212(a) 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS 
 
 
The Governing Board desires to provide adequate facilities in order to enhance student 
learning and to help the district achieve its vision for educating district students. Toward that 
end, the Board may order the formation of a community facilities district (CFD) (Mello-Roos 
district) for the acquisition or improvement of school facilities when, in the Board's 
judgment, it is in the best interest of district students and the community. The issuance of 
debt through the CFD shall be consistent with law and the district's debt management policy. 
 
(cf. 3470 - Debt Issuance and Management) 
(cf. 7110 - Facilities Master Plan) 
(cf. 7111 - Evaluating Existing Buildings) 
(cf. 7210 - Facilities Financing) 
(cf. 7211 - Developer Fees) 
(cf. 7213 - School Facilities Improvement Districts) 
 
Proceedings to establish a CFD may be instituted at the Board's discretion. In addition, such 
proceedings shall be instituted when a written request to establish a CFD has been filed by 
any two Board members, or a petition has been submitted by at least 10 percent of registered 
voters residing within the territory of the proposed CFD or by the owners of at least 10 
percent of the area of land to be included within the proposed CFD.  (Government Code 
53318) 
 
Prior to initiating proceedings to form a CFD, the Board shall consider and adopt local goals 
and policies that include the following elements:  (Government Code 53312.7) 
 
1. The priority that various facilities shall have for financing through the Mello-Roos 

Community Facilities Act, including public facilities to be owned and operated by 
other public agencies and services to be provided by other public agencies 

 
2. The credit quality to be required of bond issues and criteria to be used in evaluating 

the credit quality 
 
3. Steps by which prospective property purchasers will be fully informed about their 

related taxpaying obligations 
 
4. Criteria for evaluating the equity of tax allocation formulas, including desirable and 

maximum amounts of special tax to be levied against any parcel 
 
5. Definitions, standards, and assumptions to be used in appraisals required by 

Government Code 53345.8 
 
6. To the extent authorized by law, priority for students residing within the CFD to 

attend schools financed in whole or in part by the CFD, in a manner that reflects the 
proportion of each school's financing provided through the CFD 

 
(cf. 5116 - School Attendance Boundaries) 



BP 7212(b) 
 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS  (continued) 
 
 
Within 45 days of receiving a written request or petition to establish a CFD, the Board shall 
determine a fee to be paid by the requesters or petitioners which shall be sufficient to 
compensate the district for the costs incurred in conducting proceedings to create the CFD. 
Proceedings for establishing the CFD shall only be initiated after payment of the fee.  
(Government Code 53318) 
 
Upon Board action to form a CFD, or within 90 days after the receipt of a petition or request 
to form a CFD and the payment of any applicable fee, the Board shall adopt a resolution of 
intention and conduct a hearing in accordance with law. The resolution shall fix the time and 
place for holding a public hearing on the establishment of the CFD, which shall be within 30-
60 days after the adoption of the resolution. Notice of the hearing shall be given by 
publishing the text or a summary of the resolution of intention once, in a newspaper of 
general circulation published in the area of the proposed CFD, at least seven days before the 
hearing, and shall include other requirements specified in Government Code 53322.  Notice 
of the hearing may also be sent by first-class mail to each registered voter and to each 
landowner within the proposed CFD.  (Government Code 53320, 53321, 53322, 53322.4) 
 
If, after the hearing, the Board decides to establish a CFD, the Board shall adopt a resolution 
of formation in accordance with law.  (Government Code 53325, 53325.1) 
 
If a special tax is proposed to be levied in the CFD, the Board shall submit the resolution of 
formation and other information specified in Government Code 53326 to the elections 
official within three business days after the adoption of the resolution of formation, and the 
question of levying the special tax shall be submitted to the qualified electors of the proposed 
CFD in accordance with law.  (Government Code 53326) 
 
Upon approval by two-thirds of the voters in the proposed CFD, the tax may be levied in 
accordance with Government Code 53340.  (Government Code 53328) 
 
Whenever the Board deems it necessary for the CFD to incur a bonded indebtedness, it shall 
follow the procedures specified in Government Code 53345-53365.7, as applicable. 
 
The proceeds of any bonds, notes, or other securities issued pursuant to the Mello-Roos 
Community Facilities Act shall be deposited or invested in accordance with Government 
Code 53356.03. 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall, within seven months after the last day of each fiscal 
year, prominently display the following reports on the district's web site:  (Government Code 
53343.2) 
 
1. A copy of an annual report for that fiscal year, if requested pursuant to Government 

Code 53343.1 
 



BP 7212(c) 
 
 
MELLO-ROOS DISTRICTS  (continued) 
 
 
2. A copy of the report provided to the California Debt and Investment Advisory 

Commission pursuant to Government Code 53359.5 
 
3. A copy of the report provided to the State Controller's Office pursuant to Government 

Code 12463.2 
 
(cf.  3460 - Financial Reports and Accountability) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
15300-15425  School facilities improvement districts 
17060-17066  Joint venture school facilities construction projects 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
6061  One time notice 
12463.2 Reports 
17556  Payment of costs mandated by the state 
53311-53368.3  Mello-Roos Community Facilities Act of 1982 
53753  Assessment notice and hearing requirements 
53753.5  Exemptions 
54954.1  Mailed notice to property owners 
54954.6  New or increased tax or assessment; public meetings and hearings; notice 
65970-65981  School facilities development project 
65995  Levies against development projects 
CODE OF REGULATIONS, TITLE 2 
1859-1859.106 School facility program 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Bond Sales - Questions and Considerations for Districts, 2012 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
California Office of Public School Construction: http://www.opsc.dgs.ca.gov 
Coalition for Adequate School Housing: http://www.cashnet.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Policy CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9121(a) 
 
PRESIDENT 
 
 
The Governing Board shall elect a president from among its members to provide leadership 
on behalf of the governance team and the educational community it serves. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9100 - Organization) 
 
To ensure that Board meetings are conducted in an efficient, transparent, and orderly manner, 
the president shall: 
 
1. Call such meetings of the Board as he/she may deem necessary, giving notice as 

required by law 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
(cf. 9321 - Closed Session Purposes and Agendas) 
 
2. Consult with the Superintendent or designee on the preparation of Board meeting 

agendas 
 
(cf. 9322 - Agenda/Meeting Materials) 
 
3. Call the meeting to order at the appointed time and preside over the meeting 
 
4. Announce the business to come before the Board in its proper order 
 
5. Enforce the Board's bylaws related to the conduct of meetings and help ensure 

compliance with applicable requirements of the Brown Act 
 
6. Recognize persons who desire to speak, and protect the speaker who has the floor 

from disturbance or interference 
 
7. Facilitate the Board's effective deliberation, ensuring that each Board member has an 

opportunity to participate in the deliberation and that the discussion remains focused 
 
8. Rule on issues of parliamentary procedure 
 
9. Put motions to a vote, and clearly state the results of the vote 
 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
The president shall have the same rights as other members of the Board, including the right 
to discuss and vote on all matters before the Board. 
 
 
 



 BB 9121(b) 
 
 
PRESIDENT  (continued) 
 
 
The president shall perform other duties in accordance with law and Board policy including, 
but not limited to: 
 
1. Signing all instruments, acts, orders, and resolutions necessary to comply with legal 

requirements and carry out the will of the Board 
 
2. Working with the Superintendent or designee to ensure that Board members have 

necessary materials and information 
 
3. Subject to Board approval, appointing and dissolving all committees 
 
(cf. 9130 - Board Committees) 
 
4. In conjunction with the Superintendent or designee, representing the district as the 

Board's spokesperson in communications with the media 
 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
 
5. Leading the Board's advocacy efforts to build support within the local community and 

at the state and national levels 
 
The president shall participate in the California School Boards Association's Board 
President's Workshop and other professional development opportunities to enhance his/her 
leadership skills. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
When the president resigns or is absent, the clerk shall perform the president's duties. When 
both the president and clerk are absent, the Board shall choose a president pro tempore to 
perform the president's duties. 
 
(cf. 9123 - Clerk) 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BB 9121(c) 
 
 
PRESIDENT  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
35022  President of the board 
35143  Annual organizational meetings; dates and notice 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963 Ralph M. Brown Act 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Call to Order: A Blueprint for Great Board Meetings, 2015 
Board Presidents' Handbook, revised 2002 
CSBA Professional Governance Standards, 2000 
WEB SITES 
CSBA:  http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9220(a) 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS 
 
 
Board Member Qualifications 
 
Any person is eligible to be a member of the Governing Board, without further qualifications, 
if he/she is 18 years of age or older, a citizen of California, a resident of the school district, a 
registered voter, and not legally disqualified from holding civil office.  Any person who has 
been convicted of a felony involving the giving, accepting, or offering of a bribe, 
embezzlement or theft of public funds, extortion, perjury, or conspiracy to commit any such 
crime, under California law or the law of another state, the United States of America, or 
another country, is not eligible to be a candidate for office or elected as a Board member 
except when he/she has been granted a pardon in accordance with law.  (Education Code 
35107; Elections Code 20) 
 
A district employee elected to the Board shall resign his/her employment before being sworn 
in or shall have his/her employment automatically terminated upon being sworn into office.  
(Education Code 35107) 
 
(cf. 9224 - Oath of Affirmation) 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
 
The Board encourages all candidates to become knowledgeable about the role of board 
members. The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with information that 
will enable them to understand the responsibilities and expectations of being a Board 
member, including information regarding available workshops, seminars, and/or training. 
The Superintendent or designee shall provide all candidates with general information about 
school programs, district operations, and Board responsibilities. 
 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
Consolidation of Elections 
 

To reduce costs associated with conducting elections, the Board may consolidate Board 
elections with the local municipal or statewide primary or general election in accordance 
with Elections Code 1302. 
 

In addition, if a regularly scheduled Board election held other than on a statewide election 
date results in a decrease in local voter turnout of 25 percent or more compared to the 
average local turnout for the previous four statewide general elections, the Board shall take 
action to consolidate Board elections with statewide elections. The district shall move its 
election to the next state statewide election date, unless the Board has adopted a plan by 
January 1, 2018 to consolidate Board elections not later than the November 8, 2022 statewide 
general election.  (Elections Code 14051, 14052) 
 
 
 



 BB 9220(b) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
 
In order to consolidate elections based on either circumstance described above, the Board 
shall adopt a resolution and submit it to the County Board of Supervisors for approval not 
later than 240 days prior to the date of the currently scheduled district election.  (Elections 
Code 10404.5) 
 
Whenever a regularly scheduled Board election is changed due to consolidation of elections, 
the terms of office of incumbent Board members shall be extended to align with the next 
applicable election.  (Elections Code 10404.5) 
 
(cf. 9110 - Terms of Office) 
 
Elections Process and Procedures 
 
 (Election using "at-large" voting method) 
 
Board members may reside anywhere within the district's boundaries and shall be elected by 
all voters in the district. 
 
To ensure ongoing compliance with the California Voting Rights Acts, the Board may review 
the district's Board election method to determine whether any modification is necessary due 
to changes in the district's population or any of its racial, color, or language minority group 
composition.  The review shall be based on the Superintendent or designee's report to the 
Board after the release of each decennial federal census. 
 
If the Board determines that a change is necessary, it shall hold public hearings in accordance 
with Elections Code 10100 before adopting a resolution at an open meeting specifying the 
change(s), and shall, in accordance with Education Code 5019, obtain approval from the 
county committee on school district organization having jurisdiction over the district. 
 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
Campaign Conduct 
 
All candidates, including current Board members running as incumbents, shall abide by 
local, county, state, and federal requirements regarding campaign donations, funding, and 
expenditures. 
 
A Board member shall not expend, and a candidate shall not accept, any public money for the 
purpose of seeking elective office. However, the district may establish a dedicated fund for 
those seeking election to the Board, provided that the funds are available to all candidates 
who are qualified pursuant to Education Code 35107 without regard to incumbency or 
political preference.  (Government Code 85300) 
 



 BB 9220(c) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
In order to help protect the public's trust in the electoral process as well as the public's 
confidence in the Board and district, the Board encourages all candidates to sign and adhere 
to the principles in the Code of Fair Campaign Practices pursuant to Elections Code 20440. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
Statement of Qualifications 
 
On the 125th day prior to the day fixed for the general district election, the Board secretary or 
his/her designee shall deliver a notice, bearing the secretary's signature and district seal, to 
the county elections official describing both of the following:  (Elections Code 10509) 
 
1. The elective offices of the district to be filled at the general election and which 

offices, if any, are for the balance of an unexpired term 
 
2. Whether the district or the candidate is to pay for the publication of a statement of 

qualifications pursuant to Elections Code 13307 
 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 
 
Candidates for the Board may submit a candidate statement to the elections official for 
inclusion in the voter's pamphlet.  Candidate statements shall be limited to no more than 200 
words.  (Elections Code 13307) 
 
When the elections official allows for the electronic distribution of candidate statements, a 
candidate for the Board may, in addition to or instead of submitting a candidate statement for 
inclusion in the mailed voter's pamphlet, prepare and submit a candidate statement for 
electronic distribution. 
 
The district shall assume no part of the cost of printing, handling, translating, mailing, or 
electronically distributing candidate statements filed pursuant to Elections Code 13307. As a 
condition of having candidate statements included in the hard copy and/or electronic voter's 
pamphlet, the district may require candidates to pay their estimated pro rata share of these 
costs to the district in advance pursuant to Elections Code 13307. 
 

Tie Votes in Board Member Elections 
 
Whenever a tie makes it impossible to determine which of two or more candidates has been 
elected to the Board, the Board shall immediately notify the candidates who received the tie 
votes of the time and place where the candidates or their representatives should appear before 
the Board.  The Board at that time shall determine the winner by lot.  (Education Code 5016) 
 
 
 



 
 BB 9220(d) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
1006  Qualifications for holding office, county board of education 
5000-5033  Elections 
5220-5231  Elections 
5300-5304  General provisions (conduct of elections) 
5320-5329  Order and call of elections 
5340-5345  Consolidation of elections 
5360-5363  Election notice 
5380  Compensation (of election officer) 
5390  Qualifications of voters 
5420-5426  Cost of elections 
5440-5442  Miscellaneous provisions 
7054  Use of district property 
35107  Eligibility; school district employees 
35177  Campaign expenditures or contributions 
35239  Compensation of governing board member of districts with less than 70 ADA 
ELECTIONS CODE 
20  Public office eligibility 
1302  Local elections, school district election 
2201  Grounds for cancellation 
4000-4008  Elections conducted wholly by mail 
10010  District boundaries 
10400-10418  Consolidation of elections 
10509  Notice of election by secretary 
10600-10604  School district elections 
13307  Candidate's statement 
13308  Candidate's statement contents 
13309  Candidate's statement, indigence 
14025-14032 California Voting Rights Act 
14050-14057  California Voter Participation Rights Act 
20440  Code of Fair Campaign Practices 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
1021  Conviction of crime 
1097  Illegal participation in public contract 
12940  Nondiscrimination, Fair Employment and Housing Act 
81000-91014  Political Reform Act 
PENAL CODE 
68  Bribes 
74  Acceptance of gratuity 

 
 
 
Legal Reference continued:  (see next page) 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 BB 9220(e) 
 
 
GOVERNING BOARD ELECTIONS  (continued) 
 
Legal Reference:  (continued) 

PENAL CODE (continued) 
424  Embezzlement and falsification of accounts by public officers 
661  Removal for neglect or violation of official duty 
CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION 
Article 2, Section 2  Voters, qualifications 
Article 7, Section 7  Conflicting offices 
Article 7, Section 8  Disqualification from office 
UNITED STATES CODE, TITLE 52 
10301-10508  Voting Rights Act 
COURT DECISIONS 
Rey v. Madera Unified School District, (2012) 203 Cal. App. 4th 1223 
Randall v. Sorrell, (2006) 126 S.Ct. 2479 
Sanchez v. City of Modesto, (2006) 145 Cal. App. 4th 660 
Dusch v. Davis, (1967) 387 U.S. 112 
ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS 
85 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 49 (2002) 
83 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 181 (2000) 
81 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 94 (1998) 
69 Ops.Cal.Atty.Gen. 290 (1986) 

 
Management Resources: 

CALIFORNIA SCHOOL BOARDS ASSOCIATION PUBLICATIONS 
Legal Alert on the Impact of Senate Bill No. 415 on School Board Elections, January 2017 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Secretary of State's Office:  http://www.sos.ca.gov 
Fair Political Practices Commission: http://www.fppc.ca.gov 
Institute for Local Self Government:  http://www.ca-ilg.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9230(a) 
 
ORIENTATION 
 
 
The Governing Board recognizes the importance of providing all newly elected or appointed 
Board members with support and information to assist them in becoming effective members 
of the Board. Incoming Board members shall be provided an orientation designed to build 
their knowledge of the district and an understanding of the responsibilities of their position. 
Such orientation may include the provision of information, support, and/or training related to 
Board functions, policies, protocols, and standards of conduct. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9220 - Governing Board Elections) 
(cf. 9223 - Filling Vacancies) 
 
As early as possible following the election or appointment of Board members, one or more 
orientation sessions shall be held during open meeting(s) of the Board. The Board president 
and the Superintendent or designee shall develop an agenda for the meeting(s) and shall 
identify resources that may be useful for incoming Board members. 
 
(cf. 9121 - President) 
 
Upon their election or appointment, incoming Board members shall be provided a copy of 
the Brown Act and informed that, pursuant to Government Code 54952.1, they must conform 
to the Act's requirements as if they had already assumed office. Additional information for 
incoming Board members may include, but is not limited to, Board bylaws related to the 
limits of individual Board member authority, the conduct of Board meetings, and other Board 
operations; governance standards for ethical conduct; legal requirements related to conflict of 
interest and prohibited political activity; protocols for speaking with district staff, members 
of the public, and the media; and publications on effective governance practices. 
 
(cf. 1112 - Media Relations) 
(cf. 1160 - Political Processes) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
(cf. 9010 - Public Statements) 
(cf. 9011 - Disclosure of Confidential/Privileged Information) 
(cf. 9012 - Board Member Electronic Communications) 
(cf. 9200 - Limits of Board Member Authority) 
(cf. 9270 - Conflict of Interest) 
(cf. 9323 - Meeting Conduct) 
 
In addition, the Superintendent or designee shall provide incoming Board members with 
specific background information regarding the district, including, but not limited to, the 
district's vision and goals statements, local control and accountability plan and other 
comprehensive plans, student demographic data, student achievement data, district policy 
manual, district budget, and minutes of recent open Board meetings. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 0400 - Comprehensive Plans) 
(cf. 0460 - Local Control and Accountability Plan) 



 BB 9230(b) 
 
 
ORIENTATION  (continued) 
 
 
The Superintendent or designee may offer incoming Board members a tour of district schools 
and facilities, and may introduce them to district and school site administrators and other 
staff. 
 
Incoming members are encouraged, at district expense and with approval of the Board, to 
attend the California School Boards Association's Orientation for New Trustees, Institute for 
New and First-Term Board Members, and workshops and conferences relevant to the needs 
of the individual member, the Board as a whole, or the district. 
 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
(cf. 9320 - Meetings and Notices) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

EDUCATION CODE 
33360  Department of Education and statewide association of school district boards; annual 
workshops 
33362-33363  Reimbursement of expenses; board member or member-elect 
GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  The Ralph M. Brown Act, especially: 
54952.1  Member of a legislative body 
54952.2  Open meeting laws; posting agenda; board actions 
54952.7  Copies of Brown Act to board members 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Professional Governance Standards for School Boards 
The Brown Act: School Boards and Open Meeting Laws, rev. 2009 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 



Board Bylaws BB 9400(a) 
 
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION 
 
 
The Governing Board shall annually conduct a self-evaluation in order to demonstrate 
accountability to the community and ensure that district governance effectively supports 
student achievement and the attainment of the district's vision and goals. 
 
(cf. 0000 - Vision) 
(cf. 0200 - Goals for the School District) 
(cf. 2140 - Evaluation of the Superintendent) 
 
The evaluation may address any area of Board responsibility, including, but not limited to, 
Board performance in relation to vision setting, curriculum, personnel, finance, policy 
development, collective bargaining, community relations, and advocacy. The evaluation may 
also address objectives related to Board meeting operations, relationships among Board 
members, relationship with the Superintendent, understanding of Board and Superintendent 
roles and responsibilities, communication skills, or other governance or boardsmanship 
skills. 
 
(cf. 9000 - Role of the Board) 
(cf. 9005 - Governance Standards) 
 
The Board shall evaluate itself as a whole. Individual Board members are also expected to 
use the evaluation process as an opportunity to assess and set goals for their own personal 
performance. 
 
Each year, the Board, with assistance from the Superintendent, shall determine an evaluation 
method or instrument that measures key components of board responsibility and previously 
identified performance objectives. Visual and/or audio recordings of a Board meeting may 
only be used as an evaluation tool when consent is given by all Board members. 
 
Any discussion involving the Board's self-evaluation shall be conducted in open session. 
 
At the request of the Board, a facilitator may be used to assist with the evaluation process. 
The Board may invite the Superintendent or other individual(s) with pertinent information to 
provide input into the evaluation process. 
 
Following the evaluation, the Board shall set goals, define and/or refine protocols, and 
establish priorities and objectives for the following year's evaluation. The Board shall also 
develop strategies for strengthening Board performance based on identified areas of need, 
including, but not limited to, Board trainings such as those offered by the California School 
Boards Association. 
 
(cf. 9230 - Orientation) 
(cf. 9240 - Board Training) 
 
 
Legal Reference:  (see next page) 



 BB 9400(b) 
 
 
BOARD SELF-EVALUATION  (continued) 
 
 
 
Legal Reference: 

GOVERNMENT CODE 
54950-54963  Brown Act; board self-evaluations not covered 

 
Management Resources: 

CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Professional Governance Standards 
Defining Governance, Issue 3: Governance Practices, Governance Brief, April 2014 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
CSBA Board Self-Evaluation: http://bse.csba.org 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Bylaw CSBA MANUAL MAINTENANCE SERVICE 
adopted: July 2017 

































 
 

 
 
 
 

-PUBLIC HEARING- 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

1000 YULUPA AVE. 
SANTA ROSA, CA  95405 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 12, 2017 
6:02 P.M. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION DISTRICT OFFICE 
 

The Board of Trustees shall encourage participation by parents, teachers, members of the 
community interested in the affairs of the school district, and bargaining unit leaders, and shall 
make a determination, through a resolution, as to whether each pupil, including English 
learners, has sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to take 
home; that are aligned to the academic content and standards and consistent with the cycles and 
content of the curriculum frameworks adopted by the state board. 
 
 
 
 
 

PROPOSED RESOLUTION 
 

Resolution No. 09-17-02:  BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees 
will make a determination that each pupil, including English learners, has 
sufficient textbooks or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and 
to take home; that are aligned to the academic content and standards and 
consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks 
adopted by the State Board of Education for the 2017/18 school year. 
 

 
 



Madrone Elementary School 
4550 RINCONADA DR. SANTA ROSA, CA 95409 

PHONE (707) 539-9665   FAX (707) 539-1362 
   

 
 
Dear Rincon Valley Union Board of Education, 

 

  It is my pleasure to be here tonight to recognize the outstanding work ethic of Rodolfo 

Castro.  Although Rodolfo has been employed in the Rincon Valley School District since 2002, I 

have only had the privilege of working with him for the last few years.  When I first came to 

Madrone it didn’t take me long to realize the excellent work of Rodolfo.   

 

  Being a day custodian is a job that many people don’t appreciate on a daily basis 

because they don’t realize all the parts of the job.  That involves arriving early in the morning 

before anyone else to begin cleaning classrooms, the front office, and the restrooms.  Setting 

up for breakfast, setting up for lunch, cleaning up from lunch, and all the daily tasks that we 

need Rodolfo for each and every day.  But then there are the special circumstances: setting up 

for Back To School Night, assemblies, Promotion Ceremony, athletic games, and other specific 

events.  And then there are the really special circumstances!  There’s nothing like hearing 

Andrea, our office manager, call Rodolfo on the radio and say “Rodolfo, It’s Andrea, do you 

copy?”  “Hi, Miss Andrea”, he replies.  “Uumm, can you go to room K3 and clean up a mess?  

You will need your mop because someone had an accident and went pee.”  And without any 

hesitation you hear, “ok, I’ll be right there.”  This happens not only with potty accidents, but 

vomit too!  And then there’s the occasional blood trail that happens from a bloody nose that 

dripped all through the office into the nurse’s room.  Rodolfo is always there to clean it up and 

somehow do it with a smile!   

 

  The staff at Madrone is so appreciative of Rodolfo for what he does for our school every 

day.  He constantly keeps the school looking nice, he helps with anything we need, and he is 

always willing to do what is asked of him.  This summer was probably his biggest task and he 

Mike Herfurth 
Principal 



performed incredibly.  We had 10 teachers move classrooms this summer and Rodolfo 

somehow managed to move tons of furniture, cleaned every classroom, and worked around all 

the construction workers to make sure the teachers returned in early August to rooms ready for 

them, and then ready again for the students to show up weeks later.   

 

  I enjoy coming to school each day to see the reliable and hard‐working Rodolfo already 

at work.  We don’t get too much time to chat in the morning because he is on a tight schedule 

to get things done before teachers and students show up, but on Monday’s I usually get to hear 

about him spending his weekends selling his fabulous snow cones and other food items in the 

community.  If you haven’t had a homemade tamale from Maria and Rodolfo, you are missing 

out!!   

 

  Rodolfo, thank you for your hard work each and every day.  Our students, staff, and 

parents appreciate you very much for all you do to make Madrone a great place for everyone.  

Keep up the great work.  

 

  Please join me in congratulating Rodolfo Castro as the Classified Employee of the Month 

for September, 2017!  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Mike Herfurth 

Principal 

 



Spring	Creek	Matanzas	Charter	School	
Spring	Creek	Campus	–	K‐3	

Joan	Boyce,	Principal	
707.545.1771	phone	

707.545.6926	fax	
 

 
Rincon Valley Union School District  

www.rvusd.org     

 
 
 

September 12, 2017 
 
 

Dear Members of the Governing Board and Dr. Roehrick: 
 

It is with great pleasure that I write this letter recognizing Danya Dranow as the Certificated Employee of the 
Month for the Month of September. Danya is a valuable employee who has continued to shine as an excellent 
teacher, since she was hired on August 9, 2010. From the moment I became a Spring Creek Cheetah, it was 
clear Ms. Dranow was an outstanding teacher. 

 
There are so many qualities that personify outstanding teachers. However, a teacher’s impact on his/her students 
is powerful with regards to the difference she makes in their lives. What impact does Ms. Dranow have upon 
her students? She has taught for 7 years, which equates to approximately 140 students she has personally taught. 
This doesn’t include the students outside of her class on which she makes a daily impact. 

 
Ms. Dranow develops strong relationships with students showing how she cares about them as people. She is 
warm, accessible, enthusiastic, and caring. She takes on many extra projects to ensure students grow as citizens, 
as well as scholars. When not teaching, you may find Ms. Dranow preparing with the “Spirit Leaders (student 
council)” or planning our Safe Routes to School activities. I can always depend on her to cover assemblies 
when I am not available. When asked to go the extra mile, Ms. Dranow is always quick to step in.  

 
Ms. Dranow has a love for learning. She is a skilled teacher and recently acquired a Masters Degree in Early 
Literacy. When in her class, not a moment of instructional time is spared. Whether it’s during a transition, small 
group instruction, direct instruction, or speaking to a student one on one, Ms. Dranow is creating a teachable 
moment. Students are happily engaged in Ms. Dranow’s class because she makes learning interesting and fun. 
Ms. Dranow models her love for learning through her instructional practice. It is evident that her students and 
families adore her. 

 
Measuring a teacher’s impact on students is more complicated than a series of test scores. It accrues 
exponentially throughout students’ lives. All the small and large interactions help to mold students into who 
they become. I appreciate Danya’s ability to make a difference every day in each and every student she touches. 

 
Respectfully, 

 
Joan Boyce 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.1 

Subject:  Lease-Leaseback Process 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background: There are several construction delivery methods that school districts can utilize, 
each with their own strengths and weaknesses.  After the passage of measure F in 
2014, the Governing Board decided to use the lease-leaseback method (Education 
Code 17406) for the major construction projects where possible and to that end 
interviewed and selected Artntz Builders to be the District’s lease lease-back 
contractor.   

  
 In 2015, the California 4th Court of Appeals (Fresno Unified v. David) decided that 

some of the legal obligations imposed by the state’s conflict of interest laws 
applies to third parties.  In reaction to this decision, the California State legislature 
passed AB566 and AB2316, which changed the process and requires the District to 
solicit competitive proposal.  Due to this change the District is required to go 
through a new process in order to enter into a lease lease-back contract. 

  

Highlights: AB566 and AB2316 require the Board to begin a new process to select a lease- 
leaseback contractor 

Challenges: Village Phase II is scheduled to begin this June and is a good candidate for a lease- 
leaseback contract.   We are assessing other projects to determine the benefits of a 
lease-leaseback contract as compared to other delivery methods. 

Analysis: Given our history with low bid contracts and lease-leaseback contracts, it is likely 
the District will receive a better value from a lease-leaseback contract for the 
Village phase II work. 

Next Steps: Review attached letter from Dannis Woliver Kelley (DWK), which outlines steps 
that need to be taken to enter into a lease-leaseback contract. 

Attachments:  Letter from DWK. 
 
Fiscal Impact: None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Re

DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

Attorneys at Law

CLARISSA R. CANADY
Attorney at Law

ccanady@DWKesq.com

San Franc¡sco

August 24, 2OL7

VIA EMAIL AND U.S. MAIL

Joseph V. Pandolfo, Jr., Ed.D,
Deputy Superintendent
Rincon Valley Union School District
1000 Yulupa Avenue
Santa Rosa, CA95404
jpandolfo@rvusd.org

Lease-Leaseback Project Delivery Method - Legal Requirements and Timeline
Our file 642O-|OLI7

Dear Dr. Pandolfo:

As a follow up to our discussion on Monday, August 2L, 2077, this letter outlines the
legal requirements and timeline for lease-leaseback projects under Education Code
section 17406 as amended by AB 2316 (Stats. 2016, ch. 521). Also included with
this letter are two handouts developed by Dannis Woliver Kelley ("DWK"): (1) How
Lease-Leaseback Works for School Districts; and (2) Lease-Leaseback Timeline for
School Districts,

These materials should provide Rincon Valley Union School District ("District") with
a general overview of the lease-leaseback project delivery method. We are happy
to answer any specific questions you may have about the process. We can also
prepare any or all of the types of documents referenced below throughout the
course the process

Prequalify Developers and MEP Subcontractors

The District first needs to prequalify developers and first-tier mechanical, electrical,
and plumbing ("MEP") subcontractors pursuant to Public Contract Code section
20111.6. This requires the District's Board of Trustees ("Board") to adopt a
prequalification package, consisting of a standardized questionnaire and uniform
rating system.

Prequalification should occur on an annual or quarterly basis-not per project.
Prequalification for lease-leaseback projects is valid for one (1) calendar year
following the date of initial prequalification.

275 Battery Street
Suite 1150

San Francisco, CA 94111

rEL 415.543.4111

tAx 415.543.4384

115 Pine Avenue
Suite 500
Long Beach, CA 90802
TEL 562.366.8500
FAX 562.366.8505

750 B Street
Suite 2310
San Diego, CA 92101

ïEL 619595.0202
tAx 619.702.6202

1682 Novato Boulevard
Suite 251

Novato, CA 94947
rEL 415.543.4111
FAX 415.543.4384

2485 Notre Dame Boulevard
Suite 370-A
Chico, CA 95928
TEL 530.343.3334
F4X530.924¿784

555 Capitol Mall
Suite 645
Sacramento, CA 95814
TEL 916.978.4040
FAX 916.978.4039

1065 Higuera Street
Suite 301

San Luis Obispo, CA 93401
TEL 805.980.7900
F4X916.978.4039

DWK DMS 3163068v1

www.DWKesq.com



Joseph V. Pandolfo, Jr., Ed.D.
Rincon Valley Union School District
August 24, 2Ol7
Page 2

In order to be considered for a particular lease-leaseback project, any developer or MEP
subcontractor who has not already prequalified must submit its prequalification questionnaire
and financial statement no later than ten (10) business days before the date set for opening
proposals and must be prequalified no later than five (5) business days before the date set for
opening proposals. The District will also need to resolve any appeals from the prequalification
process prior to opening proposals. The District cannot accept proposals from entities that
failed to prequalify.

Adopt Best Value Methodolooy

Next, the Board must adopt procedures and guidelines for evaluating developers' proposals for
best value. The best value methodology must include, at a minimum, all items listed in
Education Code section L7406, subdivision (a)(2), including consideration of relevant
experience, safety record, and price proposal. The District can add additional criteria and has
total discretion over the weighting system for the criteria.

Prepare and Publish RFP

The District then needs to prepare a request for proposals ("RFP") for the specific lease-
leaseback project, The RFP must identify all criteria for evaluating proposals, including any
pass/fail criteria. The RFP should also specify whether price proposals should be submitted on a
lump-sum or fee-for-service basis.

The District must publish the RFP in a newspaper of general circulation and a trade paper of
general circulation, at least, once a week for two (2) weeks. The first notice must be published,
at least, seventeen (17) calendar days before the date set for opening proposals. The second
notice must be published, at least, ten (10) calendar days before the date set for opening
proposals.

Open and Evaluate Prooosals; Neqotiate Contract

The District will open the sealed proposals, evaluate and score the proposals according to the
Board-adopted best value methodology, and rank the proposals from highest scoring to lowest
scoring. The District will then proceed to negotiate the lease-leaseback contract with the
highest scoring developer, In our experience, the District should set the date for opening
proposals approximately six (6) weeks prior to the date it wants to award the contract, so that
there is enough time to negotiate the contract with the highest scoring developer.

Award Contract; Commence Preconstruction Phase

Once the District is ready to award the contract, the Board must publicly announce the award
and provide a written statement identifying the basis for the award with sufficient information
to satisfy an external audit. This should be done through a Board resolution.

Following the award, the District and developer should execute the facilities lease and site lease
for the project. The developer may now commence preconstruction services prior to approval

DWK DMS 3163068v1



Joseph V. Pandolfo, Jr., Ed.D.
Rincon Valley Union School District
August 24,2OI7
Page 3

of the plans and specifications by the Division of the State Architect ("DSA"), so long as the
contract contains certain restrictions.

Finalize Price and Amend Contract; Commence Construction Phase

If the lease-leaseback contract includes preconstruction services, it is unlikely that the contract
will include a guaranteed maximum price ("GMP"). Around or after DSA approval of the design,
the developer will also undertake competitive bidding for subcontractors not identified in the
proposal with a value exceeding 0.5 percent of the price of the construction work before
preparing its GMP.

After DSA approval and bidding of subcontractors, the lease-leaseback contract will need to be
amended to include a GMP, The developer should provide the District a written rationale for the
GMP, which the Board should consider at a public meeting. Once the price is finalized, the
District and developer should execute an amendment to the facilities lease, The construction
phase of the project may now commence.

Sample Timeline

Thus, applying the 2017-18 Board meeting calendar, the District's next lease-leaseback project
could proceed as follows:

October LO, 2017 Board adopts resolutions establishing prequalification processes for
developers and MEP subcontractors

November 14,
20L7

Board adopts resolution establishing best value methodology

December 20L7 -
January 2018

District and counsel prepare RFP and form of agreement for the
specific lease- leaseback project

February 27, 20IB

lAt least 17 calendar
days before proposal
deadlinel

District publishes first notice of RFP in newspaper and trade paper by
no later than this date

March 2,2OIB

[At least 10 business
days before proposal
deadlinel

Deadline for developers and MEP subcontractors to submit
prequalification materials

DWK DMS 3163068v1



March 6, 20IB

[At least 10 calendar
days before proposal
deadlinel

District publishes second and final not¡ce of RFP in newspaper and
trade paper by no later than this date

March 9,2078

[At least 5 business
days before proposal
deadlinel

Deadline for developers and MEP subcontractors to prequalify

March 16, 2018

[Over 6 weeks
before award to
allow time to
negotiatel

Deadline to submit proposals / date set for opening proposals

May B, 2018 Board awards contract to successful developer

Joseph V. Pandolfo, Jr., Ed,D.
Rincon Valley Union School District
August 24,2017
Page 4

Alternatively, the District could utilize a longer timeline by increasing the time between the
publication of the RFP and the deadline for submissions / date set for opening proposals.

Conclusion

I hope this letter has addressed some of your initial questions about the lease-leaseback
process. Should you wish to discuss any aspect of this letter or the attachments, please do not
hesitate to contact me.

Very truly yours,

WOLIVER KELLEY

Clarissa Canady

Attachments

DWK DMS 3163068v1



DANNIS WOLIVER KETLEY

Attorneyi ¿t I ¡w

J-o
€Í
m

U'
m
t-
m
Ø
m
ID

c)x
€ovx
U'
-r'l
ov
@ofoor
o
Ø
-.{v
o
I
U)

How Lease-Leaseback (LLB) Works for School Districts
(Education Code section 17406, as amended by Stats. 2016, ch. 521)

Bui lder-Related Actions

District prequalifies Builder and lst tier MEP subcontractors

Board adopts LLB Best Value procedures and guidelines

District issues and advertises Request for Proposals
incorporating Best Value Methodology

(Must publish in newspaper and trade paper of general
circulation at least once a week for two weeks)

District evaluates proposals per Best Value procedures and
guidelines adopted by the Board

District negotiates contract with selected Builder

(contract may include preconstruction services; contract is
Guaranteed Maximum Price (GMP)and may be lump sum or
fee for services)

Architect-Related Actions

District selects Architect

Architect starts design of the project¡

I

Builder lnvolvement Begins During Design Phase

District awards contract (Site Lease and Facilities Lease) to
Builder by Board resolution

Builder provides Architect with technical assistance, i.e. pre-
checked designs

Architect works with Builder, i.e.
constructability and value engineering

Architect completes design and gets
approval from the Division of the State
Architect

Design Phase Complete: DSA Approval

After DSA approval, builder bids non-listed trade contractors
and (if lump sum not used), develops the GMP

District amends contract to include GMP (if lump sum not
used)

Construction Phase Begins

Builder starts construction

Owner makes tenant improvement payments

Architect provides typical design related
assistance during construction

¡o
¿

i
Iõ
Y
o
.z
õ
È
.9c

o
F

N
o

Construction Phase Complete: Project Finished

Owner completes Lease Payments

Site and Facilities Leases expire and Builder transfers title
back to District

SAN FRANCISCO LONG BEACH SAN DIEGO NOVATO CHICO SACRAMENTO SAN LUIS OBISPO www.DWKesq.com

This document paraphrases selected stalutes and is not intended to be a substitute for or to prov¡de legal advice. Please con su¡t legal counsel with questions.



DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

r
m

ø
m
f-
m
(t
m
@

o
Ã{
3
m
trz
m.Ît
ov
Øo
oo
o
(n
-{
Ð
o
-.{Ø

Attorneys ai I avr

Lease-Leaseback Timeline for School Districts
(Education Code section 17406, as amended by Stats. 2016, ch. 521)

Date

Annually or quarterly

Action
Prepare standardized
prequalification questionnaire,
financial statement, and rating
system (together, "prequalification
package") for potential prime
contractors and mechanical,
electrical, and plumbing ("MEP")
subcontractors

Board adopts prequalification
package

District distributes prequalification
package to contractors

Notes
Per Pub. Contract Code,

s 20111.6

Prior to Opening Proposals

Ìio
¿
o

.s)

-9
oY
o

õ
3

Nô
@

oN
o

Recommended at least I month
prior to opening proposals

Recommended at least 21 calendar
days prior to opening proposals

Prepare procedures and guidelines
for evaluating proposers based on
best value

Board adopts and publishes best
value procedures and guidelines

Prepare request for proposals
("RFP")

. "Best value" means best
combination of price and value,
as specified by district

Must include, at a minimum, the
elements listed in Ed. Code,

S 17406, subd. (a)(2)

RFP must identify all criteria for
evaluating proposals, including
any pass/failcriteria

Request either lump sum or fee-
for-service price proposals

At least 17 calendar days prior to
opening proposals

10 business days prior to opening
proposals

Publish notice of RFP in at least a
' newspaper of general circulation
and trade paper of general

circulation at least once a week for
2 weeks

Statutory deadline for proposers

and MEP subcontractors to have
submitted prequalification
questionnaire and financial
statement

SAN FRANCISCO þNC BEACH SAN DIrc NOVAru CHI() SACMWNTO S^N LUIS OBISPO www.DwKcsq.com

This document paraphrases selected slatutes and is not intended to be a subst¡tute for or to provide legal advice. Please consult legal counsel w¡th quest¡ons.



Lease-Leaseback Timeline for School Districts
(page 2 oÍ 3l

Date

At least 10 calendar days prior to
deadline for receipt of proposals

5 business days prior to opening
proposals

Recommended at least 2 calendar
days prior to deadline for receipt of
proposals

Action

Publish final notice of RFP in news
and trade papers of general
circulation

Statutory deadline for proposers
and MEP subcontractors to have
prequalified

Make list of prequalified general
contractors and MEP
subcontractors available to all
proposers

Resolve any appeals of
prequalification ratings

DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

Attorneys at I aw

Notes

. Per Pub. Contract Code, 5

20101, subd. (d)

t-
m

Ø
m
Ir
m
Ø
m
@

ox{
m
trz
m
'n
o7
(t,
o¿oor
0
6
-{7
o
-l(n

Prior to Award

One month prior to award Open sealed proposals

Evaluate and score proposals for
best value

Negotiate contract Contract may include limited
preconstruction services prior to
approval of the plans and
specifications by the
Department of General
Services' Division of the State
Architect ('DSA")

lf price proposalwas fee-for-
service, developer must provide
district with verifiable cost
information and a written
rationale for the price

oo
è

E

co

-9

Y

.z
o
E
.9c
o
c)
@

o
N
@

Award
Day 0 Award contract to responsive

proposer with best value proposal
Publicly announce award and its
basis

sAN FRANCISæ reNG BEAG SN Dm NOVArc CHCO SACRAMENrc SAN LUIS OBISPO www.DwKcsq.com

This document paraphrases selected stalutes and ¡s not intended lo be a subslitute for or to provide legal advice. Please consult legal counsel with questions.



DANNIS WOLIVER KELLEY

t-
m
(t
m
Ir
m
(t
m
@

ox
+
m
trz
m
'n
o7
(n
o-oor
I
U'Iv
o
-{
a,

Attorneys at I av

Lease-Leaseback Timeline for School Districts
(page 3 of 3)

Date Action Notes

Following Award

îto
Èo
E

É
.91

_q

:¿
o

o

=.2
c
Gô
@

N
@

Week following the award Execute Facilities Lease and Site
Lease; collect insurance and bonds

(Optional) File validation action Per Gov. Code, S 860 efseg

. Minimum of 31 calendar days
from publication of summons to
entry of judgment validating the
lease agreements

. Subcontracts can be awarded
on best value or lowest bid

Month+ following the award Developer undertakes competitive
bidding for subcontractors not
identified in the proposalwith a
value exceeding 0.5% of the price
of the work

After DSA approves plans and
specifications, developer and
district negotiate and execute
amendment to contract

SAN RANCISO reNG BEACH SAN Dìffi NOVATO CHICO SACRAWNrc SÀN LUIS OBISrc *vw.DWKeq.co¡n

This document pâraphrases selected statutes and is not intended to be a subsl¡tule for or to provide legal advice. Please consull legal counsel with quest¡ons.



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.2 

Subject:  Summer Intervention Program Report 

Submitter:  Mrs. Erika Noone, Summer School Principal 

Background:  
 

The purpose of the ELD Academy is to provide extended academic support to those students who 
have been identified as being at risk of becoming Long-Term English Learners (LTEL).  Students 
identified as English Learners who are performing academically below grade level fit into this 
category once they have been enrolled in US schools for longer than six years. Students who 
attended RVUSD schools in 2016-17 were invited based on CELDT scores, reading assessment 
scores, and teacher recommendation. 
  
The goal for the ELD Academy is to give EL students the tools to participate in collaborative 
conversations in their classrooms. By having an experience in the community or participating in a 
presentation, and reading, writing, and talking about that experience in the classroom, they learned 
how to use conversation in English as a means to further learning. 
  
Jump Start kindergarten students were referred to summer school through data collected during the 
2017 incoming kindergarten screening. These students received direct instruction in English 
language development, school readiness skills, vocabulary, and school procedures. They also had 
some instruction in letter recognition, counting, colors, and shapes. The incoming kindergarten 
students participated in the sing-alongs with the ELD Academy students towards the end of the 
session.  
 
Our traditional targeted-intervention Summer School was not held this year due to major 
construction throughout the district. 

Highlights:   

Teachers for the ELD Academy developed an engaging and comprehensive curriculum centered 
around the idea of Stewardship.  Students practiced their listening, speaking, reading and writing 
skills in the context of learning about how we treat the earth, what effect that has long term, and 
how we can make better choices to preserve our planet. The curriculum included music and story-
telling, technology, a field trip to the landfill, and two presentations from different groups about 
water conservation, the use of plastics, and those effects on the oceans and its life.  English 
language proficiency scores later in the school year will help us track growth in the population of 
students that attended this program; however, anecdotal data from students, families and teachers 
shows that students had an engaging and positive school experience, were taking more risks in the 
classroom, having productive conversations, and producing quality writing.   

All students in the program participated in writing a multi-verse song, which they then performed 
on the last day of the program for parents and district staff. This performance moved many to tears. 
They also created a collaborative art project as a student body that illustrated the footprint they 
each have left on the earth.  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
Challenges:   

Just as it is every year, the student identification process is a challenge. Communication of the 
criteria to teachers is thought to be complete. However, when the students arrive at the ELD 
Academy, we find that some students who should not have been invited (special education, 
behavior problems, not in the correct range of English language proficiency) are still 
recommended and invited. This challenges the teachers to try to create a classroom community in a 
very short time with students who don’t fit the curriculum and expectations that were planned for 
them.  

Another challenge this year was the construction on the Binkley campus. We were in classrooms 
without running water and had very limited playground space. The teachers were also not allowed 
into the workroom to prep for their lessons. There was also no access to the school office or nurses 
office. 

Finally, the length of the ELD Academy is only 10 days. In that time, teachers try very hard to 
build relationships and establish a community. This step is vital for EL students. Many are nervous 
to speak in front of a group because of their lack of language skills. Each year, the teachers report 
that in the last couple days, the students are finally coming out of their shells and a starting to have 
higher level discussions. Just as that begins, the Academy is over. If there was one more week, the 
students would be able to use the community they build and the safety of that community to feel 
confident to speak freely in English.  

Analysis:  

6 teachers, classes included multiple grade levels, pre K through 5th 

181 students were invited (24 from JSK)   

120 students accepted (12 from JSK) 

102 students attended (12 from JSK)  

 

58 students had perfect attendance 

21 students were absent one day 

23 students were absent more than one day 

 

339 breakfasts were served 

350 bag lunches were served 

 

41 (approximately) students rode the bus to and from Binkley 

4 incoming sixth grade students (some ELD Academy graduates) volunteered at the Academy 

  

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
Next Steps:   

In the future, we should consider asking Support Coordinators (SCs) to manage the identification 
process at each school. Many of the SCs work directly with the students who are recommended 
and have a closer knowledge of if they will fit into the group we are trying to serve. Support 
Coordinators could meet with grade levels and address the list of students who fit the language 
criteria student by student, deciding if each student is RSP, a high maintenance behavior, or too 
high or low in language based on the growth of that school year.     

In addition, the ELD Academy and its students would greatly benefit from an additional week of 
instruction. This would allow for improved field trip opportunities as well as allow for teachers to 
build relationships with students and then make more academic progress.   

 
Attachments: ELD Academy Enrollment by School 

Attendance by Day 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 
 

 



 

Enrollment by School

Austin Creek Binkley Madrone Matanzas Sequoia Spring Creek Village Whited



 

 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

10‐Jul 11‐Jul 12‐Jul 13‐Jul 14‐Jul 15‐Jul 16‐Jul 17‐Jul 18‐Jul 19‐Jul 20‐Jul 21‐Jul

EL Academy 2017 

Attendance By Day

Attendance By Day



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.3a 

Subject:  Home Study Enrollment 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Background: Our District Home Study program began in Aug 2013, with an enrollment of 2 
students. Founding program coordinator, Emily Davis, has grown the program 
each year, with enrollment ending at 47 students for 2016-17. This program 
operates under the Rincon Valley Charter School charter and is now housed at the 
Binkley Elementary School campus. 

Highlights: Enrollment as of Sept 6, 2017 was 32 students. In addition to Mrs. Davis, three 
part-time teachers provide support for parents/families and instruction for students. 
This program is fiscally self-sustaining. Enrollment changes regularly with some 
predictable patterns: late fall, after Winter Break, and spring. Surveys indicate that 
participating parents are very satisfied with the program. 

Challenges: Enrollment changes regularly, based on the needs of parents and families. 

 Our program is unique in that it allows home study students to participate in 
Rincon Valley school-based programs (band, science lab, etc.) in addition to 
support for personalized learning. However, there are other programs in the county 
that offer incentives (e.g. parent stipends) that entice parents to try their program. 
This can create movement from program to program within the home study 
community. 

Analysis: 8th grade students moved on to high school, a family with four students that 
committed to our program in late spring chose another option this fall, and other 
family situations changed, all contributing to a dip in enrollment. 

 The part-time teachers’ schedules can change during the year as enrollment grows. 

Next Steps:  Renew marketing campaign in September for predictable late fall enrollment. 
   

   
 
Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact: None  
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.3b 

Subject:  New Teacher Training 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

 
Background: 

 Research shows that up to 50% of new teachers leave the profession within their first five years of 
teaching (National Commission on Teaching and America's Future, 2007). While low pay is 
sometimes cited as a factor, more often teachers leave because they do not feel supported or part of 
the decision-making process for their school/district.  
 
Although our district partners with the North Coast School of Education (at SCOE) to provide an 
induction program for first and second-year teachers, we know that it is not enough. The site 
principal and a new teacher’s grade level team also provide guidance and support, and the 
Consulting Teachers provide a “New Teacher” series for all teachers new to Rincon Valley 
regardless of their prior teaching experience. 
 
For the past three school years, we have had 14-20 new classroom teachers (general and special ed) 
each year! For the 2017-18 school year, we have 5 new general education teachers and 4 new special 
education teachers. 

 

Highlights:  

The three major focus areas of the New Teacher series are: 

 to provide our new teachers with “catch-up” and “just-in-time” information 
 to provide customized, job-embedded professional learning 
 to build community among our new teachers and help them become part of their school 

communities 

For their induction program, first and second-year teachers and their mentors attend monthly 
seminars and meet weekly. The principal is involved in goal setting and provides support as needed. 

All new K-6 teachers were able to participate in Benchmark Advance training over the summer or 
before school started. Depending on hire date, they were also invited to participate in any/all summer 
professional development sessions. 

 

Challenges:  

1. This year, we have four new special education teachers, all of whom are interns. While 
wonderful additions to the team, these teachers need additional support. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

2. We don’t want to overload our new teachers, so our planning and support must be flexible 
and meet individual needs.  

3. Another challenge is how to best provide support for those in their second year of teaching in 
Rincon Valley. With a large number of first-year teachers, it’s a challenge to provide a 
separate program for second-year teachers.  

4. Yet another challenge is teacher retention. Induction is an expensive program ($3500/per 
teacher/per year) and if a teacher leaves the district after one or two years, we don’t get a 
return on our investment. 

 

Analysis:  

Feedback at the end of each New Teacher series indicates that new teachers rate the support they 
receive as very valuable. Principals have previously indicated that they would be interested in being 
more active in the New Teacher series. There has been some collaboration on this topic between a 
few principals and the Consulting Teachers in the last two years, but we are trying to keep the series 
“teacher to teacher” so that our new teachers feel safe in discussing challenges they are experiencing. 

 

Next Steps:  

Due to the few number of first-year teachers in 2017-18, the Consulting Teachers have made 
adjustments to the New Teacher series to provide differentiated support for first and second-year 
teachers. We’d like to have principals be guest speakers at some of the sessions.  

   
 
 
Attachments:  New Teacher Meetings 2017-18 (with Topics) 
 
Fiscal Impact: This is just one of the services our Consulting Teachers provide (Title II and one-

time funding in 2017-18) 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



New Teacher Meetings 

 

Date Location Time Topic 

Monday 9-
18-17 

TBD 3:15 - 
4:45 

Welcome (back) to RVUSD! Classroom Management, Student 
documentation and Attributes for Success (Fall Conf. prep) 
2nd Year Teachers are excused from this meeting for GATE 101 training on 
October 10th, but we will still share all the information! 

Monday 10-
23-17 

District Office 
Boardroom 

3:15 - 
4:45 

Guest Speakers: Special Education 

Kathryn Vickery and Catherine Hamilton 

Monday 12-
4-17 

District Office 
Boardroom 

3:15 - 
4:45 

High Quality Instruction in Rincon Valley, Check-in on Classroom 
Management, and Reflect 

Monday 1-
29-18 

TBD 3:15 - 
4:45 

Restart/Recharge: 2018, here we come!! (Goal Setting 
Personal/Professional), Spring Conferences 

Monday 3-
26-18 

District Office 
Boardroom 

3:15 - 
4:45 

Guest Speaker: Debbie Takeda  
Assessments 

Keeping momentum and interest at the end of the year 

Monday 4-
30-18 

District Office 
Boardroom 

3:15 - 
4:45 

Open House 

Wrapping up your Classroom 

End of the Year Celebration! 

 
Nov = Report Cards (check-in meetings) 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.3 c 

Subject:  CAASPP Results 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Background: 
This is when we typically provide an overview of our official CAASPP test results, as published 
by the California Department of Education. This year, the public release of results at the state 
level has been postponed, so it’s important to know that we are reporting unofficial results based 
on student scores that have been imported into our student information system (Illuminate) from 
the state-provided student data file. No state or county comparison data is available at this time. 

Highlights: 

Included in your packet are a district chart and reflection sheet, followed by a school chart and 
reflection sheet for each school in the district. The reflection sheets discuss highlights, challenges, 
and next steps for the district and each school. 

Challenges:  see reflection sheets 

Analysis:  see reflection sheets 

Next Steps:  see reflection sheets    

   
 
 
Attachments:  CAASPP Charts and Reflection Sheets 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



















































Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.3 d 

Subject:  PE Testing Results 

Submitter:  Dr. Terry Metzger, Assistant Superintendent for Curriculum & Instruction 

Background: 
Physical Fitness Testing (PFT) is part of the California Assessment of Student Performance and 
Progress (CAASPP) system. We are required to test all students in grades 5 and 7 each year. 
Parents receive individual student reports with the end-of-year report cards each June and we 
report the district summary results each September for the previous year. The primary goal of the 
Physical Fitness test us to “assist students in establishing lifetime habits of regular physical 
activity.” (CDE, 2015) 

 
Highlights:  

Included in your packet are the results from the 2017 State Physical Fitness Testing. For your 
reference, I’ve included the 2016 results. However, remember that they are two different groups 
of students.  

Challenges:  

A few years ago, we were concerned about consistency in administration of the PFT in our 
schools so we now schedule time each January for PE Paraeducators to discuss the administration 
on the PFT. This year, we made administration videos available to the PE Paraeducators as well. 

Analysis: 

Because most of our students don’t matriculate from 5th to 7th grade within our district, we really 
are just examining how one group of students performs in 5th grade (different group each year), 
and how a different group of students performs in 7th grade. Our performance district-wide has 
remained relatively similar from year to year for the last five years (occasional gains or dips). 

Next Steps: 

We recognize that the PFT is one measure of the overall health of students. Many of our schools, 
through the renewed interest in school garden programs, are discussing health and wellness with 
students. We have asked the Alliance for a Healthier Generation for some additional resources to 
promote healthy living.   

   
Attachments: 2017 Physical Fitness Test Results 
 2016 Physical Fitness Test Results 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 
Student Performance Report 

Physical Fitness Tests 
2016-17 Summary 

 
Percent of Students Scoring in Healthy Fitness Zone 

5th and 7th grades 

 
Austin 
Creek 

Binkley Madrone Matanzas Sequoia Village Whited RVCS 

Aerobic Capacity 62.3 54.7 58.7 96.8 74.6 89.1 71.2 51.5 

Body 
Composition 

73.8 64.1 46.0 53.7 66.1 60.9 43.9 60.4 

Abdominal 
Strength 

85.2 100.0 76.2 96.8 86.4 89.1 84.8 82.8 

Trunk Extension 
Strength 

90.2 96.9 74.6 98.9 81.4 84.4 57.6 97.6 

Upper Body 
Strength 

63.9 89.1 73.0 58.9 69.5 96.9 87.9 70.4 

Flexibility 73.8 68.8 44.4 78.9 59.3 78.1 78.8 74.0 

Met HFZ in at 
least 5/6 Areas 

55.7 59.4 36.5 68.4 57.6 75.0 53.0 51.5 

 



Student Performance Report 

Physical Fitness Tests 

2015-16 Summary 
 

Percent of Students Scoring in Healthy Fitness Zone 
5th and 7th grades 

 Austin 
Creek 

Binkley Madrone Matanzas Sequoia Village Whited RVCS 

Aerobic Capacity 83.9 48.1 68.0 95.8 89.1 87.3 75.8 66.7 

Body 
Composition 

83.9 67.3 44.0 73.2 82.8 68.3 61.3 57.2 

Abdominal 
Strength 

100 94.2 82.0 100 92.2 77.8 77.4 85.5 

Trunk Extension 
Strength 

89.3 98.1 88.0 100 75.0 82.5 79.0 91.3 

Upper Body 
Strength 

76.8 92.3 72.0 63.4 95.3 77.8 77.4 67.4 

Flexibility 73.2 67.3 66.0 71.8 59.4 58.7 66.1 70.3 

Met HFZ in at 
least 5/6 Areas 

75.0 61.5 46.0 71.8 70.4 61.9 48.4 53.6 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.4 a 

Subject:  Student Support Model 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 

Background: Dr. Metzger and I have collaborated for the past 4 years on the creation of a 
student support model.  This model focuses on three key areas: Academics, 
Attendance and Attitude.  The focus has been on supporting student learning 
through improvements and changes in these areas.   

Highlights: There have been many changes to the model over the past few years including the 
addition of an EL coordinator and counselors.  These positions have provided 
personnel to support student groups who need intervention to be able to access 
curricular areas and learn with their peers.  Attendance has been a particular area 
of improvement that has been observed through the efforts of counselors and 
school staff.   

Challenges: The needs of our students are changing as quickly as the supports that we put into 
place.  The Multi-Tiered Systems of Support that we develop need to be fluid to 
address the unique needs of students.  This is a challenge when working to develop 
coherence in systems across the district.   

Analysis: Students and staff are beginning to share a common language around social 
emotional skills, interventions and systems of support.  This allows site teams to 
discuss and recommend the next level of intervention needed for a student. 
Building on the repertoire of each school team is a continued focus.  Discussions 
about Universal Design for Learning have begun and will be built on over the 
upcoming year.   

Next Steps: Continue to develop interventions that support students in all three targeted areas.  
Ensuring that students are getting the interventions that they need is also a priority.  
For the 2017-18 school year, the district will be implementing a new ELA/ELD 
curriculum, continuing the implementation of social-emotional learning programs 
and continuing to closely monitor attendance.  No new programs are being added.   

  

 
 
Attachments:  2017-2018 Student Support Model 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Changes for 2017-18 Student Support Model   
Black –in place 
Changes for 2017-18   

Academics   Attendance  
Attitude   

(Social, Emotional, Behavior, Health)  
Five Support Coordinators (SC) coordinate 

services at eight schools  
 

Intensive Intervention Para (IIP), EL Assistants, and  
Tutors provide intervention at each site  

Ensure intervention and enrichment services are 
provided   

 

Instructional Materials 
Year one implementation of Benchmark Advance 

ELA/ELD curriculum (ELA CT 1.0 FTE) 
  

Gate Coordinator (.4 FTE)  
  

EL Coordinator/Teacher (1.0 FTE)  
 

Math Consulting Teacher (1.0 FTE) 
  

Other Needs  
Continue to refine our Tiers of student support 

  
  

Office Assistant (.5 FTE) to monitor attendance 
and handle associated clerical duties at 

elementary schools. 
 

School Attendance Review Team  
(SART) “lead” (counselor)  

  
Proactive Attendance Program and Promotion 

of Good Attendance  
  

Continue School Attendance Review Board  
(SARB) Panel (increase the number of Spring 

SARB hearings to address the end of year needs)
  
 

Five FTE School Counselors & part-time Interns 
to provide daily services to all sites.  

  
2016-17 added a part-time counselor to support 
RVCS-M and the new SELP class at Matanzas. 

 
2017-18 RVP added an additional SELP class 

  

Yard Duty II provides structured activities at 
recesses at elementary schools. 

 

Behaviorists & Behavior Aides provide 
consultation for staff across district and support 

for individual students according to IEP/504  
 

Continue Restorative Practices for grades 4-8  
 

Counselors will provide Kimochi lessons to all 
TK and Kinder classes.  

 

2017‐18 Toolbox Refresher Training was 
provided 

 
 

Parent Education  
Rincon Valley Parent University and Resource Fair  

  

Bilingual Family Liaison 
Help with Parent Ed and communication in all three areas 

  
Rev. 9/6/17cm 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.4 b 

Subject:  AED Status Update 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 

Background: In September of 2016, RVUSD was provided with 11 AED devices from Heartsafe 
Community.  These have been placed at each of the school sites and one was 
placed at the District Office.   

Highlights: Thankfully, we have not needed to use these devices.  School sites have used 
online trainings to train school staff in how to use the AEDs.  I have a monthly 
check-in with the Office Clerks to make sure that the devices all have working 
batteries.  This keeps us compliant with the monthly monitoring requirement.    

Challenges: We have a team who were trained to be CPR and First Aid trainers, but it has been 
challenging to get trainings for staff scheduled.   

Analysis:  We are compliant with California State AED laws. 

Next Steps: Our next steps are to provide our annual training to staff in the use of the AEDs.    
Online training tools will be used in addition to scheduling CPR and First Aid 
training for our staff.       

   
 
 
Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.4 c 

Subject:  Parent University 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 

Background: The Rincon Valley School District has set a priority to increase our parent and 
community engagement.  The Rincon Valley Union School District Parent 
University and Resource Fair is a way to accomplish this.  The event is scheduled 
for Saturday October 21st at Matanzas Elementary.  There will be parent 
workshops and a resource fair from 9-12 and an optional picnic lunch from 12-1.   

Highlights: This event is open to ALL of the families in our district.  Some of the parent 
workshops are:  Cyber-Safety, Overview of Restorative Practices, Supporting your 
Child’s Transition to Middle School and Helping your Child with Math 
Homework.  Some of the Resource Fair Participants are: Redwood Empire Food 
Bank, Rincon Valley Education Foundation, Santa Rosa Parks and Recreation, 
Safe Routes to School and the Sonoma County Libraries.   

Challenges: Without having had an event like this in the past, it is difficult to judge what our 
family participation will be.   

Analysis: This is a very exciting opportunity to bring Rincon Valley Community Resources 
together, at a single location for our families.  There will be many things that we 
learn during this year that will help us plan for next year’s event.  The response 
from the community organizations has been very positive.   

Next Steps: Registration will be available online on our website in early October.  During the 
next few weeks, additional workshops and resource participants will be confirmed.  
Last step will be hoping for beautiful weather and great participation!  
  

   
 
 
Attachments:  None 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Information Item 13.5 

Subject:  Professional Development Plan for Site Administrators 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

Background: The Rincon Valley Union School District understands the value of investing in the 
professional development of its staff, to include site administrators.  Each year, 
staff reports to the Governing Board its focus and strategies for administrative 
professional development. 

Highlights: The focus this year is to build a coherent, district-wide definition of effective 
instructional practice in our core subjects among our site and district administrative 
team.    

Challenges: The District is re-booting its implementation of its math program, Engage New 
York as well as implementing a new ELA/ELD core program, Benchmark 
Advance.  In doing so, it’s imperative that our instructional practices in these core 
subject areas be closely aligned from classroom to classroom and school to school.   

Analysis: Instructional coherence for Rincon Valley Union School District means our 
teachers, regardless of grade level or school site, implement core programs with 
fidelity, align their instructional practices to the framework of Board adopted 
programs, and utilize instructional decision-making within the parameters of the 
adopted program based on the specific needs of the students in their classes.  This 
goal is best realized with support and guidance from our site administrators.  In 
order to ensure coherence, our site and district level administrators must develop a 
shared definition of the precise instructional practices we expect to occur in each 
classroom for each student.  Therefore, the professional development focus for our 
administrative team this year is to build that level of coherence utilizing a 
framework of instruction developed by the University of Washington Center for 
Educational Leadership (CEL).  

Next Steps: Our next steps are to begin this work with CEL and then work closely with 
teachers to familiarize their understanding of CEL instructional framework and 
how it compliments our own Four Pillars of High Quality Instruction.   

   
Attachments:  RVUSD Recommended Site Administrator Professional Development Topics, 

2017-18 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



RVUSD Recommended Site Administrator  
Professional Development Topics, 2017-18 

 

Focus Strategy 
 

Strengthen our Multi-Tiered 
System of Support for those 
students at the top of the pyramid 
through building capacity of site 
administrators and their teams of 
counselors, psychologists, and 
teacher leaders 
 

Mendes Training and Consulting, Inc., Dr. Ernie Mendes 
 
 
District provided workshop: GATE 101 for Administrators  
 

 

Increase district-wide coherence in 
instructional practice and 
implementation of core adopted 
curriculum by building a shared 
definition of RVUSD High Quality 
Instruction by of site 
administrators 
 

The 5 Dimensions of Teaching and 
Learning are: 

1. Purpose 
2. Student Engagement 
3. Curriculum and Pedagogy 
4. Assessment for Student 

Learning 
5. Classroom Environment and 

Culture 
 

Instructional Leadership Academy, Center for Educational 
Leadership (CEL), University of Washington 
 
Learning Walk Handbook, CEL 
 
Target Feedback Handbook, CEL 
 
Leading for Instructional Improvement, Stephen Fink and 
Anneke Markholt  
 
 

 

Increase our site administrators 
ability to provide employees with 
meaningful and actionable 
feedback 
 

Fierce Conversations, Susan Scott 

 

Deprivatize the practice of site 
administrators and build their 
capacity to enhance their own 
professional learning 
 

Monthly site administrator led Professional Learning 
Community (PLC) meetings 

 

Increase site administrators’ ability 
to use Illuminate to pull reports 
that meet their instructional queries 
  

District provided Illuminate training in September w/ 
ongoing support for individuals 

 

Other professional development 
based on individual areas for 
growth 
 

SCOE Administrator Induction Program 
 
Other regional and/or state-wide conferences TBD 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 

Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 

 

Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.1 

Subject:  Resolution 09-17-02, Sufficient Textbooks and Materials 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Under the William's Act Settlement, Governing Boards are required to annually 

certify that all students have access to core Board adopted instructional materials.  

This certification must occur prior to the end of the eighth week of school. 

Highlights: In Rincon Valley, we ensure each student has been issued Board adopted core 

instructional materials through our process to have every teacher complete a form 

verifying that they have the materials they need for each of our students.  We only 

bring this resolution to the Board after ensuing that each teacher has personally 

certified they have the materials needed for each and every student.  

Challenges: Complying with the instructional materials requirement under the William’s Act 

does not provide a challenge to our District. 

Analysis: Our process to ensure compliance with the William’s Act is thoughtful and precise.  

Our process allows us to bring forward with great confidence our conclusion that 

each and every student has been provided Board adopted instructional materials in 

all core subjects. 

Next Steps: This resolution is presented to our auditor each year as part of our accountability to 

the State of California.       

   

 

 

Attachments: Resolution #09-17-02, Declaring that each pupil in the district has sufficient 

textbooks and/or instructional materials, 2017-18. 

 

Fiscal Impact:  None 

  

Recommendation: For discussion only 

 



      Resolution #09-17-02 
Resolution on Sufficiency of Instructional Materials 

 
Whereas, the governing board of Rincon Valley Union School District, in order to 
comply with the requirements of Education Code Section 60139 held a public 
hearing on September 12, 2017 at 6:02 pm, which is on or before the eighth week 
of school and which did not take place during or immediately following school hours, 
and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board provided at least 10 days’ notice of the public 
hearing posted in at least three public places within the district that stated the time, 
place, and purpose of the hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, the governing board encouraged participation by parents, teachers, 
members of the community, and bargaining unit leaders in the public hearing, and; 
 
Whereas, information provided at the public hearing and to the governing board at 
the public meeting detailed the extent to which textbooks and instructional materials 
were provided to all students, including English learners, in the district, and; 
 
Whereas, the definition of “sufficient textbooks or instructional materials” means that 
each pupil has a textbook or instructional materials, or both, to use in class and to 
take home, and; 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks and instructional materials were provided to each 
student, including English learners, that are aligned to the academic content and 
standards and consistent with the cycles and content of the curriculum frameworks 
in mathematics, science, history-social science, and English/language arts, 
including the English language development component of an adopted program, 
and; 
 
Whereas, sufficient textbooks or instructional materials were provided to each pupil 
enrolled in foreign language or health classes, and; 
 
Therefore, it is resolved that for the 2017-18 school year, the Rincon Valley Union 
School District has provided each pupil with sufficient textbooks and instructional 
materials aligned to the academic content standards and consistent with the cycles 
and content of the curriculum frameworks. 
 
THIS RESOLUTION WAS ADOPTED at the public meeting on September 12, 2017.
 AYES  ______ 

NOES  ______ 
ABSTAIN ______ 
ABSENT ______ 
     

ATTEST BY: __________________________________ 
                                CYNTHIA EVERS, CLERK OF THE BOARD 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.2 

Subject:  2016-17 Unaudited Actual Report 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background: See attached memo. 

Highlights:   

Challenges:   

Analysis:   

Next Steps:   

 
 
Attachments: Memo to Board 
 2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

TO:  Tony Roehrick, Ed. D.    

FROM   Joseph Pandolfo, Ed.D. 

SUBJECT:  2016-17 Report of Unaudited Actuals Financial Data 

DATE:  September 12, 2017 

 
Education Code 42100 requires that on or before September 15th of each year, a report summarizing 

the District’s financial transactions be submitted to the County Superintendent of Schools after 

being approved by the Local School Board.  With the exception of the audit, which is presented in 

January, this is the final financial report required for the 2016-17 fiscal year.  This financial process 

began with the 2016-17 Original Budget and was updated with the first (December) and second 

(March) interim reports.  The Sonoma County Office of Education (SCOE), which has oversight 

authority as outlined in AB1200 reviews this report and to ensure proper completion of the report 

and makes comments to the District when necessary.  This report is then transmitted to the State 

Superintendent of Public Instruction. 

 

The Unaudited Actuals Report is formatted according to the Standardized Account Code Structure 

(SACS), and is attached to this memo.  This SACS report is essentially a summary report that 

groups the entire year’s transactions into similar categories.  The first two pages are the general 

fund summary in both unrestricted and restricted.   The left side of the pages has a description of the 

group of transaction, followed by the unrestricted and restricted unaudited actuals.  Adjacent to 

these columns is the 2017-18 budget and the final column is a percent of change between the two.  

Immediately following the general fund are two pages for each other fund with the same 

information followed by the several technical forms, whose primary purpose is to provide detailed 

information to the County for evaluation. 

 

Below is my analysis of the unaudited actuals.   

 

General Fund 
The General Fund closed the year with a deficit of $593,466 which is comprised of a $713,030 

reduction in unrestricted fund balance and a $119,564 increase of restricted fund balance.   

 

The decrease in the unrestricted portion of the general fund was due largely to a text book purchase.   

Also, there are unexpended funds that are “carried over” as part of the fund balance for 2017-18:   

These include: 

 

Page 1 of 63



Site Carry-Over   $174,830 

Miscellaneous    $ 37.761 

 

 

The increase in restricted funds were due to monies saved to be used for future projects, adoptions 

or professional development.  These funds include: 

 

Med-Cal Billing   $     68,682 

Clean Energy    $1,416,986 

Educator Effectiveness  $       6,100 

Maintenance    $   156,807 

  

The District was able to meet its board mandated 15% reserve for economic uncertainty 

requirement as well as have enough cash to meet its obligations without the need of Tax and 

Revenue Anticipation Notes (a short term loan).  The low point in fiscal year 2016-17 for cash was 

in November 2017, where the general fund ended the month with a cash balance of approximately 

$4.5. million, although this amount is artificially high due to the $1.4M in Clean Energy carry-over, 

which will be expended before November of this year, and the approximate $1M in text book 

adoption funds that were spent last spring. 

 

Although the District did deficit spent last year the deficit was planned and the amount of the deficit 

was close to our budget projections.   

 

Other Funds 
Rincon Valley Charter School’s transactions are accounted for in Fund 09, which has an ending 

fund balance of $274,411.  However, $206,045 of this amount is restricted for the Clean Energy 

resource and will be expended by December, leaving a unrestricted balance of $68,366.   This 

amount translates into a 2% reserve which is too small. This reserve should be at least 10%, which 

will provide enough resources for emergencies and cash flow purposes.   

 

Fund 12, is used for Daycare and closed the year with a $47,255 surplus.  This surplus was created 

in large part because the District cut the rent costs for the program by more than this amount three 

years ago to compensate the District for the Daycare benefit provided by this program to staff.  The 

total budget for this program is in excess of $1 million and the fund finished the year with a reserve 

of $285,033. 

 

The Cafeteria Special Reserve Fund (13) finished the year with a deficit of $23,094.  The food 

service department is developing a plan on how to eliminate this deficit, which was largely caused 

by a reduction in the number of the number of students eligible for free and reduced lunches. 

 

The Building Fund (21) is utilized to account for bond proceeds and construction expenses.  By the 

close of the year, there was a $3,061,337 balance remaining, which will be used to pay for 

continued construction costs at Binkley and Madrone Schools, and to start the Village School 

construction project.  The second series of bonds is scheduled to be issued in October. 

 

Page 2 of 63



The Capital Facilities Fund 25 generated enough funds to fully make payment on the lease used to 

construct Austin Creek and the RVCS Sequoia Campus.  The annual payment for the lease is 

$231,265 and the principal owed is $2.6M.   Revenues for the fund were $340,116, which is the 

highest amount collected in many years.  The ending balance is $ 109,300. 

 

Fund 40, which is a Special Reserve for Capital Outlay Projects, finished the year with an ending 

balance of slightly over $6,070,816.  Most of the amount will be spent on expenses that were 

committed to this past year, such as the District’s property purchase and construction. 

 

Fund 51, is the Bond and Interest Fund and accounts for voter approved debt issuances such as 

Measure F.  Revenues from the approved taxes are deposited in this fund and payments are made to 

service the approved debt.  Sonoma County manages the tax rate for this fund with input from the 

District to generate and also makes payments to the bond holders. 

 

The remainder of the SACS unaudited actuals report contains numerous technical reports that check 

compliance with various requirements such as special education, no child left behind, Gann limit, 

indirect cost rate, et. al.  These forms are primarily for the County to review for compliance and for 

the external auditor.  There were no issues with any of these requirements.    

 

Staff recommends approval of the Rincon Valley 2016-17 Unaudited Actuals. 

 

Page 3 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
School District Certification

49 70896 0000000
Form CA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ca (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017   2:36 PM

UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT:

To the County Superintendent of Schools:

2016-17 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report was prepared in accordance  

with Education Code Section 41010 and is hereby approved and filed by the governing board of

the school district pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Signed: Date of Meeting: Sept 12, 2017

Clerk/Secretary of the Governing Board

(Original signature required)

To the Superintendent of Public Instruction:

2016-17 UNAUDITED ACTUAL FINANCIAL REPORT. This report has been verified for accuracy

by the County Superintendent of Schools pursuant to Education Code Section 42100.

Signed: Date:

County Superintendent/Designee

(Original signature required)

For additional information on the unaudited actual reports, please contact:

For County Office of Education: For School District:

Judy Thompson Joseph Pandolfo

Name Name

Director of Fiscal Services Deputy Superintendent

Title Title

(707) 524-2635 (707) 542-7375

Telephone Telephone

jthompson@scoe.org jpandolfo@rvusd.org

E-mail Address E-mail Address

Page 4 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
FINANCIAL REPORTS

2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
Summary of Unaudited Actual Data Submission

49 70896 0000000
Form CA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ca (Rev 05/30/2017) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017   2:36 PM

Following is a summary of the critical data elements contained in your unaudited actual data. Since these data may have 

fiscal implications for your agency, please verify their accuracy before filing your unaudited actual financial reports.

Form Description Value

CEA Percent of Current Cost of Education Expended for Classroom Compensation 61.76%

Must equal or exceed 60% for elementary, 55% for unified, and 50% for high school

districts or future apportionments may be affected. (EC 41372)

CEA Deficiency Amount $0.00

Applicable to districts not exempt from the requirement and not meeting the minimum classroom 

compensation percentage - see Form CEA for further details.

GANN Adjustments to Appropriations Limit Per Government Code Section 7902.1 $0.00

If this amount is not zero, it represents an increase to your Appropriations Limit. The Department of 

Finance must be notified of increases within 45 days of budget adoption.

Adjusted Appropriations Limit $21,643,496.64

Appropriations Subject to Limit $21,643,496.64

These amounts represent the board approved Appropriations Limit and Appropriations Subject to

Limit pursuant to Government Code Section 7906 and EC 42132.

ICR Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 3.74%

Fixed-with-carry-forward indirect cost rate for use in 2018-19, subject to CDE approval.

NCMOE No Child Left Behind (NCLB) Maintenance of Effort (MOE) Determination MOE Met

If MOE Not Met, the 2018-19 apportionment may be reduced by the lesser of the following two percentages:

     MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Total Expenditures

     MOE Deficiency Percentage - Based on Expenditures Per ADA

Page 5 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
General Fund

Unrestricted and Restricted
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 06/08/2017) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  1:53 PM

  2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 28,937,919.29 303,390.00 29,241,309.29 28,794,714.00 295,541.00 29,090,255.00 -0.5%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 83,430.34 1,157,355.42 1,240,785.76 71,876.00 1,016,790.50 1,088,666.50 -12.3%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 1,237,596.90 2,094,714.57 3,332,311.47 533,851.41 1,535,313.00 2,069,164.41 -37.9%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,047,289.76 4,151,040.78 7,198,330.54 1,954,225.16 5,366,957.11 7,321,182.27 1.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 33,306,236.29 7,706,500.77 41,012,737.06 31,354,666.57 8,214,601.61 39,569,268.18 -3.5%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 12,448,837.11 4,557,916.59 17,006,753.70 12,105,684.20 4,522,490.44 16,628,174.64 -2.2%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 3,766,521.29 2,600,673.96 6,367,195.25 3,949,849.77 2,577,724.97 6,527,574.74 2.5%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 4,943,052.82 3,444,679.13 8,387,731.95 5,236,608.89 3,473,834.51 8,710,443.40 3.8%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 1,763,358.17 630,073.54 2,393,431.71 912,088.53 503,208.13 1,415,296.66 -40.9%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 2,514,734.00 1,063,882.25 3,578,616.25 1,482,892.11 1,813,217.22 3,296,109.33 -7.9%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 319,384.27 442,521.96 761,906.23 324,981.42 184,136.63 509,118.05 -33.2%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299

           Costs) 7400-7499 13,820.00 0.00 13,820.00 13,820.00 0.00 13,820.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 (290,346.60) 290,346.60 0.00 (371,188.84) 350,432.84 (20,756.00) New

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 25,479,361.06 13,030,094.03 38,509,455.09 23,654,736.08 13,425,044.74 37,079,780.82 -3.7%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

    OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

    FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 7,826,875.23 (5,323,593.26) 2,503,281.97 7,699,930.49 (5,210,443.13) 2,489,487.36 -0.6%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 4,922,286.11 0.00 4,922,286.11 4,297,935.45 0.00 4,297,935.45 -12.7%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 8,019,033.91 0.00 8,019,033.91 7,213,285.45 0.00 7,213,285.45 -10.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 (5,443,156.93) 5,443,156.93 0.00 (5,210,443.13) 5,210,443.13 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (8,539,904.73) 5,443,156.93 (3,096,747.80) (8,125,793.13) 5,210,443.13 (2,915,350.00) -5.9%

Page 6 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
General Fund

Unrestricted and Restricted
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form 01

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-a (Rev 06/08/2017) Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  1:53 PM

  2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 Budget

Description Resource Codes
Object
Codes

Unrestricted
(A)

Restricted
(B)

Total Fund
col. A + B

(C)
Unrestricted

(D)
Restricted

(E)

Total Fund
col. D + E

(F)

% Diff
Column
C & F

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND 

    BALANCE (C + D4) (713,029.50) 119,563.67 (593,465.83) (425,862.64) 0.00 (425,862.64) -28.2%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 10,592,199.99 1,529,012.51 12,121,212.50 9,879,170.49 1,648,576.18 11,527,746.67 -4.9%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 10,592,199.99 1,529,012.51 12,121,212.50 9,879,170.49 1,648,576.18 11,527,746.67 -4.9%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 10,592,199.99 1,529,012.51 12,121,212.50 9,879,170.49 1,648,576.18 11,527,746.67 -4.9%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30  (E + F1e) 9,879,170.49 1,648,576.18 11,527,746.67 9,453,307.85 1,648,576.18 11,101,884.03 -3.7%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 

        a) Nonspendable

            Revolving Cash 9711 7,250.00 0.00 7,250.00 7,250.00 0.00 7,250.00 0.0%

            Stores 9712 3,292.70 0.00 3,292.70 5,850.00 0.00 5,850.00 77.7%

            Prepaid Expenditures 9713 19,200.00 0.00 19,200.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100.0%

            All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 1,648,576.18 1,648,576.18 0.00 1,648,576.18 1,648,576.18 0.0%

        c) Committed

            Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned

            Other Assignments 9780 2,870,154.44 0.00 2,870,154.44 2,796,247.91 0.00 2,796,247.91 -2.6%

Partial COP 0000 9780 1,869,154.44 1,869,154.44

Science Textbook Adoption (2018/19) 0000 9780 500,000.00 500,000.00

One-Time 2017/18 1% Bonus 0000 9780 252,000.00 252,000.00

Phone System 0000 9780 249,000.00 249,000.00

Partial COP 0000 9780 1,795,247.91 1,795,247.91

Science Textbook Adoption (2018/19) 0000 9780 500,000.00 500,000.00

One-Time 2017/18 1% Bonus 0000 9780 252,000.00 252,000.00

Phone System 0000 9780 249,000.00 249,000.00

        e) Unassigned/unappropriated     

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 6,979,273.35 0.00 6,979,273.35 6,643,959.94 0.00 6,643,959.94 -4.8%

           Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 7 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  09

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  1:55 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 2,676,380.00 2,756,347.00 3.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 280,406.02 168,804.00 -39.8%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 2,673.40 1,000.00 -62.6%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 2,959,459.42 2,926,151.00 -1.1%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 1,259,858.34 1,326,365.26 5.3%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 310,543.16 287,308.08 -7.5%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 537,072.25 593,133.46 10.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 204,851.02 149,185.99 -27.2%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 532,063.07 485,454.02 -8.8%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 4,376.72 New

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,844,387.84 2,845,823.53 0.1%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 115,071.58 80,327.47 -30.2%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 79,454.20 84,650.00 6.5%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES (79,454.20) (84,650.00) 6.5%

Page 8 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Charter Schools Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  09

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  1:55 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 35,617.38 (4,322.53) -112.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 238,793.47 274,410.85 14.9%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 238,793.47 274,410.85 14.9%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 238,793.47 274,410.85 14.9%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 274,410.85 270,088.32 -1.6%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 206,045.12 206,045.12 0.0%

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 68,365.73 64,043.20 -6.3%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 9 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:04 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 170.00 New

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 1,063,804.82 1,028,015.00 -3.4%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,063,804.82 1,028,185.00 -3.3%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 615,833.86 653,016.29 6.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 207,583.73 221,483.50 6.7%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 114,884.01 114,302.27 -0.5%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 78,248.21 83,927.28 7.3%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,016,549.81 1,072,729.34 5.5%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 47,255.01 (44,544.34) -194.3%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 10 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Child Development Fund
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form  12

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:04 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 47,255.01 (44,544.34) -194.3%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 239,778.19 287,033.20 19.7%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 239,778.19 287,033.20 19.7%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 239,778.19 287,033.20 19.7%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 287,033.20 242,488.86 -15.5%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 2,000.00 0.00 -100.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 285,033.20 242,488.86 -14.9%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 11 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  13

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:05 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 688,872.65 708,316.49 2.8%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 48,941.36 45,000.00 -8.1%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 411,028.87 395,800.00 -3.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 1,148,842.88 1,149,116.49 0.0%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 321,824.18 338,854.95 5.3%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 111,671.72 122,115.41 9.4%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 30,737.12 16,300.00 -47.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 691,884.03 660,390.00 -4.6%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 15,820.12 17,000.00 7.5%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 20,756.00 New

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 1,171,937.17 1,175,416.36 0.3%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (23,094.29) (26,299.87) 13.9%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 12 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Cafeteria Special Revenue Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  13

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-b (Rev 06/08/2017 Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:05 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) (23,094.29) (26,299.87) 13.9%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 214,259.19 191,164.90 -10.8%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 214,259.19 191,164.90 -10.8%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 214,259.19 191,164.90 -10.8%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 191,164.90 164,865.03 -13.8%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 4,359.08 0.00 -100.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 425.00 0.00 -100.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 186,380.82 164,865.03 -11.5%

        c) Committed

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 13 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  21

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 75,810.88 0.00 -100.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 75,810.88 0.00 -100.0%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 19,000.00 0.00 -100.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 4,500.00 0.00 -100.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 9,311,388.18 7,000,000.00 -24.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 9,334,888.18 7,000,000.00 -25.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (9,259,077.30) (7,000,000.00) -24.4%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 16,000,000.00 New

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 16,000,000.00 New

Page 14 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Building Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  21

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:08 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) (9,259,077.30) 9,000,000.00 -197.2%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 12,320,414.57 3,061,337.27 -75.2%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 12,320,414.57 3,061,337.27 -75.2%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 12,320,414.57 3,061,337.27 -75.2%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 3,061,337.27 12,061,337.27 294.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed  

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 3,061,337.27 12,061,337.27 294.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 15 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form  25

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:09 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 340,116.36 231,345.64 -32.0%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 340,116.36 231,345.64 -32.0%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 231,264.78 231,264.78 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 231,264.78 231,264.78 0.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 108,851.58 80.86 -99.9%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 16 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Capital Facilities Fund
Expenditures by Object

49 70896 0000000
Form  25

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:09 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 108,851.58 80.86 -99.9%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 448.28 109,299.86 24282.1%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 448.28 109,299.86 24282.1%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 448.28 109,299.86 24282.1%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 109,299.86 109,380.72 0.1%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed  

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 109,299.86 109,380.72 0.1%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 17 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  40

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 144,393.02 117,355.00 -18.7%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 144,393.02 117,355.00 -18.7%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 352,606.10 0.00 -100.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 312,031.61 1,200,000.00 284.6%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 2,104,225.71 3,700,000.00 75.8%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 2,768,863.42 4,900,000.00 77.0%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) (2,624,470.40) (4,782,645.00) 82.2%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 3,176,202.00 3,000,000.00 -5.5%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 3,176,202.00 3,000,000.00 -5.5%

Page 18 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Reserve Fund for Capital Outlay Projects

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  40

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:10 PM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 551,731.60 (1,782,645.00) -423.1%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 5,519,084.63 6,070,816.23 10.0%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 5,519,084.63 6,070,816.23 10.0%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 5,519,084.63 6,070,816.23 10.0%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 6,070,816.23 4,288,171.23 -29.4%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed  

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 6,070,816.23 4,288,171.23 -29.4%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 19 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  51

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/25/2017  10:02 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

A. REVENUES

 

    1) LCFF Sources 8010-8099 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Federal Revenue 8100-8299 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Other State Revenue 8300-8599 28,914.18 0.00 -100.0%

    4) Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 3,084,466.07 539,196.20 -82.5%

    5) TOTAL, REVENUES 3,113,380.25 539,196.20 -82.7%

B. EXPENDITURES

 

    1) Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Employee Benefits 3000-3999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) Books and Supplies 4000-4999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    5) Services and Other Operating Expenditures 5000-5999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    6) Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    7) Other Outgo (excluding Transfers of Indirect 7100-7299,  

         Costs) 7400-7499 3,104,775.00 3,067,793.75 -1.2%

    8) Other Outgo - Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    9) TOTAL, EXPENDITURES 3,104,775.00 3,067,793.75 -1.2%

C. EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

     OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER

     FINANCING SOURCES AND USES  (A5 - B9) 8,605.25 (2,528,597.55) -29484.4%

D. OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES

 

    1) Interfund Transfers

        a) Transfers In 8900-8929 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Transfers Out 7600-7629 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    2) Other Sources/Uses  

        a) Sources 8930-8979 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    3) Contributions 8980-8999 0.00 0.00 0.0%

    4) TOTAL, OTHER FINANCING SOURCES/USES 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 20 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Bond Interest and Redemption Fund

Expenditures by Object
49 70896 0000000

Form  51

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: fund-d (Rev 02/02/2016) Page 2 Printed:  8/25/2017  10:02 AM

Description Resource Codes Object Codes
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
2017-18
Budget

Percent
Difference

E. NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN FUND

     BALANCE (C + D4) 8,605.25 (2,528,597.55) -29484.4%

F. FUND BALANCE, RESERVES

 

    1) Beginning Fund Balance

        a) As of July 1 - Unaudited 9791 2,519,992.30 2,528,597.55 0.3%

        b) Audit Adjustments 9793 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) As of July 1 - Audited (F1a + F1b) 2,519,992.30 2,528,597.55 0.3%

        d) Other Restatements 9795 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        e) Adjusted Beginning Balance (F1c + F1d) 2,519,992.30 2,528,597.55 0.3%

    2) Ending Balance, June 30 (E + F1e) 2,528,597.55 0.00 -100.0%

        Components of Ending Fund Balance 

        a) Nonspendable

             Revolving Cash 9711 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Stores 9712 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Prepaid Expenditures 9713 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             All Others 9719 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        b) Restricted 9740 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        c) Committed  

             Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00 0.00 0.0%

             Other Commitments 9760 0.00 0.00 0.0%

        d) Assigned  

             Other Assignments 9780 2,528,597.55 0.00 -100.0%

        e) Unassigned/Unappropriated  

            Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 0.00 0.00 0.0%

            Unassigned/Unappropriated Amount 9790 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Page 21 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70896 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ada (Rev 03/10/2017) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:12 PM

     2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 Budget2017-18 Budget

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA
Estimated P-2

ADA
Estimated

Annual ADA
Estimated

Funded ADA

A. DISTRICT

 1.  Total District Regular ADA

      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

      and Extended Year, and Community Day

      School (includes Necessary Small School

     ADA) 1,315.03 1,314.49 1,358.39 1,296.29 1,296.29 1,326.32

 2.  Total Basic Aid Choice/Court Ordered

     Voluntary Pupil Transfer Regular ADA 

      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

      and Extended Year, and Community Day

      School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

 3.  Total Basic Aid Open Enrollment Regular ADA

      Includes Opportunity Classes, Home &

      Hospital, Special Day Class, Continuation

      Education, Special Education NPS/LCI

      and Extended Year, and Community Day

      School (ADA not included in Line A1 above)

 4.  Total, District Regular ADA

      (Sum of Lines A1 through A3) 1,315.03 1,314.49 1,358.39 1,296.29 1,296.29 1,326.32

 5.  District Funded County Program ADA

      a.  County Community Schools 

      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 10.56 10.60 10.56 10.80 10.80 10.80

      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI

      d.  Special Education Extended Year 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19 1.19

      e.  Other County Operated Programs:

           Opportunity Schools and Full Day

           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

           Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

           Resource Conservation Schools

      f.  County School Tuition Fund 

           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]

      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA

           (Sum of Lines A5a through A5f) 11.75 11.79 11.75 11.99 11.99 11.99

 6.  TOTAL DISTRICT ADA

      (Sum of Line A4 and Line A5g) 1,326.78 1,326.28 1,370.14 1,308.28 1,308.28 1,338.31

 7.  Adults in Correctional Facilities

 8.  Charter School ADA

      (Enter Charter School ADA using

      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 22 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70896 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ada (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:12 PM

     2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 Budget2017-18 Budget
Estimated P-2 Estimated Estimated 

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA

B. COUNTY OFFICE OF EDUCATION

 1.  County Program Alternative Education ADA 

      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils

      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps

      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

         Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

      d. Total, County Program Alternative Education

          ADA (Sum of Lines B1a through B1c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 2.  District Funded County Program ADA

      a.  County Community Schools 

      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 

      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI

      d.  Special Education Extended Year

      e.  Other County Operated Programs:

           Opportunity Schools and Full Day

           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

           Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

           Resource Conservation Schools

      f.  County School Tuition Fund 

           (Out of State Tuition) [EC 2000 and 46380]

      g.  Total, District Funded County Program ADA

           (Sum of Lines B2a through B2f) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 3.  TOTAL COUNTY OFFICE ADA

      (Sum of Lines B1d and B2g) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 4.  Adults in Correctional Facilities

 5.  County Operations Grant ADA

 6.  Charter School ADA

      (Enter Charter School ADA using

      Tab C. Charter School ADA)

Page 23 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
AVERAGE DAILY ATTENDANCE 49 70896 0000000

Form A

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ada (Rev 02/03/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:12 PM

     2016-17 Unaudited Actuals 2017-18 Budget2017-18 Budget

Description P-2 ADA Annual ADA Funded ADA
Estimated P-2

ADA
Estimated

Annual ADA
Estimated

Funded ADA

C. CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.    Authorizing LEAs reporting charter school SACS financial data in their Fund 01, 09, or 62 use this worksheet to report ADA for those charter schools.

    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.    Charter schools reporting SACS financial data separately from their authorizing LEAs in Fund 01 or Fund 62 use this worksheet to report their ADA.

      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.      FUND 01:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 01.

 1.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 1,755.36 1,755.88 1,755.36 1,721.78 1,721.78 1,721.78

 2.  Charter School County Program Alternative 

      Education ADA

      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils

      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps

      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

      d. Total, Charter School County Program 

          Alternative Education ADA

          (Sum of Lines C2a through C2c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 3.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA

      a.  County Community Schools 

      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 

      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI

      d.  Special Education Extended Year

      e.  Other County Operated Programs:

           Opportunity Schools and Full Day

           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

           Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

           Resource Conservation Schools

      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County

          Program ADA

          (Sum of Lines C3a through C3e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 4.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

      (Sum of Lines C1, C2d, and C3f) 1,755.36 1,755.88 1,755.36 1,721.78 1,721.78 1,721.78

      FUND 09 or 62:  Charter School ADA corresponding to SACS financial data reported in Fund 09 or Fund 62.

 5.  Total Charter School Regular ADA 352.38 352.51 352.38 355.91 355.91 355.91

 6.  Charter School County Program Alternative 

      Education ADA

      a. County Group Home and Institution Pupils

      b. Juvenile Halls, Homes, and Camps

      c. Probation Referred, On Probation or Parole,

          Expelled per EC 48915(a) or (c) [EC 2574(c)(4)(A)]

      d. Total, Charter School County Program

          Alternative Education ADA

          (Sum of Lines C6a through C6c) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 7.  Charter School Funded County Program ADA

      a.  County Community Schools 

      b.  Special Education-Special Day Class 

      c.  Special Education-NPS/LCI

      d.  Special Education Extended Year

      e.  Other County Operated Programs:

           Opportunity Schools and Full Day

           Opportunity Classes, Specialized Secondary

           Schools, Technical, Agricultural, and Natural

           Resource Conservation Schools

      f.  Total, Charter School Funded County

          Program ADA

          (Sum of Lines C7a through C7e) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 8.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

      (Sum of Lines C5, C6d, and C7f) 352.38 352.51 352.38 355.91 355.91 355.91

 9.  TOTAL CHARTER SCHOOL ADA

      Reported in Fund 01, 09, or 62

      (Sum of Lines C4 and C8) 2,107.74 2,108.39 2,107.74 2,077.69 2,077.69 2,077.69

Page 24 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
Schedule of Capital Assets

49 70896 0000000
Form ASSET

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: asset (Rev 01/27/2009) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:14 PM

Unaudited
 Balance
   July 1

Audit
Adjustments/
Restatements

 Audited
Balance
  July 1 Increases Decreases

Ending Balance
June 30

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land 1,122,383.00 1,122,383.00 1,122,383.00

   Work in Progress 3,259,312.00 4,491,880.00 7,751,192.00 7,751,192.00

     Total capital assets not being depreciated 4,381,695.00 4,491,880.00 8,873,575.00 0.00 0.00 8,873,575.00

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Land Improvements 2,236,114.82 34,298.00 2,270,412.82 2,270,412.82

   Buildings 46,545,551.72 46,545,551.72 6,680,668.94 53,226,220.66

   Equipment 2,762,380.69 (348,140.69) 2,414,240.00 722,125.51 3,136,365.51

     Total capital assets being depreciated 51,544,047.23 (313,842.69) 51,230,204.54 7,402,794.45 0.00 58,632,998.99

   Accumulated Depreciation for:

     Land Improvements (1,141,419.80) (1,141,419.80) (119,836.17) (1,261,255.97)

     Buildings (17,789,291.02) (17,789,291.02) (1,551,223.68) (19,340,514.70)

     Equipment (1,360,556.08) 345,143.00 (1,015,413.08) (274,844.24) (1,290,257.32)

       Total accumulated depreciation (20,291,266.90) 345,143.00 (19,946,123.90) (1,945,904.09) 0.00 (21,892,027.99)

       Total capital assets being depreciated, net 31,252,780.33 31,300.31 31,284,080.64 5,456,890.36 0.00 36,740,971.00

Governmental activity capital assets, net 35,634,475.33 4,523,180.31 40,157,655.64 5,456,890.36 0.00 45,614,546.00

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

   Land 0.00 0.00

   Work in Progress 0.00 0.00

     Total capital assets not being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Capital assets being depreciated:

   Land Improvements 0.00 0.00

   Buildings 0.00 0.00

   Equipment 0.00 0.00

     Total capital assets being depreciated 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

   Accumulated Depreciation for:

     Land Improvements 0.00 0.00

     Buildings 0.00 0.00

     Equipment 0.00 0.00

       Total accumulated depreciation 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

       Total capital assets being depreciated, net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Business-type activity capital assets, net 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 25 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

GENERAL FUND
Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation

49 70896 0000000
Form CEA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: cea (Rev 05/25/2017) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:14 PM

PART I  -  CURRENT
EXPENSE FORMULA

Total Expense
for Year

(1)
EDP
No.

Reductions
(See Note 1)

(2)
EDP
No.

Current Expense
of Education
(Col 1 - Col 2)

(3)
EDP
No.

Reductions
(Extracted)

(See Note 2)
(4a)

Reductions
(Overrides)*
(See Note 2)

(4b)
EDP
No.

Current Expense-
Part II

(Col 3 - Col 4)
(5)

EDP
No.

1000 - Certificated
Salaries 17,006,753.70 301 2,221,645.05 303 14,785,108.65 305 87,686.06 307 14,697,422.59 309

2000 - Classified Salaries 6,367,195.25 311 695,844.78 313 5,671,350.47 315 413,634.51 317 5,257,715.96 319

3000 - Employee Benefits 8,387,731.95 321 1,315,543.18 323 7,072,188.77 325 145,181.83 327 6,927,006.94 329

4000 - Books, Supplies
Equip Replace. (6500) 2,792,633.93 331 234,846.44 333 2,557,787.49 335 1,080,724.70 337 1,477,062.79 339

5000 - Services. . . &
7300 - Indirect Costs 3,578,616.25 341 368,066.24 343 3,210,550.01 345 830,107.58 347 2,380,442.43 349

TOTAL 33,296,985.39 365 TOTAL 30,739,650.71 369

Note 1 - In Column 2, report expenditures for the following programs: Nonagency (Goals 7100-7199), Community Services (Goal 8100), Food Services 

               (Function 3700), Fringe Benefits for Retired Persons (Objects 3701-3702), and Facilities Acquisition & Construction (Function 8500).

Note 2 - In Column 4, report expenditures for: Transportation (Function 3600), Lottery Expenditures (Resource 1100), Special Education Students in 

               Nonpublic Schools (Function 1180), and other federal or state categorical aid in which funds were granted for expenditures in a program not

               incurring any teacher salary expenditures or requiring disbursement of the funds without regard to the requirements of EC Section 41372.

* If an amount (even zero) is entered in any row of Column 4b or in Line 13b, the form uses only the values in Column 4b and Line 13b rather than the 

  values in Column 4a and Line 13a. 

PART II: MINIMUM CLASSROOM COMPENSATION (Instruction, Functions 1000-1999) Object
EDP
No.

1.     Teacher Salaries as Per EC 41011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 1100 13,414,790.55 375

2.     Salaries of Instructional Aides Per EC 41011. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2100 2,199,324.94 380

3.     STRS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3101 & 3102 2,643,366.38 382

4.     PERS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3201 & 3202 318,216.54 383

5.     OASDI - Regular, Medicare and Alternative. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3301 & 3302 373,931.40 384

6.     Health & Welfare Benefits (EC 41372)

        (Include Health, Dental, Vision, Pharmaceutical, and

        Annuity Plans). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3401 & 3402 1,907,599.19 385

7.     Unemployment Insurance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 3501 & 3502 7,584.89 390

8.     Workers' Compensation Insurance. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3601 & 3602 427,381.51 392

9.     OPEB, Active Employees (EC 41372). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3751 & 3752 0.00

10.   Other Benefits (EC 22310). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .3901 & 3902 0.00 393

11.   SUBTOTAL  Salaries and Benefits (Sum Lines 1 - 10). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .21,292,195.40 395

12.   Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and 

        Benefits deducted in Column 2. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .2,307,719.66

13a. Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and

        Benefits (other than Lottery) deducted in Column 4a (Extracted). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0.00 396

    b. Less: Teacher and Instructional Aide Salaries and

        Benefits (other than Lottery) deducted in Column 4b (Overrides)*. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 396

14.   TOTAL SALARIES AND BENEFITS. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .18,984,475.74 397

15.   Percent of Current Cost of Education Expended for Classroom

         Compensation (EDP 397 divided by EDP 369)  Line 15 must

         equal or exceed 60% for elementary, 55% for unified and 50%

         for high school districts to avoid penalty under provisions of EC 41372. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 61.76%

16.   District is exempt from EC 41372 because it meets the provisions

         of EC 41374. (If exempt, enter 'X') . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

PART III: DEFICIENCY AMOUNT

A deficiency amount (Line 5) is only applicable to districts not meeting the minimum classroom compensation percentage required under EC 41372 and not exempt under the
provisions of EC 41374.
A deficiency amount (Line 5) is only applicable to districts not meeting the minimum classroom compensation percentage required under EC 41372 and not exempt under the
provisions of EC 41374.

1.      Minimum percentage required (60% elementary, 55% unified, 50% high) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 60.00%

2.      Percentage spent by this district (Part II, Line 15) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .61.76%

3.      Percentage below the minimum (Part III, Line 1 minus Line 2) . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0.00%

4.      District's Current Expense of Education after reductions in columns 4a or 4b (Part I, EDP 369). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 30,739,650.71

5.      Deficiency Amount (Part III, Line 3 times Line 4)  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0.00

PART IV: Explanation for adjustments entered in Part I, Column 4b (required)

Page 26 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

GENERAL FUND
Current Expense Formula/Minimum Classroom Compensation

49 70896 0000000
Form CEA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: cea (Rev 05/25/2017) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:14 PM

Page 27 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Schedule of Long-Term Liabilities
49 70896 0000000

Form DEBT

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: debt (Rev 06/22/2015) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/25/2017  9:55 AM

Unaudited
 Balance
   July 1

Audit
Adjustments/
Restatements

 Audited
Balance
  July 1 Increases Decreases

Ending Balance
June 30

Amounts Due Within
One Year

Governmental Activities:

  General Obligation Bonds Payable 41,155,432.00 1,048,227.00 42,203,659.00 2,106,986.00 40,096,673.00 2,078,452.00

  State School Building Loans Payable 0.00 0.00

  Certificates of Participation Payable 0.00 0.00

  Capital Leases Payable 2,764,416.00 2,764,416.00 182,868.00 2,581,548.00 186,138.00

  Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00

  Other General Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.00

  Net Pension Liability 25,758,538.00 5,806,211.00 31,564,749.00 31,564,749.00

  Net OPEB Obligation 200,551.00 101,781.00 302,332.00 302,332.00

  Compensated Absences Payable 148,261.38 148,261.38 21,554.14 169,815.52 169,815.52

     Governmental activities long-term liabilities 70,027,198.38 6,956,219.00 76,983,417.38 21,554.14 2,289,854.00 74,715,117.52 2,434,405.52

Business-Type Activities:

  General Obligation Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00

  State School Building Loans Payable 0.00 0.00

  Certificates of Participation Payable 0.00 0.00

  Capital Leases Payable 0.00 0.00

  Lease Revenue Bonds Payable 0.00 0.00

  Other General Long-Term Debt 0.00 0.00

  Net Pension Liability 0.00 0.00

  Net OPEB Obligation 0.00 0.00

  Compensated Absences Payable 0.00 0.00

     Business-type activities long-term liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Page 28 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2016-17

School District Appropriations Limit Calculations
49 70896 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: gann-d (Rev 05/18/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:16 PM

2016-17
Calculations

2017-18
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

A. PRIOR YEAR DATA 2015-16 Actual 2016-17 Actual

(2015-16 Actual Appropriations Limit and Gann ADA

are from district's prior year Gann data reported to the CDE)

1. FINAL PRIOR YEAR APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

(Preload/Line D11, PY column) 20,641,617.15 20,641,617.15 21,643,496.64

2. PRIOR YEAR GANN ADA (Preload/Line B3, PY column) 3,451.42 3,451.42 3,434.52

ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT Adjustments to 2015-16 Adjustments to 2016-17

3. District Lapses, Reorganizations and Other Transfers

4. Temporary Voter Approved Increases

5. Less: Lapses of Voter Approved Increases

6. TOTAL ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR LIMIT

(Lines A3 plus A4 minus A5) 0.00 0.00

7. ADJUSTMENTS TO PRIOR YEAR ADA

(Only for district lapses, reorganizations and 

other transfers, and only if adjustments to the 

appropriations limit are entered in Line A3 above)

B. CURRENT YEAR GANN ADA 2016-17 P2 Report 2017-18 P2 Estimate

(2016-17 data should tie to Principal Apportionment

Software Attendance reports and include ADA for charter schools
reporting with the district)

1. Total K-12 ADA (Form A, Line A6) 1,326.78 1,326.78 1,308.28 1,308.28

2. Total Charter Schools ADA (Form A, Line C9) 2,107.74 2,107.74 2,077.69 2,077.69

3. TOTAL CURRENT YEAR P2 ADA (Line B1 plus B2) 3,434.52 3,385.97

C. LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES/STATE AID RECEIVED 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Budget

TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

1. Homeowners' Exemption (Object 8021) 111,108.85 111,108.85 0.00 0.00

2. Timber Yield Tax (Object 8022) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3. Other Subventions/In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8029) 458.81 458.81 0.00 0.00

4. Secured Roll Taxes (Object 8041) 14,797,355.20 14,797,355.20 16,856,222.00 16,856,222.00

5. Unsecured Roll Taxes (Object 8042) 445,360.18 445,360.18 0.00 0.00

6. Prior Years' Taxes (Object 8043) 20,866.70 20,866.70 0.00 0.00

7. Supplemental Taxes (Object 8044) 348,396.55 348,396.55 0.00 0.00

8. Ed. Rev. Augmentation Fund (ERAF) (Object 8045) 1,115,665.00 1,115,665.00 0.00 0.00

9. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Taxes (Object 8048) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

10. Other In-Lieu Taxes (Object 8082) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

11. Comm. Redevelopment Funds (objects 8047 & 8625) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

12. Parcel Taxes (Object 8621) 1,142,534.87 1,142,534.87 1,181,927.00 1,181,927.00

13. Other Non-Ad Valorem Taxes (Object 8622) (Taxes only) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

14. Penalties and Int. from Delinquent Non-LCFF

Taxes (Object 8629) (Only those for the above taxes) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

15. Transfers to Charter Schools 

in Lieu of Property Taxes (Object 8096)

16. TOTAL TAXES AND SUBVENTIONS

(Lines C1 through C15) 17,981,746.16 0.00 17,981,746.16 18,038,149.00 0.00 18,038,149.00

OTHER LOCAL REVENUES (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

17. To General Fund from Bond Interest and Redemption 

Fund (Excess debt service taxes) (Object 8914) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

18. TOTAL LOCAL PROCEEDS OF TAXES

(Lines C16 plus C17) 17,981,746.16 0.00 17,981,746.16 18,038,149.00 0.00 18,038,149.00

Page 29 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2016-17

School District Appropriations Limit Calculations
49 70896 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: gann-d (Rev 05/18/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:16 PM

2016-17
Calculations

2017-18
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

EXCLUDED APPROPRIATIONS

19. Medicare (Enter federally mandated amounts only from objs.
3301 & 3302; do not include negotiated amounts)

345,652.23 343,795.08

OTHER EXCLUSIONS

20. Americans with Disabilities Act

21. Unreimbursed Court Mandated Desegregation 

Costs 

22. Other Unfunded Court-ordered or Federal Mandates

23. TOTAL EXCLUSIONS (Lines C19 through C22) 345,652.23 343,795.08

STATE AID RECEIVED (Funds 01, 09, and 62)

24. LCFF - CY (objects 8011 and 8012) 14,773,482.00 14,773,482.00 14,694,839.00 14,694,839.00

25. LCFF/Revenue Limit State Aid - Prior Years (Object 8019) 1,606.00 1,606.00 0.00 0.00

26. TOTAL STATE AID RECEIVED

(Lines C24 plus C25) 14,775,088.00 0.00 14,775,088.00 14,694,839.00 0.00 14,694,839.00

DATA FOR INTEREST CALCULATION

27. Total Revenues (Funds 01, 09 & 62; objects 8000-8799) 43,972,196.48 43,972,196.48 42,495,419.18 42,495,419.18

28. Total Interest and Return on Investments 

(Funds 01, 09, and 62; objects 8660 and 8662) 156,416.89 156,416.89 76,000.00 76,000.00

APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT CALCULATIONS 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Budget

D. PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

1. Revised Prior Year Program Limit (Lines A1 plus A6) 20,641,617.15 21,643,496.64

2. Inflation Adjustment 1.0537 1.0369

3. Program Population Adjustment (Lines B3 divided 

by [A2 plus A7]) (Round to four decimal places) 0.9951 0.9859

4. PRELIMINARY APPROPRIATIONS LIMIT

(Lines D1 times D2 times D3) 21,643,496.64 22,125,707.47

APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

5. Local Revenues Excluding Interest (Line C18) 17,981,746.16 18,038,149.00

6. Preliminary State Aid Calculation

a. Minimum State Aid in Local Limit (Greater of  

$120 times Line B3 or $2,400; but not greater

than Line C26 or less than zero) 412,142.40 406,316.40

b. Maximum State Aid in Local Limit 

(Lesser of Line C26 or Lines D4 minus D5 plus C23; 

but not less than zero) 4,007,402.71 4,431,353.55

c. Preliminary State Aid in Local Limit

(Greater of Lines D6a or D6b) 4,007,402.71 4,431,353.55

7. Local Revenues in Proceeds of Taxes

a. Interest Counting in Local Limit (Line C28 divided by 

[Lines C27 minus C28] times [Lines D5 plus D6c]) 78,498.53 40,257.09

b. Total Local Proceeds of Taxes (Lines D5 plus D7a) 18,060,244.69 18,078,406.09

8. State Aid in Proceeds of Taxes (Greater of Line D6a, 

or Lines D4 minus D7b plus C23; but not greater

than Line C26 or less than zero) 3,928,904.18 4,391,096.46

9. Total Appropriations Subject to the Limit

a. Local Revenues (Line D7b) 18,060,244.69

b. State Subventions (Line D8) 3,928,904.18

c. Less: Excluded Appropriations (Line C23) 345,652.23

d. TOTAL APPROPRIATIONS SUBJECT TO THE LIMIT

(Lines D9a plus D9b minus D9c) 21,643,496.64

Page 30 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Fiscal Year 2016-17

School District Appropriations Limit Calculations
49 70896 0000000

Form GANN

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: gann-d (Rev 05/18/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:16 PM

2016-17
Calculations

2017-18
Calculations

Extracted Entered Data/ Extracted Entered Data/

Data Adjustments* Totals Data Adjustments* Totals

10. Adjustments to the Limit Per 

Government Code Section 7902.1

(Line D9d minus D4; if negative, then zero) 0.00

If not zero report amount to:

Michael Cohen, Director

State Department of Finance

Attention: School Gann Limits

State Capitol, Room 1145

Sacramento, CA 95814

Summary 2016-17 Actual 2017-18 Budget

11. Adjusted Appropriations Limit

(Lines D4 plus D10) 21,643,496.64 22,125,707.47

12. Appropriations Subject to the Limit

(Line D9d) 21,643,496.64

*  Please provide below an explanation for each entry in the adjustments column.

Joseph Pandolfo (707) 542-7375

Gann Contact Person Contact Phone Number

Page 31 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
49 70896 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017) Page 1 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:22 PM

     Part I - General Administrative Share of Plant Services Costs 

     California's indirect cost plan allows that the general administrative costs in the indirect cost pool may include that portion of plant services 

     costs (maintenance and operations costs and facilities rents and leases costs) attributable to the general administrative offices. The 

     calculation of the plant services costs attributed to general administration and included in the pool is standardized and automated

     using the percentage of salaries and benefits relating to general administration as proxy for the percentage of square footage

     occupied by general administration.

     A.     Salaries and Benefits - Other General Administration and Centralized Data Processing 

              1.   Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

                    (Functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000) 926,439.97

              2.   Contracted general administrative positions not paid through payroll

                    a.   Enter the costs, if any, of general administrative positions performing services ON SITE but paid through a

                          contract, rather than through payroll, in functions 7200-7700, goals 0000 and 9000, Object 5800. 12,839.07

                    b.   If an amount is entered on Line A2a, provide the title, duties, and approximate FTE of each general

                          administrative position paid through a contract. Retain supporting documentation in case of audit.

Principal Mentoring, Accounting Mentoring, and Safety Training. Total FTE for all of these services is
approximately 0.05 FTE

     B.     Salaries and Benefits - All Other Activities 

              1.   Salaries and benefits paid through payroll (Funds 01, 09, and 62, objects 1000-3999 except 3701-3702)

                    (Functions 1000-6999, 7100-7180, & 8100-8400; Functions 7200-7700, all goals except 0000 & 9000) 32,840,068.46

 

     C.     Percentage of Plant Services Costs Attributable to General Administration

              (Line A1 plus Line A2a, divided by Line B1; zero if negative) (See Part III, Lines A5 and A6) 2.86%
 

     Part II - Adjustments for Employment Separation Costs

     When an employee separates from service, the local educational agency (LEA) may incur costs associated with the separation in addition

     to the employee's regular salary and benefits for the final pay period. These additional costs can be categorized as "normal" or "abnormal

     or mass" separation costs. 

     Normal separation costs include items such as pay for accumulated unused leave or routine severance pay authorized by governing board 

     policy. Normal separation costs are not allowable as direct costs to federal programs, but are allowable as indirect costs. State programs 

     may have similar restrictions. Where federal or state program guidelines required that the LEA charge an employee's normal separation

     costs to an unrestricted resource rather than to the restricted program in which the employee worked, the LEA may identify and enter 

     these costs on Line A for inclusion in the indirect cost pool. 

     Abnormal or mass separation costs are those costs resulting from actions taken by an LEA to influence employees to terminate their

     employment earlier than they normally would have. Abnormal or mass separation costs include retirement incentives such as a Golden 

     Handshake or severance packages negotiated to effect termination. Abnormal or mass separation costs may not be charged to federal 

     programs as either direct costs or indirect costs. Where an LEA paid abnormal or mass separation costs on behalf of positions in general 

     administrative functions included in the indirect cost pool, the LEA must identify and enter these costs on Line B for exclusion from the pool.

     A.     Normal Separation Costs (optional)

              Enter any normal separation costs paid on behalf of employees of restricted state or federal programs that 

              were charged to an unrestricted resource (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 1000-6999 or 8100-8400 

              rather than to the restricted program. These costs will be moved in Part III from base costs to the indirect cost pool.

              Retain supporting documentation.

     B.     Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (required)

              Enter any abnormal or mass separation costs paid on behalf of general administrative positions charged to 

              unrestricted resources (0000-1999) in funds 01, 09, and 62 with functions 7200-7700. These costs will be 

              moved in Part III from the indirect cost pool to base costs. If none, enter zero. 0.00

Page 32 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
49 70896 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017) Page 2 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:22 PM

     Part III - Indirect Cost Rate Calculation (Funds 01, 09, and 62, unless indicated otherwise)

     A.     Indirect Costs

              1.    Other General Administration, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

                     (Functions 7200-7600, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B9) 1,387,037.99

              2.    Centralized Data Processing, less portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals

                     (Function 7700, objects 1000-5999, minus Line B10) 5,401.35
              3.    External Financial Audit - Single Audit (Function 7190, resources 0000-1999,
                     goals 0000 and 9000, objects 5000-5999)

30,090.00
              4.    Staff Relations and Negotiations (Function 7120, resources 0000-1999,
                     goals 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999)

0.00

              5.    Plant Maintenance and Operations (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

                     (Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 88,472.18

              6.    Facilities Rents and Leases (portion relating to general administrative offices only)

                     (Function 8700, resources 0000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, times Part I, Line C) 343.20

              7.    Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

                     a.   Plus:  Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00

                     b.   Less:  Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00

              8.    Total Indirect Costs (Lines A1 through A7a, minus Line A7b) 1,511,344.72

              9.    Carry-Forward Adjustment  (Part IV, Line F) (18,880.44)

            10.    Total Adjusted Indirect Costs (Line A8 plus Line A9) 1,492,464.28

     B.     Base Costs

              1.    Instruction (Functions 1000-1999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 26,043,928.15

              2.    Instruction-Related Services (Functions 2000-2999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 4,857,660.79

              3.    Pupil Services (Functions 3000-3999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 3,974,058.00

              4.    Ancillary Services (Functions 4000-4999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 84,829.87

              5.    Community Services (Functions 5000-5999, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 814.82

              6.    Enterprise (Function 6000, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00
              7.    Board and Superintendent (Functions 7100-7180, objects 1000-5999,
                     minus Part III, Line A4) 283,280.65
              8.    External Financial Audit - Single Audit and Other (Functions 7190-7191,
                     objects 5000-5999, minus Part III, Line A3) 0.00

              9.    Other General Administration (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

                     (Functions 7200-7600, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Functions 7200-7600,

                     resources 0000-1999, all goals except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 43,706.20

            10.    Centralized Data Processing (portion charged to restricted resources or specific goals only)

                     (Function 7700, resources 2000-9999, objects 1000-5999; Function 7700, resources 0000-1999, all goals

                     except 0000 and 9000, objects 1000-5999) 0.00

            11.    Plant Maintenance and Operations (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

                     (Functions 8100-8400, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A5) 3,004,960.66

            12.    Facilities Rents and Leases (all except portion relating to general administrative offices)

                     (Function 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100, minus Part III, Line A6) 37,906.80

            13.    Adjustment for Employment Separation Costs

                     a.   Less:  Normal Separation Costs (Part II, Line A) 0.00

                     b.   Plus:  Abnormal or Mass Separation Costs (Part II, Line B) 0.00

            14.    Adult Education (Fund 11, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00

            15.    Child Development (Fund 12, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 1,016,549.81

            16.    Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 516,646.06

            17.    Foundation (Funds 19 and 57, functions 1000-6999, 8100-8400, and 8700, objects 1000-5999 except 5100) 0.00

            18.    Total Base Costs (Lines B1 through B12 and Lines B13b through B17, minus Line B13a) 39,864,341.81

     C.    Straight Indirect Cost Percentage Before Carry-Forward Adjustment 

             (For information only - not for use when claiming/recovering indirect costs)

             (Line A8 divided by Line B18) 3.79%

     D.    Preliminary Proposed Indirect Cost Rate 

             (For final approved fixed-with-carry-forward rate for use in 2018-19 see www.cde.ca.gov/fg/ac/ic)

             (Line A10 divided by Line B18) 3.74%

Page 33 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Indirect Cost Rate Worksheet
49 70896 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 02/21/2017) Page 3 of 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:22 PM

     Part IV - Carry-forward Adjustment

     The carry-forward adjustment is an after-the-fact adjustment for the difference between indirect costs recoverable using the indirect 

     cost rate approved for use in a given year, and the actual indirect costs incurred in that year. The carry-forward adjustment eliminates 

     the need for LEAs to file amended federal reports when their actual indirect costs vary from the estimated indirect costs on which the 

     approved rate was based.

     Where the ratio of indirect costs incurred in the current year is less than the estimated ratio of indirect costs on which the approved rate for 

     use in the current year was based, the carry-forward adjustment is limited by using either the approved rate times current year base costs,

     or the highest rate actually used to recover costs from any program times current year base costs, if the highest rate used was less than

     the approved rate. Rates used to recover costs from programs are displayed in Exhibit A.

     A.     Indirect costs incurred in the current year (Part III, Line A8) 1,511,344.72

     B.     Carry-forward adjustment from prior year(s)

              1.    Carry-forward adjustment from the second prior year (154,905.37)

              2.    Carry-forward adjustment amount deferred from prior year(s), if any 0.00

     C.     Carry-forward adjustment for under- or over-recovery in the current year

              1.    Under-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus (approved indirect

                     cost rate (3.45%) times Part III, Line B18); zero if negative 0.00

              2.    Over-recovery: Part III, Line A8, plus carry-forward adjustment from prior years, minus the lesser of

                     (approved indirect cost rate (3.45%) times Part III, Line B18) or (the highest rate used to

                     recover costs from any program (9.45%) times Part III, Line B18); zero if positive (18,880.44)

     D.     Preliminary carry-forward adjustment (Line C1 or C2) (18,880.44)

     E.     Optional allocation of negative carry-forward adjustment over more than one year

              Where a negative carry-forward adjustment causes the proposed approved rate to fall below zero or would reduce the rate at which  

              the LEA could recover indirect costs to such an extent that it would cause the LEA significant fiscal harm, the LEA may request that

              the carry-forward adjustment be allocated over more than one year. Where allocation of a negative carry-forward adjustment over more 

              than one year does not resolve a negative rate, the CDE will work with the LEA on a case-by-case basis to establish an approved rate.

              Option 1.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if entire negative carry-forward

                                adjustment is applied to the current year calculation: 3.74%

              Option 2.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-half of negative carry-forward 

                                adjustment ($-9,440.22) is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 

                                ($-9,440.22) is deferred to one or more future years: 3.77%

              Option 3.    Preliminary proposed approved rate (Part III, Line D) if one-third of negative carry-forward 

                                adjustment ($-6,293.48) is applied to the current year calculation and the remainder 

                                ($-12,586.96) is deferred to one or more future years: 3.78%

              LEA request for Option 1, Option 2, or Option 3

 1

     F.     Carry-forward adjustment used in Part III, Line A9 (Line D minus amount deferred if

             Option 2 or Option 3 is selected) (18,880.44)

Page 34 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

Exhibit A: Indirect Cost Rates Charged to Programs
49 70896 0000000

Form ICR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: icr (Rev 03/16/2012) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:22 PM

Approved indirect cost rate: 3.45%

Highest rate used in any program: 9.45%

Note: In one or more resources, the rate used is greater than the approved rate.

Fund Resource

Eligible Expenditures
(Objects 1000-5999

except Object 5100)
Indirect Costs Charged

(Objects 7310 and 7350)
Rate
Used

01 3010 209,713.40 7,035.60 3.35%

01 4035 92,496.73 2,221.27 2.40%

01 4201 4,262.18 99.82 2.34%

01 4203 47,845.77 706.23 1.48%

01 5640 129,338.14 3,880.14 3.00%

01 9010 2,924,957.15 276,403.54 9.45%

Page 35 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

 Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

LOTTERY REPORT
Revenues, Expenditures and
Ending Balances  -  All Funds

49 70896 0000000
Form L

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: lot (Rev 02/24/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:18 PM

Description Object Codes

Lottery:
Unrestricted

(Resource 1100)

Transferred to
Other

Resources for
Expenditure

Lottery:
Instructional

Materials
(Resource 6300)* Totals

A.  AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR THIS FISCAL YEAR

     1. Adjusted Beginning Fund Balance 9791-9795 0.00 178,560.04 178,560.04

     2. State Lottery Revenue 8560 530,350.87 176,299.26 706,650.13

     3. Other Local Revenue 8600-8799 0.00 0.00 0.00

     4. Transfers from Funds of
         Lapsed/Reorganized Districts 8965 0.00 0.00 0.00

     5. Contributions from Unrestricted

         Resources (Total must be zero) 8980 0.00 0.00

     6. Total Available

         (Sum Lines A1 through A5) 530,350.87 0.00 354,859.30 885,210.17

B.   EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

      1.  Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 0.00 0.00

      2.  Classified Salaries 2000-2999 0.00 0.00

      3.  Employee Benefits 3000-3999 41,463.33 41,463.33

      4.  Books and Supplies 4000-4999 488,887.54 354,859.30 843,746.84

      5.  a.  Services and Other Operating
                Expenditures  (Resource 1100) 5000-5999 0.00 0.00

           b.  Services and Other Operating
                Expenditures  (Resource 6300)

5000-5999, except
5100, 5710, 5800

           c.  Duplicating Costs for
                Instructional Materials
                (Resource 6300) 5100, 5710, 5800

      6.  Capital Outlay 6000-6999 0.00 0.00

      7.  Tuition 7100-7199 0.00 0.00
      8.  Interagency Transfers Out 
           a.   To Other Districts, County
                 Offices, and Charter Schools

7211,7212,7221,
7222,7281,7282 0.00 0.00

           b.   To JPAs and All Others 7213,7223,
7283,7299 0.00 0.00

      9.  Transfers of Indirect Costs 7300-7399

    10.  Debt Service 7400-7499 0.00 0.00

    11.  All Other Financing Uses 7630-7699 0.00 0.00

    12.  Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

           (Sum Lines B1 through B11 ) 530,350.87 0.00 354,859.30 885,210.17

C.   ENDING BALANCE
       (Must equal Line A6 minus Line B12) 979Z 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

D.   COMMENTS:

Data from this report will be used to prepare a report to the Legislature as required by Control Section 24.60 of the Budget Act.

*Pursuant to Government Code Section 8880.4(a)(2)(B) and the definition in Education Code Section 60010(h), Resource 6300 funds are to be used for the

 purchase of instructional materials only.  Any amounts in the shaded cells of this column should be reviewed for appropriateness.

Page 36 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
49 70896 0000000

Form NCMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:24 PM

Funds 01, 09, and 62

Section I - Expenditures Goals Functions Objects

2016-17
Expenditures

A. Total state, federal, and local expenditures (all resources) All All 1000-7999 49,452,331.04

B. Less all federal expenditures not allowed for MOE

(Resources 3000-5999, except 3385) All All 1000-7999 1,128,113.28

C. Less state and local expenditures not allowed for MOE:

(All resources, except federal as identified in Line B)

1. Community Services All 5000-5999 1000-7999 814.82

2. Capital Outlay
All except
7100-7199

All except
5000-5999 6000-6999 761,906.23

3. Debt Service All 9100

5400-5450,
5800, 7430-

7439 0.00

4. Other Transfers Out All 9200 7200-7299 0.00

5. Interfund Transfers Out All 9300 7600-7629 8,098,488.11

9100 7699

6. All Other Financing Uses All 9200 7651 0.00

7. Nonagency 7100-7199

All except
5000-5999,
9000-9999 1000-7999 4,550,590.80

8. Tuition (Revenue, in lieu of expenditures, to approximate
costs of services for which tuition is received)

All All 8710 0.00

9. Supplemental expenditures made as a result of a
Presidentially declared disaster

Manually entered. Must not include
expenditures in lines B, C1-C8, D1, or

D2.

10. Total state and local expenditures not  

allowed for MOE calculation

(Sum lines C1 through C9) 13,411,799.96

1000-7143,

D. Plus additional MOE expenditures: 7300-7439

1. Expenditures to cover deficits for food services
(Funds 13 and 61) (If negative, then zero) All All

minus
8000-8699 23,094.29

2. Expenditures to cover deficits for student body activities
Manually entered. Must not include

expenditures in lines A or D1.

E. Total expenditures subject to MOE

(Line A minus lines B and C10, plus lines D1 and D2) 34,935,512.09

Page 37 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
49 70896 0000000

Form NCMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 2 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:24 PM

Section II - Expenditures Per ADA

2016-17
Annual ADA/

Exps. Per ADA

A. Average Daily Attendance
(Form A, Annual ADA column, sum of lines A6 and C9)

3,434.67

B. Expenditures per ADA (Line I.E divided by Line II.A) 10,171.43

Section III - MOE Calculation (For data collection only. Final
determination will be done by CDE) Total Per ADA

A. Base expenditures (Preloaded expenditures from prior year official CDE
MOE calculation). (Note: If the prior year MOE was not met, CDE has
adjusted the prior year base to 90 percent of the preceding prior year
amount rather than the actual prior year expenditure amount.)

31,320,001.39 9,081.87
1. Adjustment to base expenditure and expenditure per ADA amounts for

LEAs failing prior year MOE calculation (From Section IV) 0.00 0.00

2. Total adjusted base expenditure amounts (Line A plus Line A.1)  31,320,001.39 9,081.87

B. Required effort (Line A.2 times 90%) 28,188,001.25 8,173.68

C. Current year expenditures (Line I.E and Line II.B) 34,935,512.09 10,171.43

D. MOE deficiency amount, if any (Line B minus Line C)

(If negative, then zero) 0.00 0.00

E. MOE determination

(If one or both of the amounts in line D are zero, the MOE requirement MOE Met
is met; if both amounts are positive, the MOE requirement is not met. If
either column in Line A.2 or Line C equals zero, the MOE calculation is
incomplete.)

F. MOE deficiency percentage, if MOE not met; otherwise, zero

(Line D divided by Line B)

(Funding under NCLB covered programs in FY 2018-19 may

be reduced by the lower of the two percentages) 0.00% 0.00%

Page 38 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals

No Child Left Behind Maintenance of Effort Expenditures
49 70896 0000000

Form NCMOE

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: ncmoe (Rev 03/18/2015) Page 3 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:24 PM

SECTION IV - Detail of Adjustments to Base Expenditures (used in Section III, Line A.1)

Description of Adjustments
Total

Expenditures
Expenditures

Per ADA

Total adjustments to base expenditures 0.00 0.00

Page 39 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Program Cost Report

49 70896 0000000
Form PCR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/05/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:25 PM

              ------------------------- Direct Costs ------------------------- Central Admin Total Costs by

Direct Charged Allocated Subtotal Costs Other Costs Program

(Schedule DCC) (Schedule AC) (col. 1 + 2) (col. 3 x Sch. CAC line E) (Schedule OC) (col. 3 + 4 + 5)

Goal Program/Activity Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6

 Instructional

Goals

0001 Pre-Kindergarten 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1110 Regular Education, K–12 24,505,335.79 2,975,301.71 27,480,637.50 1,184,118.76 28,664,756.26

3100 Alternative Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3200 Continuation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3300 Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3400 Opportunity Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3550 Community Day Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3700 Specialized Secondary Programs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3800 Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4110 Regular Education, Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4610 Adult Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4620 Adult Correctional Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4630 Adult Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4760 Bilingual 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4850 Migrant Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5000-5999 Special Education 6,734,645.15 320,247.77 7,054,892.92 303,989.71 7,358,882.63

6000 Regional Occupational Ctr/Prg (ROC/P) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Other Goals

7110 Nonagency - Educational 4,274,599.98 258,053.32 4,532,653.30 195,308.42 4,727,961.72

7150 Nonagency - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8100 Community Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8500 Child Care and Development Services 814.82 0.00 814.82 35.11 849.93

  Other Costs  

---- Food Services 0.00 0.00
---- Enterprise 0.00 0.00

---- Facilities Acquisition & Construction 521,508.20 521,508.20

---- Other Outgo 8,112,308.11 8,112,308.11

Other

Funds

----

Adult Education, Child Development,

Cafeteria, Foundation ([Column 3 +

CAC, line C5] times CAC, line E) 0.00 0.00 66,064.19 66,064.19

----

Indirect Cost Transfers to Other Funds

(Net of Funds 01, 09, 62, Function 7210,

Object 7350) 0.00 0.00

----
Total General Fund and Charter

Schools Funds Expenditures 35,515,395.74 3,553,602.80 39,068,998.54 1,749,516.19 8,633,816.31 49,452,331.04

Page 40 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Program Cost Report

Schedule of Direct Charged Costs (DCC)

49 70896 0000000
Form PCR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/05/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:25 PM

Instruction 

Instructional

Supervision and

Administration

Library, Media,

Technology and

Other Instructional

Resources

School

Administration

Pupil Support

Services Pupil Transportation Ancillary Services Community Services

General

Administration

Plant Maintenance

and Operations

Facilities Rents and

Leases

Goal Type of Program

(Functions 1000-

1999)

(Functions 2100-

2200)

(Functions 2420-

2495) (Function 2700)

(Functions 3110-

3160 and 3900)  (Function 3600)

(Functions 4000-

4999)

(Functions 5000-

5999)

(Functions 7000-

7999, except 7210)*

(Functions 8100-

8400) (Function 8700) Total

Instructional

Goals

0001 Pre-Kindergarten 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1110 Regular Education, K–12 19,800,995.14 148,336.48 950,352.97 2,857,505.72 748,145.48 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 24,505,335.79

3100 Alternative Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3200 Continuation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3300 Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3400 Opportunity Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3550 Community Day Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3700

Specialized Secondary

Programs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3800 Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4110 Regular Education, Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4610

Adult Independent Study

Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4620 Adult Correctional Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4630

Adult Career Technical

Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4760 Bilingual 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4850 Migrant Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5000-5999 Special Education 4,629,946.60 0.00 189,316.83 254,047.39 1,286,579.76 374,754.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 6,734,645.15

6000 ROC/P 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Other Goals

7110 Nonagency - Educational 2,348,612.45 214,387.40 2,977.30 237,486.36 1,360,056.60 0.00 84,829.87 0.00 0.00 0.00 26,250.00 4,274,599.98

7150 Nonagency - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00  0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8100 Community Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8500

Child Care and Development

Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 814.82 0.00 0.00 0.00 814.82

  Total Direct Charged Costs 26,779,554.19 362,723.88 1,142,647.10 3,349,039.47 3,394,781.84 374,754.57 84,829.87 814.82 0.00 0.00 26,250.00 35,515,395.74

* Functions 7100-7199 for goals 8100 and 8500

Page 41 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Program Cost Report

Schedule of Allocated Support Costs (AC)

49 70896 0000000
Form PCR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/05/2016) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:25 PM

Allocated Support Costs (Based on factors input on Form PCRAF)

Goal Type of Program Full-Time Equivalents Classroom Units Pupils Transported Total

  Instructional Goals

0001 Pre-Kindergarten 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

1110 Regular Education, K–12 2,684.47 2,557,637.44 414,979.80 2,975,301.71

3100 Alternative Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3200 Continuation Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3300 Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3400 Opportunity Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3550 Community Day Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3700 Specialized Secondary Programs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

3800 Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4110 Regular Education, Adult 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4610 Adult Independent Study Centers 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4620 Adult Correctional Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4630 Adult Career Technical Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4760 Bilingual 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

4850 Migrant Education 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5000-5999 Special Education (allocated to 5001) 298.62 290,009.33 29,939.82 320,247.77

6000 ROC/P 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

  Other Goals

7110 Nonagency - Educational 267.25 257,786.07 0.00 258,053.32

7150 Nonagency - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8100 Community Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

8500 Child Care and Development Svcs. 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
  Other Funds

- - Adult Education (Fund 11)  0.00  0.00

- - Child Development (Fund 12) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

- - Cafeteria (Funds 13 and 61)  0.00  0.00

  Total Allocated Support Costs 3,250.34 3,105,432.84 444,919.62 3,553,602.80

Page 42 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

Program Cost Report
Schedule of Central Administration Costs (CAC)

49 70896 0000000
Form PCR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/24/2011) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:25 PM

A. Central Administration Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds

1

Board and Superintendent (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7100-7180, Goals 0000-6999 and

9000, Objects 1000-7999) 283,280.65

2

External Financial Audits (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7190-7191, Goals 0000-6999 and

9000, Objects 1000-7999) 30,090.00

3

Other General Administration (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Functions 7200-7600 except 7210, Goal

0000, Objects 1000-7999) 1,430,744.19

4

Centralized Data Processing (Funds 01, 09, and 62, Function 7700, Goal 0000, Objects 1000-

7999) 5,401.35

5 Total Central Administration Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds 1,749,516.19

B. Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds

1 Total Direct Charged Costs (from Form PCR, Column 1, Total) 35,515,395.74

2 Total Allocated Costs (from Form PCR, Column 2, Total) 3,553,602.80

3 Total Direct Charged and Allocated Costs in General Fund and Charter Schools Funds 39,068,998.54

C. Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds

1 Adult Education (Fund 11, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00

2 Child Development (Fund 12, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 1,016,549.81

3 Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 516,646.06

4 Foundation (Funds 19 & 57, Objects 1000-5999, except 5100) 0.00

5 Total Direct Charged Costs in Other Funds 1,533,195.87

D. Total Direct Charged and Allocated Costs (B3 + C5) 40,602,194.41

E. Ratio of Central Administration Costs to Direct Charged and Allocated Costs (A5/D) 4.31%

Page 43 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Program Cost Report

Schedule of Other Costs (OC)

49 70896 0000000
Form PCR

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcr (Rev 05/24/2011) Page 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:25 PM

Type of Activity

Food Services

(Function 3700)

Enterprise

(Function 6000)

Facilities Acquisition &
Construction

(Function 8500)

Other Outgo

(Functions 9000-9999) Total

Food Services
(Objects 1000-5999, 6400, and 6500) 0.00 0.00

Enterprise
(Objects 1000-5999, 6400, and 6500) 0.00 0.00

Facilities Acquisition & Construction
(Objects 1000-6500) 521,508.20 521,508.20

Other Outgo
(Objects 1000-7999) 8,112,308.11 8,112,308.11

Total Other Costs 0.00 0.00 521,508.20 8,112,308.11 8,633,816.31

Page 44 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17

General Fund and Charter Schools Funds
Program Cost Report

Schedule of Allocation Factors (AF) for Support Costs

49 70896 0000000
Form PCRAF

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: pcraf (Rev 05/05/2016) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/22/2017  2:26 PM

    - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Teacher Full-Time Equivalents - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - - Classroom Units - - - - - - - - Pupils Transported

Instructional Supervision

and Administration

Library, Media,

Technology and Other

Instructional Resources School Administration Pupil Support Services

Plant Maintenance and

Operations

Facilities Rents and

Leases Pupil Transportation

(Functions 2100-2200) (Functions 2420-2495) (Function 2700) (Functions 3100-3199 &

3900)

(Functions 8100-8400) (Function 8700) (Function 3600)

A.  Amount of Undistributed Expenditures, Funds 01, 09, and 62,

      Goals 0000 and 9000 (will be allocated based on factors input) 0.00 3,250.34 0.00 0.00 3,093,432.84 12,000.00 444,919.62

B.  Enter Allocation Factor(s) by Goal: FTE Factor(s) FTE Factor(s) FTE Factor(s) FTE Factor(s) CU Factor(s) CU Factor(s) PT Factor(s)

                (Note:  Allocation factors are only needed for a column if 

                there are undistributed expenditures in line A.)

Instructional Goals Description

0001 Pre-Kindergarten

1110 Regular Education, K–12 157.50 158.00 1.00 596.00

3100 Alternative Schools

3200 Continuation Schools

3300 Independent Study Centers

3400 Opportunity Schools

3550 Community Day Schools

3700 Specialized Secondary Programs

3800 Career Technical Education

4110 Regular Education, Adult

4610 Adult Independent Study Centers

4620 Adult Correctional Education

4630 Adult Career Technical Education

4760 Bilingual

4850 Migrant Education

5000-5999 Special Education (allocated to 5001) 17.52 18.00 43.00

6000 ROC/P

Other Goals Description

7110 Nonagency - Educational 15.68 16.00

7150 Nonagency - Other

8100 Community Services

8500 Child Care and Development Services

Other Funds Description 

- - Adult Education (Fund 11) 

- - Child Development (Fund 12) 

- - Cafeteria (Funds 13 & 61) 

C. Total Allocation Factors 0.00 190.70 0.00 0.00 192.00 1.00 639.00

Page 45 of 63



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. 2015-16 Actual Comparison
2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 03/03/2015) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 439

TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 520.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,838.14 1,968,840.74 2,077,198.88

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850,900.82 880,585.14 1,731,485.96

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 127.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,263.53 1,024,348.47 1,137,739.36

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 54,679.27 58,484.47 113,163.74

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 (170,933.83) 1,056,093.24 1,642,558.73

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Total Direct Costs 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 955,747.93 5,020,970.54 0.00 6,734,765.15

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 320,247.79 320,247.79

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 320,247.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 320,247.79

TOTAL COSTS 321,015.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 955,747.93 5,020,970.54 0.00 7,055,012.94

FEDERAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 3000-5999, except 3385)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 339,499.14 339,499.14

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,649.86 160,649.86

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52,678.63 91.05 52,769.68

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 4,892.42 0.00 135,827.42

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 57,571.05 500,240.05 0.00 688,746.10

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 57,571.05 500,240.05 0.00 688,746.10

8980 Less: Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (Resources 3310-3400, except 3385, all goals;
resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810, goals 5000-5999)

0.00

TOTAL COSTS 688,746.10

Page 46 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. 2015-16 Actual Comparison
2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 03/03/2015) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 520.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,838.14 1,968,840.74 2,077,198.88

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850,900.82 541,086.00 1,391,986.82

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 127.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,263.53 863,698.61 977,089.50

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.64 58,393.42 60,394.06

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 (175,826.25) 1,056,093.24 1,506,731.31

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 898,176.88 4,520,730.49 0.00 6,046,019.05

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations 320,247.79 320,247.79

Total Indirect Costs and PCR Allocations 320,247.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 320,247.79

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 321,015.15 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 898,176.88 4,520,730.49 0.00 6,366,266.84

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 0.00

TOTAL COSTS 6,366,266.84

LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,870.86 37,186.91 52,057.77

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,780.34 241,893.47 999,673.81

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48,488.34 76,421.17 124,909.51

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33,694.86 33,694.86

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,163,696.06) 397,855.12 (765,840.94)

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (342,556.52) 819,670.01 0.00 477,113.49

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (342,556.52) 819,670.01 0.00 477,113.49

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section) 0.00

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State
Resources (Resources 3385, 6500, 6510, & 7240, all
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except 6500,
6510, & 7240, goals 5000-5999)

3,436,787.56

TOTAL COSTS 3,913,901.05

* Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts

  in the Adjustments column.

Page 47 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. 2015-16 Actual Comparison
2015-16 Expenditures by LEA (LE-PY)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 04/14/2010) Page 1 of 1 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

2015-16 Expenditures A. State and Local B. Local Only
1. Enter Total Costs amounts from the 2015-16 Report SEMA, 2015-16 Expenditures by

LEA (LE-CY) worksheet, Total Column, for the State and Local Expenditures section
and the Local Expenditures section

6,166,461.76 3,963,295.65

2. Enter audit adjustments of 2015-16 special education expenditures from
SACS2017ALL data, not included in Line 1 (explain below)
(Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 0000-2999 & 6000-9999; Object 9793)

3. Enter restatements of 2016-17 special education beginning fund balances from
SACS2017ALL data, not included in Line 1 (explain below)
(Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 0000-2999 & 6000-9999; Object 9795)

4. Enter any other adjustments, not included in Line 1 (explain below)

5. 2015-16 Expenditures, Adjusted for 2016-17 MOE Calculation

(Sum lines 1 through 4) 6,166,461.76 3,963,295.65

C. Unduplicated Pupil Count

1. Enter the unduplicated pupil count reported in 2015-16 Report SEMA, 

2015-16 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY) worksheet 409.00

2. Enter any adjustments not included in Line C1 (explain below)  

3. 2015-16 Unduplicated Pupil Count, Adjusted for 2016-17 MOE Calculation

(Line C1 plus Line C2) 409.00

Page 48 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 05/24/2017) Page 1 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

SELPA: Sonoma County (AV)

This form is used to check maintenance of effort (MOE) for an LEA, whether the LEA is a member of a SELPA or is a single-LEA SELPA.  If a
member of a SELPA, submit this form together with the 2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-CY) and the 2015-16 Expenditures by LEA (LE-PY) to
the SELPA AU.  If a single-LEA SELPA, submit the forms to the CDE.

Per the federal Subsequent Years Rule, in order to determine the required level of effort, the LEA must look back to the last fiscal year in which the
LEA maintained effort using the same method by which it is currently establishing the compliance standard. To meet the requirement of the
Subsequent Years Rule, the LMC-A worksheet has been revised to make changes to sections 3.A.1, 3.A.2, 3.B.1, and 3.B.2. The revised sections
allow the LEA to compare the 2016-17 expenditures to the most recent fiscal year the LEA met MOE using that method, which is the comparison
year. To ensure the LEA is comparing 2016-17 expenditures to the appropriate comparison year, the LEA is required to complete the Subsequent
Years Tracking (SYT) worksheet with their LMC-A worksheet. The SYT worksheet tracks the result for each of the four methods back to FY 2011-
12, which is the baseline year for LEA MOE calculations established by the Office of Special Education Programs. The SYT worksheet is available
at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/subseqyrtrckwrksht.xls.

There are four methods that the LEA can use to demonstrate the compliance standard. They are (1) combined state and local expenditures; (2)
combined state and local expenditures on a per capita basis; (3) local expenditures only; and (4) local expenditures only on a per capita basis.

The LEA is only required to pass one of the tests to meet the MOE requirement. However, the LEA is required to show results for all four methods.
These results are necessary both for historical purposes and for the possibility that the LEA may want, or need, to switch methods in future years.

SECTION 1 Exempt Reduction Under 34 CFR Section 300.204

If your LEA determines that a reduction in expenditures occurred as a result of one or more of the following conditions, you may
calculate a reduction to the required MOE standard. Reductions may apply to combined state and local MOE standard, local only
MOE standard, or both. If the LEA meets one of the conditions below, the LEA must complete and include the IDEA MOE
Exemption Worksheet available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/leamoeexempwrksht.xls

1.  Voluntary departure, by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education or 

     related services personnel.

2.  A decrease in the enrollment of children with disabilities.  

3.  The termination of the obligation of the agency to provide a program of special education to a particular 

     child with a disability that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the SEA, because the child:

     a.  Has left the jurisdiction of the agency;

     b.  Has reached the age at which the obligation of the agency 

          to provide free appropriate public education (FAPE) to

          the child has terminated; or

     c.  No longer needs the program of special education.

4.  The termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases, such as the acquisition of  

     equipment or the construction of school facilities.

5.  The assumption of cost by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR Sec. 300.704(c).

Provide the condition number, if any, to be used in the calculation below: State and Local Local Only 

  

Total exempt reductions 0.00 0.00

Page 49 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 05/24/2017) Page 2 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

SELPA: Sonoma County (AV)

SECTION 2 Reduction to MOE Requirement Under IDEA, Section 613 (a)(2)(C) (34 CFR Sec. 300.205)

IMPORTANT NOTE: Only LEAs that have a "meets requirement" compliance determination and that are not found 

significantly disproportionate for the current year are eligible to use this option to reduce their MOE requirement.

Up to 50% of the increase in IDEA Part B Section 611 funding in current year compared with prior year may be used

to reduce the required level of state and local expenditures. This option is available only if the LEA used or will use

the freed up funds for activities authorized under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965. Also, the 

amount of Part B funds used for early intervening services (34 CFR 300.226(a)) will count toward the maximum amount 

by which the LEA may reduce its MOE requirement under this exception [P.L. 108-446].

State and Local Local Only 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 

Assistance Grant Awards - Resources 3310 and

3320)

Less:  Prior year's funding (IDEA Section 611 Local

Assistance Grant Awards - Resources 3310 and

3320)

   Increase in funding (if difference is positive) 0.00

Maximum available for MOE reduction (50% of

increase in funding) 0.00 (a)

Current year funding (IDEA Section 619 - Resource 

3315)

Maximum available for early intervening services

(EIS) (15% of current year funding - Resources

3310, 3315, and 3320) 0.00 (b)

If (b) is greater than (a).

Enter portion to set aside for EIS (cannot exceed

line (b), Maximum available for EIS) (c)

Available for MOE reduction.

(line (a) minus line (c), zero if negative) 0.00 (d)

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement

(cannot exceed line (d), Available for MOE reduction).

If (b) is less than (a).

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement

(first column cannot exceed line (a), Maximum 

available for MOE reduction, second and third columns 

cannot exceed (e), Portion used to reduce MOE

requirement). (e)

Available to set aside for EIS

(line (b) minus line (e), zero if negative) 0.00 (f)

Note: If your LEA exercises the authority under 34 CFR 300.205(a) to reduce the MOE requirement, the LEA must list

the activities (which are authorized under the ESEA) paid with the freed up funds:

Page 50 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 05/24/2017) Page 3 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

SELPA: Sonoma County (AV)

SECTION 3 Column A Column B Column C

Actual Expenditures Actual Expenditures

(LE-CY Worksheet) Comparison Year Difference

FY 2016-17 2014/15 (A - B)

A.  COMBINED STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in  

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on state and local expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures 7,055,012.94  

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 688,746.10  

c.  Expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,366,266.84 5,846,777.54

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 5,846,777.54

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) for SECTION1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,366,266.84 5,846,777.54 519,489.30

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.1 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 

combination of state and local expenditures.

Actual Comparison Year

FY 2016-17 2014/15 Difference

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on the per capita state and local 

expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures 7,055,012.94

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 688,746.10

c.  Expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,366,266.84 5,846,777.54

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 5,846,777.54

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,366,266.84 5,846,777.54 519,489.30

d. Special education unduplicated pupil count 439 348

e.  Per capita state and local expenditures (A2c/A2d) 14,501.75 16,801.08 (2,299.33)

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.2 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 

per capita state and local expenditures.

Page 51 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2016-17 Actual vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-A)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMA

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: sema  (Rev 05/24/2017) Page 4 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:22 PM

SELPA: Sonoma County (AV)

B.  LOCAL EXPENDITURES ONLY METHOD

Actual Comparison Year

FY 2016-17 2014/15 Difference

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on local expenditures only.

a.  Expenditures paid from local sources 3,913,901.05 3,806,562.03

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 3,806,562.03

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from local sources 3,913,901.05 3,806,562.03 107,339.02

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.1 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the 

local expenditures only.

Actual Comparison Year

FY 2016-17 2014/15 Difference

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on the per capita local 

expenditures only.

a.  Expenditures paid from local sources 3,913,901.05 3,806,562.03

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE 3,806,562.03

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from local sources 3,913,901.05 3,806,562.03 107,339.02

b.  Special education unduplicated pupil count 439 348

c.  Per capita local expenditures (B2a/B2b) 8,915.49 10,938.40 (2,022.91)

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.2 is positive or zero, the MOE compliance requirement is met based on the per
capita local expenditures only.

Joseph Pandolfo (707) 542-7375

Contact Name Telephone Number

Deputy Superintendent jpandolfo@rvusd.org

Title E-mail Address

Page 52 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. 2016-17 Actual Comparison
2017-18 Budget by LEA (LB-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 06/09/2017) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:23 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 439

TOTAL BUDGET (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 12,102.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 111,409.00 2,077,331.06 2,200,842.86

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,576.65 994,098.18 1,239,674.83

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 5,894.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 336.00 120,042.38 1,091,417.77 1,217,690.52

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 82,146.96 84,146.96

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 700,766.00 1,006,952.00 664,885.50 2,372,753.50

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Total Direct Costs 18,147.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 701,102.00 1,485,980.03 4,909,879.47 0.00 7,115,108.67

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL COSTS 18,147.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 701,102.00 1,485,980.03 4,909,879.47 0.00 7,115,108.67

STATE AND LOCAL BUDGET (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 12,102.80 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 111,409.00 2,077,331.06 2,200,842.86

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,576.65 542,573.26 788,149.91

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 5,894.37 0.00 0.00 0.00 336.00 120,042.38 925,744.21 1,052,016.96

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.00 77,146.96 79,146.96

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 150.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 569,246.00 1,006,952.00 664,885.50 2,241,233.50

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 18,147.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 569,582.00 1,485,980.03 4,287,680.99 0.00 6,361,390.19

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 18,147.17 0.00 0.00 0.00 569,582.00 1,485,980.03 4,287,680.99 0.00 6,361,390.19

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (Resources 3310-3400, except 3385, all
goals; resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810, goals
5000-5999)

116,989.48

TOTAL COSTS 6,478,379.67

Page 53 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. 2016-17 Actual Comparison
2017-18 Budget by LEA (LB-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 06/09/2017) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

LOCAL BUDGET (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 19,343.00 0.00 19,343.00

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 245,576.65 284,853.06 530,429.71

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 87,573.60 84,941.01 172,514.61

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 44,700.00 44,700.00

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 399,184.00 399,184.00

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 352,493.25 813,678.07 0.00 1,166,171.32

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 352,493.25 813,678.07 0.00 1,166,171.32

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (from State and Local Budget section)

116,989.48
8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State

Resources (Resources 3385, 6500-6540, & 7240, all
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except
6500-6540, & 7240, goals 5000-5999)

3,064,670.87

TOTAL COSTS 4,347,831.67

* Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

   in the Adjustments column.

Page 54 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. 2016-17 Actual Comparison
2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 06/09/2017) Page 1 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

UNDUPLICATED PUPIL COUNT 439

TOTAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-9999) 

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 520.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,838.14 1,968,840.74 2,077,198.88

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850,900.82 880,585.14 1,731,485.96

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 127.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,263.53 1,024,348.47 1,137,739.36

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 54,679.27 58,484.47 113,163.74

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 (170,933.83) 1,056,093.24 1,642,558.73

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

 Total Direct Costs 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 955,747.93 5,020,970.54 0.00 6,734,765.15

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 320,247.79 320,247.79

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL COSTS 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,279.32 955,747.93 5,020,970.54 0.00 6,734,765.15

FEDERAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, and 62; resources 3000-5999, except 3385)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 339,499.14 339,499.14

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 160,649.86 160,649.86

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 52,678.63 91.05 52,769.68

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 4,892.42 0.00 135,827.42

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 57,571.05 500,240.05 0.00 688,746.10

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 130,935.00 57,571.05 500,240.05 0.00 688,746.10

8980 Less: Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to
Federal Resources (Resources 3310-3400, except
3385, all goals; resources 3000-3178 & 3410-5810,
goals 5000-5999)

0.00

TOTAL COSTS 688,746.10

Page 55 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. 2016-17 Actual Comparison
2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 06/09/2017) Page 2 of 2 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

Special
Education,
Unspecified

Regionalized
Services

Regionalized
Program

Specialist
Special

Education, Infants

Special
Education,
Preschool
Students

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Severely Disabled

Spec. Education,
Ages 5-22

Nonseverely
Disabled

Object Code Description (Goal 5001) (Goal 5050) (Goal 5060) (Goal 5710) (Goal 5730) (Goal 5750) (Goal 5770) Adjustments* Total

STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-2999, 3385, & 6000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 520.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 107,838.14 1,968,840.74 2,077,198.88

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 850,900.82 541,086.00 1,391,986.82

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 127.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 113,263.53 863,698.61 977,089.50

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2,000.64 58,393.42 60,394.06

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 120.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 (175,826.25) 1,056,093.24 1,506,731.31

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 898,176.88 4,520,730.49 0.00 6,046,019.05

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

PCRA Program Cost Report Allocations (non-add) 320,247.79 320,247.79

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 767.36 0.00 0.00 0.00 626,344.32 898,176.88 4,520,730.49 0.00 6,046,019.05

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section)

0.00

TOTAL COSTS 6,046,019.05

LOCAL EXPENDITURES (Funds 01, 09, & 62; resources 0000-1999 & 8000-9999)

1000-1999 Certificated Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 14,870.86 37,186.91 52,057.77

2000-2999 Classified Salaries 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 757,780.34 241,893.47 999,673.81

3000-3999 Employee Benefits 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48,488.34 76,421.17 124,909.51

4000-4999 Books and Supplies 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 33,694.86 33,694.86

5000-5999 Services and Other Operating Expenditures 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (1,163,696.06) 397,855.12 (765,840.94)

6000-6999 Capital Outlay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 32,618.48 32,618.48

7130 State Special Schools 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7430-7439 Debt Service 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Direct Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (342,556.52) 819,670.01 0.00 477,113.49

7310 Transfers of Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

7350 Transfers of Indirect Costs - Interfund 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Total Indirect Costs 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

TOTAL BEFORE OBJECT 8980 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (342,556.52) 819,670.01 0.00 477,113.49

8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to Federal
Resources (from Federal Expenditures section)

0.00
8980 Contributions from Unrestricted Revenues to State

Resources (Resources 3385, 6500, 6510, & 7240, all
goals; resources 2000-2999 & 6010-7810, except
6500, 6510, & 7240, goals 5000-5999)

3,436,787.56

TOTAL COSTS 3,913,901.05

* Attach an additional sheet with explanations of any amounts 

   in the Adjustments column.

Page 56 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 05/22/2017) Page 1 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

SELPA:  

This form is used to check maintenance of effort (MOE) for an LEA, whether the LEA is a member of a SELPA or is a single-LEA SELPA.  If a
member of a SELPA, submit this form together with the 2017-18 Budget by LEA (LB-B) and the 2016-17 Expenditures by LEA (LE-B) to the SELPA
AU.  If a single-LEA SELPA, submit the forms to the CDE.

Per the federal Subsequent Years Rule, in order to determine the required level of effort, the LEA must look back to the last fiscal year in which the
LEA maintained effort using the same method by which it is currently establishing the eligibility standard. To meet the requirement of the Subsequent
Years Rule, the LMC-B worksheet has been revised to make changes to sections 3.A.1, 3.A.2, 3.B.1, and 3.B.2. The revised sections allow the LEA
to compare the 2017-18 budgeted expenditures to the most recent fiscal year the LEA met MOE using that method, which is the comparison year. To
ensure the LEA is comparing 2017-18 budgeted expenditures to the appropriate comparison year, the LEA is required to complete the Subsequent
Years Tracking (SYT) worksheet with their LMC-B worksheet. The SYT worksheet tracks the result for each of the four methods back to FY 2011-12,
which is the baseline year for LEA MOE calculations established by the Office of Special Education Programs. The SYT worksheet is available at:
http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/subseqyrtrckwrksht.xls.

There are four methods that the LEA can use to demonstrate the eligibility standard. They are (1) combined state and local expenditures; (2)
combined state and local expenditures on a per capita basis; (3) local expenditures only; and (4) local expenditures only on a per capita basis.

The LEA is only required to pass one of the tests to meet the MOE requirement. However, the LEA is required to show results for all four methods.
These results are necessary both for historical purposes and for the possibility that the LEA may want, or need, to switch methods in future years.

SECTION 1 Exempt Reduction Under 34 CFR Section 300.204

If your LEA determines that a reduction in expenditures occurred as a result of one or more of the following conditions, you may
calculate a reduction to the required MOE standard. Reductions may apply to combined state and local MOE standard, local only
MOE standard, or both. If the LEA meets one of the conditions below, the LEA must complete and include the IDEA MOE Exemption
Worksheet available at: http://www.cde.ca.gov/sp/se/as/documents/leamoeexempwrksht.xls.

1.  Voluntary departure, by retirement or otherwise, or departure for just cause, of special education or 

     related services personnel.

2.  A decrease in the enrollment of children with disabilities.  

3.  The termination of the obligation of the agency to provide a program of special education to a particular 

     child with a disability that is an exceptionally costly program, as determined by the SEA, because the child:

     a.  Has left the jurisdiction of the agency;

     b.  Has reached the age at which the obligation of the agency 

          to provide free appropriate public education (FAPE) to

          the child has terminated; or

     c.  No longer needs the program of special education.

4.  The termination of costly expenditures for long-term purchases, such as the acquisition of  

     equipment or the construction of school facilities.

5.  The assumption of cost by the high cost fund operated by the SEA under 34 CFR Sec. 300.704(c).

Provide the condition number, if any, to be used in the calculation below: State and Local Local Only 

Total exempt reductions 0.00 0.00

Page 57 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 05/22/2017) Page 2 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

SELPA:  

SECTION 2 Reduction to MOE Requirement Under IDEA, Section 613 (a)(2)(C) (34 CFR Sec. 300.205)

IMPORTANT NOTE: Only LEAs that have a "meets requirement" compliance determination and that are not found 

significantly disproportionate for the current year are eligible to use this option to reduce their MOE requirement.

Up to 50% of the increase in IDEA Part B Section 611 funding in current year compared with prior year may be used

to reduce the required level of state and local expenditures. This option is available only if the LEA used or will use

the freed up funds for activities authorized under the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA) of 1965. Also, the 

amount of Part B funds used for early intervening services (34 CFR 300.226(a)) will count toward the maximum amount 

by which the LEA may reduce its MOE requirement under this exception [P.L. 108-446].

State and Local Local Only 

Current year funding (IDEA Section 611 Local 

Assistance Grant Awards - Resources 3310 and

3320)

Less:  Prior year's funding (IDEA Section 611 Local

Assistance Grant Awards - Resources 3310 and

3320)

   Increase in funding (if difference is positive) 0.00

Maximum available for MOE reduction (50% of

increase in funding) 0.00 (a)

Current year funding (IDEA Section 619 - Resource 

3315)

Maximum available for early intervening services

(EIS) (15% of current year funding - Resources

3310, 3315, and 3320) 0.00 (b)

If (b) is greater than (a).

Enter portion to set aside for EIS (cannot exceed

line (b), Maximum available for EIS) (c)

Available for MOE reduction.

(line (a) minus line (c), zero if negative) 0.00 (d)

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement

(cannot exceed line (d), Available for MOE reduction).

If (b) is less than (a).

Enter portion used to reduce MOE requirement

(first column cannot exceed line (a), Maximum 

available for MOE reduction, second and third columns 

cannot exceed (e), Portion used to reduce MOE

requirement). (e)

Available to set aside for EIS

(line (b) minus line (e), zero if negative) 0.00 (f)

Note: If your LEA exercises the authority under 34 CFR 300.205(a) to reduce the MOE requirement, the LEA must list the activities
(which are authorized under the ESEA) paid with the freed up funds:

Page 58 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 05/22/2017) Page 3 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

SELPA:  

SECTION 3 Column A Column B Column C

Budgeted Amounts Actual Expenditures

(LB-B Worksheet) Comparison Year Difference

FY 2017-18 2015/16 (A - B)

A.  COMBINED STATE AND LOCAL EXPENDITURES METHOD

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year   

in which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on state and local expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures 7,115,108.67  

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 636,729.00  

c. Expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,478,379.67 6,166,461.76

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 6,166,461.76

    Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

    Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

    Net expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,478,379.67 6,166,461.76 311,917.91

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.1 is positive or zero, the MOE Eligibility requirement is met based on the 

combination of state and local expenditures.

Budgeted Amounts Comparison Year

FY 2017-18 2014/15 Difference

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on the per capita state and local 

expenditures.

a. Total special education expenditures 7,115,108.67

b. Less: Expenditures paid from federal sources 636,729

c.  Expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,478,379.67 5,846,777.54

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 5,846,777.54

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from state and local sources 6,478,379.67 5,846,777.54

d. Special education unduplicated pupil count 439 348

e.  Per capita state and local expenditures (A2c/A2d) 14,757.13 16,801.08 (2,043.95)

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.A.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita
state and local expenditures.

Page 59 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Special Education Maintenance of Effort

2017-18 Budget vs. Comparison Year's Actual
LEA Maintenance of Effort Calculation (LMC-B)

49 70896 0000000
Report SEMB

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: semb (Rev 05/22/2017) Page 4 of 4 Printed:  8/28/2017  3:24 PM

SELPA:  

B.  LOCAL EXPENDITURES ONLY METHOD

Budget Comparison Year

FY 2017-18 2015/16 Difference

1. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year in 

which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs. 

actual method based on local expenditures only.

a.  Expenditures paid from local sources 4,347,831.67 3,963,295.65

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 3,963,295.65

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from local sources 4,347,831.67 3,963,295.65 384,536.02

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.1 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the local
expenditures only.

Budget Comparison Year

FY 2017-18 2014/15 Difference

2. Under "Comparison Year," enter the most recent year  

in which MOE compliance was met using the actual vs.

actual method based on per capita local expenditures

a.  Expenditures paid from local sources 4,347,831.67 3,806,562.03

     Add/Less: Adjustments required for MOE calculation 0.00

     Comparison year's expenditures, adjusted for MOE

     calculation 3,806,562.03

     Less: Exempt reduction(s) from SECTION 1 0.00

     Less: 50% reduction from SECTION 2 0.00

     Net expenditures paid from local sources 4,347,831.67 3,806,562.03 541,269.64

b.  Special education unduplicated pupil count 439 348

c.  Per capita local expenditures (B2a/B2b) 9,903.94 10,938.40 (1,034.46)

If the difference in Column C for the Section 3.B.2 is positive or zero, the MOE eligibility requirement is met based on the per capita
local expenditures only.

Joseph Pandolfo (707) 542-7375

Contact Name Telephone Number

Deputy Superintendent jpandolfo@rvusd.org

Title E-mail Address

Page 60 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



California Department of Education
July 2017

LOCAL EDUCATIONAL AGENCY (LEA): SELPA Code and SELPA Name:

A B C D E F G H I

Fiscal Year
State and Local 
Total Amount

State and Local 
Total MOE Result

State and Local 
Per Capita 

Amount

State and Local 
Per Capita MOE 

Result
Local Only Total 

Amount
Local Only Total 

MOE Result
Local Only Per 
Capita Amount

Local Only Per 
Capita MOE 

Result Enrollment

Met Met Met Met

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

Met Met Met Met

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

Met Met Met Met

 $                          -    $                         -   

Met Met Met Met

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

Met Did Not Meet Met Did Not Meet

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

Met Did Not Meet Did Not Meet Did Not Meet

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

6,366,266.84$  16,801.08$          

320,247.79$     620.31$               

6,046,019.05$   2016-17 16,180.77$           2014-15 

Met Did Not Meet Met Did Not Meet

 $                         -    $                          -    $                          -    $                         -   

The signature of authorized agent conveys agreement with and accuracy of the information provided. 

Signature of Authorized Agent Date Signed

Printed Name and Title of Authorized Agent Contact Person’s Name, E-Mail, and Telephone Number

Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent Joseph Pandolfo, jpandolfo@rvusd.org, (707) 572-7375

2017-2018 Budget (Eligibility) 
SEMB - SACS2017ALL

6,478,379.67$  14,757.13$          4,347,831.67$   9,903.94$          439

Expenditures (Eligibility No PCRA)
SEMB - SACS2017ALL 
(Expenditures less PCRA for 
Comparison Year)

 Comparison Year  Comparison Year 

2016-2017 Expenditures 
(Compliance) 
SEMA - SACS2017ALL

6,366,266.84$  14,501.75$          3,913,901.05$   8,915.49$          439

2015-2016 Expenditures 
(Compliance) 
SEMA - SACS2016ALL

6,166,461.76$  15,076.92$          3,963,295.65$   9,690.21$          409

2014-2015 Expenditures 
(Compliance)
SEMA - SACS2015ALL

5,846,777.54$  16,801.08$          3,806,562.03$   10,938.40$        348

2013-2014 Expenditures 
(Compliance)
SEMA - SACS2014ALL

4,872,622.59$  12,367.06$          3,095,429.77$   7,856.42$          394

2012-2013 Expenditures 
(Compliance) 
SEMA - SACS2013ALL

4,539,369.19$  12,268.57$          2,699,849.98$   7,296.89$          370

Subsequent Year Tracking Worksheet

Rincon Valley Union School District AV- Sonoma County SELPA

2011-2012 Expenditures 
(Compliance) 
SEMA - SACS2012ALL

3,960,667.46$  11,787.70$          2,184,384.43$   6,501.14$          336

Page 61 of 63

kjohnson
Text Box
DRAFT



Rincon Valley Union Elementary
Sonoma County

Unaudited Actuals
Components of Ending Fund Balance/Net Position 49 70896 0000000

Form CEFB:01:0000

California Dept of Education
SACS Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
File: cefb (REV 06/11/2013) Page 1 of 1 Printed: 8/22/2017 2:34 PM

Fund: 01 General Fund
Resource: 0000 Unrestricted

Description Object
2016-17

Unaudited Actuals
Ending Fund Balance 979Z 9,879,170.49

Components of Ending Fund Balance

  Nonspendable

    Revolving Cash 9711 7,250.00

    Stores 9712 3,292.70

    Prepaid Expenditures 9713 19,200.00

    All Others 9719 0.00

  Restricted 9740 0.00

  Committed

    Stabilization Arrangements 9750 0.00

    Other Commitments 9760 0.00

  Assigned

    Other Assignments 9780 2,870,154.44

Partial COP 9780 1,869,154.44

Science Textbook Adoption (2018/19) 9780 500,000.00

One-Time 2017/18 1% Bonus 9780 252,000.00

Phone System 9780 249,000.00

  Unassigned/Unappropriated

    Reserve for Economic Uncertainties 9789 6,979,273.35

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 0.00

Page 62 of 63



Page 1

SACS2017ALL Financial Reporting Software - 2017.2.0
8/25/2017 10:13:26 AM 49-70896-0000000

Unaudited Actuals
2016-17 Unaudited Actuals
Technical Review Checks

Rincon Valley Union Elementary                            Sonoma County

Following is a chart of the various types of technical review checks and 
related requirements:

F    - Fatal (Data must be corrected; an explanation is not allowed)
W/WC - Warning/Warning with Calculation (If data are not correct, 

correct the data; if data are correct an explanation 
is required)

O    - Informational (If data are not correct, correct the data; if 
data are correct an explanation is optional, 
but encouraged)

IMPORT CHECKS

GENERAL LEDGER CHECKS
OBJ-POSITIVE - (W) - The following objects have a negative balance by 
resource, by fund: EXCEPTION

FUND RESOURCE OBJECT               VALUE
01 3010 5800             -680.00
Explanation:Payable was set up in 2015/16 for more than what was actually 
expensed with no new expenses in 2016/17 to offset the overaccrual, therefore, 
the expense in 2016/17 is negative.

SUPPLEMENTAL CHECKS
IC-EXCEEDS-LEA-RATE - (W) - The indirect cost rate used in one or more 
programs (Form ICR, Exhibit A - Rate Used) exceeds the LEA's approved indirect
cost rate. Please review your records and make any necessary changes. 

EXCEPTION

Explanation:There is an agreed upon 7% indirect cost rate for RCSS Resource 
9050. RCSS computes the 7% indirect cost rate before subtracting Rincon 
Valley's portion of the cost form the total. So, the percentage appears higher 
than 7% becuase the final expenditures relfected on the general ledger are net 
of object 5710.

EXPORT CHECKS

Checks Completed.

Page 63 of 63



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.3 

Subject:  Resolution 09-17-03 GANN Limit 

Submitter:  Dr. Joe Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background: The Gann Limit was enacted as Proposition 4 in 1979.  It was designed to place a 
limit on government spending and applies to school districts.  Each year since 
1978-79, the District’s Gann Limit is increased for both inflation and population 
growth 

Highlights:  None 

Challenges: To complete this form is a rather time consuming endeavor with no apparent useful 
purpose to the District, and arguably no useful purpose to the state or taxpayer as 
well. 

Analysis: This Year’s Resolution for Adopting the Gann Limit provides for an increase to 
the Gann Limit pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Section 7902.  The 
District cap has only been missed once (see attached memo) 

Next Steps: To meet the Gann limit requirements, the board must pass the attached resolution.  
No further action is needed    

   
 
 
Attachments: GANN Limit Calculations 

Resolution # 09-17-03 

 

Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: Approve 
 
 
. 
 
  



RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

RESOLUTION FOR ADOPTING THE “GANN” LIMIT 
(Normal, no increase to Limit pursuant to G.C. 7902.1) 

Resolution # 09-17-03 

 

WHEREAS, in November of 1979, the California electorate did adopt Proposition 4, 
commonly called the Gann Amendment, which added Article XIII-B to the 
California Constitution: and 

WHEREAS, the provisions of that Article establish maximum appropriation limitations, 
commonly called “Gann Limits”, for public agencies, including school districts; 
and,  

WHEREAS, the District must establish a revised Gann Limit for the 2016-17 fiscal year 
and a projected Gann Limit for the 2017-18 fiscal year in accordance with the 
provisions of Article XXIII-B and applicable statutory law; 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Board does provide public notice 
that the attached calculations and documentation of the Gann Limits for 2016-17 
and 2017-18 fiscal years are made in accord with applicable constitutional and 
statutory law; 

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Board does hereby declare that the 
appropriations in the Budget for the 2016-17 and 2017-18 fiscal years do not 
exceed the limitations imposed by Proposition 4;  

AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Superintendent provide copies of this 
resolution along with the appropriate attachments to interested citizens of this 
district. 

  

AYES:    

 NOES:    

 ABSENT:    

 ABSTAIN:      

                 
  Cynthia Evers, Clerk Board of Trustees 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action  Item 14.4 

Subject: Resolution #09-17-04, A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, SONOMA COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF RINCON VALLEY 
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT (SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) 
ELECTION OF 2014 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES B, AND 
ACTIONS RELATED THERETO 

Submitter: Dr. Joseph Pandolfo, Deputy Superintendent for Business 

Background:  
 

An election was held in the Rincon Valley Union School District on June 3, 2014 for the issuance 
and sale of general obligation bonds of the District for various purposes in the maximum amount of 
$35,000,000 (the “2014 Authorization”).  On October 23, 2014, the District issued its Election of 2014 
General Obligation Bonds, Series A, in the aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000.  The District now 
desires to issue its second series of bonds under the 2014 Authorization in an amount not-to-exceed 
$17,000,000 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being authorized for sale for the purpose of providing funds 
to finance projects approved by the 2014 Authorization and to pay the costs of issuing the Bonds.  

(a) Bond Resolution.  This Resolution authorizes the issuance of Bonds, specifies the basic 
terms, parameters and forms of the Bonds, and approves the form of Purchase Contract and form of 
Preliminary Official Statement described below.  In particular, Section 1 of the Resolution establishes the 
maximum aggregate initial principal amount of the Bonds to be issued ($17,000,000).  Section 4 of the 
Resolution states the maximum underwriter’s discount (0.50%) with respect to the Bonds, the maximum 
legal interest rate on the Bonds, and authorizes the Bonds to be sold at a negotiated sale to Piper Jaffray & 
Co. (the “Underwriter”).  The Resolution authorizes the issuance of current interest bonds only; capital 
appreciation bonds are not authorized.   

(b) Form of Purchase Contract.  The Resolution approves the form of the Purchase Contract.  
Pursuant to the Purchase Contract, the Underwriter will agree to buy the Bonds from the District.  All the 
conditions of closing the transaction are set forth in this document, including the documentation to be 
provided at the closing by various parties.  Upon the pricing of the Bonds, the final execution copy of the 
Purchase Contract will be prepared following this form. 

(c) Form of Preliminary Official Statement.  The Resolution approves the form of the 
Preliminary Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement (the “POS”) is the offering 
document describing the Bonds which may be distributed to prospective purchasers of the Bonds.  The 
POS discloses information with respect to, among other things, (i) the proposed uses of proceeds of the 
Bonds, (ii) the terms of the Bonds (interest rate, redemption terms, etc.), (iii) the bond insurance policy 
for the Bonds, if any, (iv) the security for repayment of the Bonds (the ad valorem property tax levy), (v) 
information with respect to the District’s tax base (upon which such ad valorem property taxes may be  



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 

levied), (vi) District financial and operating data, (vii) continuing disclosure with respect to the Bonds 
and the District, and (viii) absence of material litigation and other miscellaneous matters expected to be 
of interest to prospective purchasers of the Bonds.  Following the pricing of the Bonds, a final Official 
Statement for the Bonds will be prepared, substantially in the form of the POS. 

(d) Form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate.  The form of the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate can be found in APPENDIX C to the POS.  Effective July 3, 1995, all underwriters of 
municipal bonds are obligated to procure from any public agency issuing debt a covenant that such public 
agency will annually file “material financial information and operating data” with respect to such public 
agency through the web-based Electronic Municipal Market Access (“EMMA”) system maintained by 
the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (a federal agency that regulates “broker-dealers,” including 
investment bank firms that underwrite municipal obligations).  This requirement is expected to be 
satisfied by the filing of the District’s audited financial statements and other operating information about 
the District, in the same manner the District has filed such information in connection with prior bond 
issuances.  The purpose of the law is to provide investors in the Bonds with current information regarding 
the District.  Similar laws have governed the corporate debt market for many years. 

 
ATTACHMENTS: Resolution #09-17-04   
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 

There is no fiscal impact to the General Fund resulting from the issuance of the Bonds.   

RECOMMENDATION 
 

Staff recommends approval of Resolution #09-17-04 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, SONOMA COUNTY, 
CALIFORNIA, AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT (SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) ELECTION OF 2014 GENERAL OBLIGATION 
BONDS, SERIES B, AND ACTIONS RELATED THERETO 
 

    

   
 
 
  
 



 

 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

RESOLUTION NO. 09-17-04 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE RINCON VALLEY 
UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, 
AUTHORIZING THE ISSUANCE OF RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL 
DISTRICT (SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) ELECTION OF 2014 
GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES B, AND ACTIONS RELATED 
THERETO 

WHEREAS, a duly called election (the “Election”) was held in the Rincon Valley Union 
School District (the “District”), Sonoma County, California (the “County”) on June 3, 2014 and 
thereafter canvassed pursuant to law; 

WHEREAS, at the Election there was submitted to and approved by the requisite fifty-five 
percent or more vote of the qualified electors of the District a question as to the issuance and sale of 
general obligation bonds of the District for the various purposes set forth in the ballot submitted to the 
voters, in the maximum principal amount of $35,000,000, payable from the levy of an ad valorem tax 
against the taxable property in the District (the “Authorization”); 

WHEREAS, on October 23, 2014, the District issued its Election of 2014 General Obligation 
Bonds, Series A, in the aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000; 

WHEREAS, at this time, this Board of Trustees of the District (the “Board”) has determined 
that it is necessary and desirable to issue the second series of bonds under the Authorization in an 
aggregate principal amount not-to-exceed $17,000,000, and to be styled as “Rincon Valley Union School 
District (Sonoma County, California) Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B” with 
additional Series designations as needed (collectively, the “Bonds”); 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of 
Title 5, the Bonds are authorized to be issued by the District for the purposes set forth in the ballot 
submitted to the voters at the Election; 

WHEREAS, this Board desires to authorize the issuance of the Bonds in one or more series of 
Tax-Exempt Bonds, and further as Current Interest Bonds (as such terms are defined herein); 

WHEREAS, the District has not filed with nor received from the County office of education 
having jurisdiction over the District a qualified or negative certification in its most recent interim financial 
report pursuant to Education Code Section 42131; 

WHEREAS, this Board desires to appoint certain professionals to provide services related to the 
issuance of the Bonds; and 

WHEREAS, all acts, conditions and things required by law to be done or performed have been 
done and performed in strict conformity with the laws authorizing the issuance of general obligation 
bonds of the District, and the indebtedness of the District, including this proposed issue of Bonds, is 
within all limits prescribed by law; 



 

2 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FOUND, DETERMINED AND RESOLVED BY THE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT, SONOMA 
COUNTY, CALIFORNIA, AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Authorization for Issuance of the Bonds.  To raise money for the purposes 
authorized by the voters of the District at the Election, and to pay all necessary legal, financial, 
engineering and contingent costs in connection therewith, the Board hereby authorizes the issuance of 
the Bonds pursuant to Government Code Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 in 
one or more series of Tax-Exempt Bonds, and further as Current Interest Bonds, with appropriate Series 
designation if more than one Series is issued, all as more fully set forth in the executed Purchase 
Contract (as defined herein).  The Board further orders such Bonds sold such that the Bonds shall be 
dated as of a date to be determined by an Authorized Officer (defined herein), shall be payable upon 
such terms and provisions as shall be set forth therein, and shall be in an aggregate principal amount 
not-to-exceed $17,000,000.   

SECTION 2. Paying Agent. This Board hereby appoints the Paying Agent, as defined 
herein, to serve as the paying agent, bond registrar, transfer agent and authentication agent for the 
Bonds on behalf of the District.  This Board hereby approves the payment of the reasonable fees and 
expenses of the Paying Agent as they shall become due and payable.  The fees and expenses of the 
Paying Agent which are not paid as a cost of issuance of the Bonds may be paid in each year from ad 
valorem property taxes levied and collected for the payment thereof, insofar as permitted by law, 
including specifically by Education Code Section 15232.     

SECTION 3. Terms and Conditions of Sale.  The Bonds shall be sold upon the direction 
of the Superintendent, the Deputy Superintendent, Business (the “Deputy Superintendent”)  or such 
other officers or employees of the District as the Superintendent or the Deputy Superintendent may 
designate (collectively, the “Authorized Officers”) and pursuant to such terms and conditions set forth 
in the Purchase Contract (defined herein).  The Board hereby authorizes the sale of the Bonds at a 
negotiated sale, which is determined to provide more flexibility in the timing of the sale, an ability to 
implement the sale in a shorter time period, an increased ability to structure the Bonds to fit the needs 
of particular purchasers, and a greater opportunity for the Underwriter (as defined herein) to pre-market 
the Bonds to potential purchasers prior to the sale, all of which will contribute to the District’s goal of 
achieving the lowest overall cost of funds. 

SECTION 4. Approval of Purchase Contract.  The form of a contract for purchase and 
sale of the Bonds (the “Purchase Contract”) by and between the District and the Underwriter, 
substantially in the form on file with the Secretary to the Board, is hereby approved and the Authorized 
Officers, each alone, are hereby authorized and requested to execute such Purchase Contract; provided, 
however, (i) that the maximum interest rates on the Bonds shall not exceed the maximum rate permitted 
by law; and (ii) the underwriting discount on the Bonds, excluding original issue discount and 
reimbursable expenses of the Underwriter, shall not exceed 0.5% of the aggregate principal amount of 
Bonds actually issued.  The Authorized Officers, each alone, are further authorized to determine the 
principal amount of the Bonds to be specified in the Purchase Contract for sale by the District up to 
$17,000,000 and to enter into and execute the Purchase Contract with the Underwriter, if the conditions 
set forth in this Resolution are satisfied.  The Board estimates that the costs associated with the issuance 
of the Bonds, including compensation to the Underwriter, will equal approximately 2.0% of the 
principal amount of the Bonds. 



 

3 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

SECTION 5. Certain Definitions.  As used in this Resolution, the terms set forth below 
shall have the meanings ascribed to them (unless otherwise set forth in the Purchase Contract): 

(a) “Beneficial Owner” means, when used with reference to book-entry Bonds 
registered pursuant to Section 6 hereof, the person who is considered the beneficial owner of 
such Bonds pursuant to the arrangements for book entry determination of ownership applicable 
to the Depository.   

(b) “Bond Insurer” means any insurance company which issues a municipal bond 
insurance policy insuring the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds. 

(c) “Bond Payment Date” means, as applicable (and unless otherwise provided by 
the Purchase Contract, February 1 and August 1 of each year commencing February 1, 2018 with 
respect to interest on the Bonds, and the stated maturity dates thereof with respect to payments 
of principal of the Bonds.   

(d) “Bond Register” means the registration books which the Paying Agent shall 
keep or cause to be kept on which the registered ownership, transfer and exchange of Bonds shall 
be recorded. 

(e) “Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.  Reference to 
any particular section of the Code shall be deemed to be a reference to any successor to any such 
section.   

(f) “Continuing Disclosure Certificate” means that certain contractual 
undertaking of the District pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of Rule 15c2-12 adopted by the Securities 
and Exchange Commission under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and relating to the Bonds, 
dated as of the date of issuance thereof, as amended from time to time in accordance with the 
provisions thereof.   

(g) “Current Interest Bonds” means bonds, the interest on which is payable 
semiannually on each Bond Payment Date specified for each such Bond as designated and 
maturing in the years and in the amounts set forth in the Purchase Contract. 

(h) “Dated Date” means the date of initial issuance and delivery of the Bonds, or 
such other date as shall appear in the Purchase Contract or Official Statement. 

(i) “Depository” means the entity acting as securities depository for the Bonds 
pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof. 

(j)  “DTC” means The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, a limited 
purpose trust company organized under the laws of the State of New York, in its capacity as the 
initial Depository for the Bonds. 

(k) “Fair Market Value” means the price at which a willing buyer would purchase 
the investment from a willing seller in a bona fide, arm’s length transaction (determined as of the 
date the contract to purchase or sell the investment becomes binding) if the investment is traded 
on an established securities market (within the meaning of Section 1273 of the Code) and, 
otherwise, the term “Fair Market Value” means the acquisition price in a bona fide arm’s length  



 

4 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

transaction (as referenced above) if (i) the investment is a certificate of deposit that is acquired 
in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, (ii) the investment is an agreement 
with specifically negotiated withdrawal or reinvestment provisions and a specifically negotiated 
interest rate (for example, a guaranteed investment contract, a forward supply contract or other 
investment agreement) that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations under the Code, 
(iii) the investment is a United States Treasury Security—State and Local Government Series 
that is acquired in accordance with applicable regulations of the United States Bureau of Public 
Debt, or (iv) any commingled investment fund in which the District and related parties do not 
own more than a ten percent (10%) beneficial interest therein if the return paid by the fund is 
without regard to the source of the investment. 

(l) “Holder” or “Owner” means the registered owner of a Bond as set forth on the 
Bond Register maintained by the Paying Agent pursuant to Section 6 hereof. 

(m) “Information Services” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s 
Electronic Municipal Market Access System; or, such other services providing information with 
respect to called municipal obligations as the District may specify in writing to the Paying Agent 
or, in the absence of such a written designation, as the Paying Agent may select. 

(n) “Long Current Interest Bonds” means Current Interest Bonds that mature later 
than 30 years from the date of issuance thereof. 

(o) “Moody’s” means Moody’s Investors Service, a corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Delaware, its successors and assigns, or, if such corporation 
shall be dissolved or liquidated or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating 
agency, such other nationally recognized securities rating agency designated by the District. 

(p) “Nominee” means the nominee of the Depository, which may be the Depository, 
as determined from time to time pursuant to Section 6(c) hereof. 

(q) “Non-AMT Bonds” means obligations the interest on which is excludable from 
gross income for federal income tax purposes under Section 103(a) of the Code and not treated 
as an item of tax preference under Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code, that are legal investments 
pursuant to Section 53601 of the Government Code. 

(r) “Official Statement” means the Official Statement for the Bonds, as described 
in Section 17 hereof. 

(s) “Outstanding” means, when used with reference to the Bonds, as of any date, 
Bonds theretofore issued or thereupon being issued under this Resolution except: 

(i) Bonds canceled at or prior to such date; 

(ii) Bonds in lieu of or in substitution for which other Bonds shall have been 
delivered pursuant to Section 8 hereof; or 

(iii) Bonds for the payment or redemption of which funds or Government 
Obligations in the necessary amount shall have been set aside (whether on or prior to the 



 

5 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

maturity or redemption date of such Bonds), in accordance with Section 19 of this 
Resolution. 

(t) “Participants” means those broker-dealers, banks and other financial 
institutions from time to time for which the Depository holds book-entry certificates as securities 
depository. 

(u) “Paying Agent” means initially the The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 
Company, N.A., or any other Paying Agent as shall be named in the Purchase Contract or Official 
Statement, and afterwards any successor financial institution, acting as paying agent, transfer 
agent, authentication agent and bond registrar for the Bonds. 

(v) “Permitted Investments” means (i) any lawful investments permitted by 
Section 16429.1 and Section 53601 of the Government Code, including Non-AMT Bonds and 
Qualified Non-AMT Mutual Funds, (ii) shares in a California common law trust established 
pursuant to Title 1, Division 7, Chapter 5 of the Government Code which invests exclusively in 
investments permitted by Section 53635 of the Government Code, but without regard to any 
limitations in such Section concerning the percentage of moneys available for investment being 
invested in a particular type of security, (iii) a guaranteed investment contract with a provider 
having a rating meeting the minimum rating requirements of the County investment pool 
maintained by the Treasurer-Tax Collector, (iv) the Local Agency Investments Fund of the 
California State Treasurer, (v) the County investment pool described above, and (vi) State and 
Local Government Series Securities. 

(w) “Qualified Non-AMT Mutual Fund” means stock in a regulated investment 
company to the extent that at least 95% of the income of such regulated investment company is 
interest that is excludable from gross income under Section 103 of the Code and not an item of 
tax preference under Section 57(a)(5)(C) of the Code. 

(x) “Qualified Permitted Investments” means (i) Non-AMT Bonds, (ii) Qualified 
Non-AMT Mutual Funds, (iii) other Permitted Investments authorized by an opinion of Bond 
Counsel to the effect that such investment would not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of 
the Bonds, and (iv) Permitted Investments of proceeds of the Bonds, and interest earned on such 
proceeds, held not more than thirty days pending reinvestment or Bond redemption.  A 
guaranteed investment contract or similar investment agreement (e.g. a forward supply contract, 
GIC, repo, etc.) does not constitute a Qualified Permitted Investment. 

(y) “Record Date” means the close of business on the 15th day of the month 
preceding each Bond Payment Date. 

(z) “Series” means any Bonds executed, authenticated and delivered pursuant to the 
provisions hereof identified as a separate Series of Bonds. 

(aa) “S&P” means S&P Global Ratings, a division of Standard & Poor’s Financial 
Services LLC, its successors and assigns, or, if such corporation shall be dissolved or liquidated 
or shall no longer perform the functions of a securities rating agency, such other nationally 
recognized securities rating agency designated by the District. 



 

6 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

(bb)  “Tax-Exempt Bonds” means any Bonds the interest on which is excludable 
from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not treated as an item of tax preference 
for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax, as further described in an opinion 
of Bond Counsel supplied to the original purchasers of such Bonds. 

(cc) “Term Bonds” means those Bonds for which mandatory redemption dates have 
been established in the Purchase Contract.  

(dd) “Transfer Amount” means, for purposes of exchanging Outstanding Bonds 
pursuant to Section 8 hereof, the principal amount. 

(ee) “Treasurer-Tax Collector” means the Treasurer-Tax Collector of the County, 
or other comparable officer of the County. 

(ff) “Underwriter” means Piper Jaffray & Co. 

SECTION 6. Terms of the Bonds. 

(a) Denomination, Interest, Dated Dates and Terms.  The Bonds shall be issued as fully 
registered Current Interest Bonds registered as to both principal and interest, in denominations of 
$5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof.  The Bonds shall bear interest at a rate or 
rates not in excess of that authorized at the Election.  The Bonds will initially be registered in the name 
of “Cede & Co.,” the Nominee of the Depository Trust Company, New York, New York. 

Each Bond shall be dated as of the Dated Date, and shall bear interest from the Bond Payment 
Date next preceding the date of authentication thereof unless it is authenticated during the period from 
the 16th day of the month next preceding any Bond Payment Date to that Bond Payment Date, inclusive, 
in which event it shall bear interest from such Bond Payment Date, or unless it is authenticated on or 
before the first Record Date, in which event it shall bear interest from its Dated Date.  Interest shall be 
payable on the respective Bond Payment Dates and shall be calculated on the basis of a 360-day year of 
12, 30-day months. 

Notwithstanding any other provision herein, the ratio of total debt service to Principal for each 
Series of Bonds shall not exceed four-to-one. 

(b) Redemption. 

(i) Terms of Redemption.  The Bonds shall be subject to optional or mandatory 
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity as provided in the Purchase Contract or the Official 
Statement.   

(ii) Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  Whenever provision is made in this 
Resolution for the optional redemption of Bonds and less than all Outstanding Bonds are to be 
redeemed, the Paying Agent, upon written instruction from the District, shall select Bonds for 
redemption as directed by the District, and if not so directed, in inverse order of maturity.  Within a 
maturity, the Paying Agent shall select Bonds for redemption as directed by the District, and if not so 
directed, by lot.  Redemption by lot shall be in such manner as the Paying Agent shall determine; 
provided, however, that with respect to redemption by lot, the portion of any Bond to be redeemed in 
part shall be in the principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 



 

7 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

The Purchase Contract may provide that (i) in the event that any portion of a Term Bond 
is optionally redeemed prior to maturity, the remaining mandatory sinking fund payments with respect 
to such Bond shall be reduced proportionately or as otherwise directed by the District, in integral 
multiples of $5,000 principal amount, in respect to the portion of such Bond optionally redeemed, or (ii) 
within a maturity, Bonds shall be selected for redemption on a “Pro Rata Pass-Through Distribution of 
Principal” basis in accordance with DTC procedures, provided further that, such redemption is made in 
accordance with the operational arrangements of DTC then in effect.  

(iii) Redemption Notice.  When optional redemption is authorized pursuant to 
Section 6(b) hereof, the Paying Agent, upon written instruction from the District, shall give notice (a 
“Redemption Notice”) of the redemption of the Bonds. Such Redemption Notice shall specify:  the 
Bonds or designated portions thereof (in the case of redemption of the Bonds in part but not in whole) 
which are to be redeemed, the date of redemption, the place or places where the redemption will be 
made, including the name and address of the Paying Agent, the redemption price, the CUSIP numbers 
(if any) assigned to the Bonds to be redeemed, the Bond numbers of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole 
or in part and, in the case of any Bond to be redeemed in part only, the portion of the principal amount 
of such Bond to be redeemed, and the original issue date, interest rate and stated maturity date of each 
Bond to be redeemed in whole or in part.  Such Redemption Notice shall further state that on the 
specified date there shall become due and payable upon each Bond or portion thereof being redeemed 
at the redemption price thereof, together with the interest accrued to the redemption date, and that from 
and after such date, interest thereon shall cease to accrue.   

The Paying Agent shall take the following actions with respect to each such Redemption Notice: 

(a) At least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, such 
Redemption Notice shall be given to the respective Owners of Bonds designated for redemption 
by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, at their addresses appearing on the Bond Register. 

(b) At least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, such 
Redemption Notice shall be given by (i) registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, (ii) 
telephonically confirmed facsimile transmission, or (iii) overnight delivery service, to the 
Securities Depository. 

(c) At least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, such 
Redemption Notice shall be given by (i) registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) 
overnight delivery service, to one of the Information Services. 

(d) Provide such Redemption Notice to such other persons as may be required 
pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

A certificate of the Paying Agent or the District that a Redemption Notice has been given as 
provided herein shall be conclusive as against all parties.  Neither failure to receive any Redemption 
Notice nor any defect in any such Redemption Notice so given shall affect the sufficiency of the 
proceedings for the redemption of the affected Bonds.  Each check issued or other transfer of funds made 
by the Paying Agent for the purpose of redeeming Bonds shall bear or include the CUSIP number 
identifying, by issue and maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such check or other 
transfer.  Such Redemption Notice may state that no representation is made as to the accuracy or 
correctness of CUSIP numbers printed thereon, or on the Bonds. 



 

8 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds (or portions thereof) pursuant to 
Section 6(b)(i) hereof, unless upon the giving of such notice such Bonds or portions thereof shall be 
deemed to have been defeased pursuant to Section 19 hereof, such notice shall state that such redemption 
shall be conditional upon the receipt by an independent escrow agent selected by the District on or prior 
to the date fixed for such redemption of the moneys necessary and sufficient to pay the principal of, 
premium, if any, and interest on such Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed, and that if such moneys 
shall not have been so received said notice shall be of no force and effect, no portion of the Bonds shall 
be subject to redemption on such date and such Bonds shall not be required to be redeemed on such date.  
In the event that such Redemption Notice contains such a condition and such moneys are not so received, 
the redemption shall not be made and the Paying Agent shall within a reasonable time thereafter (but in 
no event later than the date originally set for redemption) give notice to the persons to whom and in the 
manner in which the Redemption Notice was given that such moneys were not so received.  In addition, 
the District shall have the right to rescind any Redemption Notice, by written notice to the Paying Agent, 
on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption.  The Paying Agent shall distribute a notice of the 
rescission of such Redemption Notice in the same manner as such Redemption Notice was originally 
provided. 

(iv) Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon the surrender of any Bond redeemed in 
part only, the Paying Agent shall execute and deliver to the Owner thereof a new Bond or Bonds of 
like Series, tenor and maturity and of authorized denominations equal in Transfer Amounts to the 
unredeemed portion of the Bond surrendered.  Such partial redemption shall be valid upon payment of 
the amount required to be paid to such Owner, and the District shall be released and discharged 
thereupon from all liability to the extent of such payment. 

(v) Effect of Redemption Notice.  Notice having been given as aforesaid, and the 
moneys for the redemption (including the interest accrued to the applicable date of redemption) having 
been set aside as provided in Section 19 hereof, the Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and 
payable on such date of redemption. 

If on such redemption date, money for the redemption of all the Bonds to be redeemed as 
provided in Section 6(b) hereof, together with interest accrued to such redemption date, shall be held in 
trust as provided in Section 19 hereof so as to be available therefor on such redemption date, and if a 
Redemption Notice thereof shall have been given as aforesaid, then from and after such redemption date, 
interest on the Bonds to be redeemed shall cease to accrue and become payable.  All money held for the 
redemption of Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the Owners of the Bonds to be so redeemed. 

(vi) Bonds No Longer Outstanding.  When any Bonds (or portions thereof), which 
have been duly called for redemption prior to maturity under the provisions of this Resolution, or with 
respect to which irrevocable instructions to call for redemption prior to maturity at the earliest 
redemption date have been given to the Paying Agent, in form satisfactory to it, and sufficient moneys 
shall be held irrevocably in trust for the payment of the redemption price of such Bonds or portions 
thereof, and accrued interest thereon to the date fixed for redemption, all as provided in this Resolution, 
then such Bonds shall no longer be deemed Outstanding and shall be surrendered to the Paying Agent 
for cancellation. 

All Bonds paid at maturity or redeemed prior to maturity pursuant to the provisions of 
this Section 6 shall be cancelled upon surrender thereof and be delivered to or upon the order of the 
District.  All or any portion of a Bond purchased by the District shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent. 



 

9 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

(c) Book-Entry System. 

(i) Election of Book-Entry System.  The Bonds shall initially be delivered in the 
form of a separate single fully-registered bond (which may be typewritten) for each maturity date of 
such Bonds in an authorized denomination.  The ownership of each such Bond shall be registered in 
the Bond Register in the name of the Nominee, as nominee of the Depository and ownership of the 
Bonds, and all or any portion thereof may not thereafter be transferred except as provided in 
Section 6(c)(i)(4). 

With respect to book-entry Bonds, the District and the Paying Agent shall have no responsibility 
or obligation to any Participant or to any person on behalf of which such a Participant holds an interest 
in such book-entry Bonds.  Without limiting the immediately preceding sentence, the District and the 
Paying Agent shall have no responsibility or obligation with respect to (i) the accuracy of the records of 
the Depository, the Nominee, or any Participant with respect to any ownership interest in book-entry 
Bonds, (ii) the delivery to any Participant or any other person, other than an Owner as shown in the Bond 
Register, of any notice with respect to book-entry Bonds, including any Redemption Notice, (iii) the 
selection by the Depository and its Participants of the beneficial interests in book-entry Bonds to be 
prepaid in the event the District redeems the Bonds in part, or (iv) the payment by the Depository or any 
Participant or any other person, of any amount with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest 
on the book-entry Bonds.  The District and the Paying Agent may treat and consider the person in whose 
name each book-entry Bond is registered in the Bond Register as the absolute Owner of such book-entry 
Bond for the purpose of payment of principal of, premium and interest on and to such Bond, for the 
purpose of giving notices of redemption and other matters with respect to such Bond, for the purpose of 
registering transfers with respect to such Bond, and for all other purposes whatsoever.  The Paying Agent 
shall pay all principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds only to or upon the order of the 
respective Owner, as shown in the Bond Register, or his respective attorney duly authorized in writing, 
and all such payments shall be valid and effective to fully satisfy and discharge the District’s obligations 
with respect to payment of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on the Bonds to the extent of the 
sum or sums so paid.  No person other than an Owner, as shown in the Bond Register, shall receive a 
certificate evidencing the obligation to make payments of principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Bonds.  Upon delivery by the Depository to the Owner and the Paying Agent, of written notice to the 
effect that the Depository has determined to substitute a new nominee in place of the Nominee, and 
subject to the provisions herein with respect to the Record Date, the word Nominee in this Resolution 
shall refer to such nominee of the Depository. 

1. Delivery of Letter of Representations.  In order to qualify the book-entry Bonds 
for the Depository’s book-entry system, the District and the Paying Agent shall execute and 
deliver to the Depository a Letter of Representations.  The execution and delivery of a Letter 
of Representations shall not in any way impose upon the District or the Paying Agent any 
obligation whatsoever with respect to persons having interests in such book-entry Bonds other 
than the Owners, as shown on the Bond Register.  By executing a Letter of Representations, 
the Paying Agent shall agree to take all action necessary at all times so that the District will be 
in compliance with all representations of the District in such Letter of Representations.  In 
addition to the execution and delivery of a Letter of Representations, the District and the Paying 
Agent shall take such other actions, not inconsistent with this Resolution, as are reasonably 
necessary to qualify book-entry Bonds for the Depository’s book-entry program. 

2. Selection of Depository.  In the event (i) the Depository determines not to 
continue to act as securities depository for book-entry Bonds, or (ii) the District determines 



 

10 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

that continuation of the book-entry system is not in the best interest of the Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds or the District, then the District will discontinue the book-entry system with the 
Depository.  If the District determines to replace the Depository with another qualified 
securities depository, the District shall prepare or direct the preparation of a new single, 
separate, fully registered bond for each maturity date of such Outstanding book-entry Bond, 
registered in the name of such successor or substitute qualified securities depository or its 
Nominee as provided in subsection (4) hereof.  If the District fails to identify another qualified 
securities depository to replace the Depository, then the Bonds shall no longer be restricted to 
being registered in such Bond Register in the name of the Nominee, but shall be registered in 
whatever name or names the Owners transferring or exchanging such Bonds shall designate, 
in accordance with the provisions of this Section 6(c). 

3. Payments and Notices to Depository.  Notwithstanding any other provision of 
this Resolution to the contrary, so long as all Outstanding Bonds are held in book entry form 
and registered in the name of the Nominee, all payments by the District or the Paying Agent 
with respect to principal of, premium, if any, or interest on the Bonds and all notices with 
respect to such Bonds, including Redemption Notices,  shall be made and given, respectively 
to the Nominee, as provided in the Letter of Representations or as otherwise required or 
instructed by the Depository and agreed to by the Paying Agent notwithstanding any 
inconsistent provisions herein. 

4. Transfer of Bonds to Substitute Depository. 

(A) The Bonds shall be initially issued as described in the Official Statement 
described herein.  Registered ownership of such Bonds, or any portions thereof, may not 
thereafter be transferred except: 

(1) to any successor of DTC or its nominee, or of any substitute 
depository designated pursuant to Section 6(c)(i)(4)(A)(2) (“Substitute Depository”); 
provided that any successor of DTC or Substitute Depository shall be qualified under 
any applicable laws to provide the service proposed to be provided by it; 

(2) to any Substitute Depository, upon (1) the resignation of DTC or 
its successor (or any Substitute Depository or its successor) from its functions as 
depository, or (2) a determination by the District that DTC (or its successor) is no longer 
able to carry out its functions as depository; provided that any such Substitute Depository 
shall be qualified under any applicable laws to provide the services proposed to be 
provided by it; or 

(3) to any person as provided below, upon (1) the resignation of 
DTC or its successor (or any Substitute Depository or its successor) from its functions as 
depository, or (2) a determination by the District that DTC or its successor (or Substitute 
Depository or its successor) is no longer able to carry out its functions as depository. 



 

11 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

(B) In the case of any transfer pursuant to Section 6(c)(i)(4)(A)(1) or (2), upon 
receipt of all Outstanding Bonds by the Paying Agent, together with a written request of the 
District to the Paying Agent designating the Substitute Depository, a single new Bond, which 
the District shall prepare or cause to be prepared, shall be executed and delivered for each 
maturity of Bonds then Outstanding, registered in the name of such successor or such Substitute 
Depository or their Nominees, as the case may be, all as specified in such written request of 
the District.  In the case of any transfer pursuant to Section 6(c)(i)(4)(A)(3), upon receipt of all 
Outstanding Bonds by the Paying Agent, together with a written request of the District to the 
Paying Agent, new Bonds, which the District shall prepare or cause to be prepared, shall be 
executed and delivered in such denominations and registered in the names of such persons as 
are requested in such written request of the District, provided that the Paying Agent shall not 
be required to deliver such new Bonds within a period of less than sixty (60) days from the 
date of receipt of such written request from the District. 

(C) In the case of a partial redemption or an advance refunding of any Bonds 
evidencing a portion of the principal maturing in a particular year, DTC or its successor (or 
any Substitute Depository or its successor) shall make an appropriate notation on such Bonds 
indicating the date and amounts of such reduction in principal, in form acceptable to the Paying 
Agent, all in accordance with the Letter of Representations.  The Paying Agent shall not be 
liable for such Depository’s failure to make such notations or errors in making such notations. 

(D) The District and the Paying Agent shall be entitled to treat the person in whose 
name any Bond is registered as the Owner thereof for all purposes of this Resolution and any 
applicable laws, notwithstanding any notice to the contrary received by the Paying Agent or 
the District; and the District and the Paying Agent shall not have responsibility for transmitting 
payments to, communicating with, notifying, or otherwise dealing with any Beneficial Owners 
of the Bonds.  Neither the District nor the Paying Agent shall have any responsibility or 
obligation, legal or otherwise, to any such Beneficial Owners or to any other party, including 
DTC or its successor (or Substitute Depository or its successor), except to the Owner of any 
Bonds, and the Paying Agent may rely conclusively on its records as to the identity of the 
Owners of the Bonds. 

SECTION 7. Execution of the Bonds.  The Bonds shall be signed by the President of the 
Board, or other member of the Board authorized to sign on behalf of the President, by their manual or 
facsimile signature and countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the Secretary to or Clerk 
of the Board, or the designee thereof, all in their official capacities.  No Bond shall be valid or 
obligatory for any purpose or shall be entitled to any security or benefit under this Resolution unless 
and until the certificate of authentication printed on the Bond is signed by the Paying Agent as 
authenticating agent.  Authentication by the Paying Agent shall be conclusive evidence that the Bond 
so authenticated has been duly issued, signed and delivered under this Resolution and is entitled to the 
security and benefit of this Resolution. 

SECTION 8. Paying Agent; Transfer and Exchange.  So long as any of the Bonds 
remain Outstanding, the District will cause the Paying Agent to maintain and keep at its designated 
office all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer of the Bonds as 
provided in this Section.  Subject to the provisions of Section 9 below, the person in whose name a 
Bond is registered on the Bond Register shall be regarded as the absolute Owner of that Bond for all 
purposes of this Resolution.  Payment of or on account of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest 
on any Bond shall be made only to or upon the order of such Owner; neither the District nor the Paying 



 

12 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary, but the registration may be changed as provided 
in this Section.  All such payments shall be valid and effectual to satisfy and discharge the District’s 
liability upon the Bonds, including interest, to the extent of the amount or amounts so paid.   

Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of like Series, tenor, maturity and Transfer Amount upon 
presentation and surrender at the designated office of the Paying Agent, together with a request for 
exchange signed by the Owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the 
Paying Agent.  A Bond may be transferred on the Bond Register only upon presentation and surrender 
of the Bond at the designated office of the Paying Agent together with an assignment executed by the 
Owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Paying Agent.  Upon 
exchange or transfer, the Paying Agent shall complete, authenticate and deliver a new bond or bonds of 
like series and tenor and of any authorized denomination or denominations requested by the Owner equal 
to the Transfer Amount of the Bond surrendered and bearing or accruing interest at the same rate and 
maturing on the same date.   

If any Bond shall become mutilated, the District, at the expense of the Owner of said Bond, shall 
execute, and the Paying Agent shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like Series, tenor, 
maturity and Transfer Amount in exchange and substitution for the Bond so mutilated, but only upon 
surrender to the Paying Agent of the Bond so mutilated.  If any Bond issued hereunder shall be lost, 
destroyed or stolen, evidence of such loss, destruction or theft may be submitted to the Paying Agent and, 
if such evidence be satisfactory to the Paying Agent and indemnity for the Paying Agent and the District 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent shall be given by the Owner, the District, at the expense of the Owner, 
shall execute, and the Paying Agent shall thereupon authenticate and deliver, a new Bond of like Series, 
tenor, maturity and Transfer Amount in lieu of and in substitution for the Bond so lost, destroyed or 
stolen (or if any such Bond shall have matured or shall have been called for redemption, instead of issuing 
a substitute Bond the Paying Agent may pay the same without surrender thereof upon receipt of 
indemnity satisfactory to the Paying Agent and the District).  The Paying Agent may require payment of 
a reasonable fee for each new Bond issued under this paragraph and of the expenses which may be 
incurred by the District and the Paying Agent. 

If signatures on behalf of the District are required in connection with an exchange or transfer, the 
Paying Agent shall undertake the exchange or transfer of Bonds only after the new Bonds are signed by 
the authorized officers of the District.  In all cases of exchanged or transferred Bonds, the District shall 
sign and the Paying Agent shall authenticate and deliver Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this 
Resolution.  All fees and costs of transfer shall be paid by the requesting party.  Those charges may be 
required to be paid before the procedure is begun for the exchange or transfer.  All Bonds issued upon 
any exchange or transfer shall be valid obligations of the District, evidencing the same debt, and entitled 
to the same security and benefit under this Resolution as the Bonds surrendered upon that exchange or 
transfer. 

Any Bond surrendered to the Paying Agent for payment, retirement, exchange, replacement or 
transfer shall be cancelled by the Paying Agent.  The District may at any time deliver to the Paying Agent 
for cancellation any previously authenticated and delivered Bonds that the District may have acquired in 
any manner whatsoever, and those Bonds shall be promptly cancelled by the Paying Agent.  Written 
reports of the surrender and cancellation of Bonds shall be made to the District by the Paying Agent as 
requested by the District.  The cancelled Bonds shall be retained for three years, then returned to the 
District or destroyed by the Paying Agent as directed by the District. 



 

13 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will be required to (a) issue or transfer any Bonds 
during a period beginning with the opening of business on the 16th day next preceding either any Bond 
Payment Date or any date of selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending with the close of business on 
the Bond Payment Date or any day on which the applicable Redemption Notice is given or (b) transfer 
any Bonds which have been selected or called for redemption in whole or in part. 

SECTION 9. Payment.  Payment of interest on any Bond on any Bond Payment Date shall 
be made to the person appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent as the Owner thereof 
as of the Record Date immediately preceding such Bond Payment Date, such interest to be paid by 
wire transfer to the bank and account number on file with the Paying Agent as of the Record Date.  The 
principal of, and redemption premium, if any, payable on the Bonds shall be payable upon maturity or 
redemption upon surrender at the designated office of the Paying Agent.  The principal of, premiums, 
if any, and interest on, the Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the United States of America.  
The Paying Agent is hereby authorized to pay the Bonds when duly presented for payment at maturity, 
and to cancel all Bonds upon payment thereof.  The Bonds are obligations of the District payable solely 
from the levy of ad valorem property taxes upon all property subject to taxation within the District, 
which taxes are unlimited as to rate or amount.  The Bonds do not constitute an obligation of the County 
except as provided in this Resolution, and no part of any fund of the County is pledged or obligated to 
the payment of the Bonds. 

SECTION 10. Forms of Bonds.  The Bonds shall be in substantially the form as set forth 
in Exhibit A hereto, allowing those officials executing the Bonds to make the insertions and deletions 
necessary to conform the Bonds to this Resolution and the Purchase Contract.  Pending the preparation 
of definitive Bonds, the Bonds may be executed and delivered in temporary form exchangeable for 
definitive Bonds when ready for delivery.  If the Paying Agent delivers temporary Bonds, it shall 
execute and deliver definitive Bonds in an equal aggregate principal amount of authorized 
denominations, when available, and thereupon the temporary Bonds shall be surrendered to the Paying 
Agent.  Until so exchanged, the temporary Bonds shall be entitled to the same benefits hereunder as 
definitive Bonds. 

SECTION 11. Delivery of Bonds.  The proper officials of the District shall cause the Bonds 
to be prepared and, following their sale, shall have the Bonds signed and delivered, together with a true 
transcript of proceedings with reference to the issuance of the Bonds, to the Underwriter upon payment 
of the purchase price therefor. 

SECTION 12. Deposit of Proceeds of Bonds.  (a)  The purchase price received from the 
Underwriter pursuant to the Purchase Contract, to the extent of the principal amount thereof, shall be 
paid to the County to the credit of the fund hereby authorized to be created to be known as the “Rincon 
Valley Union School District Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B Building Fund” 
(the “Building Fund”) of the District, shall be kept separate and distinct from all other District and 
County funds, and those proceeds shall be used solely for the purpose for which the Bonds are being 
issued and provided further that such proceeds shall be applied solely to the purposes authorized by 
the voters of the District at the Election.  The County shall have no responsibility for assuring the 
proper use of the Bond proceeds by the District.  To the extent the Bonds are issued in more than one 
Series, there shall be created a separate Building Fund for each such Series of Bonds, with appropriate 
Series designation, and all references herein to the Building Fund shall be deemed to include any 
Building Fund created for a Series of Bonds. 



 

14 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

The purchase price received from the Underwriter pursuant to the Purchase Contract, to the extent 
of any accrued interest and any net original issue premium, shall be kept separate and apart in the fund 
hereby authorized to be created and designated as the “Rincon Valley Union School District Election of 
2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B Debt Service Fund” (the “Debt Service Fund”) for the Bonds 
and used for payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, and for no other purpose.  To the extent 
the Bonds are issued in more than one Series, there shall be created a separate Debt Service Fund for 
each such Series of Bonds, with appropriate Series designation, and all references herein to the Debt 
Service Fund shall be deemed to include any Debt Service Fund created for a Series of Bonds.   Interest 
earnings on monies held in the Building Fund shall be retained in the Building Fund.  Interest earnings 
on monies held in the Debt Service Fund shall be retained in the Debt Service Fund.  Any excess proceeds 
of the Bonds not needed for the authorized purposes set forth herein for which the Bonds are being issued 
upon written notice from the District shall be transferred to the Debt Service Fund and applied to the 
payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds.  If, after payment in full of the Bonds, there remain 
excess proceeds, any such excess amounts shall be transferred to the general fund of the District. 

The costs of issuance of the Bonds are hereby authorized to be paid either from premium withheld 
by the Underwriter upon the sale of the Bonds, or from the principal amount of the Bonds received from 
the Underwriter.  To the extent costs of issuance are paid from such principal amount, the District may 
direct that a portion thereof, in an amount not-to-exceed 2.0% of such principal amount, in lieu of being 
deposited into the Building Fund, be deposited in a costs of issuance account to be held by a fiscal agent 
of the District appointed for such purpose.  Any excess moneys in the cost of issuance account remaining 
after payment of all costs of issuance shall be transferred to the County for deposit into the Building Fund 
or Debt Service Fund, as appropriate. 

(b) Moneys in the Debt Service Fund and the Building Fund shall be invested in Permitted 
Investments.  If at the time of issuance the District determines to issue the Bonds as Tax-Exempt Bonds 
without regard to the Internal Revenue Code “temporary period” restrictions, all investment of Bond 
proceeds shall be subject to paragraph (1) below; and the District may provide for an agent to assist 
the County in investing funds pursuant to paragraph (1) below.  If the District fails to direct the County 
or its agent, as the case may be, the County or its agent shall invest or cause the funds in the Building 
Fund to be invested in Qualified Permitted Investments, subject to the provisions of paragraph (1) 
below, until such time as the District provides written direction to invest such funds otherwise.  Neither 
the County nor its officers and agents, as the case may be, shall have any responsibility or obligation 
to determine the tax consequences of any investment.  The interest earned on the moneys deposited to 
the Building Fund shall be applied as set forth in subparagraph (1)(C) below: 

(1) Covenant Regarding Investment of Proceeds.  

(A) Permitted Investments.  Beginning on the delivery date, and at all times 
until expenditure for authorized purposes, not less than 95% of the proceeds of the Bonds 
deposited in the Building Fund, including investment earnings thereon, will be invested 
in Qualified Permitted Investments.  Notwithstanding the preceding provisions of this 
Section, for purposes of this paragraph, amounts derived from the disposition or 
redemption of Qualified Permitted Investments and held pending reinvestment or 
redemption for a period of not more than 30 days may be invested in Permitted 
Investments.  The District hereby authorizes investments made pursuant to this 
Resolution with maturities exceeding five years.  

(B) Recordkeeping and Monitoring Relating to Building Fund. 



 

15 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

i. Information Regarding Permitted Investments.  The District 
hereby covenants that it will record or cause to be recorded with respect to each Permitted 
Investment in the Building Fund the following information: purchase date; purchase 
price; information establishing the Fair Market Value of such Permitted Investment; face 
amount; coupon rate; periodicity of interest payments; disposition price; disposition date; 
and any accrued interest received upon disposition. 

ii. Information in Qualified Non-AMT Mutual Funds.  The District 
hereby covenants that, with respect to each investment of proceeds of the Bonds in a 
Qualified Non-AMT Mutual Fund pursuant to paragraph (1)(A) above, in addition to 
recording, or causing to be recorded, the information set forth in paragraph (1)(B)(i) 
above, it will retain a copy of each IRS information reporting form and account statement 
provided by such Qualified Non-AMT Mutual Fund.  

iii. Monthly Investment Fund Statements.  The District covenants 
that it will obtain, at the beginning of each month following the delivery date, a statement 
of the investments in the Building Fund detailing the nature, amount and value of each 
investment as of such statement date.   

iv. Retention of Records.  The District hereby covenants that it will 
retain the records referred to in paragraph (1)(B)(i) and each IRS information reporting 
form referred to in paragraph (1)(B)(ii) with its books and records with respect to the 
Bonds until three years following the last date that any obligation comprising the Bonds 
is retired. 

(C) Interest Earned on Permitted Investments.  The interest earned on the 
moneys deposited in the Building Fund shall be deposited in the Building Fund and used 
for the purposes of that fund. 

Except as required to satisfy the requirements of Section 148(f) of the Code, interest earned on 
the investment of moneys held in the Debt Service Fund shall be retained in the Debt Service Fund and 
used by the County to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. 

 

SECTION 13. Rebate Fund.  The following provisions shall apply to any Bonds issued as 
Tax-Exempt Bonds. 

(a) The District shall create and establish a special fund designated the “Rincon Valley 
Union School District Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B Rebate Fund” (the “Rebate 
Fund”).  All amounts at any time on deposit in the Rebate Fund shall be held in trust, to the extent 
required to satisfy the requirement to make rebate payments to the United States (the “Rebate 
Requirement”) pursuant to Section 148 of the Code, and the Treasury Regulations promulgated 
thereunder (the “Treasury Regulations”).  Such amounts shall be free and clear of any lien hereunder 
and shall be governed by this Section and by the Tax Certificate to be executed by the District in 
connection with the Tax-Exempt Bonds (the “Tax Certificate”). 

(b) Within 45 days of the end of each fifth Bond Year (as such term is defined in the Tax 
Certificate), (1) the District shall calculate or cause to be calculated with respect to the Bonds the 



 

16 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

amount that would be considered the “rebate amount” within the meaning of Section 1.148-3 of the 
Treasury Regulations, using as the “computation date” for this purpose the end of such Bond Year, and 
(2) the District shall deposit to the Rebate Fund from amounts on deposit in the other funds established 
hereunder or from other District funds, if and to the extent required, amounts sufficient to cause the 
balance in the Rebate Fund to be equal to the “rebate amount” so calculated.  The District shall not be 
required to deposit any amount to the Rebate Fund in accordance with the preceding sentence, if the 
amount on deposit in the Rebate Fund prior to the deposit required to be made under this subsection 
(b) equals or exceeds the “rebate amount” calculated in accordance with the preceding sentence.  Such 
excess may be withdrawn from the Rebate Fund to the extent permitted under subsection (g) of this 
Section.  The District shall not be required to calculate the “rebate amount” and shall not be required 
to deposit any amount to the Rebate Fund in accordance with this subsection (b), with respect to all or 
a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds (including amounts treated as proceeds of the Bonds) (1) to the 
extent such proceeds satisfy the expenditure requirements of Section 148(f)(4)(B) or 
Section 148(f)(4)(C) of the Code or Section 1.148-7(d) of the Treasury Regulations, whichever is 
applicable, and otherwise qualify for the exception to the Rebate Requirement pursuant to whichever 
of said sections is applicable, (2) to the extent such proceeds are subject to an election by the District 
under Section 148(f)(4)(C)(vii) of the Code to pay a one and one-half percent (1½%) penalty in lieu of 
arbitrage rebate in the event any of the percentage expenditure requirements of Section 148(f)(4)(C) 
are not satisfied, or (3) to the extent such proceeds qualify for the exception to arbitrage rebate under 
Section 148(f)(4)(A)(ii) of the Code for amounts in a “bona fide debt service fund.” In such event, and 
with respect to such amounts, the District shall not be required to deposit any amount to the Rebate 
Fund in accordance with this subsection (b). 

(c) Any funds remaining in the Rebate Fund after redemption of all the Bonds and any 
amounts described in paragraph (2) of subsection (d) of this Section, or provision made therefor 
satisfactory to the District, including accrued interest, shall be remitted to the District. 

(d) Subject to the exceptions contained in subsection (b) of this Section to the requirement 
to calculate the “rebate amount” and make deposits to the Rebate Fund, the District shall pay to the 
United States, from amounts on deposit in the Rebate Fund, 

(1) not later than 60 days after the end of (i) the fifth Bond Year, and (ii) each fifth 
Bond Year thereafter, an amount that, together with all previous rebate payments, is equal to at 
least 90% of the “rebate amount” calculated as of the end of such Bond Year in accordance with 
Section 1.148-3 of the Treasury Regulations; and 

(2) not later than 60 days after the payment of all Bonds, an amount equal to 100% 
of the “rebate amount” calculated as of the date of such payment (and any income attributable to 
the “rebate amount” determined to be due and payable) in accordance with Section 1.148-3 of 
the Treasury Regulations. 

(e) In the event that, prior to the time any payment is required to be made from the Rebate 
Fund, the amount in the Rebate Fund is not sufficient to make such payment when such payment is 
due, the District shall calculate (or have calculated) the amount of such deficiency and deposit an 
amount equal to such deficiency into the Rebate Fund prior to the time such payment is due. 

(f) Each payment required to be made pursuant to subsection (d) of this Section shall be 
made to the Internal Revenue Service, on or before the date on which such payment is due, and shall 



 

17 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

be accompanied by Internal Revenue Service Form 8038-T, such form to be prepared or caused to be 
prepared by the District. 

(g) In the event that immediately following the calculation required by subsection (b) of 
this Section, but prior to any deposit made under said subsection, the amount on deposit in the Rebate 
Fund exceeds the “rebate amount” calculated in accordance with said subsection, the District may 
withdraw the excess from the Rebate Fund and credit such excess to the Debt Service Fund. 

(h) The District shall retain records of all determinations made hereunder until three years 
after the complete retirement of the Bonds. 

(i) Notwithstanding anything in this Resolution to the contrary, the Rebate Requirement 
shall survive the payment in full or defeasance of the Bonds. 

SECTION 14. Security for the Bonds.  There shall be levied on all the taxable property in 
the District, in addition to all other taxes, a continuing direct ad valorem property tax annually during 
the period the Bonds are Outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds when due, which moneys when collected will be deposited in the Debt Service Fund of the 
District, and which fund is hereby designated for the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds when and as the same shall fall due, and for no other purpose.  The District covenants to cause 
the County to take all actions necessary to levy such ad valorem property tax in accordance with this 
Section 14.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 53515, the Bonds shall be secured by a statutory 
lien on all revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes for the payment 
thereof. 

Pursuant to Government Code Sections 5450 and 5451, the District hereby pledges all revenues 
received from the levy and collection of ad valorem taxes for the payment of each Series of Bonds and 
all amounts on deposit in the corresponding Debt Service Fund created pursuant to Section 12 hereof to 
the payment of such Series of Bonds.  Such pledge shall constitute a lien on and security interest in such 
taxes and amounts in the Debt Service Fund.  This pledge shall constitute an agreement between the 
District and the Owners of such Series of Bonds to provide security for the payment of such Bonds in 
addition to any statutory lien that may exist. 

The moneys in the Debt Service Fund, to the extent necessary to pay the principal of and interest 
on the Bonds as the same become due and payable, shall be transferred by the Treasurer-Tax Collector 
to the Paying Agent which, in turn, shall pay such moneys to DTC to pay such principal and interest.  
DTC will thereupon make payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds to the DTC Participants 
who will thereupon make payments of such principal and interest to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  
Any moneys remaining in the Debt Service Fund after the Bonds and the interest thereon have been paid 
in full, or provision for such payment has been made, shall be transferred to the general fund of the 
District, pursuant to Education Code Section 15234. 

SECTION 15. Arbitrage Covenant.  The District covenants that it will restrict the use of 
the proceeds of the Bonds in such manner and to such extent, if any, as may be necessary, so that the 
Bonds will not constitute arbitrage bonds under Section 148 of the Code and the applicable regulations 
prescribed thereunder or any predecessor section. Calculations for determining arbitrage requirements 
are the sole responsibility of the District. 



 

18 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

SECTION 16. Conditions Precedent.  The Board determines that all acts and conditions 
necessary to be performed by the Board or to have been met precedent to and in the issuing of the 
Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the District have been 
performed and have been met, or will at the time of delivery of the Bonds have been performed and 
have been met, in regular and due form as required by law; and that no statutory or constitutional 
limitation of indebtedness or taxation will have been exceeded in the issuance of the Bonds. 

SECTION 17. Official Statement.  The Preliminary Official Statement relating to the 
Bonds, substantially in the form on file with the Secretary to the Board is hereby approved and the 
Authorized Officers, each alone, are hereby authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf 
of the District, to deliver such Preliminary Official Statement to the Underwriter to be used in 
connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds.  The Authorized Officers, each alone, are hereby 
authorized and directed, for and in the name and on behalf of the District, to deem the Preliminary 
Official Statement “final” pursuant to Rule 15c2-12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, prior to 
its distribution and to execute and deliver to the Underwriter a final Official Statement, substantially 
in the form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes therein, deletions therefrom and 
modifications thereto as the Authorized Officer executing the same shall approve.  The Underwriter is 
hereby authorized to distribute copies of the Preliminary Official Statement to persons who may be 
interested in the purchase of the Bonds, and such Underwriter is directed to deliver copies of any final 
Official Statement to the purchasers of the Bonds.  Execution of the Official Statement shall 
conclusively evidence the District’s approval of the Official Statement. 

SECTION 18. Insurance.  In the event the District purchases bond insurance for the Bonds, 
and to the extent that the Bond Insurer makes payment of the principal of and interest on the Bonds, it 
shall become the Owner of such Bonds with the right to payment of such principal or interest, and shall 
be fully subrogated to all of the Owners’ rights, including the Owners’ rights to payment thereof.  To 
evidence such subrogation (i) in the case of subrogation as to claims of past due interest, the Paying 
Agent shall note the Bond Insurer’s rights as subrogee on the Bond Register for the Bonds maintained 
by the Paying Agent upon receipt of a copy of the cancelled check issued by the Bond Insurer for the 
payment of such interest to the Owners of the Bonds, and (ii) in the case of subrogation as to claims 
for past due principal, the Paying Agent shall note the Bond Insurer as subrogee on the Bond Register 
for the Bonds maintained by the Paying Agent upon surrender of the Bonds by the Owners thereof to 
the Bond Insurer or the insurance trustee for the Bond Insurer. 

SECTION 19. Defeasance.  All or any portion of the Outstanding maturities of the Bonds 
may be defeased prior to maturity in the following ways: 

(a) Cash:  by irrevocably depositing with an independent escrow agent selected by 
the District an amount of cash which, together with amounts transferred from the Debt Service 
Fund, if any, is sufficient to pay all Bonds Outstanding and designated for defeasance (including 
all principal thereof, accrued interest thereon and redemption premiums, if any) at or before their 
maturity date; or 

(b) Government Obligations:  by irrevocably depositing with an independent escrow 
agent selected by the District noncallable Government Obligations together with amounts 
transferred from the Debt Service Fund, if any, and any other cash, if required, in such amount 
as will, together with interest to accrue thereon, in the opinion of an independent certified public 
accountant, be fully sufficient to pay and discharge all Bonds Outstanding and designated for 



 

19 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

defeasance (including all principal thereof, accrued interest thereon and redemption premiums, 
if any) at or before their maturity date; 

then, notwithstanding that any of such Bonds shall not have been surrendered for payment, all obligations 
of the District with respect to all such designated Outstanding Bonds shall cease and terminate, except 
only the obligation of the independent escrow agent selected by the District to pay or cause to be paid 
from funds deposited pursuant to paragraphs (a) or (b) of this Section, to the Owners of such designated 
Bonds not so surrendered and paid all sums due with respect thereto. 

For purposes of this Section, Government Obligations shall mean: 

Direct and general obligations of the United States of America, obligations that are 
unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America (which may 
consist of obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation that constitute interest strips), or 
obligations the payment of principal of and interest on which is secured, guaranteed or otherwise 
backed by, directly or indirectly, a pledge of the full faith and credit of the United States of America.  
In the case of direct and general obligations of the United States of America, Government Obligations 
shall include evidences of direct ownership of proportionate interests in future interest or principal 
payments of such obligations.  Investments in such proportionate interests must be limited to 
circumstances where (i) a bank or trust company acts as custodian and holds the underlying United 
States obligations; (ii) the owner of the investment is the real party in interest and has the right to 
proceed directly and individually against the obligor of the underlying United States obligations; and 
(iii) the underlying United States obligations are held in a special account, segregated from the 
custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy any claim of the custodian, any person 
claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian may be obligated; provided that 
such obligations are rated or assessed at least as high as direct and general obligations of the United 
States of America by either Moody’s or S&P. 

SECTION 20. Nonliability of County. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained 
herein, in the Bonds or in any other document mentioned herein, the County, nor its officials, officers, 
employees or agents shall have any liability hereunder or by reason hereof or in connection with the 
transactions contemplated hereby, the Bonds are not a debt of the County or a pledge of the full faith 
and credit of the County, and the Bonds and any liability in connection therewith shall be paid solely 
from ad valorem property taxes lawfully levied to pay the principal of or interest on the Bonds, which 
taxes shall be unlimited as to rate or amount. 

SECTION 21. Request to County to Levy Tax.  The Board of Supervisors and officers of 
the County are obligated by statute to provide for the levy and collection of ad valorem property taxes 
in each year sufficient to pay all principal of and interest coming due on the Bonds in such year, and 
to pay from such taxes all amounts due on the Bonds.  The District hereby requests such Board of 
Supervisors to annually levy a tax upon all taxable property in the District sufficient to pay all such 
principal and interest coming due on the Bonds in such year, and to pay from such taxes all amounts 
due on the Bonds.  The Board hereby finds and determines that such ad valorem taxes shall be levied 
specifically to pay the Bonds being issued to finance specific projects authorized by the voters of the 
District at the Election. 

SECTION 22. Other Actions.  (a) Officers of the Board and District officials and staff are 
hereby authorized and directed, jointly and severally, to do any and all things and to execute and deliver 
any and all documents which they may deem necessary or advisable in order to proceed with the 



 

20 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

issuance of the Bonds and otherwise carry out, give effect to and comply with the terms and intent of 
this Resolution.  Such actions heretofore taken by such officers, officials and staff are hereby ratified, 
confirmed and approved. 

(b) The Board hereby appoints California Financial Services, as Financial Advisor, 
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, as Bond Counsel and Disclosure 
Counsel, and Piper Jaffray & Co., as Underwriter, each with respect to the issuance of the Bonds.   

(c) To the extent the issuance of Bonds includes Long Current Interest Bonds, the useful 
life of any facility financed with such Long Current Interest Bonds will equal or exceed the maturity 
of such Long Current Interest Bonds. 

(d) Notwithstanding any other provisions contained herein, the provisions of this 
Resolution as they relate to the Bonds may be amended by the Purchase Contract and the Official 
Statement. 

SECTION 23. Resolution to County Treasurer-Tax Collector.  The Secretary to this 
Board is hereby directed to provide a certified copy of this Resolution to the Treasurer-Tax Collector 
immediately following its adoption. 

SECTION 24. Continuing Disclosure.  The District hereby covenants and agrees that it will 
comply with and carry out all of the provisions of that certain Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
executed by the District and dated as of the Dated Date, as originally executed and as it may be 
amended from time to time in accordance with the terms thereof.  The Board hereby approves the form 
of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate appended to the form of Preliminary Official Statement on 
file with the Secretary to the Board as of the date hereof, and the Authorized Officers, each alone, are 
hereby authorized to execute and deliver such Continuing Disclosure Certificate with such changes 
therein and modifications thereto as shall be approved by the Underwriter and the Authorized Officer 
executing the same, such approval to be conclusively evidenced by such execution and delivery.  Any 
Bond Holder may take such actions as may be necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate 
or specific performance by court order, to cause the District to comply with its obligations under this 
Section.  Noncompliance with this Section shall not result in acceleration of the Bonds. 

SECTION 25. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its 
passage. 

SECTION 26. Further Actions Authorized.  It is hereby covenanted that the District, and 
its appropriate officials, have duly taken all actions necessary to be taken by them, and will take any 
additional actions necessary to be taken by them, for carrying out the provisions of this Resolution. 

SECTION 27. Recitals.  All the recitals in this Resolution above are true and correct and 
this Board so finds, determines and represents. 

 

 

 

 



 

21 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this 12th day of September, 2017, by the following 
vote: 

AYES: MEMBERS   

NOES: MEMBERS   

ABSTAIN: MEMBERS   

ABSENT: MEMBERS   

       
          President of the Board of Trustees 

ATTEST: 

____________________________ 
Secretary to the Board of Trustees 



 

22 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE 

I, Tony Roehrick, Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Rincon Valley Union School District, 
Sonoma County, California, hereby certify as follows: 

The foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of a Resolution duly adopted at a regular meeting 
of the Board of Trustees of said District duly and regularly and legally held at the regular meeting place 
thereof on September 12, 2017, of which meeting all of the members of the Board of said District had 
due notice and at which a quorum was present. 

I have carefully compared the same with the original minutes of said meeting on file and of record 
in my office and the foregoing is a full, true and correct copy of the original Resolution adopted at said 
meeting and entered in said minutes. 

Said Resolution has not been amended, modified or rescinded since the date of its adoption, and 
the same is now in full force and effect. 

Dated:   September ___, 2017 

        
Secretary to the Board of Trustees of the Rincon 
Valley Union School District 

 
 
 
 

 



 

A-1 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

EXHIBIT A 

FORM OF BONDS 

REGISTERED REGISTERED 
NO. $          

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
(SONOMA COUNTY, CALIFORNIA) 

ELECTION OF 2014 GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES B 
 

INTEREST RATE: MATURITY DATE: DATED AS OF: CUSIP 

___% per annum August 1, 20__ ___________, 2017  
 
REGISTERED OWNER: CEDE & CO. 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNT:  

The Rincon Valley Union School District (the “District”) in Sonoma County, California (the 
“County”), for value received, promises to pay to the Registered Owner named above, or registered 
assigns, the Principal Amount on the Maturity Date, each as stated above, and interest thereon until the 
Principal Amount is paid or provided for at the Interest Rate stated above, on February 1 and August 1 
of each year (the “Bond Payment Dates”), commencing February 1, 2018.  This Bond will bear interest 
from the Bond Payment Date next preceding the date of authentication hereof unless it is authenticated 
as of a day during the period from the 16th day of the month next preceding any Bond Payment Date to 
the Bond Payment Date, inclusive, in which event it shall bear interest from such Bond Payment Date, 
or unless it is authenticated on or before January 15, 2018, in which event it shall bear interest from the 
Dated Date.  Interest shall be computed on the basis of a 360-day year of 12, 30-day months.  Principal 
and interest are payable in lawful money of the United States of America, without deduction for the 
paying agent services, to the person in whose name this Bond (or, if applicable, one or more predecessor 
bonds) is registered, such owner being the Registered Owner, on the Register maintained by the Paying 
Agent, initially The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A.  Principal is payable upon 
presentation and surrender of this Bond at the designated office of the Paying Agent.  Interest is payable 
by wire transfer by the Paying Agent on each Bond Payment Date to the Registered Owner of this bond 
(or one or more predecessor bonds) as shown on the bond register maintained by the Paying Agent as of, 
and to the bank and account number on file with the Paying Agent as of, the close of business on the 15th 
day of the calendar month next preceding that Bond Payment Date (the “Record Date”). 

This Bond is one of an authorization of bonds approved to raise money for the purposes 
authorized by voters of the District at the Election (defined herein) and to pay all necessary legal, 
financial, engineering and contingent costs in connection therewith under authority of and pursuant to 
the laws of the State of California, and the requisite vote of the electors of the District cast at a general 
election held on June 3, 2014 (the “Election”), upon the question of issuing bonds in the amount of 
$35,000,000 and the resolution of the Board of Trustees of the District adopted on September 12, 2017 
(the “Bond Resolution”).  This Bond is being issued under the provisions of Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of 
Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 of the California Government Code.  This Bond and the issue of which this 



 

A-2 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

Bond is one are payable as to both principal and interest solely from the proceeds of the levy of ad 
valorem property taxes on all property subject to such taxes in the District, which taxes are unlimited as 
to rate or amount in accordance with California Education Code Sections 15250 and 15252. 

The Bonds of this issue comprise $________ principal amount of current interest bonds, of which 
this bond is a part (each a “Bond”). 

This Bond is exchangeable and transferable for Bonds of like series, tenor, maturity and Transfer 
Amount (as defined in the Bond Resolution) and in authorized denominations at the designated office of 
the Paying Agent, by the Registered Owner or by a person legally empowered to do so, in a form 
satisfactory to the Paying Agent, all subject to the terms, limitations and conditions provided in the Bond 
Resolution.  All fees and costs of transfer shall be paid by the transferor.  The District and the Paying 
Agent may deem and treat the Registered Owner as the absolute owner of this Bond for the purpose of 
receiving payment of or on account of principal or interest and for all other purposes, and neither the 
District nor the Paying Agent shall be affected by any notice to the contrary. 

Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will be required to (a) issue or transfer any Bond during 
a period beginning with the opening of business on the 16th day next preceding either any Bond Payment 
Date or any date of selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending with the close of business on the Bond 
Payment Date or day on which the applicable notice of redemption is given or (b) transfer any Bond 
which has been selected or called for redemption in whole or in part. 

The Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 20___ are not subject to optional redemption prior 
to their respective stated maturity dates.  The Bonds maturing on or after August 1, 20___ are subject to 
optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates at the option of the District, from any 
source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 20___, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption, together with interest accrued 
thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 

The Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__, are subject to redemption prior to maturity from 
mandatory sinking fund payments on August 1 of each year, on and after August 1, 20__, at a redemption 
price equal to the principal amount thereof, together with accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption, 
without premium.  The principal amounts represented by such Term Bonds to be so redeemed, the dates 
therefor and the final principal payment date are as indicated in the following table:  

Redemption Date 
(August 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

  
  

    
(1)  Maturity. 

In the event that a portion of the Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__ is optionally redeemed 
prior to maturity, the remaining mandatory sinking fund payments shown above shall be reduced 
proportionately or as otherwise directed by the District, in integral multiples of $5,000 of principal 
amount, in respect of the portion of such Term Bonds optionally redeemed. 

If less than all of the Bonds of any one maturity shall be called for redemption, the particular 
Bonds or portions of Bonds of such maturity to be redeemed shall be selected as directed by the District, 
and if not so directed, by lot by the Paying Agent in such manner as the Paying Agent may determine; 



 

A-3 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

provided, however, that the portion of any Bond to be redeemed shall be in the principal amount of 
$5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.   If less than all of the Bonds stated to mature on different dates 
shall be called for redemption, the particular Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed shall be called by 
the Paying Agent in any order directed by the District and, if not so directed, in the inverse order of 
maturity. 

Reference is made to the Bond Resolution for a more complete description of certain defined 
terms used herein, as well as the provisions, among others, with respect to the nature and extent of the 
security for the Bonds of this series, the rights, duties and obligations of the District, the Paying Agent 
and the Registered Owners, and the terms and conditions upon which the Bonds are issued and secured.  
The Registered Owner of this Bond assents, by acceptance hereof, to all of the provisions of the Bond 
Resolution. 

It is certified and recited that all acts and conditions required by the Constitution and laws of the 
State of California to exist, to occur and to be performed or to have been met precedent to and in the 
issuing of the Bonds in order to make them legal, valid and binding general obligations of the District, 
have been performed and have been met in regular and due form as required by law; that no statutory or 
constitutional limitation on indebtedness or taxation has been exceeded in issuing the Bonds; and that 
due provision has been made for levying and collecting ad valorem property taxes on all of the taxable 
property within the District in an amount sufficient to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when 
due. 

This Bond shall not be valid or obligatory for any purpose and shall not be entitled to any security 
or benefit under the Bond Resolution until the Certificate of Authentication below has been signed. 

 
[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

A-4 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Rincon Valley Union School District, Sonoma County, 
California, has caused this Bond to be executed on behalf of the District and in their official capacities 
by the manual or facsimile signature of the President of the Board of Trustees of the District, and to be 
countersigned by the manual or facsimile signature of the [Secretary to/Clerk of] the Board of Trustees 
of the District, all as of the date stated above. 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT  

 
By:  (Facsimile Signature)  

President of the Board of Trustees 

COUNTERSIGNED: 

 (Facsimile Signature)  
[Secretary to/Clerk of] the Board of Trustees 

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 

This Bond is one of the Bonds described in the Bond Resolution referred to herein which has 
been authenticated and registered on ________, 2017. 

By:  THE BANK OF NEW YORK MELLON TRUST 
COMPANY, N.A., as Paying Agent 

______________________________________________ 
Authorized Officer 

  
 

  



 

A-5 
 
DOCSSF/139212v3/200387-0003 

ASSIGNMENT 

For value received, the undersigned sells, assigns and transfers to (print or typewrite name, 
address and zip code of Transferee): ___________________________________________________ 
this Bond and irrevocably constitutes and appoints attorney to transfer this Bond on the books for 
registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
 
 

Dated: ________________________ _____________________________ 
 

 
Signature Guaranteed: 
 
 
_____________________________ 
 

 

 
Notice: The assignor’s signature to this assignment must correspond with the name as it appears 

upon the within Bond in every particular, without alteration or any change whatever, and 
the signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution. 

Social Security Number, Taxpayer Identification Number or other identifying number of 
Assignee: _________________ 

Unless this certificate is presented by an authorized representative of The Depository Trust 
Company to the issuer or its agent for registration of transfer, exchange or payment, and any certificate 
issued is registered in the name of Cede & Co. or such other name as requested by an authorized 
representative of The Depository Trust Company and any payment is made to Cede & Co., ANY 
TRANSFER, PLEDGE OR OTHER USE HEREOF FOR VALUE OR OTHERWISE BY OR TO ANY 
PERSON IS WRONGFUL since the registered owner hereof, Cede & Co., has an interest herein. 

LEGAL OPINION 

The following is a true copy of the opinion rendered by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a 
Professional Corporation in connection with the issuance of, and dated as of the date of the original 
delivery of, the Bonds.  A signed copy is on file in my office. 

   (Facsimile Signature)    
[Secretary to/Clerk of] the Board of Trustees 

(Form of Legal Opinion) 
 



 

1 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

$____________ 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Sonoma County, California) 
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 

 

PURCHASE CONTRACT 
 
 

______________ __, 2017 

Board of Trustees 
Rincon Valley Union School District 
1000 Yulupa Avenue 
Santa Rosa, California 95405 
 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 

The undersigned, Piper Jaffray & Co. (the “Underwriter”), offers to enter into this Purchase 
Contract (the “Purchase Contract”) with the Rincon Valley Union School District (the “District”), 
which, upon the acceptance hereof thereby, will be binding upon the District and the Underwriter.  This 
offer is made subject to the written acceptance of this Purchase Contract by the District and delivery 
of such acceptance to the Underwriter at or prior to 11:59 P.M., Pacific Time, on the date hereof. 
Capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings given to such terms 
in the Resolution (as defined herein). 

The District acknowledges and agrees that (i) the purchase and sale of the Bonds (as defined 
herein) pursuant to this Purchase Contract is an arm’s-length commercial transaction between the 
District and the Underwriter, and the Underwriter has financial and other interests that differ from 
those of the District, (ii) in connection with such transaction, the Underwriter is acting solely as a 
principal and not as an agent, fiduciary of or financial advisor to the District, (iii) the Underwriter has 
not assumed a financial advisory or a fiduciary responsibility in favor of the District with respect to (x) 
the offering of the Bonds or the process leading thereto (whether or not the Underwriter has advised or 
is currently advising the District on other matters) or (y) any other obligation to the District except the 
obligations expressly set forth in this Purchase Contract, and (iv) the District has consulted with its 
own legal, accounting, tax, financial, and other professional advisors to the extent it has deemed 
appropriate in connection with the offering of the Bonds.  The District acknowledges that it previously 
received from the Underwriter its letter regarding Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) 
Rule G-17 Disclosure and that it has provided the Underwriter with an acknowledgement of such letter. 

1. Purchase and Sale of the Bonds.  Upon the terms and conditions and in reliance upon 
the representations, warranties and agreements herein set forth, the Underwriter hereby agrees to 
purchase from the District for reoffering to the public, and the District hereby agrees to sell to the 
Underwriter for such purpose, all (but not less than all) of $__________ aggregate principal amount 
of the District’s Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds shall 
be dated the date of delivery thereof (the “Date of Delivery”), shall bear interest from such date, 



 

2 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

payable semiannually on each February 1 and August 1, commencing February 1, 2018, and shall be 
paid at maturity as shown in Exhibit A hereto.  The final maturity dates, interest rates, yields (or yields 
to redemption, as applicable) and redemption provisions of the Bonds are shown in Exhibit A hereto, 
which exhibit is incorporated by reference herein.     

The Underwriter shall purchase the Bonds at a price of $______________ (consisting of the 
principal amount of the Bonds of $_______________, plus net original issue premium of 
$_______________, less Underwriter’s discount of $_______________). 

2. The Bonds.  The Bonds shall be dated the Date of Delivery.  The Bonds shall mature 
on the dates and in the years shown on Exhibit A hereto, shall otherwise be as described in the Official 
Statement (as defined herein), and shall be issued and secured pursuant to the provisions of the 
resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees of the District on September 12, 2017 (the “Resolution”), 
and Government Code Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5 (the “Act”). 

The Bonds shall be executed and delivered under and in accordance with the provisions of this 
Purchase Contract and the Resolution.  The Bonds shall bear CUSIP numbers, and shall be in fully 
registered book-entry form, registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (“DTC”).  The Bonds shall initially be in authorized denominations 
of Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000) principal amount, or any integral multiple thereof.   

3. Use of Documents.  The District hereby authorizes the Underwriter to use, in 
connection with the offer and sale of the Bonds, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate (as defined 
herein), this Purchase Contract, the Preliminary Official Statement (as defined herein), the Official 
Statement, the Resolution and all information contained herein and therein and all of the documents, 
certificates or statements furnished by the District to the Underwriter in connection with the 
transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract. 

4. Establishment of Issue Price.  The Underwriter agrees to assist the District in 
establishing the issue price of the Bonds and shall execute and deliver to the District at Closing an 
“issue price” or similar certificate, together with the supporting pricing wires or equivalent 
communications, substantially in the form attached hereto as Exhibit B, with such modifications as 
may be appropriate or necessary, in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, the District and Bond 
Counsel, to accurately reflect, as applicable, the sales price or prices or the initial offering price or 
prices to the public of the Bonds.  All actions to be taken by the District under this section to establish 
the issue price of the Bonds may be taken on behalf of the District by the District’s financial advisor 
identified herein and any notice or report to be provided to the District may be provided to the District’s 
financial advisor. 

(b) [Except as otherwise set forth in Schedule I attached hereto,] the District will 
treat the first price at which 10% of each maturity of the Bonds (the “10% test”) is sold to the public 
as the issue price of that maturity (if different interest rates apply within a maturity, each separate 
CUSIP number within that maturity will be subject to the 10% test).  At or promptly after the execution 
of this Purchase Contract, the Underwriter shall report to the District the price or prices at which it has 
sold to the public each maturity of Bonds.  If at that time the 10% test has not been satisfied as to any 
maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter agrees to promptly report to the District the prices at which it 
sells the unsold Bonds of that maturity to the public.  That reporting obligation shall continue, whether 
or not the Closing Date has occurred, until the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that 
maturity or until all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public.] 



 

3 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(c) [TO BE INCLUDED ONLY IF THE UNDERWRITER AGREES TO APPLY 
THE HOLD-THE-OFFERING PRICE RULE] The Underwriter confirms that it has offered the Bonds 
to the public on or before the date of this Purchase Contract at the offering price or prices (the “initial 
offering price”), or at the corresponding yield or yields, set forth in Schedule I attached hereto, except 
as otherwise set forth therein.  Schedule I also sets forth, as of the date of this Purchase Contract, the 
maturities, if any, of the Bonds for which the 10% test has not been satisfied and for which the District 
and the Underwriter agree that the restrictions set forth in the next sentence shall apply, which will 
allow the District to treat the initial offering price to the public of each such maturity as of the sale date 
as the issue price of that maturity (the “hold-the-offering-price rule”).  So long as the hold-the-offering-
price rule remains applicable to any maturity of the Bonds, the Underwriter will neither offer nor sell 
unsold Bonds of that maturity to any person at a price that is higher than the initial offering price to 
the public during the period starting on the sale date and ending on the earlier of the following: 

(1) the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date; or 

(2) the date on which the Underwriter has sold at least 10% of that maturity 
of the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public.   

The Underwriter shall promptly advise the District when it has sold 10% of that maturity of 
the Bonds to the public at a price that is no higher than the initial offering price to the public, if that 
occurs prior to the close of the fifth (5th) business day after the sale date. 

(d) The Underwriter confirms that any selling group agreement and any retail 
distribution agreement relating to the initial sale of the Bonds to the public, together with the related 
pricing wires, contains or will contain language obligating each dealer who is a member of the selling 
group and each broker-dealer that is a party to such retail distribution agreement, as applicable, to (1) 
report the prices at which it sells to the public the unsold Bonds of each maturity allotted to it until it 
is notified by the Underwriter that either the 10% test has been satisfied as to the Bonds of that maturity 
or all Bonds of that maturity have been sold to the public and (2) comply with the hold-the-offering-
price rule, if applicable, in each case if and for so long as directed by the Underwriter.  The District 
acknowledges that, in making the representation set forth in this subsection, the Underwriter will rely 
on (i) in the event a selling group has been created in connection with the initial sale of the Bonds to 
the public, the agreement of each dealer who is a member of the selling group to comply with the hold-
the-offering-price rule, if applicable, as set forth in a selling group agreement and the related pricing 
wires, and (ii) in the event that a retail distribution agreement was employed in connection with the 
initial sale of the Bonds to the public, the agreement of each broker-dealer that is a party to such 
agreement to comply with the hold-the-offering-price rule, if applicable, as set forth in the retail 
distribution agreement and the related pricing wires.  The District further acknowledges that the 
Underwriter shall not be liable for the failure of any dealer who is a member of a selling group, or of 
any broker-dealer that is a party to a retail distribution agreement, to comply with its corresponding 
agreement regarding the hold-the-offering-price rule as applicable to the Bonds. 

(e) The Underwriter acknowledges that sales of any Bonds to any person that is a 
related party to the Underwriter shall not constitute sales to the public for purposes of this section.  
Further, for purposes of this section: 

(1)  “public” means any person other than an underwriter or a related party,  



 

4 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(2)  “underwriter” means (A) any person that agrees pursuant to a written 
contract with the District (or with the lead underwriter to form an underwriting syndicate) to 
participate in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public and (B) any person that agrees pursuant 
to a written contract directly or indirectly with a person described in clause (A) to participate 
in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public (including a member of a selling group or a party 
to a retail distribution agreement participating in the initial sale of the Bonds to the public),  

(3)  a purchaser of any of the Bonds is a “related party” to an underwriter 
if the underwriter and the purchaser are subject, directly or indirectly, to (i) at least 50% 
common ownership of the voting power or the total value of their stock, if both entities are 
corporations (including direct ownership by one corporation of another), (ii) more than 50% 
common ownership of their capital interests or profits interests, if both entities are partnerships 
(including direct ownership by one partnership of another), or (iii) more than 50% common 
ownership of the value of the outstanding stock of the corporation or the capital interests or 
profit interests of the partnership, as applicable, if one entity is a corporation and the other 
entity is a partnership (including direct ownership of the applicable stock or interests by one 
entity of the other), and 

(4) “sale date” means the date of execution of this Purchase Contract by all parties. 

5. Review of Official Statement.  The Underwriter hereby represents that it has received 
and reviewed the Preliminary Official Statement with respect to the Bonds dated ________  __, 2017 
(the “Preliminary Official Statement”).  The District represents that it has duly authorized and prepared 
the Preliminary Official Statement for use by the Underwriter in connection with the sale of the Bonds, 
and that it has deemed the Preliminary Official Statement to be final as of its date, except for either 
revision or addition of the offering price(s), interest rate(s), yield(s) to maturity, selling compensation, 
aggregate principal amount, principal amount per maturity, delivery date, redemption provisions, 
rating(s) and other terms of the Bonds which depend upon the foregoing as provided in and pursuant 
to Rule l5c2-12 of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) promulgated under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”).   

The Underwriter agrees that prior to the time the Official Statement relating to the Bonds is 
available, it will send to any potential purchaser of the Bonds, upon the request of such potential 
purchaser, a copy of the most recent Preliminary Official Statement.  Such Preliminary Official 
Statement shall be sent by first class mail or electronic distribution (or other equally prompt means) 
not later than the first business day following the date upon which each such request is received. 

The Underwriter agrees to file the Official Statement with the MSRB through its Electronic 
Municipal Market Access system within one business day after receipt thereof from the District, but in 
no event later than the Closing. 

6. Closing.  At 9:00 A.M., Pacific Time, on __________ __, 2017, or at such other time 
or on such other date as shall have been mutually agreed upon by the District and the Underwriter (the 
“Closing”), the District will deliver or cause to be delivered to the Underwriter, through the facilities 
of DTC in New York, New York, or at such other place as the District and the Underwriter may 
mutually agree upon, the Bonds in fully registered book-entry form, duly executed and registered in 
the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, and at the offices of Bond Counsel in San Francisco, 
California, the other documents hereinafter mentioned; and the Underwriter will accept such delivery 



 

5 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

and pay the purchase price of the Bonds identified in Section 1 above in immediately available funds 
by wire transfer to the account or accounts designated by the District. 

7. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the District.  The District hereby 
represents, warrants and agrees with the Underwriter that: 

(a) Due Organization.  The District is a school district, duly organized and validly 
existing under the laws of the State of California (the “State”), with the power to issue the 
Bonds pursuant to the Act. 

(b) Due Authorization.  (i) At or prior to the Closing, the District will have taken 
all action required to be taken by it to authorize the issuance and delivery of the Bonds; (ii) the 
District has full legal right, power and authority to enter into this Purchase Contract and the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, to adopt the Resolution, to perform its obligations under 
each such document or instrument, to approve the Official Statement, and to carry out and 
effectuate the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure 
Certificate, and the Resolution; (iii) the execution and delivery or adoption of, and the 
performance by the District of the obligations contained in the Bonds, the Resolution, the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate and this Purchase Contract have been duly authorized and 
such authorization shall be in full force and effect at the time of the Closing; (iv) this Purchase 
Contract, assuming the due authorization, execution and delivery by the other parties hereto, 
and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, constitute valid and legally binding obligations of 
the District, except as enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, 
reorganization, moratorium or other laws relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of 
creditors’ rights and except as their enforcement may be subject to the application of equitable 
principles and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases if equitable remedies are 
sought and by the limitations on legal remedies against public agencies in the State; and (v) the 
District has duly authorized the consummation by it of all transactions contemplated by this 
Purchase Contract and the Official Statement. 

(c) Consents.  No consent, approval, authorization, order, filing, registration, 
qualification, election or referendum, of or by any court or governmental agency or public body 
whatsoever is required in connection with the issuance, delivery or sale of the Bonds, the 
execution and delivery of this Purchase Contract and the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, the 
adoption of the Resolution, or the consummation of the other transactions effected or 
contemplated herein or hereby, which have not been taken or obtained, except for such actions 
as may be necessary to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the Blue Sky or other 
securities laws and regulations of such states and jurisdictions of the United States as the 
Underwriter may reasonably request, or which have not been taken or obtained; provided, 
however, that the District shall not be required to subject itself to service of process in any 
jurisdiction in which it is not so subject as of the date hereof. 

(d) Internal Revenue Code.  The District has complied with the requirements of 
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, with respect to the Bonds. 

(e) No Conflicts.  To the best knowledge of the District, the issuance of the Bonds, 
and the execution, delivery and performance of this Purchase Contract, the Continuing 
Disclosure Certificate, the Resolution and the Bonds, and the compliance with the provisions 
hereof and thereof do not conflict with or constitute on the part of the District a violation of or 



 

6 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

default under the State Constitution or any existing law, charter, ordinance, regulation, decree, 
order or resolution and do not conflict with or result in a violation or breach of, or constitute a 
default under, any agreement, indenture, mortgage, lease or other instrument to which the 
District is a party or by which it is bound or to which it is subject. 

(f) Litigation.  As of the time of acceptance hereof, no action, suit, proceeding, 
hearing or investigation is pending or, to the best knowledge of the District, threatened against 
the District:  (i) in any way affecting the existence of the District or in any way challenging the 
respective powers of the several offices of the District or of the titles of the officials of the 
District to such offices; or (ii) seeking to restrain or enjoin the sale, issuance or delivery of any 
of the Bonds, the application of the proceeds of the sale of the Bonds, the levy or collection of 
ad valorem property taxes contemplated by the Resolution, and the application thereof to pay 
the principal of and interest on the Bonds, or in any way contesting or affecting the validity or 
enforceability of the Bonds, this Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or 
the Resolution or the pledge of funds on deposit in the Debt Service Fund for the Bonds, or 
contesting the powers of the District or its authority with respect to the Bonds, the Resolution, 
this Purchase Contract, or the Continuing Disclosure Certificate; or (iii) in which a final 
adverse decision could (a) materially adversely affect the operations or financial condition of 
the District or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Purchase Contract, 
the Continuing Disclosure Certificate or the Resolution, (b) declare this Purchase Contract to 
be invalid or unenforceable in whole or in material part, or (c) adversely affect the exclusion 
of the interest paid on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes and the 
exemption of such interest from State personal income taxation. 

(g) No Other Debt.  Between the date hereof and the Closing, without the prior 
written consent of the Underwriter, neither the District, nor any other person on behalf of the 
District, will have issued in the name and on behalf of the District any bonds, notes or other 
obligations for borrowed money except for such borrowings as may be described in or 
contemplated by the Official Statement. 

(h) Interim Financial Report.  The District has not received a qualified or negative 
certification in its most recent interim report pursuant to Education Code Section 42130 et seq. 

(i) Certificates.  Any certificates signed by any officer of the District and delivered 
to the Underwriter shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the District to the 
Underwriter, but not by the person signing the same, as to the statements made therein. 

(j) Continuing Disclosure.  In accordance with the requirements of the Rule, at or 
prior to the Closing, the District shall have duly authorized, executed and delivered a 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”) on behalf of each 
obligated person for which financial and/or operating data is presented in the Official 
Statement.  The Continuing Disclosure Certificate shall be substantially in the form attached 
to the Official Statement as Appendix C.  Except as otherwise disclosed in the Official 
Statement, the District has not, within the past five years, failed to comply in a material respect 
with any of its previous undertakings pursuant to the Rule to provide annual reports or notice 
of certain listed events. 

(k) Official Statement Accurate and Complete.  The Preliminary Official 
Statement, as of the date thereof, did not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit 



 

7 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements 
therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  As of 
the date hereof and on the date of Closing, the Official Statement (including any supplements 
or amendments pursuant to Section 8(f) of this Purchase Contract) will not contain any untrue 
statement of a material fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or 
necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they 
were made, not misleading.  The District makes no representation or warranty as to the 
information contained in or omitted from the Preliminary Official Statement or the Official 
Statement in reliance upon and in conformity with information furnished in writing to the 
District by or on behalf of the Underwriter specifically for inclusion therein. 

(l) Levy of Tax.  The District hereby agrees to take any and all actions as may be 
required by Sonoma County (the “County”) or otherwise necessary in order to arrange for the 
levy and collection of ad valorem property taxes and the payment of the Bonds, and the deposit 
and investment of Bond proceeds.  In particular, the District hereby agrees to provide to the 
Auditor-Controller of the County a copy of the Resolution, a copy of Exhibit A hereto, and the 
full debt service schedule for the Bonds, in accordance with Education Code Section 15140(c) 
and policies and procedures of the County. 

(m) No Material Adverse Change.  The financial statements of, and other financial 
information regarding the District, in the Official Statement fairly present the financial position 
and results of the District as of the dates and for the periods therein set forth.  Prior to the 
Closing, there will be no adverse change of a material nature in such financial position, results 
of operations or condition, financial or otherwise, of the District.   

8. Covenants of the District.  The District covenants and agrees with the Underwriter 
that: 

(a) Securities Laws.  The District will furnish such information, execute such 
instruments, and take such other action in cooperation with the Underwriter if and as the 
Underwriter may reasonably request in order to qualify the Bonds for offer and sale under the 
Blue Sky or other securities laws and regulations of such states and jurisdictions, provided, 
however, that the District shall not be required to consent to service of process in any 
jurisdiction in which it is not so subject as of the date hereof; 

(b) Application of Proceeds.  The District will apply the proceeds from the sale of 
the Bonds for the purposes specified in the Resolution; 

(c) Official Statement.  The District hereby agrees to deliver or cause to be 
delivered to the Underwriter, not later than the seventh (7th) business day following the date 
this Purchase Contract is signed, copies of a final Official Statement substantially in the form 
of the Preliminary Official Statement, with only such changes therein as shall have been 
accepted by the Underwriter and the District (such Official Statement with such changes, if 
any, and including the cover page, inside cover pages and all appendices, exhibits, maps, 
reports and statements included therein or attached thereto being herein called the “Official 
Statement”) in such quantities as may be requested by the Underwriter not later than seven (7) 
business days following the date this Purchase Contract is signed, in order to permit the 
Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and with the rules of the MSRB.  The 
District hereby authorizes the Underwriter to use and distribute the Official Statement in 



 

8 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

connection with the offering and sale of the Bonds. The District shall prepare the Official 
Statement, including any amendments thereto, in word-searchable PDF format as described in 
the MSRB’s Rule G-32 and shall provide the electronic copy of the word-searchable PDF 
format of the Official Statement to the Underwriter no later than one (1) business day prior to 
the Closing to enable the Underwriter to comply with MSRB Rule G-32; 

(d) Subsequent Events.  The District hereby agrees to notify the Underwriter of 
any event or occurrence that may affect the accuracy or completeness of any information set 
forth in the Official Statement relating to the District, until the date which is ninety (90) days 
following the Closing; 

(e) References.  References herein to the Preliminary Official Statement and the 
Official Statement include the cover, inside front cover pages, and all appendices, exhibits, 
maps, reports and statements included therein or attached thereto; and 

(f) Amendments to Official Statement.  During the period ending on the 25th day 
after the End of the Underwriting Period (as defined herein) (or such other period as may be 
agreed to by the District and the Underwriter), the District (i) shall not supplement or amend 
the Official Statement or cause the Official Statement to be supplemented or amended without 
the prior written consent of the Underwriter and (ii) shall notify the Underwriter promptly if 
any event shall occur, or information comes to the attention of the District, that is reasonably 
likely to cause the Official Statement (whether or not previously supplemented or amended) to 
contain any untrue statement of a material fact or to omit to state a material fact required to be 
stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances 
under which they were made, not misleading.  If, in the opinion of the Underwriter, such event 
requires the preparation and distribution of a supplement or amendment to the Official 
Statement, the District, at its own expense, shall prepare and furnish to the Underwriter such 
number of copies of the supplement or amendment to the Official Statement, in form and 
substance mutually agreed upon by the District and the Underwriter, as the Underwriter may 
reasonably request.  If the Official Statement is supplemented or amended, the Official 
Statement as so supplemented or amended will not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state any material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the 
statements therein, in light of the circumstances under which made, not misleading.  If such 
notification shall be given subsequent to the Closing, the District also shall furnish, or cause to 
be furnished, at its own expense, such additional legal opinions, certificates, instruments and 
other documents as the Underwriter may reasonably deem necessary to evidence the truth and 
accuracy of any such supplement or amendment to the Official Statement. 

For purposes of this Purchase Contract, the “End of the Underwriting Period” is used 
as defined in the Rule and shall occur on the later of (A) the date of Closing or (B) when the 
Underwriter no longer retains an unsold balance of the Bonds; unless otherwise advised in 
writing by the Underwriter on or prior to the Closing, or otherwise agreed to by the District 
and the Underwriter, the District may assume that the End of the Underwriting Period is the 
Closing. 

9. Representations, Warranties and Agreements of the Underwriter.  The 
Underwriter represents to and agrees with the District that, as of the date hereof and as of the Closing: 



 

9 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(a) The Underwriter is duly authorized to execute this Purchase Contract and to 
take any action under this Purchase Contract required to be taken by it. 

(b) The Underwriter is in compliance with MSRB Rule G-37 with respect to the 
District, and is not prohibited thereby from acting as the underwriter with respect to securities 
of the District. 

(c) The Underwriter has, and has had, no financial advisory relationship as that 
term is defined in Government Code Section 53590(c) or MSRB Rule G-23 with the District 
with respect to the Bonds, and no investment firm controlling, controlled by or under common 
control with the Underwriter has or has had any such financial advisory relationship. 

10. Conditions to Closing.  The Underwriter has entered into this Purchase Contract in 
reliance upon the representations and warranties of the District contained herein and the performance 
by the District of its obligations hereunder, both as of the date hereof and as of the date of Closing.  
The Underwriter’s obligations under this Purchase Contract are, and shall be subject at the option of 
the Underwriter, to the following further conditions at the Closing: 

(a) Representations True.  The representations and warranties of the District 
contained herein shall be true, complete and correct in all material respects at the date hereof 
and at and as of the Closing, as if made at and as of the Closing, and the statements made in all 
certificates and other documents delivered to the Underwriter at Closing pursuant hereto shall 
be true, complete and correct in all material respects on the date of the Closing; and the District 
shall be in compliance with each of the agreements made by it in this Purchase Contract; 

(b) Obligations Performed.  At the time of the Closing, (i) the Official Statement, 
this Purchase Contract, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and the Resolution shall be in 
full force and effect and shall not have been amended, modified or supplemented except as 
may have been agreed to in writing by the Underwriter; (ii) all actions under the Act which, in 
the opinion of Bond Counsel, shall be necessary in connection with the transactions 
contemplated hereby, shall have been duly taken and shall be in full force and effect; and 
(iii) the District shall perform or have performed all of their obligations required under or 
specified in the Resolution, this Purchase Contract, the  Continuing Disclosure Certificate or 
the Official Statement to be performed at or prior to the Closing; 

(c) Adverse Rulings.  No decision, ruling or finding shall have been entered by 
any court or governmental authority since the date of this Purchase Contract (and not reversed 
on appeal or otherwise set aside), or to the best knowledge of the District, be pending or 
threatened which has any of the effects described in Section 7(f) hereof or contesting in any 
way the completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement; 

(d) Marketability.  Between the date hereof and the Closing, the market price or 
marketability or the ability of the Underwriter to enforce contracts for the sale of the Bonds at 
the initial offering prices of the Bonds set forth in the Official Statement shall not have been 
materially adversely affected in the reasonable judgment of the Underwriter (evidenced by a 
written notice to the District terminating the obligation of the Underwriter to accept delivery 
of and pay for the Bonds) by reason of any of the following: 



 

10 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(1) legislation enacted by the Congress of the United States, or passed by 
either House of Congress, or favorably reported for passage to either House of 
Congress by any Committee of such House to which such legislation has been referred 
for consideration, or introduced in the Congress or recommended for passage by the 
President of the United States, or a decision rendered by a court established under 
Article III of the Constitution of the United States or by the United States Tax Court, 
with the purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of changing, directly or indirectly, the 
federal income tax consequences of interest on the Bonds or of obligations of the 
general character of the Bonds in the hands of the holders thereof, or an order, ruling, 
regulation (final, temporary or proposed) or official statement issued or made: 

(i) by or on behalf of the United States Treasury 
Department, or by or on behalf of the Internal Revenue Service, with the 
purpose or effect, directly or indirectly, of causing the inclusion in gross 
income for purposes of federal income taxation of the interest received by the 
owners of the Bonds; or 

(ii) by or on behalf of the SEC, or any other governmental 
agency having jurisdiction over the subject matter thereof, to the effect that the 
Bonds, or obligations of the general character of the Bonds, including any and 
all underlying arrangements, are not exempt from registration under the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended; 

 (2) legislation enacted by the State legislature or a decision rendered by a 
Court of the State, or a ruling, order, or regulation (final or temporary) made by State 
authority, which would have the effect of changing, directly or indirectly, the State tax 
consequences of interest on obligations of the general character of the Bonds in the 
hands of the holders thereof; 

(3) the formal declaration of war by Congress or a new major engagement 
in or escalation of military hostilities by order of the President of the United States, or 
the occurrence of any other declared national or international emergency, calamity or 
crisis that interrupts or causes discord to the operation of the financial markets or 
otherwise in the United States or elsewhere;  

 (4) the declaration of a general banking moratorium by federal, New York 
or State authorities, or the general suspension of trading on any national securities 
exchange; 

(5) the imposition by the New York Stock Exchange, other national 
securities exchange, or any governmental authority, of any material restrictions not 
now in force with respect to the Bonds, or obligations of the general character of the 
Bonds, or securities generally, or the material increase of any such restrictions now in 
force, including those relating to the extension of credit by, or the charge to the net 
capital requirements of, the Underwriter; 

(6) an order, decree or injunction of any court of competent jurisdiction, or 
order, filing, regulation or official statement by the SEC, or any other governmental 
agency having jurisdiction over the subject matter thereof, issued or made to the effect 



 

11 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

that the issuance, offering or sale of obligations of the general character of the Bonds, 
or the issuance, offering or sale of the Bonds, as contemplated hereby or by the Official 
Statement, is or would be in violation of the federal securities laws, as amended and 
then in effect; 

(7) there shall have occurred or any notice shall have been given of any 
intended downgrading, suspension, withdrawal, or negative change in credit watch 
status by any national rating service to the underlying rating of the outstanding 
indebtedness of the District; 

(8) any event occurring, or information becoming known which, in the 
reasonable judgment of the Underwriter, makes untrue in any material adverse respect 
any statement or information contained in the Official Statement, or has the effect that 
the Official Statement contains any untrue statement of a material fact or omits to state 
a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements made 
therein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading; 

(9) the occurrence, since the date hereof, of any materially adverse change 
in the affairs or financial condition of the District; 

(10) any amendment shall have been made to the federal or State 
Constitution or action by any federal or State court, legislative body, regulatory body, 
or other authority materially adversely affecting the tax status of the District, its 
property, income securities (or interest thereon) or the validity or enforceability of the 
levy of taxes to pay principal of, or interest on the Bonds; 

(11) the purchase of and payment for the Bonds by the Underwriter, or the 
resale of the Bonds by the Underwriter, on the terms and conditions herein provided 
shall be prohibited by any applicable law, governmental authority, board, agency or 
commission; or 

(12) the suspension by the SEC of trading in the outstanding securities of 
the District. 

 (e) Delivery of Documents.  At or prior to the date of the Closing, the Underwriter 
shall receive copies of the following documents satisfactory in form and substance to the 
Underwriter: 

(1) Opinion of Bond Counsel.  An approving opinion of Bond Counsel, as 
to the validity and tax-exempt status of the Bonds, dated the date of the Closing, and 
addressed to the District in substantially the form set forth in the Preliminary Official 
Statement and Official Statement as Appendix A; 

(2) Reliance Letter.  A reliance letter from Bond Counsel to the effect that 
the Underwriter can rely upon the opinion described in Section 10(e)(1) above; 



 

12 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(3) Supplemental Opinion of Bond Counsel.  A supplemental opinion of 
Bond Counsel addressed to the District, and the Underwriter, in form and substance 
acceptable to the Underwriter, dated as of the date of Closing, substantially to the 
following effect: 

(i) the description of the Bonds and the security for the Bonds and 
statements in the Official Statement on the cover page thereof and under the 
captions “INTRODUCTION,” “THE BONDS,” “LEGAL MATTERS - 
Continuing Disclosure – Current Undertaking” and “TAX MATTERS,” to the 
extent they purport to summarize certain provisions of the Bonds, the 
Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, and the form and content of 
Bond Counsel’s approving opinion regarding the treatment of interest on the 
Bonds under State or federal law, fairly and accurately summarize the matters 
purported to be summarized therein; provided that Bond Counsel need not 
express any opinion with respect to (i) any information contained in 
Appendices B, D, E, or F to the Official Statement, (ii) financial or statistical 
data or forecasts, numbers, charts, estimates, projections, assumptions or 
expressions of opinion contained in the Official Statement, including in any of 
the appendices thereto, (iii) information with respect to DTC or its book-entry 
only system included therein, (iv) any CUSIP numbers or information relating 
thereto, (v) the District’s compliance with its obligations to file annual reports 
or provide notice of the events described in the Rule, (vi) any information with 
respect to the Underwriter or underwriting matters with respect to the Bonds, 
including but not limited to information under the caption 
“MISCELLANEOUS – Underwriting,” and (vii) any information with respect 
to the ratings on the Bonds and the rating agency referenced therein, including 
but not limited to information under the caption “MISCELLANEOUS – 
Ratings”; 

(ii) the Continuing Disclosure Certificate and this Purchase 
Contract have each been duly authorized, executed and delivered by the District 
and, assuming due authorization, execution and delivery by all the other parties 
thereto, constitute legal, valid and binding agreements of the District 
enforceable in accordance with their respective terms, except as enforcement 
thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium 
or other laws relating to or affecting generally the enforcement of creditors’ 
rights and except as such enforcement may be subject to the application of 
equitable principles and the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases 
if equitable remedies are sought and by the limitations on legal remedies 
against public agencies in the State; and 

(iii) the Bonds are exempt from registration pursuant to the 
Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and the Resolution is exempt from 
qualification as an indenture pursuant to the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as 
amended; 

(4) Disclosure Counsel Letter.  A letter of Stradling Yocca Carlson & 
Rauth, dated the date of Closing and addressed to the District, substantially to the effect 
that based on such counsel’s participation in conferences with representatives of the 



 

13 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

Underwriter, representatives of California Financial Services, as the financial advisor 
to the District (the “Financial Advisor”), the District and others, during which 
conferences the contents of the Official Statement and related matters were discussed, 
and in reliance thereon and on the records, documents, certificates and opinions 
described therein, such counsel advises the District, as a matter of fact and not opinion, 
that during the course of its engagement as Disclosure Counsel no information came 
to the attention of such counsel’s attorneys rendering legal services in connection with 
such representation which caused such counsel to believe that the Official Statement 
as of its date contained any untrue statement of a material fact or omitted to state any 
material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements therein, 
in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading (provided 
that Bond Counsel need not express any opinion with respect to (i) any information 
contained in Appendices B, D, E, or F to the Official Statement, (ii) financial or 
statistical data or forecasts, numbers, charts, estimates, projections, assumptions or 
expressions of opinion contained in the Official Statement, including in any of the 
appendices thereto, (iii) information with respect to DTC or its book-entry only system 
included therein, (iv) any CUSIP numbers or information relating thereto, (v) any 
information with respect to the Underwriter or underwriting matters with respect to the 
Bonds, including but not limited to information under the caption 
“MISCELLANEOUS – Underwriting,” and (vi) any information with respect to the 
ratings on the Bonds and the rating agency referenced therein, including but not limited 
to information under the caption “MISCELLANEOUS – Ratings”); 

(5) Certificate of the District.  A certificate signed by appropriate officials 
of the District to the effect that (i) such officials are authorized to execute this Purchase 
Contract, (ii) the representations, agreements and warranties of the District herein are 
true and correct in all material respects as of the date of Closing, (iii) the District has 
complied with all the terms of the Resolution, the Continuing Disclosure Certificate 
and this Purchase Contract to be complied with by the District prior to or concurrently 
with the Closing, and, as to the District, such documents are in full force and effect, 
(iv) such District officials have reviewed the Official Statement and on such basis 
certify that the Official Statement does not contain any untrue statement of a material 
fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make 
the statements therein, in the light of the circumstances under which they were made, 
not misleading, (v) the Bonds being delivered on the date of the Closing to the 
Underwriter under this Purchase Contract substantially conform to the descriptions 
thereof contained in the Resolution, (vi) no event concerning the District has occurred 
since the date of the Official Statement which has not been disclosed therein or in any 
supplement thereto, but should be disclosed in order to make the statements in the 
Official Statement in the light of the circumstances under which they were made not 
misleading, and (vii) there is no action, suit, proceeding, inquiry or investigation, at 
law or in equity, before or by any court or public body, pending or, to the best 
knowledge of such officials, threatened against the District, contesting in any way the 
completeness or accuracy of the Official Statement, the issuance of the Bonds by the 
District or the due adoption of the Resolution; 

(6) Arbitrage.  A nonarbitrage and tax certificate of the District in form 
satisfactory to Bond Counsel, with respect to the Bonds; 



 

14 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(7) Rating.  Evidence satisfactory to the Underwriter that (A) the Bonds 
have been rated “___” by Moody’s Investors Service and “__” by S&P Global Ratings, 
a division of Standard & Poor’s Financial Services LLC, and (B) any such ratings have 
not been revoked or downgraded; 

(8) District Resolution.  A certificate, together with fully executed copies 
of the Resolution, of the Secretary to or Clerk of the Board of Trustees of the District 
to the effect that: 

(i) such copies are true and correct copies of the Resolution; and 

(ii) that the Resolution was duly adopted and has not been 
modified, amended, rescinded or revoked and is in full force and effect on the 
date of the Closing; 

(9) Official Statement.  A certificate of the appropriate official of the 
District evidencing his or her determinations respecting the Preliminary Official 
Statement in accordance with the Rule; 

(10) Certificate of the Paying Agent.  A certificate of U.S. Bank National 
Association, as the paying agent for the Bonds (the “Paying Agent”), signed by a duly 
authorized officer thereof, and in form and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter, 
substantially to the effect that no litigation is pending or, to the best of the Paying 
Agent’s knowledge, threatened (either in state or federal courts) (i) seeking to restrain 
or enjoin the delivery by the Paying Agent of any of the Bonds, or (ii) in any way 
contesting or affecting any authority of the Paying Agent for the delivery of the Bonds 
or the validity or enforceability of the Bonds or any agreement with the Paying Agent; 

(11) Continuing Disclosure Certificate.  An executed copy of the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate, substantially in the form presented in the Official 
Statement as Appendix C thereto; 

(12) Underwriter’s Counsel Opinion.  An opinion of Kutak Rock LLP, 
Denver, Colorado, as counsel to the Underwriter, dated as of the Closing and in a form 
and substance satisfactory to the Underwriter; and  

(13) Other Documents.  Such additional legal opinions, certificates, 
proceedings, instruments and other documents as Bond Counsel or the Underwriter 
may reasonably request to evidence compliance (i) by the District with legal 
requirements, (ii) the truth and accuracy, as of the time of Closing, of the 
representations of the District herein contained and of the Official Statement, and 
(iii) the due performance or satisfaction by the District at or prior to such time of all 
agreements then to be performed and all conditions then to be satisfied by the District. 

(f) Termination.  Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, if for 
any reason whatsoever the Bonds shall not have been delivered by the District to the 
Underwriter as provided in Section 6 herein, then the obligation to purchase Bonds hereunder 
shall terminate and be of no further force or effect except with respect to the obligations of the 
District and the Underwriter under Sections 12(c) and 14 hereof. 



 

15 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

If the District is unable to satisfy the conditions to the Underwriter’s obligations contained in 
this Purchase Contract or if the Underwriter’s obligations shall be terminated for any reason permitted 
by this Purchase Contract, this Purchase Contract may be cancelled by the Underwriter at, or at any 
time prior to, the time of Closing.  Notice of such cancellation shall be given to the District in writing, 
or by telephone or telegraph, confirmed in writing.  Notwithstanding any provision herein to the 
contrary, the performance of any and all obligations of the District hereunder and the performance of 
any and all conditions contained herein for the benefit of the Underwriter may be waived by the 
Underwriter in writing at its sole discretion. 

11. Conditions to Obligations of the District.  The performance by the District of its 
obligations is conditioned upon (i) the performance by the Underwriter of its obligations hereunder; 
and (ii) receipt by the District and the Underwriter of opinions and certificates being delivered at the 
Closing by persons and entities other than the District. 

12. Expenses.  (a) To the extent that the transactions contemplated by this Purchase 
Contract are consummated, the District shall pay (or cause to be paid), and the Underwriter shall be 
under no obligation to pay, costs of issuance of the Bonds from proceeds thereof, including but not 
limited to the following (i) the cost of the preparation and reproduction of the Resolution; (ii) the fees 
and disbursements of Bond Counsel, Disclosure Counsel and the Financial Advisor; (iii) the cost of 
the preparation, printing and delivery of the Bonds; (iv) the fees for the Bond rating; (v) the cost of the 
printing and distribution of the Preliminary Official Statement and the Official Statement; (vi) the 
initial fees of the Paying Agent and Fiscal Agent (as defined herein); (vii) expenses for meals, travel, 
lodging, and subsistence related to rating agency visits and other meetings connected to the 
authorization, sale, issuance and distribution of the Bonds; and (viii) all other fees and expenses 
incident to the issuance and sale of the Bonds.  The District hereby directs the Underwriter to wire at 
the Closing a portion of the purchase price of the Bonds not-to-exceed $_____________ to The Bank 
of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., as fiscal agent to the District (the “Fiscal Agent”), for the 
payment of costs of issuance of the Bonds.  In the event that following payment of the expenses set 
forth above, there is any portion remaining, such remaining amount shall be deposited into the Building 
Fund (as defined in the Resolution) for the Bonds. 

(b) Notwithstanding any of the foregoing, the Underwriter shall pay all out-of-
pocket expenses of the Underwriter, including the California Debt and Investment Advisory 
Commission fee, fees and expenses of counsel to the Underwriter, and other expenses (except those 
expressly provided above) without limitation, except travel and related expenses in connection with 
the Bond rating. 

(c)  The District shall reimburse the Underwriter for actual expenses incurred or 
paid for by the Underwriter on behalf of the District in connection with the marketing, issuance, and 
delivery of the Bonds, including, but not limited to, transportation, lodging, and meals for District 
employees and representatives; provided, however, that (i) reimbursement for such expenses shall not 
exceed an ordinary and reasonable amount for such expenses and (ii) such expenses are either (A) not 
related to the entertainment of any person and not prohibited from being reimbursed from the proceeds 
of an offering of municipal securities under the MSRB Rule G-20 or (B) to be paid from the District’s 
general fund and not from the proceeds of the Bonds or any other municipal securities.  Such 
reimbursement may be in the form of inclusion in the expense component of the Underwriter’s 
discount, or direct reimbursement as a cost of issuance. 



 

16 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

(d) Notwithstanding Section 10(f) hereof, the District hereby agrees, in the event 
the purchase and sale of the Bonds does not occur as contemplated hereunder, to reimburse the 
Underwriter for any costs described in Subsection 12(a)(viii) above that are attributable to District 
personnel. 

13. Notices.  Any notice or other communication to be given under this Purchase Contract 
(other than the acceptance hereof as specified in the first paragraph hereof) may be given by delivering 
the same in writing, if to the District, to Rincon Valley Union School District, 1000 Yulupa Avenue, 
Santa Rosa, California 95405, Attention: Deputy Superintendent, Business or if to the Underwriter, to 
Piper Jaffray & Co., 50 California Street, Suite 3100, San Francisco, California 94111, Attention: Ivory 
Li, Managing Director.  

14. Parties in Interest; Survival of Representations and Warranties.  This Purchase 
Contract, when accepted by the District in writing as heretofore specified, shall constitute the entire 
agreement between the District and the Underwriter.  This Purchase Contract is made solely for the 
benefit of the District and the Underwriter (including the successors or assigns of the Underwriter).  
No person shall acquire or have any rights hereunder or by virtue hereof.  All the representations, 
warranties and agreements of the District in this Purchase Contract shall survive regardless of (a) any 
investigation or any statement in respect thereof made by or on behalf of the Underwriter, (b) delivery 
of and payment by the Underwriter for the Bonds hereunder, and (c) any termination of this Purchase 
Contract.  

15. Execution in Counterparts.  This Purchase Contract may be executed in several 
counterparts, each of which shall be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but one 
and the same document. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

S-1 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

16. Applicable Law.  This Purchase Contract shall be interpreted, governed and enforced 
in accordance with the laws of the State applicable to contracts made and performed in such State. 

Very truly yours, 

PIPER JAFFRAY & CO., AS UNDERWRITER 
 
 
 
By:   

Authorized Officer 

 

The foregoing is hereby agreed to and accepted at _:__ p.m. Pacific Time, this __ day of 
__________, 2017: 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By:    

Deputy Superintendent, Business 
 



 

A-1 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 

 
 

EXHIBIT A 

PRINCIPAL AMOUNTS, INTEREST RATES,  
YIELDS, MATURITIES, AND REDEMPTION PROVISIONS 

 

$7,000,000 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Sonoma County, California) 
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 

$17,000,000 Serial Bonds 

Maturity 
(August 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

Interest 
Rate 

 
Yield 

    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    
    

 

__________________ 
(1)

  Yield to call at par on August 1, 20__. 

Redemption Provisions 

Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 20__ are not subject to optional 
redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates.  The Bonds maturing on or after August 1, 20__ 
are subject to optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates at the option of the District, 
from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 20__, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption, together with interest 
accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 



 

A-2 
 
DOCSSF/139217v3/200387-0003 
 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.  The Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__, are subject 
to redemption prior to maturity from mandatory sinking fund payments on August 1 of each year, on and 
after August 1, 20___, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, together with accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.  The principal amounts represented by such 
Term Bonds to be so redeemed, the dates therefor and the final principal payment date are as indicated 
in the following table: 

Redemption Date 
(August 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

  
  

    
(1)  Maturity. 

In the event that a portion of the Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__ is optionally 
redeemed prior to maturity, the remaining mandatory sinking fund payments shown above shall be 
reduced proportionately or as otherwise directed by the District, in integral multiples of $5,000 of 
principal amount, in respect of the portion of such Term Bonds optionally redeemed. 

 



 PRELIMINARY OFFICIAL STATEMENT DATED _________, 2017 

 

NEW ISSUE—FULL BOOK-ENTRY                                  RATINGS: S&P: “__” 
 Moody’s: “__” 

(See “MISCELLANEOUS – Ratings” herein) 

In the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, California (“Bond 
Counsel”), under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, and assuming the accuracy of certain 
representations and compliance with certain covenants and requirements described herein, interest (and original issue discount) 
on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of 
calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, 
interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income tax.  See “TAX MATTERS” 
herein with respect to tax consequences relating to the Bonds.  

$17,000,000* 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Sonoma County, California) 
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 

Dated:  Date of Delivery Due:  August 1, as shown herein 

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only.  It is not a summary of this issue.  Investors must 
read the entire Official Statement to obtain information essential to the making of an informed investment decision.  Capitalized 
terms used but not otherwise defined on this cover page shall have the meanings assigned to such terms herein. 

The Rincon Valley Union School District (Sonoma County, California) Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, 
Series B (the “Bonds”) were authorized at an election of the registered voters of the Rincon Valley Union School District (the 
“District”) held on June 3, 2014, at which more than fifty-five percent of the persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize 
the issuance and sale of $35,000,000 aggregate principal amount of general obligation bonds of the District.  The Bonds are being 
issued by the District to (i) finance the repair, upgrading, acquisition, construction and equipping of certain District property and 
facilities, and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the Bonds. 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable solely from ad valorem property taxes.  The Board of 
Supervisors of Sonoma County is empowered and obligated to levy ad valorem taxes, without limitation as to rate or amount, 
upon all property within the District subject to taxation thereby (except certain personal property which is taxable at limited 
rates), for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds when due. 

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only, and will be initially issued and registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
as nominee for The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York (collectively referred to herein as “DTC”).  Purchasers of 
the Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive physical certificates representing their interest in the Bonds, but will instead 
receive credit balances on the books of their respective nominees.  The Bonds will be dated as of their date of initial delivery (the 
“Date of Delivery”) and will be issued as current interest bonds, such that interest thereon will accrue from the Date of Delivery 
and be payable semiannually on August 1 and February 1 of each year, commencing February 1, 2018.  The Bonds are issuable 
in denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof. 

Payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A., as the paying agent, bond registrar and transfer agent for the Bonds (the “Paying Agent”), to DTC for subsequent 



 

 
 

disbursement to DTC Participants (as defined herein) who will remit such payments to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.  
See “THE BONDS – Book-Entry Only System” herein.   

The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund redemption as further described 
herein.*   

     

Maturity Schedule* 
(see inside front cover page) 
     

The Bonds will be offered when, as and if issued and received by the Underwriter, subject to the approval of legality 
by Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, California, Bond Counsel and Disclosure 
Counsel.  Certain legal matters will be passed upon for the Underwriter by Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado.  The Bonds, 
in book-entry form, will be available for delivery through the facilities of The Depository Trust Company in New York, New 
York on or about _______, 2017.* 

[PIPER JAFFRAY] 
Dated: _______________, 2017. 
______________________________ 
* Preliminary, subject to change. 

T
hi

s 
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
O

ff
ic

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

t a
nd

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

co
nt

ai
ne

d 
he

re
in

 a
re

 s
ub

je
ct

 to
 c

om
pl

et
io

n 
or

 a
m

en
dm

en
t. 

 T
he

se
 s

ec
ur

it
ie

s 
m

ay
 n

ot
 b

e 
so

ld
, n

or
 m

ay
 o

ff
er

s 
to

 b
uy

 th
em

 b
e 

ac
ce

pt
ed

, p
ri

or
 to

  
th

e 
ti

m
e 

th
e 

O
ff

ic
ia

l S
ta

te
m

en
t i

s 
de

li
ve

re
d 

in
 f

in
al

 f
or

m
.  

U
nd

er
 n

o 
ci

rc
um

st
an

ce
s 

sh
al

l t
hi

s 
P

re
lim

in
ar

y 
O

ff
ic

ia
l S

ta
te

m
en

t c
on

st
it

ut
e 

an
 o

ff
er

 to
 s

el
l o

r 
th

e 
so

lic
ita

ti
on

 o
f 

an
 o

ff
er

 to
 b

uy
, n

or
 s

ha
ll 

th
er

e 
 

be
 a

ny
 s

al
e 

of
, t

he
se

 s
ec

ur
it

ie
s 

in
 a

ny
 ju

ri
sd

ic
ti

on
 in

 w
hi

ch
 s

uc
h 

of
fe

r,
 s

ol
ic

it
at

io
n 

or
 s

al
e 

w
ou

ld
 b

e 
un

la
w

fu
l. 



 

______________________________ 
*   Preliminary, subject to change. 
(†) CUSIP is a registered trademark of the American Bankers Association.  CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services 
(“CGS”), managed by S&P Capital IQ on behalf of The American Bankers Association.  This data is not intended to create a 
database and does not serve in any way as a substitute for the CGS database.  CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent 
company not affiliated with the District, the Financial Advisor or the Underwriter and are included solely for the convenience of 
the registered owners of the applicable Bonds.  None of the District, the Financial Advisor or the Underwriter is responsible for the 
selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, and no representation is made as to their correctness on the applicable Bonds or as 
included herein. The CUSIP number for a specific maturity is subject to being changed after the execution and delivery of the 
Bonds as a result of various subsequent actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part or as a result of the 
procurement of secondary market portfolio insurance or other similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion 
of certain maturities of the Bonds. 
 
 

MATURITY SCHEDULE* 

$17,000,000* 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

(Sonoma County, California) 
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 

 Base CUSIP(†):  76678R  

$___________ Serial Bonds 

Maturity 
(August 1) 

Principal 
Amount 

 
Interest Rate 

 
Yield 

 
CUSIP(†) 

     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     
     

$________ – _____% Term Bonds due ________________, 20__ – Yield ____%; CUSIP(†): 

 
 



 

 
 
   
  
  
 

This Official Statement does not constitute an offering of any security other than the original offering of the 
Bonds of the District.  No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District to give any 
information or to make any representations other than as contained in this Official Statement, and if given or made, 
such other information or representation not so authorized should not be relied upon as having been given or authorized 
by the District. 

The issuance and sale of the Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, both as amended, in reliance upon exemptions provided thereunder by Sections 3(a)2 and 
3(a)12, respectively.  This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy in 
any state in which such offer or solicitation is not authorized or in which the person making such offer or solicitation 
is not qualified to do so or to any person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation. 

The information set forth herein, other than that provided by the District, has been obtained from sources 
which are believed to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not to be construed as a 
representation by the District.  The information and expressions of opinions herein are subject to change without notice 
and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any 
implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the District since the date hereof.  This Official Statement 
is submitted in connection with the sale of the Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole 
or in part, for any other purpose. 

When used in this Official Statement and in any continuing disclosure by the District in any press release and 
in any oral statement made with the approval of an authorized officer of the District or any other entity described or 
referenced in this Official Statement, the words or phrases “will likely result,” “are expected to,” “will continue,” “is 
anticipated,” “estimate,” “project,” “forecast,” “expect,” “intend” and similar expressions identify “forward looking 
statements” within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995.  Such statements are subject 
to risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from those contemplated in such forward-
looking statements.  Any forecast is subject to such uncertainties.  Inevitably, some assumptions used to develop the 
forecasts will not be realized and unanticipated events and circumstances may occur.  Therefore, there are likely to be 
differences between forecasts and actual results, and those differences may be material. 

The Underwriter has provided the following sentence for inclusion in this Official Statement:   

“The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance 
with, and as part of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to 
the facts and circumstances of this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy 
or completeness of such information.” 

IN CONNECTION WITH THIS OFFERING, THE UNDERWRITER MAY OVERALLOT OR EFFECT 
TRANSACTIONS WHICH STABILIZE OR MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE BONDS AT A LEVEL 
ABOVE THAT WHICH MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET.  SUCH STABILIZING, IF 
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME.  THE UNDERWRITER MAY OFFER AND SELL 
THE BONDS TO CERTAIN DEALERS AND DEALER BANKS AND BANKS ACTING AS AGENT AT PRICES 
LOWER THAN THE PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES STATED ON THE INSIDE COVER PAGE HEREOF AND 
SAID PUBLIC OFFERING PRICES MAY BE CHANGED FROM TIME TO TIME BY THE UNDERWRITER. 

The District maintains a website.  However, the information presented on the District’s website is not 
incorporated into this Official Statement by any reference, and should not be relied upon in making investment 
decisions with respect to the Bonds. 

 



 

 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Carol Lynn Wood, President 
Cynthia Evers, Clerk 

Mike Cook, Trustee, Trustee 
Jeff Gospe, Trustee 

Chris Rafanelli, Trustee 
 

DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION 

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D., Superintendent 
Joseph Pandolfo, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Business 

Terry Metzger, Ed.D., Assistant Superintendent, Curriculum  
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

BOND COUNSEL AND DISCLOSURE COUNSEL 

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation 
San Francisco, California 

FINANCIAL ADVISOR 

California Financial Services 
Santa Rosa, California 

PAYING AGENT, REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT 

The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
San Francisco, California 

 



  TABLE OF CONTENTS 
Page 

i 
 
 

INTRODUCTION ....................................................................................................................................................... 1 

GENERAL ................................................................................................................................................................... 1 
PURPOSES OF THE BONDS ........................................................................................................................................... 1 
AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS ................................................................................................................ 2 
SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE BONDS .................................................................................................................... 2 
DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS ...................................................................................................................................... 2 
TAX MATTERS ........................................................................................................................................................... 3 
OFFERING AND DELIVERY OF THE BONDS .................................................................................................................. 3 
BOND OWNER’S RISKS ............................................................................................................................................... 3 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ......................................................................................................................................... 3 
PROFESSIONALS INVOLVED IN THE OFFERING ............................................................................................................ 3 
OTHER INFORMATION ................................................................................................................................................ 4 

THE BONDS ................................................................................................................................................................ 4 

AUTHORITY FOR ISSUANCE ........................................................................................................................................ 4 
SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT ...................................................................................................................... 5 
GENERAL PROVISIONS ............................................................................................................................................... 6 
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE ............................................................................................................................................. 7 
APPLICATION AND INVESTMENT OF BOND PROCEEDS ................................................................................................ 7 
REDEMPTION .............................................................................................................................................................. 8 
BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM ................................................................................................................................... 11 
DISCONTINUATION OF BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM; REGISTRATION, EXCHANGE 

AND TRANSFER OF BONDS .................................................................................................................................... 13 
DEFEASANCE ........................................................................................................................................................... 13 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS ................................................................................................ 14 

TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS ........................................................................................................ 15 

AD VALOREM PROPERTY TAXATION ......................................................................................................................... 15 
ASSESSED VALUATIONS ........................................................................................................................................... 16 
APPEALS AND ADJUSTMENTS OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS ....................................................................................... 16 
ASSESSED VALUATION OF SINGLE FAMILY HOMES ................................................................................................. 18 
ASSESSED VALUATION AND PARCELS BY LAND USE ............................................................................................... 19 
ASSESSED VALUATION BY JURISDICTION ................................................................................................................. 20 
ALTERNATIVE METHOD OF TAX APPORTIONMENT – “TEETER PLAN” ..................................................................... 20 
TAX RATES .............................................................................................................................................................. 21 
PRINCIPAL TAXPAYERS ............................................................................................................................................ 21 
STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT ................................................................................................... 22 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT 
REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS ................................................................................................................. 24 

ARTICLE XIIIA OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION ............................................................................................... 24 
LEGISLATION IMPLEMENTING ARTICLE XIIIA ......................................................................................................... 25 
UNITARY PROPERTY ................................................................................................................................................ 25 
ARTICLE XIIIB OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION ............................................................................................... 25 
ARTICLE XIIIC AND ARTICLE XIIID OF THE CALIFORNIA CONSTITUTION .............................................................. 26 
PROPOSITION 26 ....................................................................................................................................................... 27 
PROPOSITIONS 98 AND 111 ....................................................................................................................................... 27 
PROPOSITION 39 ....................................................................................................................................................... 29 
PROPOSITION 1A AND PROPOSITION 22 .................................................................................................................... 29 
JARVIS VS. CONNELL .................................................................................................................................................. 30 
PROPOSITION 30 AND 55 .......................................................................................................................................... 30 
PROPOSITION 2 ......................................................................................................................................................... 31 
PROPOSITION 51 ....................................................................................................................................................... 32 
FUTURE INITIATIVES ................................................................................................................................................ 33 



TABLE OF CONTENTS (cont’d) 
Page 

 ii 
 

DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION ............................................................................................................ 34 

STATE FUNDING OF EDUCATION .............................................................................................................................. 34 
OTHER REVENUE SOURCES ...................................................................................................................................... 38 
STATE DISSOLUTION OF REDEVELOPMENT AGENCIES ............................................................................................. 39 
BUDGET PROCESS .................................................................................................................................................... 41 
ACCOUNTING PRACTICES ......................................................................................................................................... 44 
COMPARATIVE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ................................................................................................................. 44 
STATE BUDGET MEASURES ...................................................................................................................................... 46 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT ............................................................................................... 48 

INTRODUCTION ........................................................................................................................................................ 48 
ADMINISTRATION ..................................................................................................................................................... 49 
ATTENDANCE AND ENROLLMENT ............................................................................................................................ 50 
CHARTER SCHOOL ................................................................................................................................................... 50 
LABOR RELATIONS .................................................................................................................................................. 51 
DISTRICT RETIREMENT SYSTEMS ............................................................................................................................. 52 
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS..................................................................................................................... 59 
RISK MANAGEMENT ................................................................................................................................................ 60 
DISTRICT DEBT STRUCTURE .................................................................................................................................... 61 

TAX MATTERS ........................................................................................................................................................ 63 

LIMITATION ON REMEDIES; BANKRUPTCY ................................................................................................ 65 

LEGAL MATTERS .................................................................................................................................................. 66 

LEGALITY FOR INVESTMENT IN CALIFORNIA ........................................................................................................... 66 
EXPANDED REPORTING REQUIREMENTS .................................................................................................................. 66 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE ....................................................................................................................................... 67 
NO LITIGATION ........................................................................................................................................................ 67 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ......................................................................................................................................... 67 
LEGAL OPINION ....................................................................................................................................................... 67 

MISCELLANEOUS .................................................................................................................................................. 68 

RATINGS .................................................................................................................................................................. 68 
UNDERWRITING ....................................................................................................................................................... 68 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ..................................................................................................................................... 69 

 
APPENDIX A: FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL ........................................................................................... A-1 
APPENDIX B: 2015-16 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT ...................................................... B-1 
APPENDIX C: FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE ........................................................................ C-1 
APPENDIX D: GENERAL ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION FOR RINCON VALLEY, 

CITY OF SANTA ROSA, AND SONOMA COUNTY .......................................................................... D-1 
APPENDIX E: SONOMA COUNTY TREASURY POOL .............................................................................................. E-1 

 
 



 

1 
 

$17,000,000*

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
(Sonoma County, California) 

Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 
 

INTRODUCTION 

This Official Statement, which includes the cover page, inside cover page and appendices hereto, 
provides information in connection with the sale of the Rincon Valley Union School District (Sonoma 
County, California) Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B (the “Bonds”). 

This Introduction is not a summary of this Official Statement. It is only a brief description of and 
guide to, and is qualified by, more complete and detailed information contained in the entire Official 
Statement, including the cover page, inside cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents 
summarized or described herein.  A full review should be made of the entire Official Statement.  The offering 
of the Bonds to potential investors is made only by means of the entire Official Statement.  

General 

The Rincon Valley Union School District (the “District”), located in Sonoma County (the 
“County”), California, encompasses a total area of approximately 50 square miles, including the eastern 
and northeastern areas of the City of Santa Rosa, California and certain unincorporated areas in the County. 
The District operates three traditional elementary schools serving grades kindergarten through sixth grade, 
five elementary conversion charter schools serving grades kindergarten through sixth grade, and one 
affiliated charter middle school with two campuses serving seventh and eighth grades. The District also 
operates three special education programs for elementary students with mild to severe needs as the lead 
agency for the Redwood Consortium for Student Services (“RCSS”), a special educational consortium 
comprised of the District and eight neighboring school districts. The District’s budgeted total enrollment 
for fiscal year 2017-18 is approximately 3,510 students, which number includes affiliated charter school 
students attending school within the District’s boundaries.  The District has a fiscal year 2017-18 total 
assessed valuation of $6,571,476,945.     

The District is governed by a five-member Board of Trustees (the “Board”).  Each member of the 
Board serves a four-year term.  Elections for positions to the Board are held every two years, alternating 
between two and three available positions.  The management and policies of the District are administered 
by a Superintendent appointed by the Board who is responsible for day-to-day District operations as well 
as the supervision of the District’s other key personnel.  Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. is currently the District’s 
Superintendent.  

For more information regarding the District generally, see “DISTRICT FINANCIAL 
INFORMATION” and “RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT” herein, and for more 
information regarding the District’s assessed valuation, see “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF 
BONDS” herein. 

Purposes of the Bonds 

The Bonds are being issued by the District to (i) finance the repair, upgrading, acquisition, 
construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the 

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 2 
 

Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Application and Investment of Bond Proceeds” and “ESTIMATED 
SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS” herein. 

Authority for Issuance of the Bonds 

The Bonds are issued pursuant to certain provisions of the Government Code and pursuant to a 
resolution adopted by the Board.  See “THE BONDS – Authority for Issuance” herein. 

Sources of Payment for the Bonds 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable solely from ad valorem property taxes.  
The Board of Supervisors of the County is empowered and obligated to levy such ad valorem taxes, without 
limitation as to rate or amount, upon all property within the District subject to taxation thereby (except 
certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates), for the payment of principal of and interest on  
the Bonds when due.  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” and “TAX BASE FOR 
REPAYMENT OF BONDS” herein. 

Description of the Bonds 

Form and Registration.  The Bonds will be issued in fully registered form only, without coupons.  
The Bonds will be initially registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The Depository Trust 
Company, New York, New York (the “DTC”), who will act as securities depository for the Bonds.  See 
“THE BONDS – General Provisions” and “THE BONDS – Book-Entry Only System” herein.  Purchasers 
of the Bonds (the “Beneficial Owners”) will not receive physical certificates representing their interests in 
the Bonds purchased, but will instead receive credit balances on the books of their respective nominees.  In 
the event that the book-entry only system described below is no longer used with respect to the Bonds, the 
Bonds will be registered in accordance with the Resolution (as defined herein).  See “THE BONDS – 
Discontinuation of Book-Entry Only System; Registration, Payment and Transfer of Bonds” herein. 

So long as Cede & Co. is the registered owner of the Bonds, as nominee of DTC, references 
herein to the “Owners,” “Bondowners” or “Holders” of the Bonds (other than under the caption 
“TAX MATTERS” and in APPENDIX A) will mean Cede & Co. and will not mean the Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds. 

Denominations.  Individual purchases of interests in the Bonds will be available to purchasers of 
the Bonds in the denominations of $5,000 principal amount, or any integral multiple thereof.   

Redemption.*  The Bonds are subject to optional redemption and mandatory sinking fund 
redemption prior to their stated maturity dates as further described herein.  See “THE BONDS – 
Redemption” herein. 

Payments.  The Bonds will be dated as of the date of their initial delivery (the “Date of Delivery”).  
Interest on the Bonds accrues from the Date of Delivery, and is payable semiannually on each August 1 and 
February 1, commencing February 1, 2018 (each, a “Bond Payment Date”).  Principal of the Bonds is 
payable on August 1, in the amounts and years as shown on the inside cover page hereof.  Payments of the 
principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, 
N.A., as the paying agent, registrar and transfer agent for the Bonds (the “Paying Agent”), to DTC for 

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 3 
 

subsequent disbursement through DTC Participants (as defined herein) to the Beneficial Owners of the 
Bonds. 

Tax Matters 

In the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, 
California, Bond Counsel, based on existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions and 
assuming the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants and requirements 
described herein, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and 
is not an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from 
State of California (the “State”) personal income tax.  See “TAX MATTERS” herein. 

Offering and Delivery of the Bonds 

The Bonds are offered when, as and if issued, subject to approval as to their legality by Bond 
Counsel.  It is anticipated that the Bonds in book-entry form will be available for delivery through the 
facilities of DTC in New York, New York, on or about __________, 2017.* 

Bond Owner’s Risks 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable solely from ad valorem property taxes 
which may be levied on all taxable property in the District, without limitation as to rate or amount (except 
with respect to certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates).  For more complete information 
regarding the District’s financial condition and taxation of property within the District, see “TAX BASE 
FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS,” “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION” and “RINCON 
VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT” herein. 

Continuing Disclosure 

The District has covenanted that it will comply with and carry out the provisions of that certain 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate relating to the Bonds.  Pursuant thereto, the District will covenant for the 
benefit of the Owners and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds to make available certain financial information 
and operating data relating to the District and to provide notices of the occurrence of certain listed events.  
These covenants will be made in order to assist the Underwriter (as defined herein) to comply with 
Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) (the “Rule”).  The specific nature of the 
information to be made available and of the notices of listed events is summarized below under “LEGAL 

MATTERS – Continuing Disclosure” herein and “APPENDIX C – FORM OF CONTINUING 
DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE” attached hereto. 

Professionals Involved in the Offering 

Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, California, is acting 
as Bond Counsel and Disclosure Counsel to the District with respect to the Bonds.  California Financial 
Services, Santa Rosa, California, is acting as financial advisor to the District with respect to the Bonds.  
Stradling Yocca Carlson and Rauth and California Financial Services will each receive compensation from 
the District contingent upon the sale and delivery of the Bonds.  Certain matters will be passed upon for the 
Underwriter (as defined herein) by Kutak Rock LLP, Denver, Colorado.   

                                                      
* Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 4 
 

Other Information 

This Official Statement speaks only as of its date, and the information contained herein is subject 
to change.  Copies of documents referred to herein and information concerning the Bonds are available 
from the Rincon Valley Union School District, 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, California 95405, 
telephone: (707) 542-7375.  The District may impose a charge for copying, mailing and handling. 

No dealer, broker, salesperson or other person has been authorized by the District to give any 
information or to make any representations other than as contained herein and, if given or made, such other 
information or representations must not be relied upon as having been authorized by the District.  This 
Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be 
any sale of the Bonds by a person in any jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such 
an offer, solicitation or sale. 

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.  
Statements contained in this Official Statement which involve estimates, forecasts or matters of opinion, 
whether or not expressly so described herein, are intended solely as such and are not to be construed as 
representations of fact.  The summaries and references to documents, statutes and constitutional provisions 
referred to herein do not purport to be comprehensive or definitive, and are qualified in their entireties by 
reference to each such documents, statutes and constitutional provisions. 

The information set forth herein, other than that provided by the District, has been obtained from 
official sources which are believed to be reliable but it is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, 
and is not to be construed as a representation by the District.  The information and expressions of opinions 
herein are subject to change without notice and neither delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made 
hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs 
of the District since the date hereof.  This Official Statement is submitted in connection with the sale of the 
Bonds referred to herein and may not be reproduced or used, in whole or in part, for any other purpose. 

Capitalized terms used but not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such 
terms in the Resolution. 

THE BONDS 

Authority for Issuance 

The Bonds are being issued pursuant to the provisions of Government Code Article 4.5 of Chapter 
3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, Article XIIIA of the State Constitution and pursuant to a resolution 
adopted by the Board on September 12, 2017 (the “Resolution”).  The County has adopted a resolution 
pursuant to Education Code Section 15140(b), which authorizes the District to issue the Bonds on its own 
behalf. 

The District received authorization at an election held on June 3, 2014, by the requisite 55% or 
more of the votes cast by eligible voters of the District to issue $35,000,000 aggregate principal amount of 
general obligation bonds (the “2014 Authorization”).  On October 23, 2014 the District issued its Election 
of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series A in the aggregate principal amount of $18,000,000 (the “2014 
Series A Bonds”).  The Bonds are the second issuance and final series of bonds issued under the 2014 
Authorization, and, following the issuance thereof, none of the 2014 Authorization will remain unissued. 



 

 5 
 

Security and Sources of Payment 

The Bonds are general obligations of the District payable solely from ad valorem property taxes.  
The Board of Supervisors of the County is empowered and obligated to annually levy such ad valorem 
property taxes upon all property subject to taxation by the District, without limitation as to rate or amount 
(except certain personal property which is taxable at limited rates), for the payment of principal of and 
interest on the Bonds when due.  The levy may include allowance for an annual reserve, established for the 
purpose of avoiding fluctuating tax levies.  The County, however, is not obligated to establish such a 
reserve, and the District can make no representation that such reserve will be established by the County or 
that such a reserve, if previously established by the County, will be maintained in the future. 

Such taxes will be levied annually in addition to all other taxes during the period that the Bonds are 
outstanding in an amount sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.  Such taxes, 
when collected, will be placed by the County in the Debt Service Fund (as defined herein) established by 
the Resolution, which is required to be segregated and maintained by the County and which is designated 
for the payment of the Bonds and interest thereon when due, and for no other purpose.  Pursuant to the 
Resolution, the District has pledged funds on deposit in the Debt Service Fund to the payment of the Bonds.  
Although the County is obligated to levy ad valorem property taxes for the payment of the Bonds as 
described above, and will maintain the Debt Service Fund, none of the Bonds are a debt of the County. 

Pursuant to Government Code Section 53515, the Bonds will be secured by a statutory lien on all 
revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of ad valorem property taxes for the payment thereof.  
The lien automatically attaches, without further action or authorization by the Board, and is valid and 
binding from the time the Bonds are executed and delivered.  The revenues received pursuant to the levy 
and collection of the ad valorem property tax will be immediately subject to the lien, and such lien will be 
enforceable against the District, its successor, transferees and creditors, and all other parties asserting rights 
therein, irrespective of whether such parties have notice of the lien and without the need for physical 
delivery, recordation, filing or further act. 

The moneys in the Debt Service Fund, to the extent necessary to pay the principal of and interest 
on the Bonds as the same become due and payable, will be transferred by the County to the Paying Agent.  
The Paying Agent will in turn remit the funds to DTC for remittance of such principal and interest to its 
Participants (as defined herein) for subsequent disbursement to the Beneficial Owners of the Bonds.   

The amount of the annual ad valorem property taxes levied by the County to repay the Bonds will 
be determined by the relationship between the assessed valuation of taxable property in the District and the 
amount of debt service due on the Bonds in any year.  Fluctuations in the annual debt service on the Bonds 
and the assessed value of taxable property in the District may cause the annual tax rate to fluctuate.  
Economic and other factors beyond the District’s control, such as general market decline in land values, 
disruption in financial markets that may reduce the availability of financing for purchasers of property, 
reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation, whether by ownership or use (such as 
exemptions for property owned by the State and local agencies and property used for qualified education, 
hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial destruction of the taxable property 
caused by a natural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, flood, fire, drought or toxic contamination, 
could cause a reduction in the assessed value of taxable property within the District and necessitate a 
corresponding increase in the annual tax rate.  For further information regarding the District’s assessed 
valuation, tax rates, overlapping debt, and other matters concerning taxation, see “CONSTITUTIONAL 
AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – 
Article XIIIA of the California Constitution” and “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS – 
Assessed Valuations” herein. 



 

 6 
 

General Provisions 

The Bonds will be issued in book-entry form only, and will be initially issued and registered in the 
name of Cede & Co. as nominee for DTC. See “– Book-Entry Only System” herein.  Beneficial Owners 
will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds, but instead will receive credit balances 
on the books of their respective nominees.  The Bonds will be dated as of the Date of Delivery.   

Interest on the Bonds accrues from the Date of Delivery and is payable semiannually on each Bond 
Payment Date, commencing February 1, 2018.  Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 
360-day year of twelve, 30-day months.  Each Bond will bear interest from the Bond Payment Date next 
preceding the date of authentication thereof unless it is authenticated as of a day during the period from the 
16th day of the month next preceding any Bond Payment Date to that Bond Payment Date, inclusive, in 
which event it will bear interest from such Bond Payment Date, or unless it is authenticated on or before 
January 15, 2018, in which event it will bear interest from the Date of Delivery.  The Bonds are issuable in 
denominations of $5,000 principal amount or any integral multiple thereof, and mature on August 1, in the 
years and amounts set forth on the inside cover page hereof.   

Payment.  Payment of interest on any Bond on any Bond Payment Date will be made to the person 
appearing on the registration books of the Paying Agent as the registered Owner thereof as of the 15th day 
of the month immediately preceding such Bond Payment Date (the “Record Date”), such interest to be paid 
by wire transfer to the bank and account number on file with the Paying Agent as of the Record Date.  The 
principal of and redemption premiums, if any, payable on the Bonds will be payable upon maturity upon 
surrender at the principal office of the Paying Agent.  The principal of, and interest, and redemption 
premiums, if any, on the Bonds will be payable in lawful money of the United States of America.  The 
Paying Agent is authorized to pay the Bonds when duly presented for payment at maturity, and to cancel 
all Bonds upon payment thereof.  So long as the Bonds are held in the book-entry system of DTC, all 
payments of principal of and interest on the Bonds will be made by the Paying Agent to Cede & Co. (as a 
nominee of DTC), as the registered owner of the Bonds. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 



 

 7 
 

Annual Debt Service 

The following table displays the annual debt service requirements of the District for the Bonds 
(assuming no optional redemptions): 

Year Ending 
(August 1)  

Annual Principal
Payment 

Annual Interest
   Payment(1) 

Total Annual Debt  
Service Payment 

2017    
2018    
2019    
2020    
2021    
2022    
2023    
2024    
2025    
2026    
2027    
2028    
2029    
2030    
2031    
2032    
2033    
2034    
2035    
2036    
2037    
2038    
2039    
2040    
2041    
2042    

_____________________________ 
(1) Interest payments on the Bonds will be made semiannually on August 1 and February 1 of each year, commencing February 
1, 2018.   

 See “RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT – District Debt Structure – General 
Obligation Bonds” herein for a full table of the annual debt service requirements for the District’s 
outstanding general obligation bonded debt. 

Application and Investment of Bond Proceeds 

The Bonds are being issued by the District to (i) finance the repair, upgrading, acquisition, 
construction and equipping of certain District property and facilities, and (ii) pay the costs of issuing the 
Bonds.   

Building Fund.  The net proceeds of the sale of the Bonds will be deposited into the fund held by 
the County and designated as the “Rincon Valley Union School District Election of 2014 General 
Obligation Bonds, Series B Building Fund” (the “Building Fund”) and will be applied only for the purposes 
approved by the voters of the District pursuant to the 2014 Authorization.  Any interest earnings on moneys 
held in the Building Fund will be retained therein.  The County will have no responsibility for assuring the 
proper use of the proceeds of the Bonds. 



 

 8 
 

Debt Service Fund.  Any premium or accrued interest received by the District from the sale of the 
Bonds will be kept separate and apart in the fund designated as the “Rincon Valley Union School District 
Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B Debt Service Fund” (the “Debt Service Fund”), which 
fund is held by the County for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds, and for no other 
purpose.  Any interest earnings on moneys held in the Debt Service Fund will be retained therein.  Any 
excess proceeds of the Bonds not needed for authorized purposes for which the Bonds are being issued will 
be transferred to the Debt Service Fund and applied to the payment of the principal of and interest on the 
Bonds.  Pursuant to the Resolution, the District has pledged monies on deposit in the Debt Service Fund to 
the payment of the Bonds.  If, after payment in full of the Bonds, there remain excess proceeds, any such 
excess amounts will be transferred to the general fund of the District. 

Investment of Proceeds.  Moneys in the Building Fund and the Debt Service Fund are expected to 
be invested through the County’s pooled investment fund.  See “APPENDIX E – SONOMA COUNTY 
TREASURY POOL” attached hereto. 

Redemption 

Optional Redemption.  The Bonds maturing on or before August 1, 20__ are not subject to optional 
redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates.  The Bonds maturing on or after August 1, 20__ 
are subject to optional redemption prior to their respective stated maturity dates at the option of the District, 
from any source of available funds, as a whole or in part, on any date on or after August 1, 20__, at a 
redemption price equal to the principal amount of the Bonds called for redemption, together with interest 
accrued thereon to the date fixed for redemption, without premium. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Redemption.*  The Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__, are subject 
to redemption prior to maturity from mandatory sinking fund payments on August 1 of each year, on and 
after August 1, 20__, at a redemption price equal to the principal amount thereof, together with accrued 
interest to the date fixed for redemption, without premium.  The principal amounts represented by such 
Term Bonds to be so redeemed, the dates therefor and the final principal payment date are as indicated in 
the following table: 

Redemption Date 
(August 1) 

Principal Amount to 
be Redeemed 

  
  
  
  
  

_____________________________ 
(1)

  Maturity. 

In the event that a portion of the Term Bonds maturing on August 1, 20__ is optionally redeemed 
prior to maturity, the remaining mandatory sinking fund payments shown above shall be reduced 
proportionately or as otherwise directed by the District, in integral multiples of $5,000 of principal amount, 
in respect of the portion of such Term Bonds optionally redeemed. 

                                                      
 Preliminary, subject to change. 



 

 9 
 

Selection of Bonds for Redemption.  Whenever provision is made for the optional redemption of 
Bonds and less than all outstanding Bonds are to be redeemed, the Paying Agent, upon written instruction 
from the District, will select the Bonds for redemption as directed by the District and if not so directed, in 
inverse order of maturity.  Within a maturity, the Paying Agent will select Bonds for redemption as directed 
by the District, and if not so directed, by lot.  Redemption by lot will be in such manner as the Paying Agent 
will determine; provided, however, that the portion of any Bond to be redeemed in part shall be in the 
principal amount of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof. 

Notice of Redemption.  When optional redemption is authorized or required pursuant to the 
Resolution, upon written instruction from the District, the Paying Agent will give notice (a “Redemption 
Notice”) of the redemption of the Bonds.  Each Redemption Notice will specify (a) the Bonds or designated 
portions thereof (in the case of redemption of the Bonds in part but not in whole) which are to be redeemed, 
(b) the date of redemption, (c) the place or places where the redemption will be made, including the name 
and address of the Paying Agent, (d) the redemption price, (e) the CUSIP numbers (if any) assigned to the 
Bonds to be redeemed, (f) the Bond numbers of the Bonds to be redeemed in whole or in part and, in the 
case of any Bond to be redeemed in part only, the principal amount of such Bond to be redeemed, and 
(g) the original issue date, interest rate and stated maturity date of each Bond to be redeemed in whole or 
in part. 

The Paying Agent will take the following actions with respect to each such Redemption Notice: (a) 
at least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, such Redemption Notice will be given 
to the respective Owners of Bonds designated for redemption by registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, at their addresses appearing on the bond register; (b) at least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to 
the redemption date, such Redemption Notice will be given by (i) registered or certified mail, postage 
prepaid, (ii) telephonically confirmed facsimile transmission, or (iii) overnight delivery service, to the 
Securities Depository; (c) at least 20 but not more than 45 days prior to the redemption date, such 
Redemption Notice will be given by (i) registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, or (ii) overnight 
delivery service, to one of the Information Services; and (d) provide such Redemption Notice to such other 
persons as may otherwise be required pursuant to the Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 

“Information Services” means the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal 
Market Access System; or, such other services providing information with respect to called municipal 
obligations as the District may specify in writing to the Paying Agent or as the Paying Agent may select.  

“Securities Depository” means The Depository Trust Company, 55 Water Street, New York, New 
York 10041. 

A certificate of the Paying Agent or the District that a Redemption Notice has been given as 
provided in the Resolution will be conclusive as against all parties.  Neither failure to receive any 
Redemption Notice nor any defect in any such Redemption Notice so given will affect the sufficiency of 
the proceedings for the redemption of the affected Bonds.  Each transfer of funds made by the Paying Agent 
for the purpose of redeeming Bonds shall bear or include the CUSIP number identifying, by issue and 
maturity, the Bonds being redeemed with the proceeds of such transfer. 

Conditional Notice of Redemption.  With respect to any notice of optional redemption of Bonds 
(or portions thereof) as described above, unless upon the giving of such notice such Bonds (or portions 
thereof) shall be deemed to have been defeased as described in “– Defeasance” herein, such notice will state 
that such redemption will be conditional upon the receipt by an independent escrow agent selected by the 
District on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption of the moneys necessary and sufficient to pay the 
principal of, and premium, if any, and interest on, such Bonds (or portions thereof) to be redeemed, and 
that, if such moneys shall not have been so received, said notice shall be of no force and effect, no portion 



 

 10 
 

of the Bonds will be subject to redemption on such date and such Bonds will not be required to be redeemed 
on such date.  In the event that such Redemption Notice contains such a condition and such moneys are not 
so received, the redemption will not be made and the Paying Agent will, within a reasonable time thereafter 
(but in no event later than the date originally set for redemption), give notice to the persons to whom and 
in the manner in which the Redemption Notice was given, that such moneys were not so received.  In 
addition, the District will have the right to rescind any Redemption Notice by written notice to the Paying 
Agent on or prior to the date fixed for such redemption.  The Paying Agent will distribute a notice of the 
rescission of such Redemption Notice in the same manner as such Redemption Notice was originally 
provided. 

Partial Redemption of Bonds.  Upon the surrender of any Bond redeemed in part only, the Paying 
Agent will execute and deliver to the Owner thereof a new Bond or Bonds of like series, tenor and maturity 
and of authorized denominations equal in principal amount to the unredeemed portion of the Bond 
surrendered (the “Transfer Amount”).  Such partial redemption is valid upon payment of the amount 
required to be paid to such Owner, and the District will be released and discharged thereupon from all 
liability to the extent of such payment. 

Effect of Notice of Redemption.  Notice having been given as described above, and the moneys for 
the redemption (including the interest accrued to the applicable date of redemption) having been set aside 
as described in “– Defeasance” herein, the Bonds to be redeemed shall become due and payable on such 
date of redemption. 

If on such redemption date, moneys for the redemption of all the Bonds to be redeemed, together 
with interest accrued to such redemption date, shall be held in trust, so as to be available therefor on such 
redemption date, and if a Redemption Notice thereof shall have been given as described above, then from 
and after such redemption date, interest on the Bonds to be redeemed will cease to accrue and become 
payable.  All money held for the redemption of Bonds shall be held in trust for the account of the Owners 
of the Bonds to be so redeemed. 

Bonds No Longer Outstanding.  When any Bonds (or portions thereof), which have been duly 
called for redemption prior to maturity pursuant to the Resolution, or with respect to which irrevocable 
instructions to call for redemption prior to maturity at the earliest redemption date have been given to the 
Paying Agent, in form satisfactory to it, and sufficient moneys shall be held irrevocably in trust for the 
payment of the redemption price of such Bonds or portions thereof and accrued interest thereon to the date 
fixed for redemption, then such Bonds will no longer be deemed outstanding and shall be surrendered to 
the Paying Agent for cancellation. 



 

 11 
 

Book-Entry Only System 

The information in this section concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained 
from sources that the District believes to be reliable, but neither the District nor the Underwriter take any 
responsibility for the accuracy or completeness thereof.  The District and the Underwriter cannot and do 
not give any assurances that DTC, DTC Direct Participants or Indirect Participants (as defined herein) 
will distribute to the Beneficial Owners (a) payments of principal of, or interest or premium, if any, on the 
Bonds, (b) certificates representing ownership interest in or other confirmation or ownership interest in 
the Bonds, or (c) redemption or other notices sent to DTC or Cede & Co., its nominee, as the registered 
Owner of the Bonds, or that they will so do on a timely basis or that DTC, Direct Participants or Indirect 
Participants will act in the manner described in this Official Statement.  The current “Rules” applicable to 
DTC are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and the current “Procedures” of DTC to be 
followed in dealing with Participants are on file with DTC. 

The Depository Trust Company, New York, New York, will act as securities depository for 
the Bonds.  The Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. 
(DTC’s partnership nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC.  One fully-registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the 
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.   

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under 
the New York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, 
a member of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York 
Uniform Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A 
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934.  DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.6 million issues 
of U.S. and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments 
(from over 100 countries) that DTC’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC.  DTC also 
facilitates the post-trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in 
deposited securities, through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct 
Participants’ accounts.  This eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates.  Direct 
Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing 
corporations, and certain other organizations.  DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust 
& Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”).  DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing 
Corporation and Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies.  DTCC 
is owned by the users of its regulated subsidiaries.  Access to the DTC system is also available to others 
such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing 
corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly 
or indirectly (“Indirect Participants,” and together with the Direct Participants, the “Participants”).  DTC 
has a Standard & Poor’s rating of “AA+.”  The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the 
Securities and Exchange Commission.  More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.  

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which 
will receive a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records.  The ownership interest of each Beneficial Owner is 
in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
written confirmation from DTC of their purchase.  Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive 
written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of their holdings, 
from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction.  
Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct 
and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners.  Beneficial Owners will not receive 
certificates representing their ownership interests in the Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-
entry system for the Bonds is discontinued.  



 

 12 
 

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested 
by an authorized representative of DTC.  The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name 
of Cede & Co. or such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership.  DTC has no 
knowledge of the actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the 
Direct Participants to whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial 
Owners.  The Direct and Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings 
on behalf of their customers.  

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial 
Owners will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements 
as may be in effect from time to time.  Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to 
augment the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as 
redemptions, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Resolution.  For example, Beneficial Owners of 
Bonds may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and 
transmit notices to Beneficial Owners.  In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their 
names and addresses to the registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.  

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC.  If less than all of the Bonds within an issue are being 
redeemed, DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in 
such issue to be redeemed.  

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect to 
Bonds unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures.  Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the District as soon as possible after the record date.  
The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose 
accounts Bonds are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).  

Redemption proceeds and distributions on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other 
nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC.  DTC’s practice is to credit Direct 
Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the District 
or the Paying Agent, on payable date in accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records.  
Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary 
practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in 
“street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant and not of DTC, the Paying Agent, or the 
District, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect from time to time.  Payment 
of redemption proceeds or distributions to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an 
authorized representative of DTC) is the responsibility of the District or the Paying Agent, disbursement of 
such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments 
to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants. 

For every transfer and exchange of Bonds, Owners requesting such transfer or exchange may be 
charged a sum sufficient to cover any tax, governmental charge or transfer fees that may be imposed in 
relation thereto, which charge may include transfer fees imposed by the Paying Agent, DTC or the DTC 
Participant in connection with such transfers or exchanges.  

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by 
giving reasonable notice to the District or the Paying Agent.  Under such circumstances, in the event that a 
successor depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.  



 

 13 
 

The District may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC 
(or a successor securities depository).  In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to the 
Owners thereof. 

Discontinuation of Book-Entry Only System; Registration, Exchange and Transfer of Bonds 

So long as any of the Bonds remain outstanding, the District will cause the Paying Agent to 
maintain at its principal office all books and records necessary for the registration, exchange and transfer 
of such Bonds, which shall at all times be open to inspection by the District, and, upon presentation for 
such purpose, the Paying Agent shall, under such reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, register, 
exchange or transfer or cause to be registered, exchanged or transferred, on said books, Bonds as provided 
in the Resolution. 

In the event that the book-entry only system as described herein is no longer used with respect to 
the Bonds, the following provisions will govern the registration, transfer, and exchange of the Bonds. 

The principal of the Bonds and any interest upon the redemption thereof prior to maturity will be 
payable in lawful money of the United States of America upon presentation and surrender of the Bonds at 
the designated office of the Paying Agent.  Interest on the Bonds will be paid by the Paying Agent by either 
(i) check or draft mailed to the person whose name appears on the registration books of the Paying Agent 
as the registered Owner, and to that person’s address appearing on the registration books as of the close of 
business on the Record Date, or (ii) by wire to a bank and account number on file with the Paying Agent as 
of the Record Date. 

Any Bond may be exchanged for Bonds of like series, tenor, maturity and Transfer Amount upon 
presentation and surrender at the designated office of the Paying Agent, together with a request for exchange 
signed by the Owner or by a person legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Paying Agent.  
A Bond may be transferred on the Bond Register only upon presentation and surrender of the Bond at the 
designated office of the Paying Agent together with an assignment executed by the Owner or by a person 
legally empowered to do so in a form satisfactory to the Paying Agent.  Upon exchange or transfer, the 
Paying Agent will complete, authenticate, and deliver a new bond or bonds of like series and tenor, and of 
any authorized denomination or denominations requested by the Owner equal to the Transfer Amount of 
the Bond surrendered and bearing interest at the same rate and maturing on the same date. 

Neither the District nor the Paying Agent will be required to (a) issue or transfer any Bonds during 
a period beginning with the opening of business on the 16th day next preceding either any Bond Payment 
Date or any date of selection of Bonds to be redeemed and ending with the close of business on the Bond 
Payment Date or any day on which the applicable Redemption Notice is given or (b) transfer any Bonds 
which have been selected or called for redemption in whole or in part. 

Defeasance 

All or any portion of the outstanding maturities of the Bonds may be defeased prior to maturity in 
the following ways: 

(a) Cash:  by irrevocably depositing with an independent escrow agent selected by the District 
an amount of cash which, together with amounts transferred from the Debt Service Fund, if any, is sufficient 
to pay all Bonds outstanding and designated for defeasance (including all principal thereof, accrued interest 
thereon, and redemption premiums, if any) at or before their maturity date; or 



 

 14 
 

(b) Government Obligations:  by irrevocably depositing with an independent escrow agent 
selected by the District noncallable Government Obligations, together with amounts transferred from the 
Debt Service Fund, if any, and any other cash, if required, in such amount as will, together with interest to 
accrue thereon, in the opinion of an independent certified public accountant, be fully sufficient to pay and 
discharge all Bonds outstanding and designated for defeasance (including all principal thereof, accrued 
interest thereon, and redemption premiums, if any) at or before their maturity date; 

then, notwithstanding that any of such Bonds shall not have been surrendered for payment, all 
obligations of the District with respect to such designated outstanding Bonds will cease and terminate, 
except only the obligation of the independent escrow agent selected by the District to pay or cause to be 
paid from funds deposited pursuant to paragraphs (a) or (b) above, to the owners of such designated Bonds 
not so surrendered and paid all sums due with respect thereto. 

“Government Obligations” means direct and general obligations of the United States of America, 
obligations that are unconditionally guaranteed as to principal and interest by the United States of America 
(which may consist of obligations of the Resolution Funding Corporation that constitute interest strips), or 
obligations the payment of principal of and interest on which is secured, guaranteed or otherwise backed by, 
directly or indirectly, a pledge of the full faith and credit of the United States of America.  In the case of direct 
and general obligations of the United States of America, Government Obligations shall include evidences 
of direct ownership of proportionate interests in future interest or principal payments of such obligations.  
Investments in such proportionate interests must be limited to circumstances where (a) a bank or trust 
company acts as custodian and holds the underlying United States obligations; (b) the owner of the 
investment is the real party in interest and has the right to proceed directly and individually against the 
obligor of the underlying United States obligations; and (c) the underlying United States obligations are 
held in a special account, segregated from the custodian’s general assets, and are not available to satisfy 
any claim of the custodian, any person claiming through the custodian, or any person to whom the custodian 
may be obligated; provided that such obligations are rated or assessed at least as high as direct and general 
obligations of the United States of America by either S&P Global Ratings, a business unit of Standard & 
Poor’s Financial Services LLC (“S&P”) or Moody’s Investors Service (“Moody’s”). 

ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The estimated sources and uses of funds with respect to the Bonds are as follows: 

Sources of Funds  
 Principal Amount of Bonds  
 Net Original Issue Premium  
  Total Sources  
  
Uses of Funds  

Building Fund  
 Debt Service Fund  
 Costs of Issuance(1)  
 Underwriter’s Discount  
  Total Uses  

_____________________________ 
(1) A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be used to pay costs of issuance thereof, including, but not limited to, legal fees, 
financial advisory fees, printing costs, rating agency fees, the costs and fees of the Paying Agent, and other costs of issuance of the 
Bonds. 



 

 15 
 

TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS 

The information in this section describes ad valorem property taxation, assessed valuation, and 
other measures of the tax base of the District.  The Bonds are payable solely from ad valorem property 
taxes levied and collected by the County on taxable property in the District, which taxes are unlimited as 
to rate or amount.  The District’s general fund is not a source for the repayment of the Bonds. 

Ad Valorem Property Taxation 

District property taxes are assessed and collected by the County at the same time and on the same 
tax rolls as County, city and special district property taxes.  Assessed valuations are the same for both 
District and County taxing purposes. 

Taxes are levied for each fiscal year on taxable real and personal property which is located in the 
District as of the preceding January 1.  For assessment and collection purposes, property is classified either 
as “secured” or “unsecured” and is listed accordingly on separate parts of the assessment roll.  The “secured 
roll” is that part of the assessment roll containing State assessed public utilities property and real property 
having a tax lien which is sufficient, in the opinion of the assessor, to secure payment of the taxes.  
Unsecured property is assessed on the “unsecured roll.”  Unsecured property comprises all property not 
attached to land, such as personal property or business property.  Boats and airplanes are examples of 
unsecured property.  A supplemental roll is developed when property changes hands or new construction 
is completed.  The County levies and collects all property taxes for property falling within the County’s 
taxing boundaries. 

The valuation of secured property is established as of January 1 and is subsequently enrolled in 
August.  Property taxes on the secured roll are payable in two installments, due November 1 and February 
1 of the calendar year.  If unpaid, such taxes become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively, 
and a 10% penalty attaches to any delinquent installment plus any additional amount determined by the 
Treasurer.  After the second installment of taxes on the secured roll is delinquent, the tax collector shall 
collect a cost of $10 for preparing the delinquent tax records and giving notice of delinquency.   Property 
on the secured roll with delinquent taxes is declared tax-defaulted on July 1 of the calendar year.  Such 
property may thereafter be redeemed, until the right of redemption is terminated, by payment of the 
delinquent taxes and the delinquency penalty, plus a $15 redemption fee and a redemption penalty of 1.5% 
per month to the time of redemption.  If taxes are unpaid for a period of five years or more, the property is 
subject to sale by the Treasurer.   

Property taxes on the unsecured roll as of July 31 become delinquent if they are not paid by August 
31 and are thereafter subject to a delinquent penalty of 10%.  Taxes added to the unsecured tax roll after 
July 31, if unpaid, are delinquent and subject to a penalty of 10% on the last day of the month succeeding 
the month of enrollment.  In the case of unsecured property taxes, an additional penalty of 1.5% per month 
begins to accrue when such taxes remain unpaid on the last day of the second month after the 10% penalty 
attaches.  The taxing authority has four ways of collecting unsecured personal property taxes: (1) a civil 
action against the assessee; (2) filing a certificate in the office of the county clerk specifying certain facts 
in order to obtain a judgment lien on specific property of the assessee; (3) filing a certificate of delinquency 
for record in the county recorder’s office in order to obtain a lien on specified property of the assessee; and 
(4) seizure and sale of personal property, improvements or possessory interests belonging or assessed to the 
assessee.  See also “–Secured Tax Charges and Delinquencies” herein. 

State law exempts from taxation $7,000 of the full cash value of an owner-occupied dwelling, but 
this exemption does not result in any loss of revenue to local agencies, since the State reimburses local 
agencies for the value of the exemptions.   



 

 16 
 

All property is assessed using full cash value as defined by Article XIIIA of the State Constitution.  
State law provides exemptions from ad valorem property taxation for certain classes of property, such as 
churches, colleges, non-profit hospitals, and charitable institutions. 

Assessed valuation growth allowed under Article XIIIA (new construction, certain changes of 
ownership, 2% inflation) is allocated on the basis of “situs” among the jurisdictions that serve the tax rate 
area within which the growth occurs.  Local agencies and K-14 school districts (as defined herein) share 
the growth of “base” revenues from the tax rate area.  Each year’s growth allocation becomes part of each 
agency’s allocation in the following year. 

Assessed Valuations 

Property within the District has a total assessed valuation for fiscal year 2017-18 of $6,571,476,945.  
The following table shows a 10-year history of assessed valuations in the District. 

ASSESSED VALUATIONS(1) 
Fiscal Years 2008-09 through 2017-18 
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 Local Secured Utility Unsecured Total 

2008-09  $5,271,986,806 $480,000  $75,407,749   $5,347,874,555 
2009-10   5,140,345,950   480,000   78,402,031   5,219,227,981 
2010-11   4,977,497,767   360,000   66,588,943   5,044,446,710 
2011-12   4,856,486,853              --   62,502,303   4,918,989,156 
2012-13   4,863,695,482 -- 58,648,630 4,922,344,112 
2013-14   4,993,881,755              --   56,648,906   5,050,530,661 
2014-15   5,553,920,171              --   58,709,298   5,612,629,469 
2015-16 5,838,971,177 -- 60,174,539 5,899,145,716 
2016-17   6,163,909,249              -- 57,188,514 6,221,097,763 
2017-18 6,514,743,302              -- 56,733,643 6,571,476,945 

_____________________________ 
(1)  Assessed Valuations include Aircraft Values from 2002-03 through 2013-14. 
Source:   California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Economic and other factors beyond the District’s control, such as general market decline in real 
property values, disruption in financial markets that may reduce availability of financing for purchasers of 
property, reclassification of property to a class exempt from taxation, whether by ownership or use (such 
as exemptions for property owned by the State and local agencies and property used for qualified education, 
hospital, charitable or religious purposes), or the complete or partial destruction of the taxable property 
caused by a natural or manmade disaster, such as earthquake, drought, flood, fire or toxic contamination, 
could cause a reduction in the assessed value of taxable property within the District.  Any such reduction 
would result in a corresponding increase in the annual tax rate levied by the County to pay the debt service 
with respect to the Bonds.  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” herein.    

Appeals and Adjustments of Assessed Valuations   

Under State law, property owners may apply for a reduction of their property tax assessment by 
filing a written application, in form prescribed by the State Board of Equalization (the “SBE”), with the 
appropriate county board of equalization or assessment appeals board.  In most cases, the appeal is filed 
because the applicant believes that present market conditions (such as residential home prices) cause the 
property to be worth less than its current assessed value.  Any reduction in the assessment ultimately granted 
as a result of such appeal applies to the year for which application is made and during which the written 
application was filed.  Such reductions are subject to yearly reappraisals and may be adjusted back to their 



 

 17 
 

original values when market conditions improve.  Once the property has regained its prior value, adjusted 
for inflation, it once again is subject to the annual inflationary factor growth rate allowed under Article 
XIIIA.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT 
REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – Article XIIIA of the California Constitution” herein. 

A second type of assessment appeal involves a challenge to the base year value of an assessed 
property.  Appeals for reduction in the base year value of an assessment, if successful, reduce the assessment 
for the year in which the appeal is taken and prospectively thereafter.  The base year is determined by the 
completion date of new construction or the date of change of ownership.  Any base year appeal must be 
made within four years of the change of ownership or new construction date.  

In addition to the above-described taxpayer appeals, county assessors may independently reduce 
assessed valuations based on changes in the market value of property, or for other factors such as the 
complete or partial destruction of taxable property caused by natural or man-made disasters such as 
earthquakes, floods, fire, drought or toxic contamination pursuant to relevant provisions of the State 
Constitution.  See also “CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING 
DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – Article XIIIA of the California Constitution” herein.  
Such reductions are subject to yearly reappraisals by the county assessor and may be adjusted back to their 
original values when real estate market conditions improve.  Once property has regained its prior assessed 
value, adjusted for inflation, it once again is subject to the annual inflationary growth rate factor allowed 
under Article XIIIA   

The District does not have information regarding pending appeals of assessed valuation of property 
within the District.  No assurance can be given that property tax appeals currently pending or in the future 
will not significantly reduce the assessed valuation of property within the District. 

Assembly Bill 102.  On June 27, 2017, the Governor signed into law Assembly Bill 102 (“AB 
102”).  AB 102 restructures the functions of the SBE and creates two new separate agencies: (i) the 
California Department of Tax and Fee Administration, and (ii) the Office of Tax Appeals.  Under AB 102, 
the California Department of Tax and Fee Administration will take over programs previously in the BOE 
Property Tax Department, such as the Tax Area Services Section, which is responsible for maintaining all 
property tax-rate area maps and for maintaining special revenue district boundaries.  Under AB 102, the 
SBE will continue to perform the duties assigned by the State Constitution related to property taxes, 
however, beginning January 1, 2018, the SBE will only hear appeals related to the programs that it 
constitutionally administers and the Office of Tax Appeals will hear tax appeals will hear appeals on all 
other taxes and fee matters, such as sales and use tax and other special taxes and fees.  AB 102 obligates 
the Office of Tax Appeals to adopt regulations as necessary to carry out its duties, powers, and 
responsibilities.  No assurances can be given as to the effect of such regulations on the appeals process or 
on the assessed valuation of property within the District. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 

  



 

 18 
 

Assessed Valuation of Single Family Homes  

The following table shows a per-parcel analysis of single family residences within the District, in 
terms of their fiscal year 2017-18 assessed valuation.   

ASSESSED VALUATION OF SINGLE FAMILY HOMES  
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

Single Family Residential 11,351 $5,143,879,829 $453,165 $409,539 
 
 2017-18 No. of % of Cumulative Total % of Cumulative 
 Assessed Valuation Parcels(1) Total % of Total Valuation Total % of Total 
 $0 - $49,999 40 0.352% 0.352% $1,543,318 0.030% 0.030% 
 50,000 - 99,999 973 8.572 8.924 75,473,399 1.467 1.497 
 100,000 - 149,999 648 5.709 14.633 80,336,265 1.562 3.059 
 150,000 - 199,999 528 4.652 19.285 91,446,635 1.778 4.837 
 200,000 - 249,999 751 6.616 25.901 170,950,905 3.323 8.160 
 250,000 - 299,999 819 7.215 33.116 225,334,222 4.381 12.541 
 300,000 - 349,999 851 7.497 40.613 276,114,778 5.368 17.909 
 350,000 - 399,999 906 7.982 48.595 340,206,369 6.614 24.522 
 400,000 - 449,999 939 8.272 56.867 399,685,667 7.770 32.293 
 450,000 - 499,999 933 8.220 65.087 442,649,501 8.605 40.898 
 500,000 - 549,999 693 6.105 71.192 362,728,815 7.052 47.950 
 550,000 - 599,999 615 5.418 76.610 353,400,020 6.870 54.820 
 600,000 - 649,999 503 4.431 81.041 314,171,182 6.108 60.928 
 650,000 - 699,999 389 3.427 84.468 261,843,789 5.090 66.018 
 700,000 - 749,999 310 2.731 87.199 224,860,426 4.371 70.389 
 750,000 - 799,999 262 2.308 89.508 203,034,552 3.947 74.336 
 800,000 - 849,999 214 1.885 91.393 176,933,212 3.440 77.776 
 850,000 - 899,999 190 1.674 93.067 166,212,315 3.231 81.007 
 900,000 - 949,999 148 1.304 94.371 136,632,358 2.656 83.664 
 950,000 - 999,999 106 0.934 95.304 103,089,970 2.004 85.668 
 1,000,000 and greater 533 4.696 100.000 737,232,131 14.332 100.000 
 Total 11,351 100.000%  $5,143,879,829 100.000% 
_____________________________ 
 (1)  Improved single family residential parcels.  Excludes condominiums and parcels with multiple family units. 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

  



 

 19 
 

Assessed Valuation and Parcels by Land Use 

The following table shows a per-parcel analysis of the distribution of taxable property within the 
District by principal use, and the fiscal year 2017-18 assessed valuation of such parcels.   

ASSESSED VALUATION AND PARCELS BY LAND USE 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

 2017-18 % of No. of % of 
Non-Residential: Assessed Valuation(1) Total Parcels Total 

  Agricultural/Rural $177,923,465 2.73% 436 2.92% 
  Commercial 193,679,514 2.97 180 1.21 
  Vacant Commercial 7,566,070 0.12 8 0.05 
  Industrial 48,298,657 0.74 11 0.07 
  Recreational 14,300,146 0.22 22 0.15 
  Government/Social/Institutional 38,295,073 0.59 287 1.92 
  Miscellaneous 2,048,316 0.03 84 0.56 
    Subtotal Non-Residential $482,111,241 7.40% 1,028 6.88% 
 
Residential: 
  Single Family Residence $5,143,879,829 78.96% 11,351 76.00% 
  Condominium/Townhouse 343,455,332 5.27 1,266 8.48 
  Mobile Home 1,074,239 0.02 3 0.02 
  Mobile Home Park 7,272,571 0.11 4 0.03 
  Hotel/Motel 10,586,815 0.16 4 0.03 
  2-4 Residential Units 232,771,812 3.57 496 3.32 
  5+ Residential Units/Apartments 249,085,746 3.82 84 0.56 
  Vacant Residential 44,505,717 0.68 699 4.68 
    Subtotal Residential $6,032,632,061 92.60% 13,907 93.12% 
 
Total $6,514,743,302 100.00% 14,935 100.00% 
_____________________________ 
(1)  Local secured assessed valuation; excluding tax-exempt property. 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 

  



 

 20 
 

Assessed Valuation by Jurisdiction 

The following table shows the fiscal year 2017-18 assessed valuation of the District by jurisdiction.   

ASSESSED VALUATION BY JURISDICTION 

Fiscal Year 2017-18 
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 Assessed Valuation % of Assessed Valuation % of Jurisdiction 
Jurisdiction: in District District of Jurisdiction in District 

City of Santa Rosa $5,598,255,983 85.19%  $23,331,136,632  23.99% 
Unincorporated Sonoma County 973,220,962 14.81 $35,517,128,333 2.74 
  Total District $6,571,476,945 100.00%   
     
Sonoma County $6,571,476,945 100.00% $86,118,734,653 7.63% 
_____________________________ 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Alternative Method of Tax Apportionment – “Teeter Plan” 

The Board of Supervisors of the County has implemented the Alternative Method of Distribution 
of Tax Levies and Collections and of Tax Sale Proceeds (the “Teeter Plan”), as provided for in Section 
4701 et seq. of the State Revenue and Taxation Code.  Under the Teeter Plan, the County apportions secured 
property taxes on an accrual basis when due (irrespective of actual collections) to its local political 
subdivisions, including the District, for which the County acts as the tax-levying or tax-collecting agency.   

The Teeter Plan is applicable to all tax levies for which the County acts as the tax-levying or tax-
collecting agency, or for which the County treasury is the legal depository of the tax collections.  As adopted 
by the County, the Teeter Plan excludes Mello-Roos Community Facilities Districts and special assessment 
districts which provide for accelerated judicial foreclosure of property for which assessments are 
delinquent. 

The ad valorem property tax to be levied to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds will be 
subject to the Teeter Plan, beginning in the first year of such levy.  The District will receive 100% of the 
ad valorem property tax levied to pay the principal of and interest on the Bonds irrespective of actual 
delinquencies in the collection of the tax by the County. 

The Teeter Plan is to remain in effect unless the Board of Supervisors of the County orders its 
discontinuance or unless, prior to the commencement of any fiscal year of the County (which commences 
on July 1), the Board of Supervisors receives a petition for its discontinuance joined in by a resolution 
adopted by at least two-thirds of the participating revenue districts in the County.  In the event the Board 
of Supervisors is to order discontinuance of the Teeter Plan subsequent to its implementation, only those 
secured property taxes actually collected would be allocated to political subdivisions (including the District) 
for which the County acts as the tax-levying or tax-collecting agency. 



 

 21 
 

Tax Rates 

A representative tax rate area (a “TRA”) located within the District is TRA 4-009.  The table below 
shows the total ad valorem property tax rates, as a percentage of assessed valuation, levied by all taxing 
entities in this TRA during the five-year period from fiscal years 2012-13 through 2016-17. 

SUMMARY OF AD VALOREM TAX RATES (TRA 4-009) 

Fiscal Years 2012-13 through 2016-17 
Rincon Valley Union School District  

 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 2016-17 

General 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 
Warm Springs Dam .0070 .0070 .0070   .0070   .0070 
Rincon Valley Union School District .0220 .0235 .0525   .0510  .0480 
Santa Rosa High School District .0579 .0550 .0515 .0745 .0710 
Sonoma County Joint Community College District .0210 .0188 .0180 .0160 .0400 
Total 1.1079% 1.1043% 1.1290% 1.1485% 1.1660% 

_____________________________ 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

Principal Taxpayers 

The following table lists the 20 largest local secured taxpayers in the District in terms of their fiscal 
year 2017-18 secured assessed valuations.   

LARGEST LOCAL SECURED TAXPAYERS 
Fiscal Year 2017-18 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

    2017-18 % of 
  Property Owner Primary Land Use Assessed Valuation Total (1) 

 1. Behringer Harvard Santa Rosa LP Apartments $43,754,065 0.67% 
 2. Montgomery Village LP Shopping Center 42,089,850 0.65 
 3. H.N. and Frances C. Berger Foundation Apartments 30,715,263 0.47 
 4. TFT Shadow Creek LP Apartments 24,430,639 0.38 
 5. OSL Santa Rosa Projects LLC Residential Properties 21,674,522 0.33 
 6. Steven Pride Trust Winery 18,223,280 0.28 
 7. Streamside Realty Holdings LP Residential Properties 17,934,580 0.28 
 8. First Class Oak Creek Apartments LP Apartments 16,278,428 0.25 
 9. Bavarian Lion Co. of California Hotel 15,823,991 0.24 
 10. EPC Brush Creek LLC Assisted Living Facility 15,317,007 0.24 
 11. William P. and Cynthia Gallaher Trust Residential Properties 15,185,504 0.23 
 12. Corban Investments Ltd. Shopping Center 13,981,238 0.21 
 13. Henry Cornell Residential Properties 9,822,982 0.15 
 14. Sugar Loaf Ventures LP Winery 9,503,000 0.15 
 15. 6600 Montecito Blvd. LLC Apartments 8,864,690 0.14 
 16. Foothill Plaza Partners LLC Apartments 8,465,374 0.13 
 17. ABSMJS LP Shopping Center 8,045,148 0.12 
 18. First Class Villa Oaks LLC Apartments 7,582,724 0.12 
 19. Storage Pro of Santa Rosa LLC Public Storage 7,327,003 0.11 
 20. Heartland Santa Rosa LP Apartments 6,027,575 0.09 
    $341,046,864 5.24% 
_____________________________ 
 (1)  The fiscal year 2017-18 local secured assessed valuation of the District is $6,514,743,302. 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 



 

 22 
 

Statement of Direct and Overlapping Debt 

Set forth on the following page is a direct and overlapping debt report (the “Debt Report”) prepared 
by California Municipal Statistics, Inc., effective as of August 30, 2017, for debt issued as of September 1, 
2017.  The Debt Report is included for general information purposes only.  The District has not reviewed 
the Debt Report for completeness or accuracy and makes no representation in connection therewith. 

The Debt Report generally includes long-term obligations sold in the public credit markets by 
public agencies whose boundaries overlap the boundaries of the District in whole or in part.  Such long-
term obligations generally are not payable from revenues of the District (except as indicated) nor are they 
necessarily obligations secured by land within the District.  In many cases long-term obligations issued by 
a public agency are payable only from the general fund or other revenues of such public agency. 

The table shows the percentage of each overlapping entity’s assessed value located within the 
boundaries of the District.  The table also shows the corresponding portion of the overlapping entity’s 
existing debt payable from property taxes levied within the District.  The total amount of debt for each 
overlapping entity is not given in the table. 

The first column in the table names each public agency which has outstanding debt as of the date 
of the report and whose territory overlaps the District in whole or in part.  The second column shows the 
percentage of each overlapping agency’s assessed value located within the boundaries of the District.  This 
percentage, multiplied by the total outstanding debt of each overlapping agency (which is not shown in the 
table) produces the amount shown in the third column, which is the apportionment of each overlapping 
agency’s outstanding debt to taxable property in the District. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK]  



 

 23 
 

STATEMENT OF DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
2017-18 Assessed Valuation:  $6,571,476,945 
 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT: % Applicable(1) Debt 9/1/17 
Sonoma County Joint Community College District 7.553% $19,106,824 
Santa Rosa High School District 20.742 22,504,033 
Rincon Valley Union School District 100.000 33,861,604(2) 
City of Santa Rosa 1915 Act Bonds 22.969-100.   2,163,860 
  TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING TAX AND ASSESSMENT DEBT  $77,636,321 
 
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT: 
Sonoma County General Fund Obligations 7.615% $1,444,147 
Sonoma County Pension Obligation Bonds 7.615 30,778,688 
Sonoma County Office of Education Certificates of Participation 7.615 47,975 
Sonoma County Joint Community College District General Fund Obligations 7.553 84,594 
Santa Rosa High School District General Fund Obligations 20.742 2,644,084 
Rincon Valley Union School District Certificates of Participation 100.000 2,581,547 
City of Santa Rosa General Fund Obligations 23.807 3,822,214 
City of Santa Rosa Pension Obligation Bonds 23.807   5,248,253 
  TOTAL DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING GENERAL FUND DEBT  $46,651,502 
 
  COMBINED TOTAL DEBT  $124,287,823(3) 
 
Ratios to 2017-18 Assessed Valuation: 
  Direct Debt ($33,861,604) ................................................................. 0.52% 
  Direct and Overlapping Tax and Assessment Debt ........................... 1.18% 
  Combined Direct Debt ($36,443,151) ............................................. 0.55% 
  Combined Total Debt ......................................................................... 1.89% 
_____________________________ 
(1) Based on 2016-17 ratios. 
(2) Excludes issue to be sold. 
(3) Excludes tax and revenue anticipation notes, enterprise revenue, mortgage revenue and non-bonded capital lease obligations. 
Source:  California Municipal Statistics, Inc. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 

  



 

 24 
 

CONSTITUTIONAL AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT 
REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS 

The Bonds are payable solely from the proceeds of an ad valorem property tax required to be levied 
by the County on taxable property within the District in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof.  See 
“THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” herein.  Articles XIIIA, XIIIB, XIIIC and XIIID of the 
State Constitution, Propositions 98 and 111, and certain other provisions of law discussed below are 
included in this section to describe the potential effect of these Constitutional and statutory measures on 
the ability of the County to levy taxes on behalf of the District and to the District to spend tax proceeds for 
operating and other purposes, and it should not be inferred from the inclusion of such materials that these 
laws impose any limitation on the ability of the County to levy taxes for payment of the Bonds.   

Article XIIIA of the California Constitution 

Article XIIIA (“Article XIIIA”) of the State Constitution limits the amount of ad valorem property 
taxes on real property to 1% of “full cash value” as determined by the county assessor.  Article XIIIA 
defines “full cash value” to mean “the county assessor’s valuation of real property as shown on the 1975-
76 bill under “full cash value,” or thereafter, the appraised value of real property when purchased, newly 
constructed or a change in ownership has occurred after the 1975 assessment,” subject to exemptions in 
certain circumstances of property transfer or reconstruction.  Determined in this manner, the full cash value 
is also referred to as the “base year value.”  The “full cash value” is subject to annual adjustment to reflect 
increases, not to exceed 2% for any year, or decreases in the consumer price index or comparable local data, 
or to reflect reductions in property value caused by damage, destruction or other factors. 

Article XIIIA has been amended to allow for temporary reductions of assessed value in instances 
where the fair market value of real property falls below the adjusted base year value described above.  
Proposition 8—approved by the voters in November of 1978—provides for the enrollment of  the lesser of 
the base year value or the market value of real property, taking into account reductions in value due to 
damage, destruction, depreciation, obsolescence, removal of property, or other factors causing a similar 
decline.  In these instances, the market value is required to be reviewed annually until the market value 
exceeds the base year value, adjusted for inflation.  Reductions in assessed value could result in a 
corresponding increase in the annual tax rates levied by the County to pay debt service on the Bonds.  See 
“THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” and “TAX BASE FOR REPAYMENT OF BONDS” 
herein.  

Article XIIIA requires a vote of two-thirds or more of the qualified electorate of a city, county, 
special district or other public agency to impose special taxes, while totally precluding the imposition of 
any additional ad valorem, sales or transaction tax on real property.  Article XIIIA exempts from the 1% 
tax limitation any taxes above that level required to pay debt service (a) on any indebtedness approved by 
the voters prior to July 1, 1978, or (b) as the result of an amendment approved by State voters on June 3, 
1986, on any bonded indebtedness approved by two-thirds or more of the votes cast by the voters for the 
acquisition or improvement of real property on or after July 1, 1978, or (c) bonded indebtedness incurred 
by a school district or community college district for the construction, reconstruction, rehabilitation or 
replacement of school facilities or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities, approved by 
55% or more of the votes cast on the proposition, but only if certain accountability measures are included 
in the proposition.  The tax for payment of the Bonds falls within the exception described in (c) of the 
immediately preceding sentence.  In addition, Article XIIIA requires the approval of two-thirds or more of 
all members of the legislature of the State (the “State Legislature”) to change any State taxes for the purpose 
of increasing tax revenues. 



 

 25 
 

Legislation Implementing Article XIIIA 

Legislation has been enacted and amended a number of times since 1978 to implement 
Article XIIIA.  Under current law, local agencies are no longer permitted to levy directly any property tax 
(except to pay voter-approved indebtedness).  The 1% property tax is automatically levied by the relevant 
county and distributed according to a formula among taxing agencies.  The formula apportions the tax 
roughly in proportion to the relative shares of taxes levied prior to 1979. 

Increases of assessed valuation resulting from reappraisals of property due to new construction or 
change in ownership or from the annual adjustment not to exceed 2% are allocated among the various 
jurisdictions in the “taxing area” based upon their respective “situs.”  Any such allocation made to a local 
agency continues as part of its allocation in future years. 

All taxable property value included in this Official Statement is shown at 100% of taxable value 
(unless noted differently) and all tax rates reflect the $1 per $100 of taxable value. 

Both the United States Supreme Court and the State Supreme Court have upheld the general validity 
of Article XIIIA. 

Unitary Property 

Some amount of property tax revenue of the District is derived from utility property which is 
considered part of a utility system with components located in many taxing jurisdictions.  Under the State 
Constitution, such property is assessed by the SBE as part of a “going concern” rather than as individual 
pieces of real or personal property.  Such State-assessed property is allocated to the counties by the SBE, 
taxed at special county-wide rates, and the tax revenues distributed to taxing jurisdictions (including the 
District) according to statutory formulae generally based on the distribution of taxes in the prior year. 

So long as the District is not a basic aid district, taxes lost through any reduction in assessed 
valuation will be compensated by the State as equalization aid under the State’s school financing formula.  
See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – State Funding of Education” herein. 

Article XIIIB of the California Constitution 

Article XIIIB (“Article XIIIB”) of the State Constitution, as subsequently amended by Propositions 
98 and 111, respectively, limits the annual appropriations of the State and of any city, county, school district, 
authority or other political subdivision of the State to the level of appropriations of the particular 
governmental entity for the prior fiscal year, as adjusted for changes in the cost of living and in population 
and for transfers in the financial responsibility for providing services and for certain declared emergencies.  
As amended, Article XIIIB defines: 

(a) “change in the cost of living” with respect to school districts to mean the percentage change 
in State per capita income from the preceding year, and 

(b) “change in population” with respect to a school district to mean the percentage change in 
the ADA of the school district from the preceding fiscal year. 

For fiscal years beginning on or after July 1, 1990, the appropriations limit of each entity of 
government shall be the appropriations limit for the 1986-87 fiscal year adjusted for the changes made from 
that fiscal year pursuant to the provisions of Article XIIIB, as amended. 



 

 26 
 

The appropriations of an entity of local government subject to Article XIIIB limitations include the 
proceeds of taxes levied by or for that entity and the proceeds of certain state subventions to that entity.  
“Proceeds of taxes” include, but are not limited to, all tax revenues and the proceeds to the entity from 
(a) regulatory licenses, user charges and user fees (but only to the extent that these proceeds exceed the 
reasonable costs in providing the regulation, product or service), and (b) the investment of tax revenues. 

Appropriations subject to limitation do not include (a) refunds of taxes, (b) appropriations for debt 
service such as the Bonds, (c) appropriations required to comply with certain mandates of the courts or the 
federal government, (d) appropriations of certain special districts, (e) appropriations for all qualified capital 
outlay projects as defined by the State Legislature, (f) appropriations derived from certain fuel and vehicle 
taxes and (g) appropriations derived from certain taxes on tobacco products. 

Article XIIIB includes a requirement that all revenues received by an entity of government other 
than the State in a fiscal year and in the fiscal year immediately following it in excess of the amount 
permitted to be appropriated during that fiscal year and the fiscal year immediately following it shall be 
returned by a revision of tax rates or fee schedules within the next two subsequent fiscal years. 

Article XIIIB also includes a requirement that 50% of all revenues received by the State in a fiscal 
year and in the fiscal year immediately following it in excess of the amount permitted to be appropriated 
during that fiscal year and the fiscal year immediately following it shall be transferred and allocated to the 
State School Fund pursuant to Section 8.5 of Article XVI of the State Constitution.  See “– Propositions 98 
and 111” herein. 

Article XIIIC and Article XIIID of the California Constitution 

On November 5, 1996, the voters of the State approved Proposition 218, popularly known as the 
“Right to Vote on Taxes Act.”  Proposition 218 added to the State Constitution Articles XIIIC and XIIID 
(respectively, “Article XIIIC” and “Article XIIID”), which contain a number of provisions affecting the 
ability of local agencies, including school districts, to levy and collect both existing and future taxes, 
assessments, fees and charges. 

According to the “Title and Summary” of Proposition 218 prepared by the State Attorney General, 
Proposition 218 limits “the authority of local governments to impose taxes and property-related 
assessments, fees and charges.”  Among other things, Article XIIIC establishes that every tax is either a 
“general tax” (imposed for general governmental purposes) or a “special tax” (imposed for specific 
purposes), prohibits special purpose government agencies such as school districts from levying general 
taxes, and prohibits any local agency from imposing, extending or increasing any special tax beyond its 
maximum authorized rate without a two-thirds vote; and also provides that the initiative power will  not be 
limited in matters of reducing or repealing local taxes, assessments, fees and charges.  Article XIIIC further 
provides that no tax may be assessed on property other than ad valorem property taxes imposed in 
accordance with Articles XIII and XIIIA of the State Constitution and special taxes approved by a 
two-thirds vote under Article XIIIA, Section 4.  Article XIIID deals with assessments and property-related 
fees and charges, and explicitly provides that nothing in Article XIIIC or XIIID will be construed to affect 
existing laws relating to the imposition of fees or charges as a condition of property development. 

The District does not impose any taxes, assessments, or property-related fees or charges which are 
subject to the provisions of Proposition 218.  It does, however, receive a portion of the basic 1% ad valorem 
property tax levied and collected by the County pursuant to Article XIIIA of the State Constitution.  The 
provisions of Proposition 218 may have an indirect effect on the District, such as by limiting or reducing 
the revenues otherwise available to other local governments whose boundaries encompass property located 



 

 27 
 

within the District thereby causing such local governments to reduce service levels and possibly adversely 
affecting the value of property within the District. 

Proposition 26 

On November 2, 2010, voters in the State approved Proposition 26. Proposition 26 amends Article 
XIIIC of the State Constitution to expand the definition of “tax”  to include “any levy, charge, or exaction 
of any kind imposed by a local government” except the following:  (1) a charge imposed for a specific 
benefit conferred or privilege granted directly to the payor that is not provided to those not charged, and 
which does not exceed the reasonable costs to the local government of conferring the benefit or granting 
the privilege; (2) a charge imposed for a specific government service or product provided directly to the 
payor that is not provided to those not charged, and which does not exceed the reasonable costs to the local 
government of providing the service or product; (3) a charge imposed for the reasonable regulatory costs 
to a local government for issuing licenses and permits, performing investigations, inspections, and audits, 
enforcing agricultural marketing orders, and the administrative enforcement and adjudication thereof; (4) a 
charge imposed for entrance to or use of local government property, or the purchase, rental, or lease of local 
government property; (5) a fine, penalty, or other monetary charge imposed by the judicial branch of 
government or a local government, as a result of a violation of law; (6) a charge imposed as a condition of 
property development; and (7) assessments and property-related fees imposed in accordance with the 
provisions of Article XIIID.  Proposition 26 provides that the local government bears the burden of proving 
by a preponderance of the evidence that a levy, charge, or other exaction is not a tax, that the amount is no 
more than necessary to cover the reasonable costs of the governmental activity, and that the manner in 
which those costs are allocated to a payor bear a fair or reasonable relationship to the payor’s burdens on, 
or benefits received from, the governmental activity. 

Propositions 98 and 111 

On November 8, 1988, voters of the State approved Proposition 98, a combined initiative 
constitutional amendment and statute called the “Classroom Instructional Improvement and Accountability 
Act” (the “Accountability Act”).  Certain provisions of the Accountability Act have, however, been 
modified by Proposition 111, discussed below, the provisions of which became effective on July 1, 1990.  
The Accountability Act changed State funding of public education below the university level and the 
operation of the State’s appropriations limit.  The Accountability Act guarantees State funding for K-12 
school districts and community college districts (hereinafter referred to collectively as “K-14 school 
districts”) at a level equal to the greater of (a) the same percentage of the State general fund revenues as the 
percentage appropriated to such districts in the 1986-87 fiscal  year, and (b) the amount actually 
appropriated to such districts from the State general fund in the previous fiscal year, adjusted for increases 
in enrollment and changes in the cost of living.  The Accountability Act permits the State Legislature to 
suspend this formula for a one-year period.   

The Accountability Act also changed how tax revenues in excess of the State appropriations limit 
are distributed.  Any excess State tax revenues up to a specified amount are, instead of being returned to 
taxpayers, is transferred to K-14 school districts.  Any such transfer to K-14 school districts is excluded 
from the appropriations limit for K-14 school districts and the K-14 school district appropriations limit for 
the next year is automatically increased by the amount of such transfer.  These additional moneys enter the 
base funding calculation for K-14 school districts for subsequent years, creating further pressure on other 
portions of the State budget, particularly if revenues decline in a year following an Article XIIIB surplus.  
The maximum amount of excess tax revenues which can be transferred to K-14 school districts is 4% of 
the minimum State spending for education mandated by the Accountability Act. 



 

 28 
 

Since the Accountability Act is unclear in some details, there can be no assurances that the State 
Legislature or a court might not interpret the Accountability Act to require a different percentage of State 
general fund revenues to be allocated to K-14 school districts, or to apply the relevant percentage to the 
State’s budgets in a different way than is proposed in the State budget. 

On June 5, 1990, the voters of the State approved Proposition 111 (Senate Constitutional 
Amendment No. 1) called the “Traffic Congestion Relief and Spending Limitation Act of 1990” 
(“Proposition 111”) which further modified Article XIIIB and Sections 8 and 8.5 of Article XVI of the State 
Constitution with respect to appropriations limitations and school funding priority and allocation. 

The most significant provisions of Proposition 111 are summarized as follows: 

a. Annual Adjustments to Spending Limit.  The annual adjustments to the Article XIIIB 
spending limit were liberalized to be more closely linked to the rate of economic growth.  
Instead of being tied to the Consumer Price Index, the “change in the cost of living” is now 
measured by the change in State per capita personal income.  The definition of “change in 
population” specifies that a portion of the State’s spending limit is to be adjusted to reflect 
changes in school attendance. 

b. Treatment of Excess Tax Revenues.  “Excess” tax revenues with respect to Article XIIIB 
are now determined based on a two-year cycle, so that the State can avoid having to return 
to taxpayers excess tax revenues in one year if its appropriations in the next fiscal year are 
under its limit.  In addition, the Proposition 98 provision regarding excess tax revenues was 
modified.  After any two-year period, if there are excess State tax revenues, 50% of the 
excess are to be transferred to K-14 school districts with the balance returned to taxpayers; 
under prior law, 100% of excess State tax revenues went to K-14 school districts, but only 
up to a maximum of 4% of the minimum funding level for such districts.  Also, reversing 
prior law, any excess State tax revenues transferred to K-14 school districts are not built 
into K-14 school districts’ base expenditures for calculating their entitlement for State aid 
in the next year, and the State’s appropriations limit is not to be increased by this amount. 

c. Exclusions from Spending Limit.  Two exceptions were added to the calculation of 
appropriations which are subject to the Article XIIIB spending limit.  First, there are 
excluded all appropriations for “qualified capital outlay projects” as defined by the State 
Legislature.  Second, there are excluded any increases in gasoline taxes above the 1990 
level (then nine cents per gallon), sales and use taxes on such increment in gasoline taxes, 
and increases in receipts from vehicle weight fees above the levels in effect on January 1, 
1990.  These latter provisions were necessary to make effective the transportation funding 
package approved by the State Legislature and the Governor, which was expected to raise 
over $15 billion in additional taxes from 1990 through 2000 to fund transportation 
programs. 

d. Recalculation of Appropriations Limit.  The Article XIIIB appropriations limit for each 
unit of government, including the State, is to be recalculated beginning in fiscal year 1990-
91.  It is based on the actual limit for fiscal year 1986-87, adjusted forward to 1990-91 as 
if Proposition 111 had been in effect. 

e. School Funding Guarantee.  There is a complex adjustment in the formula enacted in 
Proposition 98 which guarantees K-14 school districts a certain amount of State general 
fund revenues.  Under prior law, K-14 school districts were guaranteed the greater of (1) 
40.9% of State general fund revenues (“Test 1”) or (2) the amount appropriated in the prior 



 

 29 
 

year adjusted for changes in the cost of living (measured as in Article XIIIB by reference 
to per capita personal income) and enrollment (“Test 2”).  Under Proposition 111, schools 
will receive the greater of (1) Test 1, (2) Test 2, or (3) a third test (“Test 3”), which will 
replace Test 2 in any year when growth in per capita State general fund revenues from the 
prior year is less than the annual growth in the State per capita personal income.  Under 
Test 3, K-14 school districts will receive the amount appropriated in the prior year adjusted 
for change in enrollment and per capita State general fund revenues, plus an additional 
small adjustment factor.  If Test 3 is used in any year, the difference between Test 3 and 
Test 2 will become a “credit” to schools which will be paid in future years when State 
general fund revenue growth exceeds personal income growth. 

Proposition 39 

On November 7, 2000, State voters approved an amendment (commonly known as Proposition 39) 
to the State Constitution. This amendment (1) allows school facilities bond measures to be approved by 
55% (rather than two-thirds) of the voters in local elections and permits property taxes to exceed the current 
1% limit in order to repay the bonds and (2) changes existing statutory law regarding charter school 
facilities.  As adopted, the constitutional amendments may be changed only with another statewide vote of 
the people. The statutory provisions could be changed by a majority vote of both houses of the State 
Legislature and approval by the Governor, but only to further the purposes of the proposition. The local 
school jurisdictions affected by this proposition are K-12 school districts, including the District, community 
college districts, and county offices of education.  As noted above, the State Constitution previously limited 
property taxes to 1% of the value of property.  Prior to the approval of Proposition 39, property taxes could 
only exceed this limit to pay for (1) any local government debts approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978 
or (2) bonds to acquire or improve real property that receive two-thirds voter approval after July 1, 1978. 

The 55% vote requirement authorized by Proposition 39 applies only if the local bond measure 
presented to the voters includes: (1) a requirement that the bond funds can be used only for construction, 
rehabilitation, equipping of school facilities, or the acquisition or lease of real property for school facilities; 
(2) a specific list of school projects to be funded and certification that the school board has evaluated safety, 
class size reduction, and information technology needs in developing the list; and (3) a requirement that the 
school board conduct annual, independent financial and performance audits until all bond funds have been 
spent to ensure that the bond funds have been used only for the projects listed in the measure. Legislation 
approved in June 2000 placed certain limitations on local school bonds to be approved by 55% of the voters.  
These provisions require that the tax rate projected to be levied as the result of any single election be no 
more than $60 (for a unified school district), $30 (for a high school, such as the District, or elementary 
school district), or $25 (for a community college district) per $100,000 of taxable property value, when 
assessed valuation is projected to increase in accordance with Article XIIIA of the State Constitution.  These 
requirements are not part of Proposition 39 and can be changed with a majority vote of both houses of the 
State Legislature and approval by the Governor.  See “– Article XIIIA of the California Constitution” 
herein. 

Proposition 1A and Proposition 22 

On November 2, 2004, State voters approved Proposition 1A, which amends the State Constitution 
to significantly reduce the State’s authority over major local government revenue sources.  Under 
Proposition 1A, the State cannot (i) reduce local sales tax rates or alter the method of allocating the revenue 
generated by such taxes, (ii) shift property taxes from local governments to schools or community colleges, 
(iii) change how property tax revenues are shared among local governments without two-third approval of 
both houses of the State Legislature or (iv) decrease Vehicle License Fee revenues without providing local 
governments with equal replacement funding.  Proposition 1A does allow the State to approve voluntary 



 

 30 
 

exchanges of local sales tax and property tax revenues among local governments within a county.  
Proposition 1A also amends the State Constitution to require the State to suspend certain State laws creating 
mandates in any year that the State does not fully reimburse local governments for their costs to comply 
with the mandates.  This provision does not apply to mandates relating to schools or community colleges 
or to those mandates relating to employee rights. 

Proposition 22, The Local Taxpayer, Public Safety, and Transportation Protection Act, approved 
by the voters of the State on November 2, 2010, prohibits the State from enacting new laws that require 
redevelopment agencies to shift funds to schools or other agencies and eliminates the State’s authority to 
shift property taxes temporarily during a severe financial hardship of the State.  In addition, Proposition 22 
restricts the State’s authority to use State fuel tax revenues to pay debt service on state transportation bonds, 
to borrow or change the distribution of state fuel tax revenues, and to use vehicle license fee revenues to 
reimburse local governments for state mandated costs.  Proposition 22 impacts resources in the State’s 
general fund and transportation funds, the State’s main funding source for schools and community colleges, 
as well as universities, prisons and health and social services programs.  According to an analysis of 
Proposition 22 submitted by the Legislative Analyst’s Office (the “LAO”) on July 15, 2010, the expected 
reduction in resources available for the State to spend on these other programs as a consequence of the 
passage of Proposition 22 was projected to be approximately $1 billion in fiscal year 2010-11, with an 
estimated immediate fiscal effect equal to approximately 1% of the State’s total general fund spending.  The 
longer-term effect of Proposition 22, according to the LAO analysis, was expected to be an increase in the 
State’s general fund costs by approximately $1 billion annually for several decades.  See also “DISTRICT 
FINANCIAL INFORMATION – State Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies” herein.     

Jarvis vs. Connell 

 On May 29, 2002, the State Court of Appeal for the Second District decided the case of Howard 
Jarvis Taxpayers Association, et al. v. Kathleen Connell (as Controller of the State).  The Court of Appeal 
held that either a final budget bill, an emergency appropriation, a self-executing authorization pursuant to 
state statutes (such as continuing appropriations) or the State Constitution or a federal mandate is necessary 
for the State Controller to disburse funds.  The foregoing requirement could apply to amounts budgeted by 
the District as being received from the State.  To the extent the holding in such case would apply to State 
payments reflected in the District’s budget, the requirement that there be either a final budget bill or an 
emergency appropriation may result in the delay of such payments to the District if such required legislative 
action is delayed, unless the payments are self-executing authorizations or are subject to a federal mandate.  
On May 1, 2003, the State Supreme Court upheld the holding of the Court of Appeal, stating that the 
Controller is not authorized under State law to disburse funds prior to the enactment of a budget or other 
proper appropriation, but under federal law, the Controller is required, notwithstanding a budget impasse 
and the limitations imposed by State law, to timely pay those State employees who are subject to the 
minimum wage and overtime compensation provisions of the federal Fair Labor Standards Act. 

Proposition 30 and 55 

On November 6, 2012, voters of the State approved the Temporary Taxes to Fund Education, 
Guaranteed Local Public Safety Funding, Initiative Constitutional Amendment (also known as “Proposition 
30”), which temporarily increased the State Sales and Use Tax and personal income tax rates on higher 
incomes.  For personal income taxes imposed beginning in the taxable year commencing January 1, 2012 
and ending December 31, 2018, Proposition 30 increases the marginal personal income tax rate by: (i) 1% 
for taxable income over $250,000 but less than $300,001 for single filers (over $500,000 but less than 
$600,001 for joint filers and over $340,000 but less than $408,001 for head-of-household filers), (ii) 2% 
for taxable income over $300,000 but less than $500,001 for single filers (over $600,000 but less than 
$1,000,001 for joint filers and over $408,000 but less than $680,001 for head-of-household filers), and (iii) 



 

 31 
 

3% for taxable income over $500,000 for single filers (over $1,000,000 for joint filers and over $680,000 
for head-of-household filers).  

The California Children’s Education and Health Care Protection Act of 2016 (also known as 
“Proposition 55”) is a constitutional amendment approved by the voters of the State on November 8, 2016.  
Proposition 55 extends the increases to personal income tax rates for high-income taxpayers that were 
approved as part of Proposition 30 through 2030.  Proposition 55 did not extend the temporary State Sales 
and Use Tax rate increase enacted under Proposition 30, which expired as of January 1, 2017. 

The revenues generated from the personal income tax increases will be included in the calculation 
of the Proposition 98 minimum funding guarantee for school districts and community college districts.  See 
“– Propositions 98 and 111” herein.  From an accounting perspective, the revenues generated from the 
personal income tax increases are being deposited into the State account created pursuant to Proposition 30 
called the Education Protection Account (the “EPA”).  Pursuant to Proposition 30, funds in the EPA are 
allocated quarterly, with 89% of such funds provided to school districts and 11% provided to community 
college districts.  The funds are distributed to school districts and community college districts in the same 
manner as existing unrestricted per-student funding, except that no school district will receive less than 
$200 per unit of ADA and no community college district will receive less than $100 per full time equivalent 
student.  The governing board of each school district and community college district is granted sole 
authority to determine how the moneys received from the EPA are spent, provided that the appropriate 
governing board is required to make these spending determinations in open session at a public meeting and 
such local governing board is prohibited from using any funds from the EPA for salaries or benefits of 
administrators or any other administrative costs. 

Proposition 2 

On November 4, 2014, voters approved the Rainy Day Budget Stabilization Fund Act (also known 
as “Proposition 2”).  Proposition 2 is a legislatively-referred constitutional amendment which makes certain 
changes to State budgeting practices, including substantially revising the conditions under which transfers 
are made to and from the State’s Budget Stabilization Account (the “BSA”) established by the California 
Balanced Budget Act of 2004 (also known as Proposition 58).   

Under Proposition 2, and beginning in fiscal year 2015-16 and each fiscal year thereafter, the State 
will generally be required to annually transfer to the BSA an amount equal to 1.5% of estimated State 
general fund revenues (the “Annual BSA Transfer”).  Supplemental transfers to the BSA (a “Supplemental 
BSA Transfer”) are also required in any fiscal year in which the estimated State general fund revenues that 
are allocable to capital gains taxes exceed 8% of the total estimated general fund tax revenues.  Such excess 
capital gains taxes—net of any portion thereof owed to K-14 school districts pursuant to Proposition 98—
will be transferred to the BSA.  Proposition 2 also increases the maximum size of the BSA to an amount 
equal to 10% of estimated State general fund revenues for any given fiscal year.  In any fiscal year in which 
a required transfer to the BSA would result in an amount in excess of the 10% threshold, Proposition 2 
requires such excess to be expended on State infrastructure, including deferred maintenance.   

 

For the first 15-year period ending with the 2029-30 fiscal year, Proposition 2 provides that half of 
any required transfer to the BSA, either annual or supplemental, must be appropriated to reduce certain 
State liabilities, including making certain payments owed to K-14 school districts, repaying State interfund 
borrowing, reimbursing local governments for State mandated services, and reducing or prefunding accrued 
liabilities associated with State-level pension and retirement benefits.  Following the initial 15-year period, 
the Governor and the State Legislature are given discretion to apply up to half of any required transfer to 



 

 32 
 

the BSA to the reduction of such State liabilities.  Any amount not applied towards such reduction must be 
transferred to the BSA or applied to infrastructure, as described above. 

Proposition 2 changes the conditions under which the Governor and the State Legislature may draw 
upon or reduce transfers to the BSA.  The Governor does not retain unilateral discretion to suspend transfers 
to the BSA, nor does the State Legislature retain discretion to transfer funds from the BSA for any reason, 
as previously provided by law.  Rather, the Governor must declare a “budget emergency,” defined as an 
emergency within the meaning of Article XIIIB of the State Constitution or a determination that estimated 
resources are inadequate to fund State general fund expenditures, for the current or ensuing fiscal year, at 
a level equal to the highest level of State spending within the three immediately preceding fiscal years.  Any 
such declaration must be followed by a legislative bill providing for a reduction or transfer.  Draws on the 
BSA are limited to the amount necessary to address the budget emergency, and no draw in any fiscal year 
may exceed 50% of the funds on deposit in the BSA unless a budget emergency was declared in the 
preceding fiscal year.  

Proposition 2 also requires the creation of the Public School System Stabilization Account (the 
“PSSSA”) into which transfers will be made in any fiscal year in which a Supplemental BSA Transfer is 
required (as described above).  Such transfer will be equal to the portion of capital gains taxes above the 
8% threshold that would otherwise be paid to K-14 school districts as part of the minimum funding 
guarantee.  A transfer to the PSSSA will only be made if certain additional conditions are met, as follows: 
(i) the minimum funding guarantee was not suspended in the immediately preceding fiscal year, (ii) the 
operative Proposition 98 formula for the fiscal year in which a PSSSA transfer might be made is “Test 1,” 
(iii) no maintenance factor obligation is being created in the budgetary legislation for the fiscal year in 
which a PSSSA transfer might be made, (iv) all prior maintenance factor obligations have been fully repaid, 
and (v) the minimum funding guarantee for the fiscal year in which a PSSSA transfer might be made is 
higher than the immediately preceding fiscal year, as adjusted for ADA growth and cost of 
living.  Proposition 2 caps the size of the PSSSA at 10% of the estimated minimum guarantee in any fiscal 
year, and any excess funds must be paid to K-14 school districts.  Reductions to any required transfer to the 
PSSSA, or draws on the PSSSA, are subject to the same budget emergency requirements described 
above.  However, Proposition 2 also mandates draws on the PSSSA in any fiscal year in which the estimated 
minimum funding guarantee is less than the prior year’s funding level, as adjusted for ADA growth and 
cost of living. 

Proposition 51 

The Kindergarten Through Community College Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2016 (also 
known as “Proposition 51”) is a voter initiative that was approved by voters on November 8, 2016.  
Proposition 51 authorizes the sale and issuance of $9 billion in general obligation bonds by the State for the 
new construction and modernization of K-14 facilities.  The District makes no guarantee that it will either 
pursue or qualify for Proposition 51 State facilities funding. 

K-12 School Facilities.  Proposition 51 includes $3 billion for the new construction of K-12 
facilities and an additional $3 billion for the modernization of existing K-12 facilities.  K-12 school districts 
will be required to pay for 50% of the new construction costs and 40% of the modernization costs with local 
revenues.  If a school district lacks sufficient local funding, it may apply for additional state grant funding, 
up to 100% of the project costs.  In addition, a total of $1 billion will be available for the modernization 
and new construction of charter school ($500 million) and technical education ($500 million) facilities.  
Generally, 50% of modernization and new construction project costs for charter school and technical 
education facilities must come from local revenues.  However, schools that cannot cover their local share 
for these two types of projects may apply for State loans.  State loans must be repaid over a maximum of 
30 years for charter school facilities and 15 years for career technical education facilities.  For career 



 

 33 
 

technical education facilities, State grants are capped at $3 million for a new facility and $1.5 million for a 
modernized facility.  Charter schools must be deemed financially sound before project approval. 

Community College Facilities.  Proposition 51 includes $2 billion for community college district 
facility projects, including buying land, constructing new buildings, modernizing existing buildings, and 
purchasing equipment.  In order to receive funding, community college districts must submit project 
proposals to the Chancellor of the community college system, who then decides which projects to submit 
to the State Legislature and Governor based on a scoring system that factors in the amount of local funds 
contributed to the project.  The Governor and State Legislature will select among eligible projects as part 
of the annual state budget process. 

The table below shows the expected use of bond funds under Proposition 51: 

PROPOSITION 51 
Use of Bond Funds 

(In Millions) 

K-12 Public School Facilities  
New construction $3,000 
Modernization 3,000 
Career technical education facilities 500 
Charter school facilities      500 
Subtotal $7,000 

Community College Facilities $2,000 
Total $9,000 

 
The District can make no representation or guarantee that it will either pursue or qualify for 

Proposition 51 facilities funding from the State. 

Future Initiatives 

Article XIIIA, Article XIIIB, Article XIIIC and Article XIIID of the State Constitution and 
Propositions 22, 26, 30, 39, and 98 were each adopted as measures that qualified for the ballot pursuant to 
the State’s initiative process.  From time to time other initiative measures could be adopted further affecting 
District revenues or the District’s ability to expend revenues.  The nature and impact of these measures 
cannot be anticipated by the District. 

  



 

 34 
 

DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The information in this section concerning the District’s general fund finances is provided as 
supplementary information only, and it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this information in this 
Official Statement that the principal of or interest on the Bonds is payable from the general fund of the 
District.  The Bonds are payable solely from the proceeds of an ad valorem property tax required to be 
levied by the County on taxable property within the District in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof.  
See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” herein. 

State Funding of Education 

School district revenues consist primarily of guaranteed State moneys, local property taxes and 
funds received from the State in the form of categorical aid under ongoing programs of local assistance.  
All State aid is subject to the appropriation of funds in the State’s annual budget.   

Revenue Limit Funding.  Previously, school districts operated under general purpose revenue 
limits established by the State Department of Education.  In general, revenue limits were calculated for each 
school district by multiplying the ADA for such district by a base revenue limit per unit of ADA.  Revenue 
limit calculations were subject to adjustment in accordance with a number of factors designed to provide 
cost of living adjustments (“COLAs”) and to equalize revenues among school districts of the same type.  
Funding of a school district’s revenue limit was provided by a mix of local property taxes and State 
apportionments of basic and equalization aid.  Since fiscal year 2013-14, school districts have been funded 
based on a uniform system of funding grants assigned to certain grade spans.  See “– Local Control Funding 
Formula” herein. 

Local Control Funding Formula.  State Assembly Bill 97 (Stats. 2013, Chapter 47) (“AB 97”), 
enacted as part of the fiscal year 2013-14 State budget, established a new system for funding school districts, 
charter schools and county offices of education.  Certain provisions of AB 97 were amended and clarified 
by Senate Bill 91 (Stats. 2013, Chapter 49) (“SB 91”). 

The primary component of AB 97, as amended by SB 91, was the implementation of the Local 
Control Funding Formula (“LCFF”), which replaced the revenue limit funding system for determining State 
apportionments, as well as the majority of State categorical program funding.  State allocations are provided 
on the basis of target base funding grants per unit of ADA (a “Base Grant”) assigned to each of four grade 
spans.  Each Base Grant is subject to certain adjustments and add-ons, as discussed below.  Full 
implementation of the LCFF is expected to occur over a period of several fiscal years.  Beginning in fiscal 
year 2013-14, an annual transition adjustment is required to be calculated for each school district, equal to 
such district’s proportionate share of appropriations included in the State budget to close the gap between 
the prior-year funding level and the target allocation following full implementation of the LCFF.  In each 
year, school districts will have the same proportion of their respective funding gaps closed, with dollar 
amounts varying depending on the size of a district’s funding gap.   

The Base Grants per unit of ADA for each grade span are as follows: (i) $6,845 for grades K-3; (ii) 
$6,947 for grades 4-6; (iii) $7,154 for grades 7-8; and (iv) $8,289 for grades 9-12.  Beginning in fiscal year 
2013-14, and in each subsequent year, the Base Grants are to be adjusted for COLAs by applying the 
implicit price deflator for government goods and services.  Following full implementation of the LCFF, the 
provision of COLAs will be subject to appropriation for such adjustment in the annual State budget.  The 
differences among Base Grants are linked to differentials in statewide average revenue limit rates by district 
type, and are intended to recognize the generally higher costs of education at higher grade levels.  See “– 
State Budget Measures” herein for information on the adjusted Base Grants provided by current State 
budgetary legislation. 



 

 35 
 

The Base Grants for grades K-3 and 9-12 are subject to adjustments of 10.4% and 2.6%, 
respectively, to cover the costs of class size reduction in early grades and the provision of career technical 
education in high schools.  Following full implementation of the LCFF, and unless otherwise collectively 
bargained for, school districts serving students in grades K-3 must maintain an average class enrollment of 
24 or fewer students in grades K-3 at each school site in order to continue receiving the adjustment to the 
K-3 Base Grant.  Such school districts must also make progress towards this class size reduction goal in 
proportion to the growth in their funding over the implementation period.  Additional add-ons are also 
provided to school districts that received categorical block grant funding pursuant to the Targeted 
Instructional Improvement and Home-to-School Transportation programs during fiscal year 2012-13.   

School districts that serve students of limited English proficiency (“EL” students), students from 
low income families who are eligible for free or reduced priced meals (“LI” students) and foster youth are 
eligible to receive additional funding grants.  Enrollment counts are unduplicated, such that students may 
not be counted as both EL and LI (foster youth automatically meet the eligibility requirements for free or 
reduced priced meals, and are therefore not discussed separately herein).  A supplemental grant add-on 
(each, a “Supplemental Grant”) is authorized for school districts that serve EL/LI students, equal to 20% of 
the applicable Base Grant multiplied by such district’s percentage of unduplicated EL/LI student 
enrollment.  School districts whose EL/LI populations exceed 55% of their total enrollment are eligible for 
a concentration grant add-on (each, a “Concentration Grant”) equal to 50% of the applicable Base Grant 
multiplied by the percentage of such district’s unduplicated EL/LI student enrollment in excess of the 55% 
threshold. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

  



 

 36 
 

 

The following table shows the District’s ADA, enrollment, and percentage of EL/LI student 
enrollment, for fiscal years 2012-13 through 2016-17 and a budgeted amount for fiscal year 2017-18. 

ADA, ENROLLMENT AND EL/LI ENROLLMENT PERCENTAGE 
Fiscal Years 2012-13 through 2017-18 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 Average Daily Attendance(1) Enrollment(2) 

Fiscal 
Year K-3 4-6 

 
7-8 

Total 
ADA 

Total 
Enrollment 

% of 
EL/LI 

Enrollment 

2012-13 1,693.71 1,246.31 255.65 3,195.67 3,373 37.89 
2013-14 1,774.31 1,295.47 242.98 3,312.76 3,495 38.97 
2014-15 1,829.09 1,287.03 278.61 3,394.73 3,632 39.62
2015-16 1,818.66 1,375.48 257.28 3,451.42 3,571 39.85 
2016-17 1,763.35 1,343.96 326.71 3,434.02 3,551 35.76 
2017-18(3) 1,700.17 1,353.89 331.67 3,385.73 3,510 36.18 

_____________________________ 
(1)   Except for fiscal year 2017-18, reflects P-2 ADA, which ends on or before the last attendance month prior to April 15 of each 
school year.  An attendance month is equal to each four-week period of instruction beginning with the first day of school for a 
particular school district.  Includes TK-8, home and hospital, special education and community day school, but excludes 
independent charter school students.  
(2) For fiscal year 2012-13, reflects enrollment as of the October report submitted to the California Basic Educational Data System 
(“CBEDS”) in such school year.  For fiscal years 2013-14 through 2015-16, reflects certified enrollment as of the fall census day 
(the first Wednesday in October), which is reported to the California Longitudinal Pupil Achievement Data System (“CALPADS”) 
in each school year and is used to calculate each school district’s unduplicated EL/LI student enrollment.  Adjustments may be 
made to the certified EL/LI counts by the State Department of Education.  For purposes of calculating Supplemental and 
Concentration Grants, a school district’s fiscal year 2013-14 percentage of unduplicated EL/LI students is expressed solely as a 
percentage of its total fiscal year 2013-14 enrollment.  For fiscal year 2014-15, the percentage of unduplicated EL/LI enrollment is 
based on the two-year average of EL/LI enrollment in fiscal years 2013-14 and 2014-15.  Beginning in fiscal year 2015-16, a school 
district’s percentage of unduplicated EL/LI students is based on a rolling average of such district’s EL/LI enrollment for the then-
current fiscal year and the two immediately preceding fiscal years. 
(3)   Budgeted. 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 

For certain school districts that would have received greater funding levels under the prior revenue 
limit system, the LCFF provides for a permanent economic recovery target (“ERT”) add-on, equal to the 
difference between the revenue limit allocations such districts would have received under the prior system 
in fiscal year 2020-21, and the target LCFF allocations owed to such districts in the same year.  To derive 
the projected funding levels, the LCFF assumes the discontinuance of deficit revenue limit funding, 
implementation of a 1.94% COLA in fiscal years 2014-15 through 2020-21, and restoration of categorical 
funding to pre-recession levels.  The ERT add-on will be paid incrementally over the LCFF implementation 
period.  The District does not qualify for the ERT add-on. 

The sum of a school district’s adjusted Base, Supplemental and Concentration Grants will be 
multiplied by such district’s P-2 ADA for the current or prior year, whichever is greater (with certain 
adjustments applicable to small school districts).  This funding amount, together with any applicable ERT 
or categorical block grant add-ons, will yield a district’s total LCFF allocation.  Generally, the amount of 
annual State apportionments received by a school district will amount to the difference between such total 
LCFF allocation and such district’s share of applicable local property taxes.  Most school districts receive 
a significant portion of their funding from such State apportionments.  As a result, decreases in State 
revenues may significantly affect appropriations made by the State Legislature to school districts. 



 

 37 
 

Certain school districts, known as “basic aid” districts, have allocable local property tax collections 
that equal or exceed such districts’ total LCFF allocation, and result in the receipt of no State apportionment 
aid.  Basic aid school districts receive only special categorical funding, which is deemed to satisfy the “basic 
aid” requirement of $120 per student per year guaranteed by Article IX, Section 6 of the State Constitution.  
The implication for basic aid districts is that the legislatively determined allocations to school districts, and 
other politically determined factors, are less significant in determining their primary funding sources.  
Rather, property tax growth and the local economy are the primary determinants.  The District does not 
currently qualify as a basic aid district.  

Accountability.  Regulations adopted by the State Board of Education require that school districts 
increase or improve services for EL/LI students in proportion to the increase in funds apportioned to such 
districts on the basis of the number and concentration of such EL/LI students, and detail the conditions 
under which school districts can use supplemental or concentration funding on a school-wide or 
district-wide basis. 

School districts are also required to adopt local control and accountability plans (“LCAPs”) 
disclosing annual goals for all students, as well as certain numerically significant student subgroups, to be 
achieved in eight areas of State priority identified by the LCFF.  LCAPs may also specify additional local 
priorities.  LCAPs must specify the actions to be taken to achieve each goal, including actions to correct 
identified deficiencies with regard to areas of State priority.  LCAPs are required to be adopted every three 
years, beginning in fiscal year 2014-15, and updated annually thereafter.  The State Board of Education has 
developed and adopted a template LCAP for use by school districts. 

Support and Intervention.  AB 97, as amended by SB 91, establishes a new system of support and 
intervention to assist school districts in meeting the performance expectations outlined in their respective 
LCAPs.  School districts must adopt their LCAPs (or annual updates thereto) in tandem with their annual 
operating budgets, and not later than five days thereafter submit such LCAPs or updates to their respective 
county superintendents of schools.  On or before August 15 of each year, a county superintendent may seek 
clarification regarding the contents of a district’s LCAP (or annual update thereto), and the district is 
required to respond to such a request within 15 days.  Within 15 days of receiving such a response, the 
county superintendent can submit non-binding recommendations for amending the LCAP or annual update, 
and such recommendations must be considered by the respective school district at a public hearing within 
15 days.  A district’s LCAP or annual update must be approved by the county superintendent by October 8 
of each year if the superintendent determines that (i) the LCAP or annual update adheres to the State 
template, and (ii) the district’s budgeted expenditures are sufficient to implement the actions and strategies 
outlined in the LCAP.   

A school district is required to receive additional support if its respective LCAP or annual update 
thereto is not approved, if the district requests technical assistance from its applicable county 
superintendent, or if the district does not improve student achievement across more than one State priority 
for one or more student subgroups.  Such support can include a review of a district’s strengths and 
weaknesses in the eight State priority areas, or the assignment of an academic expert to assist the district 
with identifying and implementing programs designed to improve outcomes.  Assistance may be provided 
by the California Collaborative for Educational Excellence, a state agency created by the LCFF and charged 
with assisting school districts with achieving the goals set forth in their LCAPs.  The State Board of 
Education has developed rubrics to assess school district performance and the need for support and 
intervention.  



 

 38 
 

The State Superintendent of Public Instruction (the “State Superintendent”) is further authorized, 
with the approval of the State Board of Education, to intervene in the management of persistently 
underperforming school districts.  The State Superintendent may intervene directly or assign an academic 
trustee to act on his or her behalf.  In so doing, the State Superintendent is authorized to (i) modify a 
district’s LCAP, (ii) impose budget revisions designed to improve student outcomes, and (iii) stay or rescind 
actions of the local governing board that would prevent such district from improving student outcomes; 
provided, however, that the State Superintendent is not authorized to rescind an action required by a local 
collective bargaining agreement. 

Other State Sources.  In addition to State allocations determined pursuant to the LCFF, the District 
receives other State revenues consisting primarily of restricted revenues designed to implement State 
mandated programs.  Beginning in fiscal year 2013-14, categorical spending restrictions associated with a 
majority of State mandated programs were eliminated, and funding for these programs was folded into the 
LCFF.  Categorical funding for certain programs was excluded from the LCFF, and school districts will 
continue to receive restricted State revenues to fund these programs. 

Other Revenue Sources 

Federal and Local Sources.  The federal government provides funding for several of the District’s 
programs, including special education programs, programs under the Every Student Succeeds Act, and 
specialized programs such as Drug Free Schools, Innovative Strategies, and Vocational & Applied 
Technology.  In addition, school districts may receive additional local revenues beyond local property tax 
collections, such as from parcel taxes, leases and rentals, interest earnings, interagency services, developer 
fees, redevelopment revenues, foundation revenues, and other local sources. 

Parcel Tax.  Parcel taxes are “special taxes” under the California Constitution, requiring the 
approval of 2/3 of the voters voting on the measure.  On April 11, 2006, the voters of the District approved 
a 12-year parcel tax, initially set at $60 per parcel, with an annual $3 increase each year (the “2006 Parcel 
Tax”).  The 2006 Parcel Tax is currently $93 per parcel and expires on June 30, 2018.   

 
On November 8, 2016, the voters of the District approved a 12-year renewal parcel tax, initially 

set at $96 per parcel, with an annual $3 increase each year (the “2016 Parcel Tax,” and together with the 
2006 Parcel Tax, the “Parcel Taxes”). The 2016 Parcel Tax will commence on July 1, 2018. 
 

Proceeds from the P a r c e l  T a x e s  w i l l  b e  u s e d  t o  s u p p l e m e n t  t h e  D i s t r i c t ’ s  
o p e r a t i n g  f u n d . The Parcel Taxes are a per-parcel special tax levied uniformly on all taxable property 
in the District.  The Parcel Taxes provide exemptions for property owners who are 65 years and older that 
file for an exemption from the tax. 
 

The  revenues  produced  for  the  District  by  the  200 6  Parcel  Tax  in  fiscal  year  2015-16 
were $1,087,945.  Revenues produced for the District by the 2006 Parcel Tax in fiscal year 2016-17 were 
$1,142,535. The District budgets the 2006 Parcel Tax to produce $1,181,927 in revenues during fiscal year 
2017-18.   



 

 39 
 

Foundation.   The Rincon Valley Education Foundation (the “Foundation”) is an independent 
501(c)(3) nonprofit corporation, providing financial support to the District, which has been in existence 
for sixteen years.  Under Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) rules, the Foundation is 
not a component unit of the District for financial reporting purposes.  The District deposits the contributions 
made by the Foundation in to its General Fund, and uses contributions to fund music programs, physical 
education, and science facilitators.   

 

Developer Fees.   The following table shows a 10-year history of developer fees collected on 
residential and commercial development within the District and a budgeted amount for fiscal year 2017-
18: 

 
DEVELOPER FEES 

COLLECTIONS Rincon Valley 
Union School District Fiscal Years 

2006-07 through 2017-18 
 

 
Fiscal Year 

Developer Fees 
Collected 

2007-08 $155,574.87 
2008-09 82,821.70 
2009-10 67,071.68 
2010-11 18,778.67 
2011-12 19,026.23 
2012-13 126,639.96 
2013-14 100,021.66 
2014-15 124,088.64 
2015-16 229,133.38 
2016-17 339,005.28 
2017-18(1) 230,745.64 

_____________________________ 
(1) Budgeted. 
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District. 
 

State Dissolution of Redevelopment Agencies 

On December 30, 2011, the State Supreme Court issued its decision in the case of California 
Redevelopment Association v. Matosantos (“Matosantos”), finding ABX1 26, a trailer bill to the 2011-12 
State budget, to be constitutional.  As a result, all redevelopment agencies in the State ceased to exist as a 
matter of law on February 1, 2012.  The Court in Matosantos also found that ABX1 27, a companion bill 
to ABX1 26, violated the State Constitution, as amended by Proposition 22.  See “CONSTITUTIONAL 
AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS AFFECTING DISTRICT REVENUES AND APPROPRIATIONS – 
Proposition 1A and Proposition 22” herein.  ABX1 27 would have permitted redevelopment agencies to 
continue operations provided their establishing cities or counties agreed to make specified payments to 
school districts and county offices of education, totaling $1.7 billion statewide.   

ABX1 26 was modified by Assembly Bill No. 1484 (Chapter 26, Statutes of 2011-12) (“AB 1484”), 
which, together with ABx1 26, is referred to herein as the “Dissolution Act.”  The Dissolution Act provides 
that all rights, powers, duties and obligations of a redevelopment agency under the California Community 
Redevelopment Law that have not been repealed, restricted or revised pursuant to ABx1 26 will be vested 
in a successor agency, generally the county or city that authorized the creation of the redevelopment agency 
(each, a “Successor Agency”).  All property tax revenues that would have been allocated to a redevelopment 



 

 40 
 

agency, less the corresponding county auditor-controller’s cost to administer the allocation of property tax 
revenues, are now allocated to a corresponding Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund (“Trust Fund”), 
to be used for the payment of pass-through payments to local taxing entities, and thereafter to bonds of the 
former redevelopment agency and any “enforceable obligations” of the Successor Agency, as well as to 
pay certain administrative costs.  The Dissolution Act defines “enforceable obligations” to include bonds, 
loans, legally required payments, judgments or settlements, legal binding and enforceable obligations, and 
certain other obligations.   

Among the various types of enforceable obligations, the first priority for payment is tax allocation 
bonds issued by the former redevelopment agency; second is revenue bonds, which may have been issued 
by the host city, but only where the tax increment revenues were pledged for repayment and only where 
other pledged revenues are insufficient to make scheduled debt service payments; third is administrative 
costs of the Successor Agency, not to exceed $250,000 in any year, to the extent such costs have been 
approved in an administrative budget; then, fourth tax revenues in the Trust Fund in excess of such amounts, 
if any, will be allocated as residual distributions to local taxing entities in the same proportions as other tax 
revenues.  Moreover, all unencumbered cash and other assets of former redevelopment agencies will also 
be allocated to local taxing entities in the same proportions as tax revenues.  Notwithstanding the foregoing 
portion of this paragraph, the order of payment is subject to modification in the event a Successor Agency 
timely reports to the State Controller and the State Department of Finance that application of the foregoing 
will leave the Successor Agency with amounts insufficient to make scheduled payments on enforceable 
obligations.  If the county auditor-controller verifies that the Successor Agency will have insufficient 
amounts to make scheduled payments on enforceable obligations, it shall report its findings to the State 
Controller.  If the State Controller agrees there are insufficient funds to pay scheduled payments on 
enforceable obligations, the amount of such deficiency shall be deducted from the amount remaining to be 
distributed to taxing agencies, as described as the fourth distribution above, then from amounts available to 
the Successor Agency to defray administrative costs.  In addition, if a taxing agency entered into an 
agreement pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 33401 for payments from a redevelopment agency 
under which the payments were to be subordinated to certain obligations of the redevelopment agency, such 
subordination provisions shall continue to be given effect. 

As noted above, the Dissolution Act expressly provides for continuation of pass-through payments 
to local taxing entities, including the District.  Per statute, 100% of contractual and statutory two percent 
pass-throughs, and 56.7% of statutory pass-throughs authorized under the Community Redevelopment Law 
Reform Act of 1993 (AB 1290, Chapter 942, Statutes of 1993) (“AB 1290”), are restricted to educational 
facilities without offset against apportionments by the State.  Only 43.3% of AB 1290 pass-throughs are 
offset against State aid so long as the District uses the moneys received for land acquisition, facility 
construction, reconstruction, or remodeling, or deferred maintenance as provided under Education Code 
Section 42238(h).  

ABX1 26 states that in the future, pass-throughs shall be made in the amount “which would have 
been received had the redevelopment agency existed at that time,” and that the County Auditor-Controller 
shall “determine the amount of property taxes that would have been allocated to each redevelopment agency 
had the redevelopment agency not been dissolved pursuant to the operation of ABX1 26 using current 
assessed values and pursuant to statutory [pass-through] formulas and contractual agreements with other 
taxing agencies.” 

Successor Agencies continue to operate until all enforceable obligations have been satisfied and all 
remaining assets of the Successor Agency have been disposed of.  AB 1484 provides that once the debt of 
the Successor Agency is paid off and remaining assets have been disposed of, the Successor Agency shall 
terminate its existence and all pass-through payment obligations shall cease. 



 

 41 
 

The District can make no representations as to the extent to which any apportionments from the 
State may be offset by the future receipt of residual distributions or from unencumbered cash and assets of 
former redevelopment agencies or any other surplus property tax revenues pursuant to the Dissolution Act. 

Budget Process 

State Budgeting Requirements.  The District is required by provisions of the Education Code to 
maintain a balanced budget each year, in which the sum of expenditures and the ending fund balance cannot 
exceed the sum of revenues and the carry-over fund balance from the previous year.  The State Department 
of Education imposes a uniform budgeting and accounting format for school districts.  The budget process 
for school districts was substantially amended by Assembly Bill 1200 (“AB 1200”), which became State 
law on October 14, 1991.  Portions of AB 1200 are summarized below.  Subsequent legislation has made 
certain amendments to the budgeting process, including Senate Bill 97, effective as of September 26, 2013 
(requiring budgets to include sufficient funds to implement LCAPs), Senate Bill 858, effective as of June 
20, 2014 (requiring ending fund balances to exceed the minimum recommended reserve for economic 
uncertainties), and Assembly Bill 2585, effective as of September 9, 2014 (eliminating the dual budget 
cycle option for school districts). 

School districts must adopt a budget on or before July 1 of each year.  The budget must be submitted 
to the county superintendent within five days of adoption or by July 1, whichever occurs first.  The county 
superintendent will examine the adopted budget for compliance with the standards and criteria adopted by 
the State Board of Education and identify technical corrections necessary to bring the budget into 
compliance, and will determine if the budget allows the district to meet its current obligations, if the budget 
is consistent with a financial plan that will enable the district to meet its multi-year financial commitments, 
whether the budget includes the expenditures necessary to implement a LCAP, and whether the budget’s 
ending fund balance exceeds the minimum recommended reserve for economic uncertainties. 

On or before September 15, the county superintendent will approve, conditionally approve or 
disapprove the adopted budget for each school district.  Budgets will be disapproved if they fail the above 
standards.  The district board must be notified by September 15 of the county superintendent’s 
recommendations for revision and reasons for the recommendations.  The county superintendent may assign 
a fiscal advisor or appoint a committee to examine and comment on the superintendent’s recommendations.  
The committee must report its findings no later than September 20.  Any recommendations made by the 
county superintendent must be made available by the district for public inspection.  No later than October 
22, the county superintendent must notify the State Superintendent of Public Instruction of all school 
districts whose budget may be disapproved. 

A school district whose budget has been disapproved must revise and readopt its budget by October 
8, reflecting changes in projected income and expense since July 1, including responding to the county 
superintendent’s recommendations.  The county superintendent must determine if the budget conforms with 
the standards and criteria applicable to final school district budgets and not later than November 8, must 
approve or disapprove the revised budgets.  If the budget is disapproved, the county superintendent will 
call for the formation of a budget review committee pursuant to Education Code Section 42127.1.  No later 
than November 8, the county superintendent must notify the State Superintendent of Public Instruction of 
all school districts whose budget has been disapproved.  Until a school district’s budget is approved, the 
school district will operate on the lesser of its proposed budget for the current fiscal year or the last budget 
adopted and reviewed for the prior fiscal year. 



 

 42 
 

Interim Financial Reporting.  Under the provisions of AB 1200, each school district is required to 
file interim certifications with the county office of education as to its ability to meet its financial obligations 
for the remainder of the then-current fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, for the subsequent two fiscal 
years.  The county office of education reviews the certification and issues either a positive, negative or 
qualified certification.  A positive certification is assigned to any school district that will meet its financial 
obligations for the current fiscal year and subsequent two fiscal years.  A negative certification is assigned 
to any school district that will be unable to meet its financial obligations for the remainder of the current 
fiscal year or the subsequent fiscal year.  A qualified certification is assigned to any school district that may 
not meet its financial obligations for the current fiscal year or the two subsequent fiscal years. 

The District has never had an adopted budget disapproved by the county superintendent of schools 
and, within the past five years, the District has not received a “negative” or “qualified” certification of an 
Interim Financial Report pursuant to AB 1200. 

Budgeting Trends.  The table on the following page summarizes the District’s general fund adopted 
budgets for fiscal years 2012-13 through 2017-18, audited ending results for fiscal years 2012-13 through 
2015-16, and estimated actuals for fiscal year 2016-17. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 



 

43 
 

 

GENERAL FUND BUDGETING 

Fiscal Years 2013-14 through 2017-18 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 
Fiscal Year  

2013-14 
Fiscal Year  

2014-15 
Fiscal Year  

2015-16 
Fiscal Year 

2016-17 
Fiscal Year 

2017-18 
 Budgeted(1) Audited(1) Budgeted(1) Audited(1) Budgeted(1) Audited(1) Budgeted(2) Estimated(3) Budgeted(3) 

REVENUES          
LCFF/Revenue Limit Sources $15,695,829 $23,118,679 $22,415,484 $25,427,651 $27,514,433 $28,290,956 $29,072,363 $29,003,610 $29,090,255 
Federal Sources 1,149,362 1,137,987 1,007,990 1,205,356 1,080,669 1,447,720 1,070,038 1,191,916 1,088,667 
Other State Sources 4,557,738 1,697,045 965,366 1,624,100 2,605,773 4,363,862 3,271,997 3,311,230 2,069,164 
Other Local Sources 7,498,929 8,089,425 8,161,459 8,414,467 8,650,327 7,951,013 6,771,979 7,201,392 7,321,182 

Total Revenues 28,901,858 34,043,136 32,550,299 36,671,574 39,851,202 42,053,551 40,186,578 40,708,147 39,569,268 

EXPENDITURES          
Current :          

Certificated Salaries 13,805,385 14,544,021 15,313,909 15,386,100 16,720,100 16,325,023 16,470,149 17,074,087 16,628,175 
Classified Salaries 4,843,168 5,310,958 5,545,999 5,744,093 6,060,026 6,191,690 6,193,582 6,364,212 6,527,575 
Employee Benefits 5,468,078 5,506,401 6,104,541 6,755,888 6,486,844 7,658,070 8,326,824 8,438,792 8,710,443 
Books & Supplies 1,436,125 2,047,332 1,679,379 1,727,525 1,784,345 2,146,440 2,237,450 2,649,091 1,415,297 
Services & Operating 
Expenditures 

3,433,845 3,681,754 3,783,913 3,615,580 3,903,700 3,632,435 3,902,809 4,043,040 3,296,109 

Capital Outlay 253,351 273,952 95,677 533,563 685,758 881,865 2,178,233 2,254,806 509,118 
Other Outgo (15,115) (14,794) (50,268) (9,837) 4,500 8,083 (8,510) (3,408) (6,936) 

Total Expenditures 29,224,837 31,349,624 32,473,150 33,752,912 35,645,273 36,843,606 39,330,537 40,820,621 37,079,781 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
Over Expenditures 

(322,979) 2,693,512 77,149 2,918,662 4,205,929 5,209,945 886,041 (112,474) 2,489,487 

Other Financing Sources (Uses)          
Transfers In 61,500 50,760 50,760 287,712 4,350,760 73,700 4,681,351 4,465,097 4,297,935 
Transfers Out(4) (178,715) (2,452,000) (457,278) (3,172,073) (6,730,565) (3,230,565) 7,596,701 7,380,447 7,213,285 

Net Financing Sources (Uses) (117,215) (2,401,240) (406,518) (2,884,361) (2,379,805) (3,156,865) (2,915,350) (2,915,350) (2,915,350) 

Net Change in Fund Balance (440,194) 292,272 (329,369) 34,301 1,826,124 2,053,080 (2,029,308) (3,027,824) (425,863) 

Fund Balance - Beginning 9,741,560 9,741,560 10,033,832 10,033,832 10,068,133 10,068,133 12,121,213 12,121,213 9,093,389 

Fund Balance – Ending $9,301,366 $10,033,832 $9,704,463 $10,068,133 $11,894,257 $12,121,213 $10,091,093 $9,093,389 $8,667,526 
_____________________________ 
Note:  Amounts may not total due to rounding. 
(1)  From the District’s comprehensive audited financial statements for fiscal years 2013-14 through 2015-16.  Reflects restricted and unrestricted general fund activity.   
(2)  From the District’s Second Interim Financial Report for fiscal year 2016-17, approved by the Board on March 14, 2017.  Reflects the Board Approved Operating Budget for restricted and unrestricted 
general fund activity. 
(3)  From the District’s Budget for fiscal year 2017-18, approved by the Board on June 13, 2017.  Reflects the estimated actuals for fiscal year 2016-17 for restricted and unrestricted general fund activity. 
(4)  Audited transfers reflect monies transferred from the General Fund to the Capital Improvement Fund only after the State has committed related funding for capital improvement projects after the 
applicable year’s budget approval. 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 



 

44 
 

 

Accounting Practices 

The accounting practices of the District conform to generally accepted accounting principles in 
accordance with policies and procedures of the California School Accounting Manual.  This manual, 
according to Education Code Section 41010, is to be followed by all State school districts. 

The District’s expenditures are accrued at the end of the fiscal year to reflect the receipt of goods 
and services in that year.  Revenues generally are recorded on a cash basis, except for items that are 
susceptible to accrual (measurable and/or available to finance operations).  Current taxes are considered 
susceptible to accrual.  Delinquent taxes not received after the fiscal year end are not recorded as revenue 
until received.  Revenues from specific state and federally funded projects are recognized when qualified 
expenditures have been incurred.  State block grant apportionments are accrued to the extent that they are 
measurable and predictable.  The State Department of Education sends the District updated information 
from time to time explaining the acceptable accounting treatment of revenue and expenditure categories. 

The District’s accounting is organized on the basis of fund groups, with each group consisting of a 
separate set of self-balancing accounts containing assets, liabilities, fund balances, revenues and 
expenditures.  The major fund classification is the general fund which accounts for all financial resources 
not requiring a special type of fund.  The District’s fiscal year begins on July 1 and ends on June 30. 

Comparative Financial Statements 

Audited financial statements for the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 and prior fiscal 
years are on file with the District and available for public inspection at the Office of the Deputy 
Superintendent, Business of the District, Rincon Valley Union School District, 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa 
Rosa, California 95405, telephone: (707) 542-7375.  The audited financial statements for the year ended 
June 30, 2016 are attached hereto as APPENDIX B. 

The table on the following page reflects the District’s audited general fund revenues, expenditures 
and fund balances from fiscal year 2011-12 through fiscal year 2015-16. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 



 
 
 

45 
 

 

AUDITED GENERAL FUND REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND FUND BALANCE(1) 

Fiscal Years 2011-12 through 2015-16 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 

REVENUES:      
Revenue Limit Sources      

State Apportionment $4,739,952 $4,775,828 $10,955,356 $12,021,060 $13,267,838 
Local Taxes 12,432,140 12,823,108 12,163,323 13,406,591 15,023,118 
Total Revenue Limit Sources 17,172,092 17,598,936 23,118,679 25,427,651 28,290,956 
      

Federal Revenue 1,482,392 1,109,682 1,137,987 1,205,356 1,447,720 
State Revenue 4,721,030 4,985,527 1,697,045 1,624,100 4,363,862 
Local Revenue 7,092,767 7,341,145 8,089,425 8,414,467 7,951,013 

Total Revenues 30,468,281 31,035,290 34,043,136 36,671,574 42,053,551 
      

EXPENDITURES:       
Instruction 18,661,380 19,228,987 20,462,249 21,761,321 23,110,028 
Supervision of Instruction 395,254 433,704 480,743 541,769 600,580 
Instructional Library and Technology 241,564 314,542 662,250 840,689 1,242,662 
School Site Administration 2,075,853 2,196,278 2,154,776 2,302,607 2,532,835 
Home-to-School Transportation 589,911 688,159 710,695 1,029,170 930,202 
Food Services -- 59 -- -- -- 
Other Pupil Services 2,205,073 2,445,148 2,676,000 2,890,366 3,330,628 
Data Processing Services 55,473 36,569 19,293 9,212 9,881 
Other General Administration 1,340,487 1,387,190 1,374,403 1,534,892 1,653,205 
Plant Services 2,297,277 2,295,816 2,434,749 2,536,445 2,904,242 
Facilities Acquisition and Construction 497,985 7,300 246,092 170,340 400,561 
Ancillary Services 83,782 101,255 123,837 125,140 120,064 
Community Services 22,422 43,667 -- -- -- 
Enterprise Activities 2,305 609 -- 10,961 8,718 
Debt Service:      

Principal Retirement -- -- -- -- -- 
Interest and Issuance Costs -- -- -- -- -- 

Other Outgo 722 1,377 4,537         --         -- 
Total Expenditures 28,469,488 29,180,660 31,349,624 33,752,912 36,843,606 
      

Excess of Revenues over (under) Expenditures 1,998,793 1,854,630 2,693,512 2,918,662 5,209,945 
      
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)      
Operating Transfers In 61,500 171,500 50,760 287,712 73,700 
Operating Transfers Out (2,030,801) (1,729,262) (2,452,000) (3,172,073) (3,230,565) 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) (1,969,301) (1,557,762) (2,401,240) (2,884,361) (3,156,865) 

Net Change in Fund Balance 29,492 296,868 292,272 34,301 2,053,080 
      
Fund Balance – July 1 9,415,200 9,444,692 9,741,560 10,033,832 10,068,133 
Fund Balance – June 30 $9,444,692 $9,741,560 $10,033,832 $10,068,133 $12,121,213 
_____________________________ 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 

 



 
 

 46 
 

State Budget Measures 

The following information concerning the State’s budgets has been obtained from publicly 
available information which the District believes to be reliable; however, the District does not guarantee 
the accuracy or completeness of this information and has not independently verified such information.  
Furthermore, it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this information herein that the principal of or 
interest on the Bonds is payable from the general fund of the District.  The Bonds are payable solely from 
the proceeds of an ad valorem property tax required to be levied by the County on taxable property within 
the District in an amount sufficient for the payment thereof.   

2017-18 Budget.  On June 27, 2017, the Governor signed into law the State budget for fiscal year 
2017-18 (the “2017-18 Budget”).  The following information is drawn from the LAO’s preliminary review 
of the 2017-18 Budget.   

For fiscal year 2016-17, the 2017-18 Budget projects total general fund revenues and transfers of 
$118.5 billion and total expenditures of $121.4 billion.  The State is projected to end the 2016-17 fiscal 
year with total available reserves of $7.4 billion, including $642 million in the traditional general fund 
reserve and $6.7 billion in the BSA.  For fiscal year 2017-18, the 2017-18 Budget projects total general 
fund revenues of $125.9 billion, reflecting a 6% increase over the prior year and driven primarily by a 
projected 5% increase in personal income, sales and use tax collections.  The 2017-18 Budget authorizes 
expenditures of $125.1 billion.  The State is projected to end the 2017-18 fiscal year with total available 
reserves of $9.9 billion, including $1.4 billion in the traditional general fund reserve and $8.5 billion in the 
BSA.    

With respect to education funding, the 2017-18 Budget revises the Proposition 98 minimum 
funding guarantees for both fiscal years 2015-16 and 2016-17, as a result of lower-than-estimated general 
fund revenue collections.  The 2017-18 Budget sets the Proposition 98 minimum funding guarantee for 
fiscal year 2015-16 at $68.7 billion, an decrease of $379 million from the prior year.  However, total 
Proposition 98 funding exceeded the minimum guarantee by $53 million as a result of various adjustments 
related to the LCFF and community college apportionments.  The 2017-18 Budget revises the minimum 
funding guarantee for fiscal year 2016-17 at $71.3 billion, reflecting a decrease of $558 million from the 
prior year.  Total spending, however, exceed the minimum funding guarantee by approximately $29 million, 
as a result of a $514 million “settle up” payment related to an obligation created by understating the 
minimum guarantee in a prior year.   

For fiscal year 2017-18, the 2017-18 Budget sets the minimum funding guarantee at $74.5 billion, 
reflecting an increase of $3.1 billion (or 4.4%) from the revised prior-year level.  Fiscal year 2017-18 is 
projected to be a “Test 2” year, with the change in the minimum funding guarantee attributable to a 3.7% 
increase in per capita personal income and a projected 0.05% decline in K-12 attendance.  With respect to 
K-12 education, the 2017-18 Budget sets Proposition 98 funding at $64.7 billion, including $45.7 billion 
from the State general fund, reflecting an increase of $2.7 billion (or 4.3%) from the prior year.  Per-pupil 
spending increases 4.3% to $10,863.  

Other significant features with respect to K-12 education funding include the following: 

 Local Control Funding Formula – approximately $1.4 billion in Proposition 98 funding to 
continue the implementation of the LCFF.  Total LCFF funding for school districts and charter 
schools is set at $57.4 billion, a 2.7% increase from the prior year.  The 2017-18 Budget projects 
that this funding will bring LCFF implementation to approximately 97%.   



 
 

 47 
 

 Discretionary Funding – An increase of $877 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding that 
local educational agencies may use for any purpose.  Similar to features included in prior State 
budgets, these funds would offset any applicable unpaid reimbursement claims for State-
mandated activities. 

 Maintenance Factor; Settle Up Payment –The 2017-18 Budget provides for an additional 
maintenance factor payment of $536 million, after which the State’s outstanding obligation 
would be approximately $900 million.  The 2017-18 Budget also provides $603 million to fund 
a settle-up payment related to an obligation created in fiscal year 2009-10 when revenue 
estimates understated the minimum funding guarantee.  This reduces the State’s total settle up 
obligation to approximately $440 million.    

 Career Technical Education (CTE) – The State Budget for fiscal year 2015-16 established the 
Career Technical Education Incentive Grant Program for local education agencies to establish 
new or expand high-quality CTE programs.  The 2017-18 Budget provides $200 million as the 
final installment of funding for this program.  The 2017-18 Budget also provides the California 
Department of Education with $15.4 million in on-going Proposition 98 funding to support 
efforts linking secondary and postsecondary CTE.  

 K-12 Educational Mandates – $3.5 million to fund a 1.56% COLA to the block grant program 
for State mandated K-12 educational programs and activities.  The 2017-18 Budget establishes 
a statutory COLA for these programs moving forward.  The 2017-18 also provides $61 million 
to fund a 1.56% COLA to several other categorical programs.   

 Teacher Workforce Initiative – The 2018-17 Budget funds a variety of teacher recruitment and 
training programs, including (i) $25 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding for grants to 
assist classified school employees secure bachelor’s degrees and teaching credentials; (ii) $11 
million in federal Title II funds to establish a program to help local educational agencies attract 
and support teachers, principals and other school leaders; and (iii) $5 million in one-time 
Proposition 98 funding for a new program that would encourage teachers to obtain bilingual 
credentials and teach in bilingual settings.     

 Proposition 39 – Passed by voters in November 2012, Proposition 39 increases State corporate 
tax revenues and requires that, for a five-year period starting in fiscal year 2013-14, a portion 
of these additional revenues be allocated to local education agencies to improve energy 
efficiency and expand the use of alternative energy in public buildings.  The 2017-18 Budget 
allocates $423 million of such funds to support school district and charter school energy 
efficiency projects in fiscal year 2017-18. 

 After School Safety and Education Safety Program – an increase of $50 million in Proposition 
98 funding (for a total of $600 million) to increase per-child reimbursement rates for providers 
of local after school education and enrichment programs.   

 Proposition 56 – Passed by voters in November 2016, Proposition 56 increases the per-pack 
State sales tax on cigarettes by $2, and requires that a portion of the revenue generated be used 
for school programs designed to prevent and reduce the use of tobacco and nicotine products.  
The 2017-18 Budget allocates $32 million of Proposition 56 revenues to support these 
programs. 

 Charter School Facility Grant Program – Under this program, the State provides certain 
charter schools with grants to defray the cost of renting and leasing school facilities.  The 2017-



 
 

 48 
 

18 Budget increases the per-student funding rate to $1,117 and provides an ongoing COLA for 
the program moving forward. 

 Equity and Improvement Program – $2.5 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding for two 
or more county offices of education to assist local educational agencies in closing achievement 
gaps in public schools. 

 Proposition 51 – a total allocation of $593 million in Proposition 51 bond funds for K-12 school 
facility projects. 

 Refugee Students – $10 million in one-time Proposition 98 funding for the State Department of 
Social Services to provide grants to school districts that serve notable numbers of refugee 
students.   

Future Actions.  The District cannot predict what actions will be taken in the future by the State 
legislature and the Governor to address changing State revenues and expenditures.  The District also cannot 
predict the impact such actions will have on State revenues available in the current or future years for 
education.  The State budget will be affected by national and State economic conditions and other factors 
over which the District will have no control.  Certain actions or results could produce a significant shortfall 
of revenue and cash, and could consequently impair the State’s ability to fund schools.  State budget 
shortfalls in future fiscal years may also have an adverse financial impact on the financial condition of the 
District.  However, the obligation to levy ad valorem property taxes upon all taxable property within the 
District for the payment of principal of and interest on the Bonds would not be impaired. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

The information in this section concerning the operations of the District and the District’s finances 
are provided as supplementary information only, and it should not be inferred from the inclusion of this 
information in this Official Statement that the principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable from the 
general fund of the District.  The Bonds are payable solely from the revenues generated by an ad valorem 
property tax required to be levied by the County on taxable property within the District for the payment 
thereof.  See “THE BONDS – Security and Sources of Payment” herein. 

Introduction 

The District, located in Sonoma County, California, encompasses a total area of approximately 50 
square miles, including the eastern and northeastern areas of the City of Santa Rosa, California and certain 
unincorporated areas in the County.  The District operates three traditional elementary schools serving 
grades kindergarten through sixth grade, five elementary conversion charter schools serving grades 
kindergarten through sixth grade, and one affiliated charter middle school with two campuses serving 
seventh and eighth grades.  The District also operates three special education programs for elementary 
students with mild to severe needs as the lead agency for the RCSS, a special educational consortium 
comprised of the District and eight neighboring school districts.  The District’s budgeted total enrollment 
for fiscal year 2017-18 is approximately 3,510 students, which number includes affiliated charter school 
students attending school within the District’s boundaries.  The District has a fiscal year 2017-18 total 
assessed valuation of $6,571,476,945. 

Unless otherwise indicated, the following financial, statistical and demographic data has been 
provided by the District.  Additional information concerning the District and copies of subsequent audited 
financial reports of the District may be obtained by contacting:  Office of the Deputy Superintendent, 



 
 

 49 
 

Business of the District, Rincon Valley Union School District, 1000 Yulupa Avenue, Santa Rosa, California 
95405, telephone: (707) 542-7375. 

Administration 

The District is governed by a five-member Board.  Each member of the Board serves a four-year 
term.  Elections for positions to the Board are held every two years, alternating between two and three 
available positions.  Current members of the Board, together with their offices and the dates their terms 
expire, are listed below: 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

Name Office Term Expires 

Carol Lynn Wood President December 2020 
Cynthia Evers Clerk December 2018 
Mike Cook Trustee December 2020 
Jeff Gospe Trustee December 2018 
Chris Rafanelli Trustee December 2018 

The Superintendent of the District is responsible for administering the affairs of the District in 
accordance with the policies of the Board.  Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. is currently the Superintendent of the 
District.  A brief biography of key personnel follow:  

Tony Roehrick, Ed.D., Superintendent. Tony Roehrick has worked in education for over 30 years, 
13 as a superintendent.  As the Superintendent of the District, Dr. Roehrick is responsible for administering 
the affairs of the District in accordance with the policies of the Board.  Dr. Roehrick came to the District 
after serving as Superintendent in the Cabrillo Unified School District in Half Moon Bay.  In 2011, he was 
selected by the Sonoma County Association of School Administrators as the Superintendent of the Year.  
Dr. Roehrick earned a Bachelor in photojournalism from San Francisco State University in 1982.  He also 
holds a Master in Educational Leadership from Sonoma State University.  Dr. Roehrick received his 
Doctorate degree from the University of La Verne after completing a dissertation on the effects of support 
programs for recently reclassified English learners.   

Joseph Pandolfo, Ed.D., Deputy Superintendent, Business.   Dr. Pandolfo has worked in public 
education for almost 30 years as both a teacher and administrator. His current responsibilities as Deputy 
Superintendent of Business Services for the Rincon Valley Union School District include supervising an 
annual general fund budget of over $40 million as well as managing a $57 million-facility program. He also 
supervises all of the financial and operational departments of the District. Dr. Pandolfo came to Rincon 
Valley after working ten years as a school business administrator in the Mid-West, where he was Director 
of Finance and Operations for the Westchester Elementary School District in Westchester, Illinois. Joseph 
is vice president of the Redwood Empire Schools Insurance Group (RESIG) board of directors, which 
provides commercial insurance for over 40 school districts. He also serves on the Sonoma County Treasury 
Oversight Committee and is a member of the Sonoma County Local Plan Area (SELPA) Finance 
Committee. Joseph is passionate about the education and training of new school district leaders and has 
presented multiple times at classes for the Association of School Administrators (ASCA) for current and 
future leaders in the areas of Chief Business Officials (CBO), Director of Fiscal Services, New 
Superintendents, as well as for the California Association of School Administrators (CASBO) CBO 
certification classes. He is the academic coordinator for the ACSA Director of Maintenance and Operation 
Class and has guest lectured at the University of California, Davis as well as Sonoma State University on 
school district finance. He has consulted and served as a mentor for school districts throughout California. 



 
 

 50 
 

Dr. Pandolfo is a past winner of the Business Official of the Year by the Sonoma County Association of 
School Administrators.  Dr. Pandolfo earned a Bachelor in Music Education from Indiana University, 
Bloomington.  He also holds a Master in School Business Administration from Loyola University of 
Chicago.  Dr. Pandolfo received his Doctorate degree from the University of California-Davis.   

Attendance and Enrollment 

On average throughout the District, the regular education pupil-teacher ratio is approximately 19:1 
in grades K-3, 30:1 in grades 4-6, and :1 in grades 7-8.  The following table shows a seven year enrollment 
history for the District and budgeted amounts for fiscal year 2017-18. 

HISTORICAL ENROLLMENT(1)  
Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2016-17 
Rincon Valley Union School District  

Fiscal Year ADA Enrollment(1) 

2010-11 3,154 3,265 
2011-12 3,256 3,353 
2012-13 3,196 3,373 
2013-14(3) 3,313 3,495 
2014-15 3,395 3,632 
2015-16 3,451 3,571 
2016-17 3,434 3,551 
2017-18(4) 3,386 3,510 

_____________________________ 
(1)  Average Daily Attendance and enrollment numbers include affiliated charter school students and exclude independent charter 
school students within the District’s boundary.   Enrollment is as of the October report submitted to the California Basic Educational 
Data System (“CBEDS”) in each school year. 
(2)   Reflects enrollment as of the October CBEDS for fiscal years 2010-11 through 2012-13, and October CALPADS for fiscal 
years 2013-14 through 2015-16. 
(3)  District enrollment increased in this year as the result of the opening of a second campus of the Rincon Valley Charter 
School. 
(4) Budgeted.  
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District. 

Charter School 

Charter schools are largely independent schools operating as part of the public school system 
created pursuant to Education Code  Part 26.8 (beginning with Section 47600) of Division 4 of Title 2 (the 
“Charter School Law”).  A charter school is usually created or organized by a group of teachers, parents 
and community leaders, or a community-based organization, and may be approved by an existing local 
public school district, a county board of education, or the State Board of Education.   

A charter school is generally exempt from the laws governing school districts, except where 
specifically noted in the law.  The Charter School Law acknowledges that among its intended purposes are:  
(i) to provide parents and students with expanded choices in the types of educational opportunities that are 
available within the public school system; (ii) to hold schools accountable for meeting measurable pupil 
outcomes and provide schools a way to shift from a rule-based to a performance-based system of 
accountability; and (iii) to provide competition within the public school system to stimulate improvements 
in all public schools.  

The District has certain fiscal oversight and other responsibilities with respect to both independent 
and affiliated charter schools established within its boundaries.  However, independent charter schools 



 
 

 51 
 

receive funding directly from the State, and such funding would not be reported in the District’s audited 
financial statements.  Affiliated charter schools receive their funding from the District, and would be 
reflected in the District’s audited financial statements.   

There are five charter schools currently operating within the District, all of which are affiliated 
(collectively, the “Charter Schools”).  The following table shows enrollment figures in for the District’s 
Charter Schools for the past 10 fiscal years, and budgeted enrollment figures for the current fiscal year. 
 

Fiscal Year 
Affiliated 

Charter Schools 
Independent 

Charter Schools 
2007-08 -- 168 
2008-09 -- 166 
2009-10 584 163 
2010-11 1,934 167 
2011-12 1,998 -- 
2012-13 2,046 -- 
2013-14 2,142 -- 
2014-15 2,203 -- 
2015-16 2,168 -- 
2016-17 2,197 -- 
2017-18(1) 2,165 -- 

_____________________________ 
(1) Budgeted. 
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District 
 

The District can make no representations regarding how many District students will transfer to 
charter schools, including the Charter Schools, in the future or back to the District from such charter schools, 
and the corresponding financial impact on the District. 

Labor Relations 

The District currently employs 218 full-time certificated employees and 67 full-time classified 
employees.  In addition, the District employs 128.79 full-time equivalent part-time faculty and staff.  
District employees, except for management and some part-time employees, are represented by two 
employee bargaining units as shown below. 

BARGAINING UNITS 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

 
 
Bargaining Unit 

Number of 
Employees Represented 

Current Contract 
Expiration Date 

Certificated Teachers Association 203 June 30, 2017 
California State Employees Association, Chapter 284 235 October 31, 2017 
_____________________________ 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 



 
 

 52 
 

District Retirement Systems 

The information set forth below regarding the STRS and PERS programs, other than the 
information provided by the District regarding its annual contributions thereto, has been obtained from 
publicly available sources which are believed to be reliable but are not guaranteed as to accuracy or 
completeness, and should not to be construed as a representation by either the District or the Underwriter.      

STRS.  All full-time certificated employees, as well as certain classified employees, are members 
of the State Teachers’ Retirement System (“STRS”).  STRS provides retirement, disability and survivor 
benefits to plan members and beneficiaries under a defined benefit program (the “STRS Defined Benefit 
Program”).  The STRS Defined Benefit Program is funded through a combination of investment earnings 
and statutorily set contributions from three sources: employees, employers, and the State.  Benefit 
provisions and contribution amounts are established by State statutes, as legislatively amended from time 
to time. 

Prior to fiscal year 2014-15, and unlike typical defined benefit programs, none of the employee, 
employer nor State contribution rates to the STRS Defined Benefit Program varied annually to make up 
funding shortfalls or assess credits for actuarial surpluses.  In recent years, the combined employer, 
employee and State contributions to the STRS Defined Benefit Program have not been sufficient to pay 
actuarially required amounts.  As a result, and due to significant investment losses, the unfunded actuarial 
liability of the STRS Defined Benefit Program has increased significantly in recent fiscal years.  In 
September 2013, STRS projected that the STRS Defined Benefit Program would be depleted in 31 years 
assuming existing contribution rates continued, and other significant actuarial assumptions were realized.  
In an effort to reduce the unfunded actuarial liability of the STRS Defined Benefit Program, the State 
recently passed the legislation described below to increase contribution rates. 

Prior to July 1, 2014, K-14 school districts were required by such statutes to contribute 8.25% of 
eligible salary expenditures, while participants contributed 8% of their respective salaries.  On 
June 24, 2014, the Governor signed AB 1469 (“AB 1469”) into law as a part of the State’s fiscal year 2014-
15 budget.  AB 1469 seeks to fully fund the unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to service credited 
to members of the STRS Defined Benefit Program before July 1, 2014 (the “2014 Liability”), within 32 
years, by increasing member, K-14 school district and State contributions to STRS.  Commencing July 1, 
2014, the employee contribution rate increased over a three-year phase-in period in accordance with the 
following schedule: 

MEMBER CONTRIBUTION RATES 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) 

 
Effective Date 

STRS Members Hired Prior to 
January 1, 2013 

STRS Members Hired  
After January 1, 2013 

July 1, 2014 8.150% 8.150% 
July 1, 2015 9.200 8.560 
July 1, 2016 10.250 9.205 

_____________________________ 
Source: AB 1469. 

Pursuant to the Reform Act (defined below), the contribution rates for members hired after the 
Implementation Date (defined below) will be adjusted if the normal cost increases by more than 1% since 
the last time the member contribution was set.  While the contribution rate for employees hired after the 
Implementation Date will remain unchanged at 9.205% of creditable compensation for fiscal year 
commencing July 1, 2017, the STRS actuary currently estimates that member contribution rates for such 



 
 

 53 
 

members will have to increase to 10.205% of creditable compensation effective July 1, 2018, based on the 
new actuarial assumptions discussed below.   

Pursuant to AB 1469, K-14 school districts’ contribution rate will increase over a seven-year phase-
in period in accordance with the following schedule:  

K-14 SCHOOL DISTRICT CONTRIBUTION RATES 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) 

 
Effective Date 

 
K-14 School Districts 

July 1, 2014 8.88% 
July 1, 2015 10.73 
July 1, 2016 12.58 
July 1, 2017 14.43 
July 1, 2018 16.28 
July 1, 2019 18.13 
July 1, 2020 19.10 

_____________________________ 
Source: AB 1469. 
 

Based upon the recommendation from its actuary, for fiscal year 2021-22 and each fiscal year 
thereafter the STRS Teachers’ Retirement Board (the “STRS Board”), is required to increase or decrease 
the K-14 school districts’ contribution rate to reflect the contribution required to eliminate the remaining 
2014 Liability by June 30, 2046; provided that the rate cannot change in any fiscal year by more than 1% 
of creditable compensation upon which members’ contributions to the STRS Defined Benefit Program are 
based; and provided further that such contribution rate cannot exceed a maximum of 20.25%.  In addition 
to the increased contribution rates discussed above, AB 1469 also requires the STRS Board to report to the 
State Legislature every five years (commencing with a report due on or before July 1, 2019) on the fiscal 
health of the STRS Defined Benefit Program and the unfunded actuarial obligation with respect to service 
credited to members of that program before July 1, 2014.  The reports are also required to identify 
adjustments required in contribution rates for K-14 school districts and the State in order to eliminate the 
2014 Liability.  

 
The District’s contributions to STRS were $1,082,001 in fiscal year 2011-12, $1,157,330  in fiscal 

year 2012-13, $1,247,440 in fiscal year 2013-14, $1,476,670 in fiscal year 2014-15, and $1,818,886 in 
fiscal year 2015-16.  The District currently estimates a contribution of $2,228,293 to STRS in fiscal year 
2016-17 and has budgeted a contribution of $2,510,135 in fiscal year 2017-18. 

The State also contributes to STRS, currently in an amount equal to 6.328% of teacher payroll for 
fiscal year 2016-17.  The State’s contribution reflects a base contribution rate of 2.017%, and a 
supplemental contribution rate that will vary from year to year based on statutory criteria.  Based upon the 
recommendation from its actuary, for fiscal year 2017-18 and each fiscal year thereafter, the STRS Board 
is required, with certain limitations, to increase or decrease the State’s contribution rates to reflect the 
contribution required to eliminate the unfunded actuarial accrued liability attributed to benefits in effect 
before July 1, 1990.  For the first time, in fiscal year 2017-18, the State contribution rate will increase 0.5% 
of covered payroll (the maximum rate increase allowed per year under current law) to 6.828%.   

In addition, the State is currently required to make an annual general fund contribution up to 2.5% 
of the fiscal year covered STRS member payroll to the Supplemental Benefit Protection Account (the 
“SBPA”), which was established by statute to provide supplemental payments to beneficiaries whose 
purchasing power has fallen below 85% of the purchasing power of their initial allowance.  



 
 

 54 
 

PERS.  Classified employees working four or more hours per day are members of the Public 
Employees’ Retirement System (“PERS”).  PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-
of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  Benefit provisions are 
established by the State statutes, as legislatively amended from time to time.  PERS operates a number of 
retirement plans including the Public Employees Retirement Fund (“PERF”).  PERF is a multiple-employer 
defined benefit retirement plan.  In addition to the State, employer participants at June 30, 2014 included 
1,580 public agencies and 1,513 K-14 school districts.  PERS acts as the common investment and 
administrative agent for the member agencies.  The State and K-14 school districts (for “classified 
employees,” which generally consist of school employees other than teachers) are required by law to 
participate in PERF.  Employees participating in PERF generally become fully vested in their retirement 
benefits earned to date after five years of credited service.  One of the plans operated by PERS is for K-14 
school districts throughout the State (the “Schools Pool”). 

Contributions by employers to the Schools Pool are based upon an actuarial rate determined 
annually and contributions by plan members vary based upon their date of hire.  The District is currently 
required to contribute to PERS at an actuarially determined rate, which is 13.888% of eligible salary 
expenditures for fiscal year 2016-17 and will be 15.531% for fiscal year 2017-18.  Participants enrolled in 
PERS prior to January 1, 2013 contribute 7% of their respective salaries in fiscal year 2016-17 and will 
contribute at the same rate for fiscal year 2017-18, while participants enrolled after January 1, 2013 
contribute at an actuarially determined rate, which is 6% of their respective salaries for fiscal year 2016-17 
and 6.5% in fiscal year 2017-18.  See “– California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013” herein. 

The District’s contributions to PERS were $454,198 in fiscal year 2011-12, $574,863 in fiscal year 
2012-13, $657,600 in fiscal year 2013-14, $731,206 in fiscal year 2014-15, and $803,681 in fiscal year 
2015-16.  The District currently estimates a contribution of $979,895 to PERS in fiscal year 2016-17 and 
has budgeted a contribution of $1,196,185 in fiscal year 2017-18. 

For further information about the District’s contributions to STRS and PERS, see “APPENDIX B 
– 2015-16 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 10” attached hereto. 

State Pension Trusts.  Each of STRS and PERS issues a separate comprehensive financial report 
that includes financial statements and required supplemental information.  Copies of such financial reports 
may be obtained from each of STRS and PERS as follows: (i) STRS, P.O. Box 15275, Sacramento, 
California 95851-0275; (ii) PERS, P.O. Box 942703, Sacramento, California 94229-2703.  Moreover, each 
of STRS and PERS maintains a website, as follows: (i) STRS: www.calstrs.com; (ii) PERS: 
www.calpers.ca.gov.  However, the information presented in such financial reports or on such websites is 
not incorporated into this Official Statement by any reference.  

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

  



 
 

 55 
 

Both STRS and PERS have substantial statewide unfunded liabilities.  The amount of these 
unfunded liabilities will vary depending on actuarial assumptions, returns on investments, salary scales and 
participant contributions.  The following table summarizes information regarding the 
actuarially-determined accrued liability for both STRS and PERS.  Actuarial assessments are “forward-
looking” information that reflect the judgment of the fiduciaries of the pension plans, and are based upon a 
variety of assumptions, one or more of which may not materialize or be changed in the future.  Actuarial 
assessments will change with the future experience of the pension plans. 

FUNDED STATUS 
STRS (Defined Benefit Program) and PERS 

(Dollar Amounts in Millions) (1) 

Fiscal Years 2010-11 through 2015-16 

STRS 

Fiscal 
Year 

Accrued 
Liability 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (MVA)(2) 

Unfunded  
Liability 

  (MVA)(2) 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (AVA)(3) 

Unfunded  
Liability 

   (AVA)(3) 

2010-11 $208,405 $147,140 $68,365 $143,930 $64,475 
2011-12 215,189 143,118 80,354 144,232 70,957 
2012-13 222,281 157,176 74,374 148,614 73,667 
2013-14 231,213 179,749 61,807 158,495 72,718 
2014-15 241,753 180,633 72,626 165,553 76,200 
2015-16 266,704 177,914 101,586 169,976 96,728 
      

PERS

Fiscal 
Year 

 
 

Accrued 
Liability 

Value of  
Trust 
Assets 

    (MVA)(2)

 
Unfunded 
Liability 

   (MVA)(2) 

Value of 
Trust 
Assets 

   (AVA)(3) 

 
Unfunded 
Liability 

   (AVA)(3) 

2010-11 $58,358 $45,901 $12,457 $51,547 $6,811 
2011-12 59,439 44,854 14,585 53,791 5,648 
2012-13 61,487 49,482 12,005 56,250 5,237 
2013-14 65,600 56,838 8,761 --(4) --(4) 
2014-15 73,325 56,814 16,511 --(4) --(4) 
2015-16(5) 77,544 55,785 21,759 --(4) --(4) 

_____________________________ 
(1) Amounts may not add due to rounding. 
(2) Reflects market value of assets, including the assets allocated to the SBPA reserve.  Since the benefits provided through the 

SBPA are not a part of the projected benefits included in the actuarial valuations summarized above, the SBPA reserve is 
subtracted from the STRS Defined Benefit Program assets to arrive at the value of assets available to support benefits included 
in the respective actuarial valuations. 

(3) Reflects actuarial value of assets.  
(4) Effective for the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation, PERS no longer uses an actuarial value of assets.  
(5) On April 18, 2017, the PERS Board of Administration approved the K-14 school district contribution rate for fiscal year 2017-

18 and released certain actuarial information to be incorporated into the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuation to be released in 
summer 2017. 

Source: PERS Schools Pool Actuarial Valuation; STRS Defined Benefit Program Actuarial Valuation. 

The STRS Board has sole authority to determine the actuarial assumptions and methods used for 
the valuation of the STRS Defined Benefit Program.  Based on the multi-year CalSTRS Experience 
Analysis (spanning from July 1, 2010, through June 30, 2015), on February 1, 2017, the STRS Board 
adopted a new set of actuarial assumptions that reflect member’s increasing life expectancies and current 
economic trends. These new assumptions were first reflected in the STRS Defined Benefit Program 
Actuarial Valuation, as of June 30, 2016 (the “2016 Actuarial Valuation”).  The new actuarial assumptions 
include, but are not limited to: (i) adopting a generational mortality methodology to reflect past 



 
 

 56 
 

improvements in life expectancies and provide a more dynamic assessment of future life spans, (ii) 
decreasing the investment rate of return (net of investment and administrative expenses) to 7.25% for the 
2016 Actuarial Valuation and 7.00% for the June 30, 2017 actuarial evaluation, and (iii) decreasing the 
projected wage growth to 3.50% and the projected inflation rate to 2.75%.  The 2016 Actuarial Valuation 
continues using the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method.   

Based on the change in actuarial assumptions adopted by the STRS Board, recent investment 
experience and the insufficiency of the contributions received in fiscal year 2015-16 to cover interest on 
the unfunded actuarial obligation, the 2016 Actuarial Valuation reports that the unfunded actuarial 
obligation increased by $20.5 billion since the June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation and the funded ratio 
decreased by 4.8% to 63.7% over such time period.  Had the investment rate of return been lowered to 
7.00% for the 2016 Actuarial Valuation, the unfunded actuarial obligation and the funded ratio would have 
been $105.1 billion and 61.8%, respectively.  As a result, it is currently projected that there will be a need 
for higher contributions from the State, employers and members in the future to reach full funding by 2046. 

According to the 2016 Actuarial Valuation, the future revenues from contributions and 
appropriations for the STRS Defined Benefit Program are projected to be sufficient to finance its 
obligations, except for a small portion of the unfunded actuarial obligation related to service accrued on or 
after July 1, 2014 for member benefits adopted after 1990, for which AB 1469 provides no authority to the 
STRS Board to adjust rates to pay down that portion of the unfunded actuarial obligation.  This finding 
reflects the scheduled contribution rate increases directed by statute, assumes additional increases in the 
scheduled contribution rates allowed under the current law will be made, and is based on the valuation 
assumptions and valuation policy adopted by the STRS Board, including a 7.00% investment rate of return 
assumption. 

In recent years, the PERS Board of Administration (the “PERS Board”) has taken several steps, as 
described below, intended to reduce the amount of the unfunded accrued actuarial liability of its plans, 
including the Schools Pool. 

On March 14, 2012, the PERS Board voted to lower the PERS’ rate of expected price inflation and 
its investment rate of return (net of administrative expenses) (the “PERS Discount Rate”) from 7.75% to 
7.5%.  On February 18, 2014, the PERS Board voted to keep the PERS Discount Rate unchanged at 7.5%.  
On November 17, 2015, the PERS Board approved a new funding risk mitigation policy to incrementally 
lower the PERS Discount Rate by establishing a mechanism whereby such rate is reduced by a minimum 
of 0.05% to a maximum of 0.25% in years when investment returns outperform the existing PERS Discount 
Rate by at least four percentage points.  On December 21, 2016, the PERS Board voted to lower the PERS 
Discount Rate to 7.0% over the next three years in accordance with the following schedule: 7.375% in fiscal 
year 2017-18, 7.25% in fiscal year 2018-19 and 7.00% in fiscal year 2019-20.  The new discount rate will 
go into effect July 1, 2017 for the State and July 1, 2018 for K-14 school districts and other public agencies.  
Lowering the PERS Discount Rate means employers that contract with PERS to administer their pension 
plans will see increases in their normal costs and unfunded actuarial liabilities.  Active members hired after 
January 1, 2013, under the Reform Act (defined below) will also see their contribution rates rise.  The three-
year reduction of the discount rate to 7.0% is expected to result in average employer rate increases of 
approximately 1-3% of normal cost as a percent of payroll for most miscellaneous retirement plans and a 
2-5% increase for most safety plans. 

On April 17, 2013, the PERS Board approved new actuarial policies aimed at returning PERS to 
fully-funded status within 30 years.  The policies include a rate smoothing method with a 30-year fixed 
amortization period for gains and losses, a five-year increase of public agency contribution rates, including 
the contribution rate at the onset of such amortization period, and a five year reduction of public agency 
contribution rates at the end of such amortization period.  The new actuarial policies were first included in 



 
 

 57 
 

the June 30, 2014 actuarial valuation and were implemented with respect the State, K-14 school districts 
and all other public agencies in fiscal year 2015-16.  

Also, on February 20, 2014, the PERS Board approved new demographic assumptions reflecting 
(i) expected longer life spans of public agency employees and related increases in costs for the PERS system 
and (ii) trends of higher rates of retirement for certain public agency employee classes, including police 
officers and firefighters.  The new actuarial assumptions will first be reflected in the Schools Pool in the 
June 30, 2015 actuarial valuation.  The increase in liability due to the new assumptions will be amortized 
over 20 years with increases phased in over five years, beginning with the contribution requirement for 
fiscal year 2016-17.  The new demographic assumptions affect the State, K-14 school districts and all other 
public agencies. 

The District can make no representations regarding the future program liabilities of STRS, or 
whether the District will be required to make additional contributions to STRS in the future above those 
amounts required under AB 1469.  The District can also provide no assurances that the District’s required 
contributions to PERS will not increase in the future. 

California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013.  On September 12, 2012, the 
Governor signed into law the California Public Employees’ Pension Reform Act of 2013 (the “Reform 
Act”), which makes changes to both STRS and PERS, most substantially affecting new employees hired 
after January 1, 2013 (the “Implementation Date”).  For STRS participants hired after the Implementation 
Date, the Reform Act changes the normal retirement age by increasing the eligibility for the 2% age factor 
(the age factor is the percent of final compensation to which an employee is entitled for each year of service) 
from age 60 to 62 and increasing the eligibility of the maximum age factor of 2.4% from age 63 to 65.  
Similarly, for non-safety PERS participants hired after the Implementation Date, the Reform Act changes 
the normal retirement age by increasing the eligibility for the 2% age factor from age 55 to 62 and increases 
the eligibility requirement for the maximum age factor of 2.5% to age 67. Among the other changes to 
PERS and STRS, the Reform Act also: (i) requires all new participants enrolled in PERS and STRS after 
the Implementation Date to contribute at least 50% of the total annual normal cost of their pension benefit 
each year as determined by an actuary, (ii) requires STRS and PERS to determine the final compensation 
amount for employees based upon the highest annual compensation earnable averaged over a consecutive 
36-month period as the basis for calculating retirement benefits for new participants enrolled after the 
Implementation Date (previously 12 months for STRS members who retire with 25 years of service), and 
(iii) caps “pensionable compensation” for new participants enrolled after the Implementation Date at 100% 
of the federal Social Security contribution (to be adjusted annually based on changes to the Consumer Price 
Index for all Urban Consumers) and benefit base for members participating in Social Security or 120% for 
members not participating in social security (to be adjusted annually based on changes to the Consumer 
Price Index for all Urban Consumers), while excluding previously allowed forms of compensation under 
the formula such as payments for unused vacation, annual leave, personal leave, sick leave, or compensatory 
time off. 

 
GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68.  On June 25, 2012, GASB approved Statements Nos.  67 and 68 

(“Statements”) with respect to pension accounting and financial reporting standards for state and local 
governments and pension plans. The new Statements, No. 67 and No. 68, replace GASB Statement No. 27 
and most of Statements No. 25 and No. 50. The changes impact the accounting treatment of pension plans 
in which state and local governments participate. Major changes include:  (1) the inclusion of unfunded 
pension liabilities on the government’s balance sheet (currently, such unfunded liabilities are typically 
included as notes to the government’s financial statements); (2) more components of full pension costs 
being shown as expenses regardless of actual contribution levels; (3) lower actuarial discount rates being 
required to be used for underfunded plans in certain cases for purposes of the financial statements; 
(4) closed amortization periods for unfunded liabilities being required to be used for certain purposes of the 



 
 

 58 
 

financial statements; and (5) the difference between expected and actual investment returns being 
recognized over a closed five-year smoothing period.  In addition, according to GASB, Statement No. 68 
means that, for pensions within the scope of the Statement, a cost-sharing employer that does not have a 
special funding situation is required to recognize a net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources, 
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense based on its proportionate share of 
the net pension liability for benefits provided through the pension plan.  Because the accounting standards 
do not require changes in funding policies, the full extent of the effect of the new standards on the District 
is not known at this time. The reporting requirements for pension plans took effect for the fiscal year 
beginning July 1, 2013 and the reporting requirements for government employers, including the District, 
took effect for the fiscal year beginning July 1, 2014. 

The District reported net pension liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, and deferred inflows 
of resources in the accompanying statement of net position as follows:  

Pension Plan 

Net 
Pension 
Liability 

Deferred 
Outflow of 
Resources 

Deferred 
inflow of 

Resources 
CalSTRS $23,294,680 $2,586,688 $2,162,824 
CalPERS 8,270,069 1,748,541 756,431 

Totals $31,564,749 $4.335,229 $2,919,255 
_____________________________ 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 

For additional information, see “APPENDIX B – 2015-16 AUDITED FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 10” attached hereto. 

Social Security.  As established by Federal law, all public sector employees who are not members 
of their employer’s existing retirement system (STRS or PERS) must be covered by Social Security or an 
alternative plan.  The District has elected to use Social Security as its plan for all such employees.  
Contributions made by the District and an employee vest immediately.  Both the District and participating 
employees were required to contribute 6.20% of an employee’s gross earnings to Social Security, up to the 
annual limit.  

The District’s Social Security payment was $451,193 for fiscal year 2015-16, and is estimated to 
be $469,433 for fiscal year 2016-17. The District has budgeted $475,135 for its Social Security payment 
for fiscal year 2017-18.   

For  further  information  about  the  District’s  retirement  programs  see  “APPENDIX  B  – 2015-
16 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 10” attached hereto. 

 

 

  



 
 

 59 
 

Other Post-Employment Benefits 

Benefits Plan.  The District has entered into various agreements with certain eligible employees to 
provide post-retirement medical benefits (the “Benefits”).    As of January 1, 2017, the District had 348 
active employees and there were 19 retirees receiving Benefits.  The following table describes eligibility 
for benefits: 

 
Certificated hired 

before 6/30/86 

Classified, Confidential, 
Supervisors and Classified 

Management hired 
before 7/1/14 

Certificated 
Management hired 

before 6/14/88** 

Duration of Benefits To age 65*** To age 65 To age 65* 

Required Service 20 years*** 5 years 20 years* 

Minimum Age 55 years 55 years 55 years 

Dependent Coverage Yes*** Yes Yes* 

District Contribution % 100% 100% 100% 

District Cap Active cap 100% of active cap at 
15 years of service. 

 
5 to 15 years, prorated 

percentage of cap 

Active cap 

_____________________________ 
* At 20 years of service, employee only coverage to age 65; at 25 years of service, a choice of employee only coverage to 

age 70 or employee plus dependent coverage to age 65. 
** Supervisors and confidential employees hired before June 14, 1988 were also eligible for paid benefits, but there are no 

remaining active employees who may qualify. 
*** At 20 years of service, employee plus one dependent coverage to age 65; at 25 years of service, a choice of employee only 

coverage to age 70 or employee plus dependent coverage to age 65. 
Source:  Rincon Valley Union School District. 

The District has eliminated benefits for certified employees hired after 1986 and classified 
employees hired after 2014.  Benefits are provided until the age of 65, with some extended coverage for 
those with high years of service.  

Funding Policy.  Expenditures for the Benefits are recognized on a “pay-as-you-go” basis to cover 
the cost of premiums for current retirees.  For fiscal years 2012-13, 2013-14, 2014-15 and 2015-16, the 
District recognized expenditures of $215,841, $150,588, $139,290 and $122,944 with respect to the 
Benefits, respectively.  For fiscal year 2016-17, the District currently estimates a $108,754 expenditure 
with respect to the Benefits and has budgeted $99,861 for fiscal year 2017-18. 

Accrued Liability.  The District has implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and 
Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other Than Pension Plans, pursuant 
to which the District has commissioned and received several actuarial studies of its outstanding liabilities 
with respect to the Benefits.  The most recent of these studies (the “Study”) determined that the actuarial 
accrued liability (“AAL”) with respect to the Benefits, as of January 1, 2016 valuation date, was $1,841,627 
and the unfunded actuarial accrued liability (“UAAL”) with respect to the Benefits, as of the same valuation 
date was $1,841,627.  The Study also concluded that the annual required contribution (“ARC”) was 
$229,535.  The ARC is the amount that would be necessary to fund the value of future benefits earned by 
current employees during each fiscal year (the “Normal Cost”) and the amount necessary to amortize the 
AAL, in accordance with the GASB Statements Nos. 43 and 45; the ARC is expected to increase each year 
based on covered payroll. 



 
 

 60 
 

Net OPEB Obligation.  As of June 30, 2016, the District recognized a long-term obligation (the 
“Net OPEB Obligation”) of $302,332 with respect to its accrued liability for the Benefits.  The Net OPEB 
Obligation is based on the District’s contributions towards the ARC during fiscal year 2015-16, plus interest 
on the prior year’s Net OPEB Obligation and minus any adjustments to reflect the amortization thereof.   

Risk Management 

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction 
of assets, errors and omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. The District pools its risks as a 
part of a public entity risk pool, by participating in a joint powers agreement (“JPA”) with the Redwood 
Empire Schools’ Insurance Group (“RESIG”). A board consisting of a representative from each member 
district governs the JPA. The governing board controls the operation of the JPA independent of any 
influence by the District beyond the District’s representation on the governing board. The JPA is 
independently accountable for its fiscal matters. Budgets are not subject to any approval other than that of 
the governing board. Member districts share surpluses and deficits proportionately to their participation. 
The relationship between the District and the JPA is such that the JPA not a component unit of the District 
for financial reporting purposes. 

The District pays annual premiums for its property and casualty, workers’ compensation, and 
liability insurance coverage to the JPA. The JPA provides that its risk pool will be self-sustaining through 
member premiums and will reinsure through commercial companies for claims in excess of self-insured 
levels.  In fiscal year 2015-16, there were no significant reductions in the District’s insurance coverage 
from prior years, and no insurance settlement exceeding insurance coverage in any of fiscal years 
2012-13, 2013-14 or 2014-15.   For further information about the District’s risk management policies see 
“APPENDIX B – 2015-16 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 14” 
attached hereto.  For further information about the JPA see “APPENDIX B – 2015-16 AUDITED 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 15” attached hereto. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 

  



 
 

 61 
 

District Debt Structure 

Short-Term Obligations.  The District currently has no outstanding short-term debt obligations. 

Long-Term Obligations.  A schedule of changes in long-term debt for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2016, is shown below: 

SCHEDULE OF LONG TERM DEBT 
As of June 30, 2016 

Rincon Valley Union School District 

 
Balances 

July 1, 2015 Additions Deductions 
Balances 

June 30, 2016 

Government Activities:     
Compensated Absences $143,016 $148,261 $143,016 $148,261 
General Obligation Bonds:     
  Current Interest 34,910,000 -- 2,405,000 32,505,000 
  Capital Appreciation 8,695,652 467,662 70,000 9,093,314 
Bond Premium 631,569 -- 26,224 605,345 
Capital Lease 2,944,072 -- 179,656 2,764,416 
Other Post-Employment Benefits 200,551 224,725 122,944 302,332 
Net Pension Liability-CalSTRS(1) 19,541,489 3,753,191 -- 23,294,680 
Net Pension Liability-CalPERS(1) 6,217,049 2,053,020                 -- 8,270,069 
Totals $73,283,398 $6,646,859 $2,946,840 $76,983,417 

_____________________________ 
(1)  See “RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT – District Retirement Programs” herein. 
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District.   

General Obligation Bonds.   

On March 2, 2004, the voters of the District approved the issuance of not-to-exceed $23,900,000 
of general obligation bonds (the “2004 Authorization”).  On June 3, 2004, the District issued the first series 
of bonds under the 2004 Authorization in the aggregate principal amount of $16,500,000 (the “Series 2004 
Bonds”).  On May 5, 2005, the District issued the second and final series of bonds under the 2004 
Authorization in the aggregate principal amount of $7,399,007.90, as current interest bonds and capital 
appreciation bonds (the “Series 2005 Bonds”).  On September 26, 2012, the District issued its 2012 General 
Obligation Refunding Bonds (the “2012 Refunding Bonds”)in the aggregate principal amount of 
$15,980,000, in order to advance refund a portion of the Election of 2004, Series 2004 Bonds. 

The 2014 Authorization was approved by voters at an election held on June 3, 2014, at which the 
requisite 55% or more of the persons voting on the proposition voted to authorize the issuance and sale of 
$35,000,000 principal amount of general obligation bonds of the District.”)  On October 23, 2014, the 
District issued its Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series A in the aggregate principal amount 
of $18,000,000 (the “Series A Bonds”).  The Bonds are the second issuance and final series of bonds issued 
under the 2014 Authorization, and, following the issuance thereof, none of the 2014 Authorization will 
remain unissued. 

The table on the following page shows future debt service payments on all of the District’s 
outstanding general obligation bonds, including the Bonds. 



 
 

 62 
 

COMBINED GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED INDEBTEDNESS 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

Year 
Ending 

(August 1)  

 
Series 2005 

Bonds 

 
2012 

Refunding 
Bonds  

 
2014 Series A 

Bonds 

 
 
 

The Bonds  

 
Total 

Annual Debt 
Service 

2017  $1,564,825.00  $780,000.00  $1,697,225.00     
2018  1,620,075.00  830,000.00  766,825.00     
2019  1,672,325.00  890,000.00  786,825.00     
2020  1,730,825.00  955,000.00  800,625.00     
2021  1,790,325.00  1,000,000.00  818,425.00     
2022  1,850,825.00  1,070,000.00  831,675.00     
2023  1,911,825.00  1,145,000.00  848,425.00     
2024  1,978,075.00  1,225,000.00  863,425.00     
2025  2,044,075.00  1,310,000.00  881,675.00     
2026  2,114,575.00  1,400,000.00  902,925.00     
2027  2,187,025.00  1,485,000.00  916,925.00     
2028  2,257,600.00  1,570,000.00  939,525.00     
2029  2,333,458.33  90,000.00  956,375.00     
2030  2,412,000.00  --  977,175.00     
2031  2,497,000.00  --  996,775.00     
2032  2,582,000.00  --  1,015,175.00     
2033  2,667,000.00  --  1,036,425.00     
2034  2,757,000.00  --  1,055,262.50     
2035  2,852,000.00  --  1,076,575.00     
2036  1,202,250.00  --  1,095,075.00     
2037  --  --  1,116,825.00     
2038  --  --  1,141,650.00     
2039                        --                   --  1,164,375.00     
Total  $42,025,083.33  $13,750,000  $22,686,187.50     
_____________________________ 
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

 

  



 
 

 63 
 

Capital Leases.  On December 1, 2009, the District entered into an adjustable rate lease purchase 
agreement with the Public Agency Finance Corporation in the amount of $3,735,000, with an initial interest 
rate of 3.57% per annum.  On December 1, 2014, December 1, 2019, and on December 1, 2024, the interest 
rate on any such maturities then-outstanding shall be adjusted to equal 85% of the Seattle Federal Home 
Loan Bank 5 Year Advance Rate.  The District used the proceeds of this lease purchase agreement to redeem 
a prior series of District certificates of participation. 

The following table shows the future minimum lease payments with respect to the District’s capital 
lease. 

Year Ended 
(June 30) Principal Interest Totals 

2017 $182,868 $48,396 $231,264 
2018 186,138 45,127 231,265 
2019 189,466 41,799 231,265 
2020 192,853 38,411 231,264 
2021 196,301 34,963 231,264 

2022-26 1,035,425 120,899 1,156,324 
2027-31 781,365 28,063 809,428 
Totals $2,764,416 $357,658 $3,122,074 

_____________________________ 
Source: Rincon Valley Union School District. 

For further information about the District’s long-term debt, see “APPENDIX B – 2015-16 
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT – Note 7” attached hereto. 

TAX MATTERS 

In the opinion of Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, a Professional Corporation, San Francisco, 
California (“Bond Counsel”), under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, and 
assuming the accuracy of certain representations and compliance with certain covenants and requirements 
described herein, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and 
is not an item of tax preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on 
individuals and corporations.  In the further opinion of Bond Counsel, interest on the Bonds is exempt from 
State of California personal income tax.  Bond Counsel notes that, with respect to corporations, interest on 
the Bonds may be included as an adjustment in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable income, 
which may affect the alternative minimum tax liability of corporations.   

The difference between the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a substantial amount of 
the Bonds of the same series and maturity is to be sold to the public) and the stated redemption price at 
maturity with respect to such Bond constitutes original issue discount. Original issue discount accrues under 
a constant yield method, and original issue discount will accrue to a Bond Owner before receipt of cash 
attributable to such excludable income. The amount of original issue discount deemed received by the Bond 
Owner will increase the Bond Owner’s basis in the Bond.  In the opinion of Bond Counsel, the amount of 
original issue discount that accrues to the owner of the Bond is excluded from the gross income of such 
owner for federal income tax purposes, is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the federal alternative 
minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, and is exempt from State of California personal 
income tax.   

Bond Counsel’s opinion as to the exclusion from gross income of interest (and original issue 
discount) on the Bonds is based upon certain representations of fact and certifications made by the District 



 
 

 64 
 

and others and is subject to the condition that the District complies with all requirements of the Internal 
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), that must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the 
Bonds to assure that interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds will not become includable in gross 
income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply with such requirements of the Code might cause 
the interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds to be included in gross income for federal income 
tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  The District has covenanted to comply with 
all such requirements. 

The amount by which a Bond Owner’s original basis for determining loss on sale or exchange in 
the applicable Bond (generally, the purchase price) exceeds the amount payable on maturity (or on an earlier 
call date) constitutes amortizable Bond premium, which must be amortized under Section 171 of the Code; 
such amortizable Bond premium reduces the Bond Owner’s basis in the applicable Bond (and the amount 
of tax-exempt interest received), and is not deductible for federal income tax purposes.  The basis reduction 
as a result of the amortization of Bond premium may result in a Bond Owner realizing a taxable gain when 
a Bond is sold by the Owner for an amount equal to or less (under certain circumstances) than the original 
cost of the Bond to the Owner.  Purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors as to the 
treatment, computation and collateral consequences of amortizable Bond premium. 

The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) has initiated an expanded program for the auditing of 
tax-exempt bond issues, including both random and targeted audits.  It is possible that the Bonds will be 
selected for audit by the IRS.  It is also possible that the market value of the Bonds might be affected as a 
result of such an audit of the Bonds (or by an audit of similar bonds).  No assurance can be given that in the 
course of an audit, as a result of an audit, or otherwise, Congress or the IRS might not change the Code (or 
interpretation thereof) subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds to the extent that it adversely affects the 
exclusion from gross income of interest on the Bonds or their market value. 

SUBSEQUENT TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS THERE MIGHT BE FEDERAL, STATE, 
OR LOCAL STATUTORY CHANGES (OR JUDICIAL OR REGULATORY INTERPRETATIONS OF 
FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL LAW) THAT AFFECT THE FEDERAL, STATE, OR LOCAL TAX 
TREATMENT OF THE BONDS OR THE MARKET VALUE OF THE BONDS.  TAX REFORM 
PROPOSALS ARE BEING CONSIDERED BY CONGRESS.  IT IS POSSIBLE THAT LEGISLATIVE 
CHANGES MIGHT BE INTRODUCED IN CONGRESS, WHICH, IF ENACTED, WOULD RESULT 
IN ADDITIONAL FEDERAL INCOME OR STATE TAX BEING IMPOSED ON OWNERS OF TAX-
EXEMPT STATE OR LOCAL OBLIGATIONS, SUCH AS THE BONDS.  THE INTRODUCTION OR 
ENACTMENT OF ANY OF SUCH CHANGES COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT THE MARKET 
VALUE OR LIQUIDITY OF THE BONDS.  NO ASSURANCE CAN BE GIVEN THAT SUBSEQUENT 
TO THE ISSUANCE OF THE BONDS SUCH CHANGES (OR OTHER CHANGES) WILL NOT BE 
INTRODUCED OR ENACTED OR INTERPRETATIONS WILL NOT OCCUR.  BEFORE 
PURCHASING ANY OF THE BONDS, ALL POTENTIAL PURCHASERS SHOULD CONSULT 
THEIR TAX ADVISORS REGARDING POSSIBLE STATUTORY CHANGES OR JUDICIAL OR 
REGULATORY CHANGES OR INTERPRETATIONS, AND THEIR COLLATERAL TAX 
CONSEQUENCES RELATING TO THE BONDS. 

Bond Counsel’s opinion may be affected by actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring (or not 
occurring) after the date hereof.  Bond Counsel has not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, 
whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur.  The Resolution and the Tax Certificate relating 
to the Bonds permit certain actions to be taken or to be omitted if a favorable opinion of bond counsel is 
provided with respect thereto.  Bond Counsel expresses no opinion as to the effect on the exclusion from 
gross income of interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds for federal income tax purposes with 
respect to any Bond if any such action is taken or omitted based upon the advice of counsel other than 
Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth.  



 
 

 65 
 

Although Bond Counsel has rendered an opinion that interest (and original issue discount) on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes provided that the District continues 
to comply with certain requirements of the Code, the ownership of the Bonds and the accrual or receipt of 
interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds may otherwise affect the tax liability of certain persons.  
Bond Counsel expresses no opinion regarding any such tax consequences. Accordingly, before purchasing 
any of the Bonds, all potential purchasers should consult their tax advisors with respect to collateral tax 
consequences relating to the Bonds. 

A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is attached hereto as APPENDIX A. 

LIMITATION ON REMEDIES; BANKRUPTCY 

General.  State law contains certain safeguards to protect the financial solvency of school districts.  
See “DISTRICT FINANCIAL INFORMATION – Budget Process” herein.  If the safeguards are not 
successful in preventing a school district from becoming insolvent, the State Superintendent, operating 
through an administrator appointed by the State Superintendent, may be authorized under State law to file 
a petition under Chapter 9 of the United States Bankruptcy Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) on behalf of the 
school district for the adjustment of its debts, assuming that the school district meets certain other 
requirements contained in the Bankruptcy Code necessary for filing a petition under Chapter 9.  School 
districts are not themselves authorized to file a bankruptcy proceeding, and they are not subject to 
involuntary bankruptcy. 

Bankruptcy courts are courts of equity and as such have broad discretionary powers.  If the District 
were to become the debtor in a proceeding under Chapter 9 of the Bankruptcy Code, the automatic stay 
provisions of Bankruptcy Code Sections 362 and 922 generally would prohibit creditors from taking any 
action to collect amounts due from the District or to enforce any obligation of the District related to such 
amounts due, without consent of the District or authorization of the bankruptcy court (although such stays 
would not operate to block creditor application of pledged special revenues to payment of indebtedness 
secured by such revenues).  In addition, as part of its plan of adjustment in a Chapter 9 bankruptcy case, 
the District may be able to alter the priority, interest rate, principal amount, payment terms, collateral, 
maturity dates, payment sources, covenants (including tax-related covenants), and other terms or provisions 
of the Bonds and other transaction documents related to the Bonds, as long as the bankruptcy court 
determines that the alterations are fair and equitable.  There also may be other possible effects of a 
bankruptcy of the District that could result in delays or reductions in payments on the Bonds.  Moreover, 
regardless of any specific adverse determinations in any District bankruptcy proceeding, the fact of a 
District bankruptcy proceeding could have an adverse effect on the liquidity and market price of the Bonds. 

Statutory Lien.  Pursuant to Government Code Section 53515, the Bonds are secured by a statutory 
lien on all revenues received pursuant to the levy and collection of the tax, and such lien automatically 
arises, without the need for any action or authorization by the local agency or its governing board, and is 
valid and binding from the time the Bonds are executed and delivered.  See “THE BONDS – Security and 
Sources of Payment” herein.  Although a statutory lien would not be automatically terminated by the filing 
of a Chapter 9 bankruptcy petition by the District, the automatic stay provisions of the Bankruptcy Code 
would apply and payments that become due and owing on the Bonds during the pendency of the Chapter 9 
proceeding could be delayed, unless the Bonds are determined to be secured by a pledge of “special 
revenues” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code and the pledged ad valorem taxes are applied to pay 
the Bonds in a manner consistent with the Bankruptcy Code. 

Special Revenues.  If the ad valorem tax revenues that are pledged to the payment of the Bonds 
are determined to be “special revenues” within the meaning of the Bankruptcy Code, then the application 
in a manner consistent with the Bankruptcy Code of the pledged ad valorem revenues should not be subject 



 
 

 66 
 

to the automatic stay.  “Special revenues” are defined to include, among others, taxes specifically levied to 
finance one or more projects or systems of the debtor, but excluding receipts from general property, sales, 
or income taxes levied to finance the general purposes of the debtor.  State law prohibits the use of the tax 
proceeds for any purpose other than payment of the Bonds and the Bond proceeds can only be used to fund 
the acquisition or improvement of real property and other capital expenditures included in the proposition, 
so such tax revenues appear to fit the definition of special revenues.  However, there is no binding judicial 
precedent dealing with the treatment in bankruptcy proceedings of ad valorem tax revenues collected for 
the payments of bonds in the State, so no assurance can be given that a bankruptcy court would not hold 
otherwise. 

Possession of Tax Revenues; Remedies.  The County on behalf of the District is expected to be in 
possession of the annual ad valorem property taxes and certain funds to repay the Bonds and may invest 
these funds in the County Treasury Pool, as described in “THE BONDS – Application and Investment of 
Bond Proceeds” herein and “APPENDIX E – Sonoma County Treasury Pool” attached hereto.  If the 
County goes into bankruptcy and has possession of tax revenues (whether collected before or after 
commencement of the bankruptcy), and if the County does not voluntarily pay such tax revenues to the 
owners of the Bonds, it is not entirely clear what procedures the owners of the Bonds would have to follow 
to attempt to obtain possession of such tax revenues, how much time it would take for such procedures to 
be completed, or whether such procedures would ultimately be successful.  Further, should those 
investments suffer any losses, there may be delays or reductions in payments on the Bonds. 

Opinion of Bond Counsel Qualified by Reference to Bankruptcy, Insolvency and Other Laws 
Relating to or Affecting Creditor’s Rights.  The proposed form of the approving opinion of Bond Counsel 
attached hereto as APPENDIX A is qualified by reference to bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws relating 
to or affecting creditor’s rights.  Bankruptcy proceedings, if initiated, could subject the owners of the Bonds 
to judicial discretion and interpretation of their rights in bankruptcy or otherwise, and consequently may 
entail risks of delay, limitation, or modification of their rights. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Legality for Investment in California 

Under provisions of the Financial Code, the Bonds are legal investments for commercial banks in 
the State to the extent that the Bonds, in the informed opinion of the bank, are prudent for the investment 
of funds of depositors, and, under provisions of the Government Code, are eligible for security for deposits 
of public moneys in the State. 

Expanded Reporting Requirements 

On May 17, 2006, the President signed the Tax Increase Prevention and Reconciliation Act of 2005 
(“TIPRA”).  Under Section 6049 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended by TIPRA, interest 
paid on tax-exempt obligations will be subject to information reporting in a manner similar to interest paid 
on taxable obligations.  The effective date for this provision is for interest paid after December 31, 2005, 
regardless of when the tax-exempt obligations were issued.  The purpose of this change was to assist in 
relevant information gathering for the IRS relating to other applicable tax provisions.  TIPRA provides that 
backup withholding may apply to such interest payments made after March 31, 2007 to any bondholder 
who fails to file an accurate Form W-9 or who meets certain other criteria.  The information reporting and 
backup withholding requirements of TIPRA do not affect the excludability of such interest from gross 
income for federal income tax purposes. 



 
 

 67 
 

Continuing Disclosure 

Current Undertaking.  The District has covenanted for the benefit of the Owners and Beneficial 
Owners of the Bonds to provide certain financial information and operating data relating to the District (the 
“Annual Report”) by not later than nine months following the end of the District’s fiscal year (which 
currently ends June 30), commencing with the report for the 2016-17 fiscal year, and to provide notices of 
the occurrence of certain listed events.  The Annual Report and notices of listed events will be filed by the 
District in accordance with the requirements of the Rule.  The specific nature of the information to be 
contained in the Annual Report or the notices of listed events is included in “APPENDIX C – FORM OF 
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE” attached hereto.  These covenants have been made in 
order to assist the Underwriter in complying with the Rule.   

Prior Undertakings.  Within the past five years, the District has failed to timely file certain material 
event notices. Within the past five years, the District has never filed a notice of its failure to file material 
event notices. [TO BE UPDATED]  

For the 2017-18 fiscal year, the District has retained California Financial Services, Santa Rosa, 
California, to prepare and file future annual reports and material event notices required under its existing 
continuing disclosure obligations with respect to the District’s outstanding general obligation bonds, 
including the Bonds.   

No Litigation 

No litigation is pending or threatened concerning the validity of the Bonds, and a certificate to that 
effect will be furnished to purchasers at the time of the original delivery of the Bonds.  The District is not 
aware of any litigation pending or threatened questioning the political existence of the District or contesting 
the District’s ability to receive ad valorem property taxes or to collect other revenues or contesting the 
District’s ability to issue and retire the Bonds. 

There are certain lawsuits and claims pending against the District.  In the opinion of the District, 
the aggregate amount of the uninsured liabilities of the District under these lawsuits and claims, if 
determined adverse to the District, would not materially affect the finances of the District. 

Financial Statements 

The financial statements with supplemental information for the year ended June 30, 2016, the 
independent auditor’s report of the District, and the related statements of activities and of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and the report dated December 7, 2016 of Stephen  Roatch  Accountancy  Corporation  
(the “Auditor”), are included in this Official Statement as Appendix B.  In connection with the inclusion of 
the financial statements and the report of the Auditor herein, the District did not request the Auditor to, and 
the Auditor has not undertaken to, update its report or to take any action intended or likely to elicit 
information concerning the accuracy, completeness or fairness of the statements made in this Official 
Statement, and no opinion is expressed by the Auditor with respect to any event subsequent to the date of 
its report. 

Legal Opinion 

The legal opinion of Bond Counsel, approving the validity of the Bonds, will be supplied to the 
original purchasers of the Bonds without cost.  A copy of the proposed form of such legal opinion is attached 
to this Official Statement as APPENDIX A. 



 
 

 68 
 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Ratings 

The Bonds have been assigned the rating of “__” by S&P and “__” by Moody’s.  The rating reflects 
only the views of the rating agency, and any explanation of the significance of such rating should be 
obtained from the rating agency at the following address:  Standard & Poor’s, 55 Water Street, 45th Floor, 
New York, New York 10041 and Moody’s, 7 World Trade Center at 250 Greenwich, New York, NY 10007.  
There is no assurance that the rating will be retained for any given period of time or that the same will not 
be revised downward or withdrawn entirely by the rating agency if, in the judgment of the rating agency, 
circumstances so warrant.  The District undertakes no responsibility to oppose any such revision or 
withdrawal.  Any such downward revision or withdrawal of the rating obtained may have an adverse effect 
on the market price of the Bonds. 

Generally, rating agencies base their ratings on information and materials furnished to them (which 
may include information and material from the District which is not included in this Official Statement) 
and on investigations, studies and assumptions by the rating agency. 

The District has covenanted in a Continuing Disclosure Certificate to file on the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board’s Electronic Municipal Market Access website (“EMMA”) notices of any 
rating changes on the Bonds.  See “APPENDIX C - FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE 
CERTIFICATE” attached hereto.  Notwithstanding such covenant, information relating to rating changes 
on the Bonds may be publicly available from the rating agency prior to such information being provided to 
the District and prior to the date the District is obligated to file a notice of rating change on EMMA.  
Purchasers of the Bonds are directed to the rating agency and its website and official media outlets for the 
most current rating changes with respect to the Bonds after the initial issuance of the Bonds. 

Underwriting 

The Bonds are being purchased by Piper Jaffray & Co. (the “Underwriter”).  The Underwriter has 
agreed to purchase the Bonds at a price of $__________, which is equal to the aggregate principal amount 
of the Bonds of $___________, plus net original issue premium of $__________, and less an underwriting 
discount of $____________.   

The Purchase Contract for the Bonds provides that the Underwriter will purchase all of the Bonds 
if any are purchased, the obligation to make such purchase being subject to certain terms and conditions set 
forth in said agreement, the approval of certain legal matters by counsel and certain other conditions.  The 
Underwriter may offer and sell Bonds to certain dealers and others at prices lower than the offering prices 
stated on the inside cover page.  The offering prices may be changed from time to time by the Underwriter. 

  



 
 

 69 
 

Additional Information 

The purpose of this Official Statement is to supply information to prospective buyers of the Bonds.  
Quotations from and summaries and explanations of the Bonds, the Resolution providing for issuance of 
the Bonds, and the constitutional provisions, statutes and other documents referenced herein, do not purport 
to be complete, and reference is made to said documents, constitutional provisions and statutes for full and 
complete statements of their provisions. 

Certain of the data contained herein has been taken or constructed from District records.  
Appropriate District officials, acting in their official capacities, have reviewed this Official Statement and 
have determined that, as of the date hereof, the information contained herein is, to the best of their 
knowledge and belief, true and correct in all material respects and does not contain an untrue statement of 
a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary in order to make the statements made herein, in 
light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading.  This Official Statement has been 
approved by the District. 

Any statements in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion, whether or not expressly 
so stated, are intended only as such and not as representations of fact.  This Official Statement is not to be 
construed as a contract or agreement between the District and the purchasers or owners, beneficial or 
otherwise, of any of the Bonds. 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:    
Tony Roehrick, Ed.D. 

Superintendent



 

A-1 
 
 

APPENDIX A 

FORM OF OPINION OF BOND COUNSEL 

Upon issuance and delivery of the Bonds, Stradling Yocca Carlson & Rauth, Bond Counsel, 
proposes to render its final approving opinion with respect thereto substantially in the following form: 

________________, 2017 

Board of Trustees 
Rincon Valley Union School District 

Members of the Board of Trustees: 

We have examined a certified copy of the record of the proceedings relative to the issuance and 
sale of $_________ Rincon Valley Union School District Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, 
Series B (the “Bonds”).  As to questions of fact material to our opinion, we have relied upon the certified 
proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us without undertaking to verify the 
same by independent investigation. 

Based on our examination as bond counsel of existing law, certified copies of such legal 
proceedings and such other proofs as we deem necessary to render this opinion, we are of the opinion, as 
of the date hereof and under existing law, that: 

1. Such proceedings and proofs show lawful authority for the issuance and sale of the 
Bonds pursuant to Government Code Article 4.5 of Chapter 3 of Part 1 of Division 2 of Title 5, a 
greater than fifty-five percent vote of the qualified electors of the Rincon Valley Union School 
District (the “District”) voting at an election held on June 3, 2014, and a resolution adopted by the 
Board of Trustees of the District on September 12, 2017 (the “Resolution”). 

2. The Bonds constitute valid and binding general obligations of the District, payable 
as to both principal and interest from the proceeds of a levy of ad valorem taxes on all property 
subject to such taxes in the District, which taxes are unlimited as to rate or amount. 

3. Under existing statutes, regulations, rulings and judicial decisions, interest on the 
Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item of tax 
preference for purposes of calculating the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals 
and corporations; however, it should be noted that, with respect to corporations, such interest on 
the Bonds may be included as an adjustment in the calculation of alternative minimum taxable 
income, which may affect the federal income tax liability of such corporations. 

4. Interest on the Bonds is exempt from State of California personal income tax. 

5. The difference between the issue price of a Bond (the first price at which a 
substantial amount of the Bonds of a maturity is to be sold to the public) and the stated redemption 
price at maturity with respect to such Bonds constitutes original issue discount.  Original issue 
discount accrues under a constant yield method, and original issue discount will accrue to a 
Bondowner before receipt of cash attributable to such excludable income.  The amount of original 
issue discount deemed received by a Bondowner will increase the Bondowner’s basis in the 



 

A-2 
 
 

applicable Bond.  Original issue discount that accrues to the Bondowner is excluded from the gross 
income of such owner for federal income tax purposes, is not an item of tax preference for purposes 
of the federal alternative minimum tax imposed on individuals and corporations, and is exempt 
from State of California personal income tax. 

6. The amount by which a Bondowner’s original basis for determining loss on sale 
or exchange in the applicable Bond (generally, the purchase price) exceeds the amount payable on 
maturity (or on an earlier call date) constitutes amortizable Bond premium, which must be 
amortized under Section 171 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); such 
amortizable Bond premium reduces the Bondowner’s basis in the applicable Bond (and the amount 
of tax-exempt interest received), and is not deductible for federal income tax purposes.  The basis 
reduction as a result of the amortization of Bond premium may result in a Bondowner realizing a 
taxable gain when a Bond is sold by the Bondowner for an amount equal to or less (under certain 
circumstances) than the original cost of the Bond to the Bondowner.  Purchasers of the Bonds 
should consult their own tax advisors as to the treatment, computation and collateral consequences 
of amortizable Bond premium. 

The opinions expressed herein may be affected by actions taken (or not taken) or events occurring 
(or not occurring) after the date hereof.  We have not undertaken to determine, or to inform any person, 
whether any such actions or events are taken or do occur.  The Resolution and the Tax Certificate relating 
to the Bonds permit certain actions to be taken or to be omitted if a favorable opinion of Bond Counsel is 
provided with respect thereto.  No opinion is expressed herein as to the effect on the exclusion from gross 
income of interest (and original issue discount) for federal income tax purposes with respect to any Bond 
if any such action is taken or omitted based upon the advice of counsel other than ourselves.  Other than 
expressly stated herein, we express no opinion regarding tax consequences with respect to the Bonds. 

The opinions expressed herein as to the exclusion from gross income of interest (and original issue 
discount) on the Bonds are based upon certain representations of fact and certifications made by the District 
and others and are subject to the condition that the District complies with all requirements of the Code, that 
must be satisfied subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds to assure that such interest (and original issue 
discount) will not become includable in gross income for federal income tax purposes.  Failure to comply 
with such requirements of the Code might cause interest (and original issue discount) on the Bonds to be 
included in gross income for federal income tax purposes retroactive to the date of issuance of the Bonds.  
The District has covenanted to comply with all such requirements. 

It is possible that subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds there might be federal, state, or local 
statutory changes (or judicial or regulatory interpretations of federal, state, or local law) that affect the 
federal, state, or local tax treatment of the Bonds or the market value of the Bonds.  No assurance can be 
given that subsequent to the issuance of the Bonds such changes or interpretations will not occur. 

The rights of the owners of the Bonds and the enforceability thereof may be subject to bankruptcy, 
insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or 
hereafter enacted to the extent constitutionally applicable and their enforcement may also be subject to the 
exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases and by the limitations on legal remedies against public 
agencies in the State of California. 

Respectfully submitted, 

 



 

B-1 
 
 

APPENDIX B 

2015-16 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE DISTRICT



 

C-1 
 

APPENDIX C 

FORM OF CONTINUING DISCLOSURE CERTIFICATE 

This Continuing Disclosure Certificate (the “Disclosure Certificate”) is executed and delivered by 
the Rincon Valley Union School District (the “District”) in connection with the issuance of $_________ of 
the District’s Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds are being 
issued pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Board of Trustees of the District on September 12, 2017.  
The District covenants and agrees as follows: 

SECTION 1.  Purpose of the Disclosure Certificate.  This Disclosure Certificate is being executed 
and delivered by the District for the benefit of the Holders and Beneficial Owners of the Bonds and in order 
to assist the Participating Underwriter in complying with Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15c2-
12(b)(5). 

SECTION 2.  Definitions.   In addition to the definitions set forth in the Resolution, which apply 
to any capitalized term used in this Disclosure Certificate unless otherwise defined in this Section, the 
following capitalized terms shall have the following meanings: 

“Annual Report” shall mean any Annual Report provided by the District pursuant to, and as 
described in, Sections 3 and 4 of this Disclosure Certificate. 

“Beneficial Owner” shall mean any person which (a) has the power, directly or indirectly, to vote 
or consent with respect to, or to dispose of ownership of, any Bonds (including persons holding Bonds 
through nominees, depositories or other intermediaries), or (b) is treated as the owner of any Bonds for 
federal income tax purposes. 

“Dissemination Agent” shall mean initially the California Financial Services, or any successor 
Dissemination Agent designated in writing by the District (which may be the District) and which has filed 
with the District a written acceptance of such designation. 

“Holders” shall mean registered owners of the Bonds. 

“Listed Events” shall mean any of the events listed in Section 5(a) or Section 5(b) of this Disclosure 
Certificate. 

“Official Statement” means that certain official statement, dated ________________, 2017, 
relating to the offering and sale of the Bonds.  

“Participating Underwriter” shall mean Piper Jaffray & Co., as the original underwriter of the 
Bonds required to comply with the Rule in connection with the offering of the Bonds.   

“Repository” shall mean, the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board, which can be found at 
http://emma.msrb.org/, or any other repository of disclosure information that may be designated by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission as such for purposes of the Rule in the future. 

“Rule” shall mean Rule 15c2-12(b)(5) adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission under 
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as the same may be amended from time to time. 

“State” shall mean the State of California.   



 

C-2 
 

SECTION 3.  Provision of Annual Reports. 

(a) The District shall, or shall cause the Dissemination Agent to, not later than nine months 
after the end of the District’s fiscal year (presently ending June 30), commencing with the report for the 
2016-17 fiscal year, provide to the Repository an Annual Report which is consistent with the requirements 
of Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate.  The Annual Report may be submitted as a single document or 
as separate documents comprising a package, and may cross-reference other information as provided in 
Section 4 of this Disclosure Certificate; provided that the audited financial statements of the District may 
be submitted separately from the balance of the Annual Report and later than the date required above for 
the filing of the Annual Report if they are not available by that date.  If the District’s fiscal year changes, it 
shall give notice of such change in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(c). 

(b) Not later than thirty (30) days (nor more than sixty (60) days) prior to said date the 
Dissemination Agent shall give notice to the District that the Annual Report shall be required to be filed in 
accordance with the terms of this Disclosure Certificate.  Not later than fifteen (15) Business Days prior to 
said date, the District shall provide the Annual Report in a format suitable for reporting to the Repository 
to the Dissemination Agent (if other than the District).   If the District is unable to provide to the Repository 
an Annual Report by the date required in subsection (a), the District shall send a timely notice to the 
Repository in substantially the form attached as Exhibit A with a copy to the Dissemination Agent.  The 
Dissemination Agent shall not be required to file a Notice to Repository of Failure to File an Annual Report. 

(c) The Dissemination Agent shall file a report with the District stating it has filed the Annual 
Report in accordance with its obligations hereunder, stating the date it was provided to the Repository. 

SECTION 4.  Content and Form of Annual Reports.  (a)  The District’s Annual Report shall contain 
or include by reference the following: 

1. The audited financial statements of the District for the prior fiscal year, prepared 
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles as promulgated to apply to 
governmental entities from time to time by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board.  If the 
District’s audited financial statements are not available by the time the Annual Report is required 
to be filed pursuant to Section 3(a), the Annual Report shall contain unaudited financial statements 
in a format similar to the financial statements contained in the final Official Statement, and the 
audited financial statements shall be filed in the same manner as the Annual Report when they 
become available. 

2. Material financial information and operating data with respect to the District of the 
type included in the Official Statement in the following categories (to the extent not included in the 
District’s audited financial statements): 

(a) State funding received by the District for the last completed fiscal year; 

(b) average daily attendance of the District for the last completed fiscal year; 

(c)   outstanding District indebtedness; 

(d)  summary financial information on revenues, expenditures and fund balances for 
the District’s general fund reflecting adopted budget for the current fiscal year; 

(e)  assessed valuation of taxable property within the District for the current fiscal year; 



 

C-3 
 

(f) local secured assessed valuation of taxable property within the District for the 
current fiscal year; 

(g)  secured tax levy collections and delinquencies within the District for the last 
completed fiscal year, except to the extent the Teeter Plan, as adopted by Sonoma 
County, applies to both the 1% general purpose ad valorem property tax levy and 
to the tax levy for general obligation bonds of the District; and 

(h) list of the 20 largest taxpayers in the District, together with their assessed valuation 
and percentage of total assessed valuation in the District for the last completed 
fiscal year. 

Any or all of the items listed above may be included by specific reference to other documents, 
including official statements of debt issues of the District or related public entities, which have been 
submitted to the Repository or the Securities and Exchange Commission.  If the document included by 
reference is a final official statement, it must be available from the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board.  
The District shall clearly identify each such other document so included by reference. 

(b) The Annual Report shall be filed in an electronic format, and accompanied by identifying 
information, prescribed by the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board. 

SECTION 5.  Reporting of Significant Events.  

(a) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(a), the District shall give, or cause to be given, 
notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds in a timely manner not in 
excess of 10 business days after the occurrence of the event: 

1. principal and interest payment delinquencies. 

2. tender offers. 

3. optional, contingent or unscheduled Bond calls. 

4. defeasances. 

5. rating changes. 

6. adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or 
final determinations of taxability, or Notices of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701-TEB). 

7. unscheduled draws on the debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties. 

8. unscheduled draws on credit enhancement reflecting financial difficulties. 

9. substitution of the credit or liquidity providers or their failure to perform. 

10. bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership or similar event (within the meaning of the 
Rule) of the District.  For the purposes of the event identified in this Section 5(a)(9), the event is 
considered to occur when any of the following occur: the appointment of a receiver, fiscal agent or 
similar officer for the District in a proceeding under the U.S. Bankruptcy Code or in any other 
proceeding under state or federal law in which a court or governmental authority has assumed 
jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the District, or if such jurisdiction has 



 

C-4 
 

been assumed by leaving the existing governmental body and officials or officers in possession but 
subject to the supervision and orders of a court or governmental authority, or the entry of an order 
confirming a plan of reorganization, arrangement or liquidation by a court or governmental 
authority having supervision or jurisdiction over substantially all of the assets or business of the 
District. 

(b) Pursuant to the provisions of this Section 5(b), the District shall give, or cause to 
be given, notice of the occurrence of any of the following events with respect to the Bonds, if 
material: 

1. non-payment related defaults. 

2. modifications to rights of Bondholders. 

3. unless described under Section 5(a)(5) above, material notices or determinations 
with respect to the tax status of the Bonds, or other material events affecting the tax status of the 
Bonds. 

4. release, substitution or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds. 

5. the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the District 
or the sale of all or substantially all of the assets of the District, other than in the ordinary course of 
business, the entry into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a 
definitive agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms. 

6. appointment of a successor or additional trustee or paying agent with respect to the 
Bonds or the change of name of such a trustee or paying agent. 

(c) Whenever the District obtains knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under 
Section 5(b) hereof, the District shall as soon as possible determine if such event would be material under 
applicable federal securities laws. 

(d) If the District determines that knowledge of the occurrence of a Listed Event under 
Section 5(b) hereof would be material under applicable federal securities laws, the District shall (i) file a 
notice of such occurrence with the Repository in a timely manner not in excess of 10 business days after 
the occurrence of the event or (ii) provide notice of such reportable event to the Dissemination Agent in 
format suitable for filing with the Repository in a timely manner not in excess of 10 business days after the 
occurrence of the event.  The Dissemination Agent shall have no duty to independently prepare or file any 
report of Listed Events.  The Dissemination Agent may conclusively rely on the District’s determination of 
materiality pursuant to Section 5(c). 

SECTION 6.  Termination of Reporting Obligation.  The District’s obligations under this 
Disclosure Certificate shall terminate upon the legal defeasance, prior redemption or payment in full of all 
of the Bonds. If such termination occurs prior to the final maturity of the Bonds, the District shall give 
notice of such termination in the same manner as for a Listed Event under Section 5(a) or Section 5(b), as 
applicable. 

SECTION 7.  Dissemination Agent.  The District may, from time to time, appoint or engage a 
Dissemination Agent (or substitute Dissemination Agent) to assist it in carrying out its obligations under 
this Disclosure Certificate, and may discharge any such Agent, with or without appointing a successor 
Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination Agent may resign upon fifteen (15) days written notice to the 



 

C-5 
 

District.  Upon such resignation, the District shall act as its own Dissemination Agent until it appoints a 
successor.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be responsible in any manner for the content of any notice 
or report prepared by the District pursuant to this Disclosure Certificate and shall not be responsible to 
verify the accuracy, completeness or materiality of any continuing disclosure information provided by the 
District.  The District shall compensate the Dissemination Agent for its fees and expenses hereunder as 
agreed by the parties.  Any entity succeeding to all or substantially all of the Dissemination Agent’s 
corporate trust business shall be the successor Dissemination Agent without the execution or filing of any 
paper or further act. 

SECTION 8.  Amendment; Waiver.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate, the District may amend this Disclosure Certificate, and any provision of this Disclosure 
Certificate may be waived, provided  that the following conditions are satisfied: 

(a) If the amendment or waiver relates to the provisions of Sections 3(a), 4, 5(a) or 
5(b), it may only be made in connection with a change in circumstances that arises from a change 
in legal requirements, change in law, or change in the identity, nature or status of an obligated 
person with respect to the Bonds, or the type of business conducted; 

(b) The undertaking, as amended or taking into account such waiver, would, in the 
opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel, have complied with the requirements of the Rule at 
the time of the original issuance of the Bonds, after taking into account any amendments or 
interpretations of the Rule, as well as any change in circumstances; 

(c) The amendment or waiver does not, in the opinion of nationally recognized bond 
counsel, materially impair the interests of the Holders or Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; and 

(d) No duties of the Dissemination Agent hereunder shall be amended without its 
written consent thereto. 

In the event of any amendment or waiver of a provision of this Disclosure Certificate, the District shall 
describe such amendment in the next Annual Report, and shall include, as applicable, a narrative 
explanation of the reason for the amendment or waiver and its impact on the type (or in the case of a change 
of accounting principles, on the presentation) of financial information or operating data being presented by 
the District. In addition, if the amendment relates to the accounting principles to be followed in preparing 
financial statements, (i) notice of such change shall be given in the same manner as for a Listed Event under 
Section 5(a), and (ii) the Annual Report for the year in which the change is made should present a 
comparison (in narrative form and also, if feasible, in quantitative form) between the financial statements 
as prepared on the basis of the new accounting principles and those prepared on the basis of the former 
accounting principles. 

SECTION 9.  Additional Information.  Nothing in this Disclosure Certificate shall be deemed to 
prevent the District from disseminating any other information, using the means of dissemination set forth 
in this Disclosure Certificate or any other means of communication, or including any other information in 
any Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event, in addition to that which is required by this 
Disclosure Certificate. If the District chooses to include any information in any Annual Report or notice of 
occurrence of a Listed Event in addition to that which is specifically required by this Disclosure Certificate, 
the District shall have no obligation under this Certificate to update such information or include it in any 
future Annual Report or notice of occurrence of a Listed Event. 

SECTION 10.  Default.  In the event of a failure of the District to comply with any provision of 
this Disclosure Certificate any Holder or Beneficial Owner of the Bonds may take such actions as may be 



 

C-6 
 

necessary and appropriate, including seeking mandate or specific performance by court order, to cause the 
District to comply with its obligations under this Disclosure Certificate. A default under this Disclosure 
Certificate shall not be deemed an event of default under the Resolution, and the sole remedy under this 
Disclosure Certificate in the event of any failure of the District to comply with this Disclosure Certificate 
shall be an action to compel performance. 

SECTION 11.  Duties, Immunities and Liabilities of  Dissemination Agent.  The Dissemination 
Agent shall have only such duties as are specifically set forth in this Disclosure Certificate.  The 
Dissemination Agent acts hereunder solely for the benefit of the District; this Disclosure Certificate shall 
confer no duties on the Dissemination Agent to the Participating Underwriter, the Holders and the 
Beneficial Owners.  The District agrees to indemnify and save the Dissemination Agent, its officers, 
directors, employees and agents, harmless against any loss, expense and liabilities which it may incur 
arising out of or in the exercise or performance of its powers and duties hereunder, including the costs and 
expenses (including attorney’s fees) of defending against any claim of liability, but excluding liabilities due 
to the Dissemination Agent’s gross negligence or willful misconduct.  The obligations of the District under 
this Section shall survive resignation or removal of the Dissemination Agent and payment of the Bonds.  
The Dissemination Agent shall have no liability for the failure to report any event or any financial 
information as to which the District has not provided an information report in format suitable for filing with 
the Repository.  The Dissemination Agent shall not be required to monitor or enforce the District’s duty to 
comply with its continuing disclosure requirements hereunder. 

SECTION 12.  Beneficiaries.  This Disclosure Certificate shall inure solely to the benefit of the 
District, the Dissemination Agent, the Participating Underwriter and Holders and Beneficial Owners from 
time to time of the Bonds, and shall create no rights in any other person or entity. 

Dated:  _______________, 2017 
RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   
Tony Roehrick, Ed.D.  

Superintendent  



 

C-A-1 
 

EXHIBIT A 

NOTICE TO REPOSITORY OF FAILURE TO FILE ANNUAL REPORT 

Name of District:  RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 

Name of Bond Issue:   Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B 
 
Date of Issuance:   _______________, 2017 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the District has not provided an Annual Report with respect to the 
above-named Bonds as required by the Continuing Disclosure Certificate relating to the Bonds.  The 
District anticipates that the Annual Report will be filed by _____________.   

Dated: _______________________ 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
 
By  [form only; no signature required] 



 

D-1 
 

APPENDIX D 

GENERAL ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION 
FOR RINCON VALLEY, CITY OF SANTA ROSA, AND SONOMA COUNTY 

 
The following information regarding the City of Santa Rosa (the “City) and Sonoma County (the 

“County”) is included only for the purpose of supplying general information regarding the local community 
and economy.  The Bonds are not a debt of the City or the County.  This material has been prepared by or 
excerpted from the sources noted herein and has not been reviewed for accuracy by the District, Bond 
Counsel, the Underwriter or the financial advisor. 

General 

The City of Santa Rosa.  The City is located in central Sonoma County and covers an area of 
approximately 35 square miles.  Incorporated in 1968, the City is the county seat and operates under a 
council-manager form of government.  The City Council is comprised of five elected members that appoint 
a City Manager and act as the City’s legislative and policy-making body. 

Sonoma County.  The County is the northernmost of the nine counties that comprise the greater 
metropolitan San Francisco Bay Area.  The County encompasses 1,598 square miles and is bordered on the 
south by Marin County and San Pablo Bay (a branch of San Francisco Bay), on the north by Mendocino 
County, on the east by Lake and Napa Counties, and on the west by the Pacific Ocean.  Renowned for its 
agriculture and natural beauty, the County’s beaches, vineyards and redwood forests attract many visitors 
throughout the year.  The County is a general law county, governed by a five-member Board of Supervisors. 

Population 

The following table shows historical population figures for the City, the County and the State of 
California (the “State”) for the last 10 years. 

POPULATION ESTIMATES 
2008 through 2017 

City of Santa Rosa, Sonoma County and the State of California 
 

Year(1) City of Santa Rosa Sonoma County State of California 
2008 162,657 474,819 36,704,375 
2009 165,405 478,622 36,966,713 
2010(2) 167,815 483,878 37,253,956 
2011 168,175 485,417 37,536,835 
2012 169,146 487,487 37,881,357 
2013 170,910 491,993 38,238,492 
2014 172,391 495,798 38,572,211 
2015 174,590 500,051 38,915,880 
2016 175,738 502,604 39,189,035 
2017 176,799 505,120 39,523,613 

    
(1) As of January 1. 
(2) As of April 1. 
Source:  2010: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of the Census, for April 1. 
2007-09, 2011-17 (2000 and 2010 Demographic Research Unit Benchmark): California Department of Finance for January 1.   



 

D-2 
 

Income 

The following table summarizes per capita personal income for the County, the State, and the 
United States for the past 10 years. 

PER CAPITA PERSONAL INCOME 
2006 through 2015 

Sonoma County, the State of California, and the United States 
 

Year 
 

Sonoma County 
State of 

California United States 
2006 $43,606 $42,334 $38,144 
2007 44,545 43,692 39,821 
2008 43,978 44,162 41,082 
2009 42,089 42,224 39,376 
2010 42,548 43,315 40,277 
2011 44,625 45,820 42,453 
2012 46,312 48,312 44,267 
2013 47,859 48,471 44,462 
2014 50,181 50,988 46,414 
2015 53,520 53,741 48,112 

    
Note: Per capital personal income is the total personal income divided by the total mid-year population estimates of the 
U.S. Bureau of the Census.  Estimates for 2010 through 2015 reflect county population estimates available as of March 2016. 
All dollar estimates are in current dollars (not adjusted for inflation). 
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis. 

[REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT BLANK] 

  



 

D-3 
 

Principal Employers 

The following tables list the principal employers in the City and the County in 2016.  

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
2016 

City of Santa Rosa 
 

Employer Industry 
Number of 
Employees 

County of Sonoma County government 3,886 

Kaiser Permanente Hospital and healthcare 2,640 

Santa Rosa Junior College Post-Secondary and continuing education 1,675 

Santa Rosa School District Education 1,608 

St. Joseph Health System Hospital and healthcare 1,578 

Keysight Technologies Manufacturer of test and measurement 
equipment and software 

1,300 

City of Santa Rosa City government 1,249 

Sutter Medical Center of Santa Rosa Hospital and healthcare 936 

Amy’s Kitchen Organic, gluten free, vegan and vegetarian 
foods- fresh and frozen 

870 

Medtronic/Arterial Vascular Eng Medical devices - manufacturer 840 
  

Source:  City of Santa Rosa Comprehensive Annual Financial Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016. 

 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 
2016 

Sonoma County 
 

 
Employer 

 
Industry 

Number of 
Employees 

County of Sonoma County government 3,855 

Santa Rosa Junior College Post-secondary and continuing education 3,733 

Kaiser Permanente Hospital and healthcare 2,640 

Graton Resort and Casino Tourism and gaming 2,000 

St. Joseph’s Health System Hospital and healthcare 1,578 

Keysight Technologies Manufacturer of test and measurement 
equipment and software 

1,300 

City of Santa Rosa City government 1,254 

Sonoma State University College 1,505 

Sutter Santa Rosa Regional Hospital Hospital and healthcare 936 

Amy’s Kitchen Organic, gluten free, vegan and vegetarian 
foods- fresh and frozen 

870 

  
Source:  County of Sonoma Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2016. 



 

D-4 
 

Employment 

The following table summarizes the labor force, employment and unemployment figures for the 
years 2012 through 2016 for the City, the County, the State, and the United States. 

CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE, EMPLOYMENT AND UNEMPLOYMENT 
2012 through 2016(1) 

City of Santa Rosa, Sonoma County, State of California, and the United States 
 

 
Year and Area 

 
Labor Force 

 
Employment(2) 

 
Unemployment(3) 

Unemployment
Rate (%) 

2012     
City of Santa Rosa 85,000 76,700 8,400 9.8 
Sonoma County 246,300 224,500 21,800 8.9 
State of California 18,523,800 16,602,700 1,921,100 10.4 
United States 154,975,000 142,469,000 12,506,000 8.1 

     

2013     
City of Santa Rosa 86,100 79,300 6,800 7.9 
Sonoma County 250,000 232,200 17,700 7.1 
State of California 18,624,300 16,958,700 1,665,600 8.9 
United States 155,389,000 143,929,000 11,460,000 7.4 

     

2014     
City of Santa Rosa 88,300 82,700 5,500 6.2 
Sonoma County 256,600 242,200 14,400 5.6 
State of California 18,755,000 17,348,600 1,406,400 7.5 
United States 155,922,000 146,305,000 9,617,000 6.2 
     

2015     
City of Santa Rosa 88,700 84,300 4,400 5.0 
Sonoma County 258,400 246,900 11,500 4.5 
State of California 18,893,200 17,723,300 1,169,900 6.2 
United States 157,130,000 148,834,000 8,296,000 5.3 
     

2016     
City of Santa Rosa 89,400 85,500 3,900 4.4 
Sonoma County 260,500 250,200 10,300 4.0 
State of California 19,102,700 18,065,000 1,037,700 5.4 
United States 159,187,000 151,436,000 7,751,000 4.9 

  
Note: Data is not seasonally adjusted. 
(1) Annual averages, unless otherwise specified. 
(2) Includes persons involved in labor-management trade disputes.  
(3) The unemployment rate is computed from unrounded data; therefore, it may differ from rates computed from rounded figures 

in this table. 
Source: U.S. Department of Labor – Bureau of Labor Statistics, California Employment Development Department.  March 2016 

Benchmark. 



 

D-5 
 

Industry 

The distribution of employment is presented in the following table for the past five years.  These 
figures are multi county-wide statistics and may not necessarily accurately reflect employment trends in the 
County. 

INDUSTRY EMPLOYMENT & LABOR FORCE ANNUAL AVERAGES 
2012 through 2016 

Sonoma County 
 

Category 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

 Total Farm 6,000 6,300 6,100 6,000 6,200
 Total Nonfarm 172,500 180,900 191,000 196,800 201,600
  Total Private 144,500 152,000 159,800 165,000 169,300
  Goods Producing 28,600 30,300 31,500 33,800 35,000
   Mining and Logging 200 200 300 200 200
   Construction 8,800 9,900 10,500 11,600 12,500
  Manufacturing 19,700 21,000 20,700 22,000 22,300
   Durable Goods 8,600 8,600 8,400 8,500 8,400
   Nondurable Goods 11,100 11,500 12,300 13,500 13,900
  Service Providing 143,900 150,600 159,600 163,000 166,600
   Private Service Providing 115,900 121,800 128,400 131,300 134,300
  Trade, Transportation and Utilities 33,600 35,100 36,100 36,500 36,700
   Wholesale Trade 6,900 7,400 7,500 7,500 7,700
   Retail Trade 22,700 23,700 24,300 24,700 24,800
   Transportation, Warehousing and 
Utilities 

3,900 4,100 4,300 4,300 4,200

  Information 2,600 2,600 2,700 2,700 2,700
  Financial Activities 7,400 7,400 7,700 8,100 8,500
  Professional and Business Services 18,200 19,300 20,100 20,400 21,100
  Educational and Health Services 26,200 27,000 31,200 32,100 33,100
  Leisure and Hospitality 21,800 22,800 23,800 24,600 25,000
  Other Services 6,300 6,600 6,800 7,000 7,300
  Government   28,000   28,900   31,200   31,800   32,400
Total, All Industries 197,100 202,800 207,800 178,500 187,100

    
Note: The “Total, All Industries” data is not directly comparable to the employment data found herein. 
Source: State of California, Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information Division, Average Labor Force 

and Industry Employment.  March 2016 Benchmark. 

  



 

D-6 
 

Commercial Activity 

The following tables show summaries of annual taxable sales for the City and the County from 
2011 through 2015. 

ANNUAL TAXABLE SALES 
2011 through 2015 
City of Santa Rosa 

(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 

Year 
 

Retail Permits 

Retail Stores 
Taxable 

Transactions 

 
 

Total Permits 

 
Total Taxable 
Transactions 

2011 3,047 $2,164,876 4,710 $2,616,018 
2012 3,152 2,274,177 4,837 2,744,427 
2013 3,405 2,401,094 5,119 2,907,024 
2014 3,498 2,540,708 5,250 3,073,610 
2015 -- 2,579,495 -- 3,147,615 

  
Note: Beginning in 2015, the outlet counts in these reports show the number of outlets that were active during the reporting period.  
Retailers that operate part-time are now tabulated with store retailers.  Industry-level data for 2015 are not comparable to that of 
prior years. 
Source: “Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax),” California State Board of Equalization. 

 
 

ANNUAL TAXABLE SALES 
2011 through 2015 

Sonoma County 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

Year 
Retail  

Permits 

Retail Stores 
Taxable 

Transactions 
 

Total Permits 
Total Taxable 
Transactions 

2011 10,799 $4,895,477 16,972 $6,962,114 
2012 11,105 5,228,062 17,311 7,382,997 
2013 11,757 5,618,188 17,998 8,017,883 
2014 11,881 5,931,984 18,179 8,467,551 
2015 -- 6,104,395 -- 8,704,969 

  
Note:  Beginning in 2015, the outlet counts in these reports show the number of outlets that were active during the reporting period.  
Retailers that operate part-time are now tabulated with store retailers.  Industry-level data for 2015 are not comparable to that of 
prior years. 
Source: “Taxable Sales in California (Sales & Use Tax),” California State Board of Equalization. 
  



 

D-7 
 

Construction Activity 

The following tables show the annual building permit valuations and number of permits for new 
dwelling units issued from 2012 through 2016 for the City and the County. 

BUILDING PERMITS AND VALUATIONS 
2012 through 2016 
City of Santa Rosa 

(Dollars in Thousands) 
 

 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 
Valuation   
 Residential $61,156 $89,756 $62,441 $54,474 $62,409 
 Non-Residential 45,084 40,091 42,137 65,022 47,887 
 Total $106,240 $129,847 $104,578 $119,496 $110,296 
      
Units      
 Single Family 103 125 186 96 108 
 Multiple Family 136 359 64 26 142 
 Total 239 484 250 122 250 

  
Note: Totals may not add to sum due to rounding. 
Source: Construction Industry Research Board. 

 
 

BUILDING PERMITS AND VALUATIONS 
2012 through 2016 

Sonoma County 
(Dollars in Thousands) 

 
 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 

Valuation      
Residential $173,113 $201,754 $156,034 $171,771 $210,169 
Non-Residential 117,707 121,896 135,266 157,616 189,762 
Total $290,820 $323,650 $291,300 $329,387 $399,931 

Units      
Single Family 279 295 292 236 560 
Multiple Family 318 732 214 206 264 
Total 597 1,027 506 442 824 

  
Note: Totals may not add to sum due to rounding. 
Source: Construction Industry Research Board.



 

E-1 
 
 

APPENDIX E 

SONOMA COUNTY TREASURY POOL 

 
The following information concerning the Sonoma County Investment Pool (the “Investment 

Pool”) has been provided by the Treasurer, and has not been confirmed or verified by the District, the 
Financial Advisor or the Underwriter.  The District, the Financial Advisor and the Underwriter have not 
made an independent investigation of the investments in the Investment Pool and have made no assessment 
of the current County investment policy.  The value of the various investments in the Investment Pool will 
fluctuate on a daily basis as a result of a multitude of factors, including generally prevailing interest rates 
and other economic conditions.  Additionally, the Treasurer, with the consent of the County Board of 
Supervisors, may change the County investment policy at any time.  Therefore, there can be no assurance 
that the values of the various investments in the Investment Pool will not vary significantly from the values 
described herein.  Finally, none of the District, the Financial Advisor nor the Underwriter make any 
representation as to the accuracy or adequacy of such information or as to the absence of material adverse 
changes in such information subsequent to the date hereof, or that the information contained or 
incorporated hereby by reference is correct as of any time subsequent to its date.  Additional information 
regarding the Investment Pool may be obtained from the Treasurer at http://sonoma-county.org/tax/; 
however, the information presented on such website is not incorporated herein by any reference. 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.5 

Subject: Revised Salary Schedule for Confidential and Classified Supervisory 
Employees 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: On May 13, 2014, the Governing Board approved an agreement with CSEA to 
eliminate longevity stipends for its members and integrate this compensation onto 
the negotiated salary schedule.  This change became effective July 1, 2017.  
However, the Governing Board’s action did not include the remaining, non-
represented, non-certificated employees in the placement of longevity stipends 
onto the salary schedule.    

Highlights: This recommended action corrects an oversight and removes longevity stipends for 
confidential and classified supervisory employees and integrates these funds onto 
the existing salary schedule.  

Challenges: No challenges are presented by this action as there will be no net increase in costs 
to the District, nor will there be any actual increase in compensation to the affected 
employees. 

Analysis: The recommended action will affect four positions to include two confidential 
positions, Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent and Human Resource 
Officer and two Classified Supervisory positions, Director of Maintenance and 
Director of Transportation. 

Next Steps: The only next step is for payroll to eliminate the longevity stipend and integrate 
the same compensation as salary for the affected employees.    

   
 
 
Attachments: Revised Confidential Salary Schedule 
 Revised Classified Supervisory Salary Schedule 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 

 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE* 
 

CONFIDENTIAL 
 
 
 
 

  STEP 
      1    2  3  4  5  6     7   8-11     12-16          17-21     22 
  RANGE 
 1        $41,166        $43,224        $45,408        $47,678        $50,048        $52,551      $55,187          $57,928     $60,825     $63,866 $67,060 
 
 2        $43,224        $45,408             $47,678             $50,048             $52,551        $55,161 $57,928          $60,824     $63,865      $67,058     $70,411    
 
 3        $45,408        $47,678        $50,048        $52,551        $55,161        $58,086      $60,983          $64,041     $67,243     $70,605      $74,135 
 
 4        $47,678        $50,048        $52,551        $55,161        $58,086        $61,014      $64,041          $67,256     $70,619     $74,150      $77,858 
 
 5        $49,943          $52,447             $55,055             $57,822             $60,695             $63,750      $66,941         $70,287     $73,801      $77,491     $81,366 
 
 6        $53,290          $55,977             $58,745             $61,697             $64,753             $67,997      $71,420         $74,980     $78,729     $82,665      $86,798 
 
 7        $56,885          $59,756             $62,709             $65,861             $69,124             $72,584      $76,242         $80,040     $84,042     $88,244      $92,656 
  
 8        $60,725          $63,790             $66,943             $70,307             $73,790          $77,482      $81,835         $85,440     $89,712    $94,198      $98,908 
 
 
 

*Time and one-half paid for hours served at Board meetings 
 
 
 
                 RANGE  Professional Growth  
Administrative Assistant-Curriculum & Special Education 5  Yearly salary increment of $300 per five 
Accountant       7  (5) units per year to a maximum of $900. 
Administrative Assistant to the Superintendent   7  See BP and AR 4353 for details. 
Human Resources Officer     8 
***************************************************************************************************************** 
 
Health CAP effective 2/1/2014 
Board approved: 



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 

2017-2018 SALARY SCHEDULE 
 

SUPERVISORY 
 
 
 
 
 

                                   TRANSPORTATION/AFTER SCHOOL  MAINT. & OPERATIONS/TECHNOLOGY  
 

       

   1  $ 57,338       $   60,291 
   2  $ 58,778      $   61,807 
   3  $ 60,224      $   63,325  
   4  $ 61,758      $   64,939 
   5  $ 63,277      $   66,538 
   6  $ 64,842      $   68,183 
   7  $ 66,138      $   69,547 
   8  $ 67,460      $   70,939 
   9  $ 68,811      $   72,357 
 10-11  $ 70,246      $   73,865 
 12-16  $ 73,758      $   77,558 
 17-21  $ 77,446      $   81,436 
 22  $ 81,318      $   85,508 
                                           
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
Health Cap Effective: 5/12/2015 
Board Approved:    
2016/17 – 2% on, 2% off (3/14/17) 
2017/18 – 1% increase 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.6 

Subject:  Assistant Superintendent for Student Services Job Description 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: The District Superintendent has recommended to the Governing Board that the 
Director, Student Services position be elevated to that of Assistant Superintendent, 
Student Services.  The basis for this recommendation is included in the following 
action item.  However, the District does not currently have a job description for the 
Assistant Superintendent, Student Services.  Therefore, there is a need to establish 
one. 

Highlights: The proposed job description for the Assistant Superintendent, Student Services is 
closely aligned to that of the Director, Student Services with one significant 
difference; the operation and oversight of the new Rincon Valley Partnership and 
the associated responsibility to manage a program across the City of Santa Rosa 
that involves six local school districts. 

Challenges:  Approval of this job description presents no specific challenge. 

Analysis: In order to elevate the Director, Student Services, to Assistant Superintendent, 
Student Services, a job description is required.   

Next Steps: Upon approval of this job description, the District Superintendent will ask the 
Governing Board to approve his recommendation to elevate the Director, Student 
Services to that of Assistant Superintendent, Student Services.      

   
 
 
Attachments:  Assistant Superintendent, Student Services Job Description 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 

 

Rincon Valley Union School District 
Job Description 

 
 
Job Title:  Assistant Superintendent, Student Services 
Departments:   Special Education and Student Services 
Reports to:  District Superintendent 
 
 
Summary: 
The Assistant Superintendent, Student Services will manage and direct all Special 
Education and Student Services functions (discipline, attendance, 504, behavioral, 
social/emotional, and after-school programs), and be responsible for the implementation 
of the philosophy, goals, policies and regulations for the district. 
 
 

Essential Duties and Responsibilities: 
1. Is the lead administrator for the District’s Special Education programs and is the 

liaison with the Rincon Valley Partnership (RVP) member districts. 
2. Monitor and ensure that special education and related services in the District/RVP 

are delivered by certificated staff who have the necessary credentials and 
certifications for providing the instruction or service. 

3. Oversee the number of hours each special education student receives for each 
service as stated in his/her IEP, including the date the service began. 

4. Serve as the district resource for questions and concerns regarding district/RVP 
and special education/student services programs. 

5. Is the contact person for parents with concerns and is the District/RVP contact for 
Special Education Local Planning Agency (SELPA) alternative dispute resolution 
cases. 

6. Is the contact person for NPA/NPS contracts required to support students with 
disabilities. 

7. Foster youth and homeless liaison. 
8. Set guidelines and run monthly Student Attendance Review Board (SARB) 

meetings/hearings. 
9. Sit on county SARB team and assist principals in attendance monitoring. 
10. Coordinate and oversee discipline/expulsion meetings/hearings. 
11. Stay informed on District/RVP’s special education procedures by attending 

approximately 4-5 trainings per year covering legal updates concerning special 
education put on by the SELPA during the school year. 

12. Attend the twice-monthly SELPA Steering Committee meetings of special 
education directors. 

13. Administer the placement and evaluation of students in special programs, 
including parent consultation, health and development education programs. 

14. Assist school administrators and other staff in meeting the needs of all students, 
including those with exceptional needs. 

15. Administer a program of instruction for special day classes, resource specialist 
programs, designated instruction and service, and full inclusion. 

16. Administer, in cooperation with the school principals and the Superintendent, a 
program of staff development training for teachers, assistants, parents, and 



 

 

specialists working with exceptional children, including parent education 
trainings open to anyone. 

17. Coordinate Educationally Related Mental Health Services and health education 
programs within the school system and between school system and the various 
community agencies. 

18. Provide consultant and advisory services to assist principals and teachers in 
meeting student, individual, and group needs. 

19. Develop policies and procedures for the assessment, placement, attendance & 
discipline, and provision of services for students with exceptional needs. 

20. Coordinate special education transportation services. 
21. Coordinate and supervise counseling program. 
22. Direct district nursing and health service programs.  
23. Coordinate and supervise reviews of special education programs for Categorical 

Program Monitoring. 
24. Coordinate and supervise enrollment reporting of special education program and 

statistics to SELPA and other agencies. 
25. Represent the district in IEP meetings and in resolving mediation and fair hearing 

appeals. 
26. In cooperation with the Assistant Superintendent, Business, monitor expenditures 

for all Special Education programs. 
27. Supervise and evaluate psychologists, speech and language specialists, nurses, 

and other itinerant special education or health personnel. 
28. Develop, coordinate, and supervise section 504 procedures in the District. 
29. Perform decision analysis processes and make decisions of considerable 

consequence, requiring the application and interpretation of data, facts, 
procedures, and policies. 

30. Provide leadership and expertise in assessing, identifying formulating, and 
implementing the District/RVP special education goals and objectives in 
compliance with state and federal legal mandates and guidelines. 
 

Qualifications: 
1. Demonstrable commitment to a quality education for all students, including those 

considered at risk. 
2. Commitment to lifelong learning. 
3. Commitment to shared decision-making and site-based management. 
4. Good listening skills. 
5. Open to new ideas and divergent opinions. 
6. Demonstrated knowledge in the areas of expected responsibility. 
7. Familiar with testing programs used in qualifying students for placement. 
8. Ability to evaluate and analyze complex problems, issues, and concerns, 

recommend appropriate solutions. 
9. Demonstrates exemplary communication skills, both oral and written, with staff, 

board and community. 
10. Has a style that is open and inquisitive, and the personality to work with, listen to, 

and be sensitive to people. 
11. Has strong organizational skills and is able to multi-task. 
12. Exceptional management abilities and strong interpersonal skills demonstrated by 

the ability to develop and maintain strong team relationships. 
 



 

 

 
 
Education and/or Experience: 
Candidate must have a California Administrative credential, a California Teaching or 
Specialist credential and a Master’s degree. Administrative experience for at least 3 years 
is also required.  Background in special education legal issues and process preferred. 
 

Salary and Work Year: 
The Assistant Superintendent, Student Services will be provided a two-year contract.  
Compensation shall be negotiated with the District Superintendent and Governing Board. 
This is a twelve (12) month position, (225 days). 
 
 
Approved by the Governing Board on 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.7 

Subject:  Assistant Superintendent for Student Services Contract 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: The District Superintendent has recommended to the Governing Board that the 
Director, Student Services position be elevated to that of Assistant Superintendent, 
Student Services.   

Highlights: The Director of Student Services oversees two key programs for the district to 
include Student Services and Special Education.  Student Services includes 
discipline, attendance, counseling, and our social/emotional programs.  Special 
Education includes the oversight of the district programs and 504 plans.  Together, 
these create a challenge to oversee given the number of personnel and families that 
are served.  This year, the Director has taken over oversight of the former 
Redwood Consortium for Student Services.  In addition, the Director has taken a 
pivotal role in organizing and delivering expanded outreach to our community via 
the Parent University model being implemented this fall.  The Director’s role has 
expanded significantly with these new responsibilities. 

Challenges: The responsibilities assigned the Director would, in typical districts our size, be 
assigned to two individuals.  There are significant performance expectations for 
this position. 

Analysis: Given the expanded responsibilities to an already deeply involved position, certain 
recognition of the importance this individual provides to the district is warranted.  

Next Steps: The Superintendent requests the Governing Board approve the recommendation to 
elevate the Director of Student Services to that of Assistant Superintendent of 
Student Services and approve the attached contract.     

   
 
 
Attachments: Proposed Contract for Cathy Myhers for the position of Assistant 

Superintendent, Student Services, effective July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2019 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 

1 
 

              RINCON VALLEY UNION SCHOOL DISTRICT 
ASSISTANT SUPERINTENDENT – STUDENT SERVICES 

CONTRACT 
 
This agreement is entered into effective July 1, 2017 between the Governing Board (hereinafter "the 
Board") of and on behalf of the Rincon Valley Union School District (hereinafter "the District") and 
Cathy Myhers (hereinafter "the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services"). 
 

1. Term.  The District hereby employs the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services for a period 
of two (2) years, beginning on the 1st day of July 2017 and terminating on the 30th day of June 
2019. 
 

2. Salary.  The Assistant Superintendent’s annual salary shall be $144,724, payable in twelve (12) 
equal monthly payments.  The Superintendent and Board will review the Assistant 
Superintendent’s salary annually and provide an appropriate increase based on the 
Superintendent’s recommendation.  All salary adjustments shall be effective July 1 of the contract 
year.  In no event shall the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services salary at anytime be 
reduced below the previous year’s salary, unless there is a district-wide salary reduction for all 
employees.    

 
The Board reserves the right to change the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services salary for 
any year of this contract with the mutual written consent of the Assistant Superintendent – Student 
Services and the Board.  A change in salary shall not constitute the creation of a new contract nor 
extend the termination date of this Agreement. 

 
3. Duties.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services is employed to assist the District 

Superintendent and shall perform the duties as assigned by the District Superintendent, as 
prescribed by the laws of the State of California and the District’s job description for Assistant 
Superintendent – Student Services. 

 
4. Outside Professional Activities.  By prior approval of the Superintendent, the Assistant 

Superintendent – Student Services may undertake for consideration outside professional activities, 
including, but not limited to, consulting, speaking and writing, so long as such outside 
professional activities do not, in the Superintendent's sole judgment, interfere with the 
performance of her duties.  Her outside professional activities shall not occur during work hours 
unless authorized by the Superintendent.  In no event will the District be responsible for any 
expenses attendant to the performance of such outside activities.  The Assistant Superintendent – 
Student Services shall use vacation time to perform these activities. 

 
5. Powers and Duties of Assistant Superintendent – Student Services.  All powers and duties which 

may lawfully and reasonably be delegated to the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services by 
the District Superintendent and/or Governing Board, are to be executed in accordance with the 
policies adopted by the Governing Board.  Such acts, which may require ratification by the 
Governing Board, shall be referred to said Governing Board at the earliest opportunity. 

 
6. Evaluation Format.  The District Superintendent shall evaluate and assess in writing the 

performance of the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services at least once a year during the 
term of this agreement.  Said evaluation and assessment shall be reasonably related to the position 
description of the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services for the year in question.  The 



 

2 
 

evaluation format shall be reasonably objective and shall contain at least the following evaluation 
criteria:  District Superintendent/Assistant Superintendent – Student Services relations, 
community relations, staff and personnel relations, educational program, and professional and 
leadership development.  The evaluation format shall provide for comments or a rating system 
such that the District Superintendent may indicate whether the performance of the Assistant 
Superintendent – Student Services is superior, very satisfactory, satisfactory or unsatisfactory, 
both as to overall performance and as to the specific criteria set. 

 
7. Evaluation.  In the event that the District Superintendent determines, in the course of the 

evaluation process, that the performance of the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services is 
unsatisfactory in any respect, he/she shall describe in writing in reasonable detail, indicating 
specific instances of unsatisfactory performance.  The evaluation shall include recommendations 
as to the areas of improvement in all instances where the District Superintendent deems 
performance to be unsatisfactory and all other instances where the District Superintendent deems 
improvement to be necessary or appropriate.  A copy of the written evaluation shall be delivered 
to the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services and the Assistant Superintendent – Student 
Services shall have the right to make a written reaction or response to the evaluation, which shall 
become a permanent attachment to the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ personnel 
file.  Within 30 days of the delivery of the written evaluation to the Assistant Superintendent – 
Student Services, the District Superintendent shall meet with the Assistant Superintendent – 
Student Services to discuss the evaluation. 

 
A copy of any evaluation the District Superintendent deems to be of a negative nature, and a copy 
of the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ response (if any) shall be delivered to the 
President of the Governing Board. 

 
8.  Termination of Contract.    

 
a. Mutual Consent.    This Agreement may be terminated at any time by mutual consent of the 

Board and the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services upon thirty (30) days prior written 
notice. 

 
b. Nonrenewal of Agreement by the District.    The Governing Board may elect not to renew this 

Agreement for any reason by providing the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services with 
forty-five (45) days written notice prior to the expiration of this Agreement, in accordance with 
Education Code Section 35031.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall inform 
each member of the Board of this notice requirement on or before January 1 of the year in 
question. 

 
c. Termination of Status as a Certificated Employee.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student 

Services’ status as a permanent or probationary certificated employee of the District may be 
terminated in accordance with the applicable provisions of law. 

 
d. Termination as Assistant Superintendent – Student Services for Cause.    The Assistant 

Superintendent – Student Services’ status as Assistant Superintendent – Student Services and 
all of the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ rights under this Agreement may be 
terminated by the Board at any time for, but not limited to, breach of contract; any ground 
enumerated in the Education Code; or the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ failure 
to perform his or her responsibilities as set forth in this agreement, as defined by law, or as 



 

3 
 

specified in the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ job description, if any.  The Board 
shall not terminate this Agreement pursuant to this paragraph (d) until a written statement of the 
grounds of termination has first been served upon the Assistant Superintendent – Student 
Services.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall then be entitled to a 
conference with the Board at which time the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall 
be given a reasonable opportunity to address the Board’s concerns.  The Assistant 
Superintendent – Student Services shall have the right to have a representative of his or her 
choice at the conference with the Board.  The conference with the Board shall be the Assistant 
Superintendent – Student Services’ exclusive right to any hearing otherwise required by law. 

 
e. Early Termination.    The Board unilaterally and without cause may terminate this Agreement 

and the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ status as Assistant Superintendent – 
Student Services and reassign the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services to any available 
position which the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services is credentialed to perform by 
providing the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services a minimum of forty-five (45) days 
notice of termination and reassignment.  In consideration of the Board’s right to terminate this 
Agreement without cause, the District shall pay to the Assistant Superintendent – Student 
Services his or her then current salary for the remainder of the term of this Agreement or for a 
period of six (6) calendar months following the effective date of termination or reassignment, 
whichever is less.  If the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services elects not to accept the 
position to which the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services has been reassigned, the 
Assistant Superintendent – Student Services may resign and elect to receive the difference 
between the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services’ then current monthly salary and the 
monthly salary rate for the position to which the Assistant Superintendent – Student Services 
has been reassigned for the remainder of the term of this Agreement or for a period of six (6) 
calendar months following the effective date of termination and reassignment, whichever is 
less. 

 
9.  Fringe Benefits.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall be afforded fringe benefits 

provided in Board Policy 4354.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall receive at 
District expense a $50,000 term life insurance policy.  In addition, District will pay the Assistant 
Superintendent – Student Services annual dues in one Santa Rosa area service club and annual 
fees for the Association of California School Administrators (ACSA). 

 
10. Automobile Expense. The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services is required to have a 

vehicle available at all times to exercise the powers and to perform the duties of the position. In 
order to reimburse her for this vehicle requirement, she shall be entitled to a $185.00 monthly 
vehicle allowance as reimbursement for reasonable transportation expenses incurred for travel 
required by her employment. In addition, she shall be reimbursed for reasonable transportation 
outside the County at the District established mileage rate.  
 

11. Sick Leave.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall be allocated 12 days of sick 
leave annually. 

 
12.  Work Year and Vacation.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall be required to 

render 12 months of full and regular service to the district during each annual period covered by 
this agreement except that she shall be entitled to 25 days of annual vacation with pay exclusive of 
holidays as defined in Education Code Section 37220 and 37221, which shall be accrued on a 
month-to-month basis. If she desires to take more than two continuous days of vacation, she shall 



 

4 
 

obtain approval from the Superintendent prior to the use of vacation time. Vacation time may be 
accumulated from year to year but in no case shall a total of more than 25 days of vacation be 
carried forward from one fiscal year to the next without written Superintendent approval. If this 
agreement is terminated, she shall be compensated for all unused accrued vacation at the salary 
rate effective at the time of termination. 

 
13. General Provisions. 

 
a. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding between 

the parties.  There are no oral understandings, terms or conditions, and neither party has relied 
upon any representation, express or implied, not contained in this Agreement.            

 
b. No Assignment.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services may not assign or transfer 

any rights granted or obligations assumed under this Agreement. 
 

c. Seniority.  The Assistant Superintendent – Student Services shall not be considered a school 
site administrator for purposes of Education Code Section 44956.5. 

 
d. Modification.  This Agreement cannot be changed or supplemented orally.  It may be modified 

or superceded only by a written instrument executed by both of the parties. 
 

e. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is held to be invalid or unenforceable by a 
court of competent jurisdiction, the remaining provisions of the Agreement shall continue in 
full force and effect. 

 
14. Applicable Law.  This agreement is subject to all applicable laws of the State of California, rules 

and regulations of the State Board of Education, and rules and regulations and policies of this 
Board, all of which are made a part of the terms and conditions of this contract as though set forth 
herein. 

 
 
______________________________________________ Date:____________________ 
Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 
 
 
 
15. Acceptance of Offer.  I hereby accept the above offer of employment and agree to comply with the 

terms and conditions thereof, and to fulfill all of the duties of Assistant Superintendent – Student 
Services to the Governing Board of the Rincon Valley Union School District during the term 
specified in the foregoing employment contract. 

 
 
______________________________________________ Date:____________________ 
Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent – Student Services 
 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action  Item 14.8 

Subject:  Behavioral Contracts 

Submitter:  Mrs. Cathy Myhers, Assistant Superintendent for Student Services 

Background: In order to cover all of the staffing needs in the district, we have had to contract 
with outside agencies to provide behavioral assistants.  Last year we started the 
year with contracts with four different agencies for more than 15 students.  This 
year we are only using two agencies and are supporting seven students. 

Highlights: Rincon Valley has been able to hire more staff to support students and are actively 
working to fade support staff when appropriate to be able to share the resources.   

Challenges: It continues to be difficult to find qualified staff to hire.  When we are not able to 
hire our own, we have to look at contracting for support.  The difference in the 
hourly rates between hiring and contracting is extreme.   

Analysis: Through the review of the job descriptions and possible adjustments to the salary 
schedule, I am hopeful that we will be able to attract more applicants for our 
positions.   

Next Steps: The next steps are to continue to build our team of support staff and make 
appropriate adjustments to the job description and salary schedule.  These actions 
will reduce the need to contract out for services at a rate that is significantly higher 
than hiring our own employees.      

   
 
 
Attachments: Gateway Master Contract 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The current contract amount is $146,124.00. 
  
Recommendation: Ratify  
 



 
SONOMA SELPA 

NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN 
SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES 

MASTER CONTRACT 

2017-2018 



 
MASTER CONTRACT 

GENERAL AGREEMENT FOR NONSECTARIAN, 
NONPUBLIC SCHOOL AND AGENCY SERVICES  

 
 

LEA: Rincon Valley Union School District 

Contract Year: 2017-2018 

Nonpublic School:                
Nonpublic Agency: Gateway Learning Group 

 

 

Type of Contract: 

☒ 
Master Contract for the fiscal year with Individual Service Agreements (ISA) to be 
approved throughout the term of this contract. 

☐ 

Individual Master Contract for a specific student incorporating the Individual Service 
Agreement (ISA) into the terms of this Individual Master Contract specific to a single 
student. 

☐ 

Interim Contract: an extension of the previous fiscal years approved 
contracts and rates. The sole purpose of this Interim Contract is to provide 
for ongoing funding at the prior year’s rates for 90 days at the sole 
discretion of the LEA.                                                            Expiration Date: date 

 

When this section is included as part of any Master Contract, the changes specified above 
shall amend Section 4 – Term of Master Contract. 

  



THE SONOMA SELPA NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 
 

2017-2018 
 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 
I. GENERAL PROVISIONS                   Page 
1. MASTER CONTRACT  …………………………………………………………………….. 1 
2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES  ………………………………………..………………..…. 2 
3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS  …….……….………………… 2 
4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT …………………………………..………………………… 3 
5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT   

FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR TERMINATION ………………………………………….. 3 
6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT; EXHIBIT B  …………………………..……………… 3 
7. DEFINITIONS ………………………………………………………………………………… 4 
 
II. ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 
8. NOTICES  ………………………………………………………………………………………….. 5  
9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS; EXHIBIT D  ……………………………………………………. 6  
10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE  ……………………………………………………………………….. 6  
11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST   ……………………………………………………………… 6  
12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW  ……………………………………………………………… 7  
13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO 

CONFORM TO LEGAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES  ……………………….. 7  
14. TERMINATION …………………………………………………………………………………. 7  
15. INSURANCE …………………………………………………………………………………. 7  
16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS  …………………………………………... 9  
17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR  ……………………………………………………………… 9  
18. SUBCONTRACTING  ……………………………………………………………………….. 10  
19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST ……………………………………………………………………….. 10  
20. NON-DISCRIMINATION  ……………………………………………………………………….. 11 
 
III. EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 
21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION  ………………………………………….. 11  
22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION  ……………………………………………………. 12  
23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES  ……………………………………………………………... 13  
24. CLASS SIZE  …………………………………………………………………………………. 13  
25. CALENDARS; EXHIBIT K  ……………………………………………………………………….. 13  
26. DATA REPORTING; EXHIBITS A-G & J-R  …………………………………………………… 14  
27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT  ………………………. 14  
28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING  ……………………………………………………. 15  
29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS  ………………………………………….. 15  
30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS; EXHIBITS O & L …………….. 15  
31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE; EXHIBIT M   …………………………………………………… 17  
32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS  ……………………………………………………………………… 17  
33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH  …………………………………………. 18  
34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS  …………………………………………………..…………. 18  
35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES   ……………………………………………………..………. 18  
36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS 

AND ASSESSMENTS  ……………………………………………………………………… 18  
37. TRANSCRIPTS; EXHIBIT N  ………………………………………………………….…………… 19  
38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE; EXHIBIT P  …………………………..……………… 19  
39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM  …………………………...……………… 20 



THE SONOMA SELPA NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 
 

2017-2018 
 

40. PARENT ACCESS   ………………………………………………………………………. 20  
41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT  ………………………. 20  
42. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION CONTRACTORS 

AND RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT CENTER CONTRACTORS  ………………………. 21  
43. STATE MEAL MANDATE  ………………………………………………………………………. 21  
44. MONITORING  ……………………………………………………………………………..….. 22 
 
IV. PERSONNEL 
45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS   …………………………………………………….. 22  
46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS   ………………………………………………………………. 23  
47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS AND 

OTHER DOCUMENTS; EXHIBIT C   ……………………………………………………... 23  
48. STAFF ABSENCE   ………………………………………………………………………… 24  
49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR   …………………………………………………….. 24 
 
V. HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 
50. HEALTH AND SAFETY  ……………………………………………………………………….. 25  
51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS  …………………………………………... 25  
52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION  ……………………………………………………. 25  
53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING  ……………………………………………………………... 25  
54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING   ……………………………………………………………… 26  
55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT  ……………………………………………………………………….. 26  
56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN ……………………………………………………. 26 
 
VI. FINANCIAL 
57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, 

ATTENDANCE REPORTING AND BILLING PROCEDURES EXHIBITS E, F, G and J ……. 26  
58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT  ……………………………………………………………… 27  
59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES  ……………………………………………………. 29  
60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES  ……………………………….………………………………………. 29  
61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT ………………………………………………………………………. 30  
62. RATE SCHEDULE  ………………………………………………………………………………… 30  
63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION  ……………………………………………………………… 31 
64. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT; EXHIBITS A, B, & C  ………………………………………….. 32 
 

  



THE SONOMA SELPA NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES MASTER CONTRACT 
 

2017-2018 
 

Description of EXHIBITS 
 

EXHIBIT A – Rate Schedule (26.Data Reporting, 64. Execution of Contract) 

Instructions to LEA for Completing the ISA 

EXHIBIT B – Individual Service Agreement Form ISA (26. Data Reporting,  6. Independent Service Agreement) 

EXHIBIT C – Staff List - Statement of Certifications, Credentials, Licenses, and Clearances (26.Data Reporting, 
47.Verification of Licenses, Credentials and Other Documents) 

EXHIBIT D – SCOE Exit Form (9.Maintenance of Records, 26. Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT E – Daily Attendance Record – SCOE Students (26.Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT F – Related Service Record – K-12 (26.Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT G – Attendance Register – Preschool (26.Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT H – removed  

EXHIBIT I – LEA Addresses for Notices and Invoices 

EXHIBIT J – Invoice Form (26.Data Reporting)  

EXHIBIT K – School Calendar (25.Calendars, 26. Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT L – Behavioral Emergency Intervention Report SELPA/Hughes Bill, Form #7a  (26 Data Reporting, 30. 
Positive Behavior Interventions and Supports) *Use of Behavior Emergency Intervention Report–Exhibit L 

EXHIBIT M – SELPA Suspension & Expulsion Data Collection Form (26. Data Reporting Section 31.Student 
Discipline) 

EXHIBIT N – Confirmation of completion of graduation requirements (26. Data Reporting, 37.Transcripts) 

EXHIBIT O – Functional Analysis Assessment Report  (26.Data Reporting, 30.Positive Behavior Interventions and 
Supports) 

EXHIBIT P – Procedures for NPS students relocating to other districts (26. Data Reporting, 38.Student Change of 
Residence) 

EXHIBIT Q – Excessive Student Absence Documentation Report  (26.Data Reporting) 

EXHIBIT R – Subcontracting- Obtaining SELPA approval prior to subcontracting agreement.



 

2017-2018  1 | P a g e  
 

2017-2018  
Rincon Valley Union School District 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL/AGENCY/RELATED SERVICES PROVIDER: 

Gateway Learning Group 

 
NONPUBLIC, NONSECTARIAN SCHOOL/AGENCY SERVICES  

MASTER CONTRACT 
 
AUTHORIZATION FOR MASTER CONTRACT AND GENERAL PROVISIONS 

1. MASTER CONTRACT 

This Master Contract is entered into on, 8/14/2017, between Rincon Valley Union School District, and 
Gateway Learning Group (nonpublic, nonsectarian school or agency), hereinafter referred to as NPS/A or 
“CONTRACTOR” for the purpose of providing special education and/or related services to students with 
exceptional needs under the authorization of California Education Code sections 56157, 56361 and 56365 et 
seq. and Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations section 3000 et seq., AB490 (Chapter 862, Statutes of 
2003) and AB1858 (Chapter 914, Statutes of 2004). It is understood that this agreement does not commit LEA 
to pay for special education and/or related services provided to any student, or CONTRACTOR to provide 
such special education and/or related services, unless and until an authorized LEA representative approves the 
provision of special education and/or related services by CONTRACTOR. 

Upon acceptance of a student, LEA shall submit to CONTRACTOR an Individual Services Agreement 
(hereinafter referred to as “ISA”) and a Nonpublic Services student Enrollment form as specified in the LEA 
Procedures. Unless otherwise agreed in writing, these forms shall acknowledge CONTRACTOR’s obligation to 
provide all services specified in the student’s Individualized Education Plan (hereinafter referred to as “IEP”). 
The ISA shall be executed within fifteen (15) days of a student’s enrollment. LEA and CONTRACTOR shall 
enter into an ISA for each student served by CONTRACTOR. As available and appropriate, the LEA shall make 
available access to any electronic IEP system and/or electronic database for ISA developing including invoicing. 

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings (hereinafter referred to as “OAH”) 
order, a lawfully executed agreement between LEA and parent or authorized by LEA for a transfer student 
pursuant to California Education Code section 56325, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with 
nonpublic school placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines 
that a nonpublic school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent. 

Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the meaning, requirements, or performance of 
this Contract shall first be brought to the attention of the other party in writing, pursuant to the notice provision 
of this Contract, in an attempt to resolve the dispute at the lowest level. Education Code § 56366, subdivision 
(c), shall govern the resolution of fee disputes for pupils enrolled in a NPS or NPA prior to execution of the 
Master Contract or ISA. For up to ninety (90) days the LEA is permitted to issue a warrant based upon an 
attendance report at the previously agreed upon per diem rate.  If the Master Contract or ISA has not been 
finalized within sixty (60) days, “either party may appeal” to the State Superintendent of Public Instruction 
pursuant to the provisions of the California Education Code § 56366(b).   

In addition to any other remedies available by law or under this Contract, SELPA and SELPA Member 
Districts may withhold further payment if CONTRACTOR fails to timely submit supporting documents (e.g., 
EXHIBITS C, H, NPS/A certification, proof of insurance and related endorsements, and subcontractor and 
subcontractor’s proof of insurance) required under this Contract. 



 

2017-2018  2 | P a g e  
 

If any legal action or proceeding arising out of or relating to this Contract is brought by either party to this 
Contract, the prevailing party shall be entitled to receive from the other party, in addition to any other relief 
that may be granted, reasonable attorneys’ fees, costs, and expenses incurred in the action or proceeding by the 
prevailing party.   

2. CERTIFICATION AND LICENSES 

CONTRACTOR shall be certified by the California Department of Education (hereinafter referred to as “CDE”) 
as a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency. All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be 
provided consistent with the area of certification specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California 
Education Code, section 56366 et seq and within the professional scope of practice of each provider’s license, 
certification and/or credential. A current copy of CONTRACTOR’s nonpublic school/agency certification or a 
waiver of such certification issued by the CDE pursuant to Education Code section 56366.2 must be provided to 
LEA on or before the date this contract is executed by CONTRACTOR. This Master Contract shall be null and 
void if such certification or waiver is expired, revoked, rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the effective 
period of this Master Contract. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated on CDE 
certification. Total student enrollment shall be limited to capacity as stated in Section 24 of the Master Contract. 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates 
a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special 
education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.). 

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR shall 
be licensed by the state, or other public agency having delegated authority by contract with the state to license, 
to provide nonmedical care to children, including, but not limited to, individuals with exceptional needs. The 
LCI must also comply with all licensing requirements relevant to the protection of the child, and have a special 
permit, if necessary, to meet the needs of each child so placed. If the CONTRACTOR operates a program outside 
of this State, CONTRACTOR must obtain all required licenses from the appropriate licensing agency in both 
California and in the state where the LCI is located. 

With respect to CONTRACTOR’s certification, failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in: (1) 
credentialed/licensed staff; (2) ownership; (3) management and/or control of the agency; (4) major modification 
or relocation of facilities; or (5) significant modification of the program may result in the suspension or 
revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 

3. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS, STATUTES, REGULATIONS 

During the term of this contract unless otherwise agreed, CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable 
federal, state, and local statutes, laws, ordinances, rules, policies and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall also 
comply with all applicable LEA policies and procedures unless, taking into consideration all of the surrounding 
facts and circumstances, a policy or policies or a portion of a policy does not reasonably apply to 
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR hereby acknowledges and agrees that it accepts all risks and responsibilities 
for its failure to comply with LEA policies and shall indemnify LEA under the provisions of Section 16 of this 
Agreement for all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or 
arising out of CONTRACTOR’s failure to comply with applicable LEA policies (e.g., those policies relating to, 
the provision of special education and/or related services, facilities for individuals with exceptional needs, 
student enrollment and transfer, student inactive status, corporal punishment, student discipline, and positive 
behavior interventions). 

CONTRACTOR acknowledges and understands that LEA may report to the CDE any violations of the 
provisions of this Master Contract; and that this may result in the suspension and/or revocation of CDE nonpublic 
school/agency certification pursuant to California Education Code section 56366.4(a). 



 

2017-2018  3 | P a g e  
 

4. TERM OF MASTER CONTRACT 

The term of this Master Contract shall be from 8/14/2017 to 6/1/2018 (Title 5 California Code of Regulations 
section 3062(a)) unless otherwise stated. Neither the CONTRACTOR nor the LEA is required to renew this 
Master Contract in subsequent contract years. However, the parties acknowledge that any subsequent Master 
Contract is to be re-negotiated prior to 6/1/2018. In the event the contract is not renegotiated by 6/1/2018, an 
interim contract may be made available as mutually agreed upon for up to 90 days from 6/1/2018 of the new 
fiscal year. (Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 3062(d)) No Master Contract will be offered unless 
and until all of the contracting requirements have been satisfied. The offer of a Master Contract to a 
CONTRACTOR is at the sole discretion of the LEA. 

The provisions of this Master Contract apply to CONTRACTOR and any of its employees or independent 
contractors. Notice of any change in CONTRACTOR’s ownership or authorized representative shall be provided 
in writing to LEA within thirty (30) calendar days of change of ownership or change of authorized representative.  

5. INTEGRATION/CONTINUANCE OF CONTRACT FOLLOWING EXPIRATION OR 
TERMINATION 

This Master Contract includes each Individual Services Agreement and they are incorporated herein by this 
reference. This Master Contract supersedes any prior or contemporaneous written or oral understanding or 
agreement. This Master Contract may be amended only by written amendment executed by both parties. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with information as requested in writing to secure a Master Contract or 
a renewal. 

At a minimum, such information shall include copies of teacher credentials and clearance, insurance 
documentation and CDE certification. The LEA may require additional information as applicable. If the 
application packet is not completed and returned to District, no Master Contract will be issued. If 
CONTRACTOR does not return the Master Contract to LEA duly signed by an authorized representative within 
ninety (90) calendar days of issuance by LEA, the new contract rates will not take effect until the newly executed 
Master Contract is received by LEA and will not be retroactive to the first day of the new Master Contract’s 
effective date. (California Education Code section 56366(c)(1) and (2)). In the event that this Master Contract 
expires or terminates, CONTRACTOR shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most 
recent executed Master Contract between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing 
authorized students at the discretion of the LEA. 

6. INDIVIDUAL SERVICES AGREEMENT; EXHIBIT B 

This contract shall include an ISA developed for each student to whom CONTRACTOR is to provide special 
education and/or related services. An ISA shall only be issued for students enrolled with the approval of the LEA 
pursuant to Education Code section 56366 (a)(2)(A). An ISA may be effective for more than one contract year 
provided that there is a concurrent Master Contract in effect. In the event that this Master Contract expires or 
terminates, CONTRACTOR, shall continue to be bound to all of the terms and conditions of the most recent 
executed ISAs between CONTRACTOR and LEA for so long as CONTRACTOR is servicing authorized 
students. LEA shall provide to CONTRACTOR an ISA within 15 days of an executed IEP for services, except 
as provided in EXHIBIT P, which requires the LEA to develop an ISA for services within 5 days. 

Any and all changes to a student’s educational placement/program provided under this Master Contract and/or 
an ISA shall be made solely on the basis of a revision to the student’s IEP. At any time during the term of this 
Master Contract, a student’s parent, CONTRACTOR, or LEA may request a review of a student’s IEP subject 
to all procedural safeguards required by law. 

Unless otherwise provided in this Master Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall provide all services specified in 
the IEP unless the CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise in the ISA. (California Education Code sections 



 

2017-2018  4 | P a g e  
 

56366(a) (5) and 3062(e)). In the event the CONTRACTOR is unable to provide a specific service at any time 
during the life of the ISA, the CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA in writing within ten (10) business days of 
the last date a service was provided. If DIS is not so provided due to the absence of CONTRACTOR’S Personnel, 
make up sessions shall be provided within forty-five (45) days of the missed session.  If CONTRACTOR does 
not provide all make-up services within forty-five (45) days of the missed session(s), by the fiftieth (50) day, 
CONTRACTOR must submit a schedule, to provide the make-up services on or before the 60th day of the missed 
sessions(s), or as otherwise agreed to in writing by LEA.  Make up services shall occur on, or before the last 
school day of the year, whichever is earlier.   

If a parent or LEA contests the termination of an ISA by initiating a due process proceeding with the OAH, 
CONTRACTOR shall abide by the “stay-put” requirement of state and federal law unless the parent agrees 
otherwise or an Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH 
consistent with Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all 
LEA requirements concerning changes in placement. 
Disagreements between LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the formulation of an ISA or the Master 
Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools of the County where the LEA is  located, 
or the State Superintendent of Public Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code 
section 56366(c) (2). 

7. DEFINITIONS 

The following definitions shall apply for purposes of this contract: 

a. The term “CONTRACTOR” means a nonpublic, nonsectarian school/agency certified by the California 
Department of Education and its officers, agents and employees. 

 
b. The term “authorized LEA representative” means a LEA administrator designated to be responsible for 
nonpublic school/agencies. It is understood, a representative of the Special Education Local Plan Area (SELPA) 
of which the LEA is a member is an authorized LEA representative in collaboration with the LEA. The LEA 
maintains sole responsibility for the contract, unless otherwise specified in the contract. 

c. The term “credential” means a valid credential, life diploma, permit, or document in special education or 
pupil personnel services issued by, or under the jurisdiction of, the State Board of Education if issued prior to 
1970 or the California Commission on Teacher Credentialing, which entitles the holder thereof to perform 
services for which certification qualifications are required as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of 
Regulations section 3001(j). 

d. The term “qualified” means that a person holds a certificate, permit or other document equivalent to that 
which staff in a public school are required to hold to provide special education and designated instruction and 
services and has met federal and state certification, licensing, registration, or other comparable requirements 
which apply to the area in which he or she is providing special education or related services, including those 
requirements set forth in Title 34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and those 
requirements set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations Sections 3064 and 3065, and adheres to 
the standards of professional practice established in federal and state law or regulation, including the standards 
contained in the California Business and Professions Code. 

Nothing in this definition shall be construed as restricting the activities in services of a graduate needing direct 
hours leading to licensure, or of a student teacher or intern leading to a graduate degree at an accredited or 
approved college or university, as authorized by state laws or regulations. (Title 5 of the California Code of 
Regulations Section 3001 (y)). 

e. The term “license” means a valid non-expired document issued by a licensing agency within the Department 
of Consumer Affairs or other state licensing office authorized to grant licenses and authorizing the bearer of the 
document to provide certain professional services or refer to themselves using a specified professional title 



 

2017-2018  5 | P a g e  
 

including but not limited to mental health and board and care services at a residential placement. If a license is 
not available through an appropriate state licensing agency, a certificate of registration with the appropriate 
professional organization at the national or state level which has standards established for the certificate that are 
equivalent to a license shall be deemed to be a license as defined in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations 
section 3001(r). 

f. “Parent” means a biological or adoptive parent, unless the biological or adoptive parent does not have legal 
authority to make educational decisions for the child, a guardian generally authorized to act as the child’s parent 
or authorized to make educational decisions for the child, an individual acting in the place of a biological or 
adoptive parent, including a grandparent, stepparent, or other relative with whom the child lives, or an individual 
who is legally responsible for the child’s welfare, a surrogate parent, a foster parent if the authority of the 
biological or adoptive parent to make educational decisions on the child’s behalf has been specifically limited 
by court order in accordance with Code of Federal Regulations 300.30(b)(1) or (2). Parent does not include the 
state or any political subdivision of government or the nonpublic school or agency under contract with the LEA 
for the provision of special education or designated instruction and services for a child. (California Education 
Code section 56028). 

g. The term “days” means calendar days unless otherwise specified. 
 

h. The phrase “billable day” means a school day in which instructional minutes meet or exceed 
those in comparable LEA programs. 

 
i. The phrase “billable day of attendance” means a school day as defined in California Education Code Section 
46307, in which a student is in attendance and in which instructional minutes meet or exceed those in comparable 
LEA programs unless otherwise stipulated in an IEP or ISA. 

 
j. It is understood that the term “Master Contract” also means “Agreement” and is referred to as 
such in this document. 

 

ADMINISTRATION OF CONTRACT 

8. NOTICES 

All notices provided for by this contract shall be in writing. Notices shall be mailed or delivered by hand and 
shall be effective as of the date of receipt by addressee. 

All notices mailed to LEA shall be addressed to the person and address as indicated on the signature page of the 
Master Contract. Notices to CONTRACTOR shall be addressed as indicated on signature page of this Master 
Contract. 

  



 

2017-2018  6 | P a g e  
 

9. MAINTENANCE OF RECORDS; EXHIBIT D 

All records shall be maintained by CONTRACTOR as required by state and federal laws and regulations. 
Notwithstanding the foregoing sentence, CONTRACTOR shall maintain all records for at least five (5) years 
after the termination of this Master Contract. For purposes of this Master Contract, “records” shall include, but 
not be limited to student records as defined by California Education Code section 49061(b) including 
electronically stored information; cost data records as set forth in Title 5 of the California Code of Regulations 
section 3061; registers and roll books of teachers and/or daily service providers; daily service logs and notes and 
other documents used to record the provision of related services including supervision; daily service logs and 
notes used to record the provision of services provided through additional instructional assistants, NPA behavior 
intervention aides, and bus aides; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related 
documents) if the CONTRACTOR is funded for excused absences, however, such records are not required if 
positive attendance is required; bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held and documents evidencing other 
staff qualifications, social security numbers, dates of hire, and dates of termination; records of employee training 
and certification, staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer sign-in sheets; transportation and other related 
services subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when applicable; liability and worker’s 
compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency certifications by-laws; lists of current 
board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; statement of income and expenses; general journals; cash receipts 
and disbursement books; general ledgers and supporting documents; documents evidencing financial 
expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports; and bank statements and canceled checks or facsimile 
thereof. Positive attendance is required. 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain student records in a secure location to ensure confidentiality and prevent 
unauthorized access. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a current list of the names and positions of 
CONTRACTOR’s employees who have access to confidential records. CONTRACTOR shall maintain an 
access log for each student’s record which lists all persons, agencies, or organizations requesting or receiving 
information from the record. Such log shall be maintained as required by California Education Code section 
49064 and include the name, title, agency/organization affiliation, and date/time of access for each individual 
requesting or receiving information from the student’s record. Such log needs to record access to the student’s 
records by: (a) the student’s parent; (b) an individual to whom written consent has been executed by the student’s 
parent; or (c) employees of LEA or CONTRACTOR having a legitimate educational interest in requesting or 
receiving information from the record. CONTRACTOR/LEA shall maintain copies of any written parental 
concerns granting access to student records. For purposes of this paragraph, “employees of LEA or 
CONTRACTOR” do not include subcontractors. CONTRACTOR shall grant parents access to student records, 
and comply with parents’ requests for copies of student records, as required by state and federal laws and 
regulations. CONTRACTOR agrees, in the event of school or agency closure, to forward student records within 
ten (10) business days to LEA. These shall include, but not limited to, current transcripts, IEP/IFSPs, and reports. 
LEA and/or SELPA shall have access to and receive copies of any and all records upon request within five (5) 
business days. Within ten (10) days of a pupil’s transfer out of CONTRACTOR’s school or agency, 
CONTRACTOR shall forward all pupil records to the pupil’s district of residence or new NPS, as the case may 
be; for SCOE students, CONTRACTOR shall also send to SCOE Special Education NPS Program, students’ 
final transcript and SCOE “Exit Form” (EXHIBIT D) within (5) days. 

10. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE 

If any provision of this agreement is held, in whole or in part, to be unenforceable for any reason, the 
remainder of that provision and of the entire agreement shall be severable and remain in effect. 

11. SUCCESSORS IN INTEREST 

This contract binds CONTRACTOR’s successors and assignees. CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of any 
change of ownership or corporate control. 



 

2017-2018  7 | P a g e  
 

12. VENUE AND GOVERNING LAW 

The laws of the State of California shall govern the terms and conditions of this contract with venue in the 
County where the LEA is located. 

13. MODIFICATIONS AND AMENDMENTS REQUIRED TO CONFORM TO LEGAL AND 
ADMINISTRATIVE GUIDELINES 

This Master Contract may be modified or amended by the LEA to conform to administrative and statutory 
guidelines issued by any state, federal or local governmental agency. The party seeking such modification shall 
provide the LEA and/or CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days’ notice of any such changes or modifications made to 
conform to administrative or statutory guidelines and a copy of the statute or regulation upon which the 
modification or changes are based. 

14. TERMINATION 

This Master Contract or Individual Service Agreement may be terminated for cause. The cause shall not be the 
availability of a public class initiated during the period of the contract unless the parent agrees to the transfer of 
the student to the public school program at an IEP team meeting. To terminate the contract either party shall give 
twenty (20) days prior written notice (California Education Code section 56366(a)(4)). At the time of 
termination, CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA any and all documents CONTRACTOR is required to 
maintain under this Master Contract. ISAs are void upon termination of this Master Contract, as provided in 
Section 5 or 6. CONTRACTOR or LEA may terminate an ISA for cause. To terminate the ISA, either party shall 
give twenty (20) days prior written notice. 

15. INSURANCE 

CONTRACTOR shall, at his, her, or its sole cost and expense, maintain in full force and effect, during the term 
of this Agreement, the following insurance coverage from a California licensed and/or admitted insurer with an 
A minus (A-), VII, or better rating from A.M. Best, sufficient to cover any claims, damages, liabilities, costs and 
expenses (including counsel fees) arising out of or in connection with CONTRACTOR's fulfillment of any of its 
obligations under this Agreement or either party's use of the work or any component or part thereof: 

PART I 

A.  Commercial General Liability Insurance, including both bodily injury and property damage, with limits as 
follows: 

$2,000,000 per occurrence $ 500,000 fire damage $ 5,000 medical expenses $1,000,000 personal & adv. 
Injury $2,000,000 general aggregate $2,000,000 products/completed operations aggregate. 

The policy may not contain an exclusion for coverage of claims arising from claims for sexual molestation 
or abuse. In the event that CONTRACTOR’s policy should have an exclusion for sexual molestation or 
abuse claims, then CONTRACTOR shall be required to procure a supplemental policy providing such 
coverage. 

B.  Business Auto Liability Insurance for all owned scheduled, non-owned or hired automobiles with a 
$2,000,000 combined single limit. If no owned automobiles, then only hired and non-owned is required. 
If CONTRACTOR uses a vehicle to travel to/from school sites, between schools and/or to/from students’ 
homes or other locations as approved service locations by the LEA, CONTRACTOR must comply with 
State of California auto insurance requirements.  

C.  Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance in a form and amount covering 
CONTRACTOR’s full liability under the California Workers’ Compensation Insurance and Safety Act 



 

2017-2018  8 | P a g e  
 

and in accordance with applicable state and federal laws. 

Part A – Statutory Limits Part B - $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000 Employers Liability 

D.  Errors & Omissions (E & O)/Malpractice (Professional Liability) coverage, including Sexual Molestation 
and Abuse coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial General Liability 
policy by endorsement or separate policy, with the following limits: $1,000,000 per occurrence 
$1,000,000 general aggregate 

E.  CONTRACTOR, upon execution of this contract and periodically thereafter upon request, shall furnish the 
LEA with certificates of insurance evidencing such coverage. The certificate of insurance shall include a 
ten (10) day non-renewal notice provision. The Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability 
policy shall name the LEA and the Board of Education additional insured’s premiums on all insurance 
policies and shall be paid by CONTRACTOR and shall be deemed included in CONTRACTOR’s 
obligations under this contract at no additional charge using the following language: 

I. The following are each named as an additional insured for all liability arising out of the 
operations by or on behalf of the named insured, and this policy protects each additional 
insured and each of their governing boards, officers, agents and employees against 
liability for bodily injuries, deaths, or property damage or destruction in the performance 
of the Contract:  Sonoma County Superintendent of Schools, Sonoma County Board of 
Education, Sonoma County SELPA, and the SELPA Member Districts identified in the 
Sonoma County Special Education Local Planning Area Master Contract for Nonpublic, 
Nonsectarian School/Agency Services; 

II. The inclusion of more than one insured shall not operate to impair the rights of one 
insured against another insured and the coverage herein shall apply, up to the stated limit, 
as though separate policies have been issued to each insured; 

III. The insurance provided herein is primary and no insurance held or owned by any 
additional insured shall be called upon to contribute to a loss; and  

IV. Coverage provided by this policy shall not be canceled or the dollar amount reduced without thirty 
(30) days prior written notice given to Sonoma County SELPA 

F.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions above $100,000 must be declared to and approved by the LEA. 
At its option, LEA may require the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR’s sole cost, to: (a) cause its 
insurer to reduce to levels specified by the LEA or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions 
with respect to the LEA, its officials and employees, or (b) procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses 
and related investigation. 

G.  For any claims related to the services, the CONTRACTOR’s insurance coverage shall be primary 
insurance as respects to the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees. Any insurance or self-
insurance maintained by the LEA, its subsidiaries, officials and employees shall be excess of the 
CONTRACTOR's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

H.  All Certificates of Insurance may reference the contract number, name of the school or agency submitting 
the certificate, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate on the certificate. 

PART II - INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR NONPUBLIC SCHOOLS AFFILIATED 
WITH A RESIDENTIAL TREATMENT FACILITY (“RTC”) 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school affiliated with a residential treatment center (NPS/RTC), the 
following insurance policies are required: 

A.  Commercial General Liability coverage of $2,000,000 per Occurrence and $2,000,000 in General 
Aggregate. The policy shall be endorsed to name the LEA and the Board of Education as named additional 
insured and shall provide specifically that any insurance carried by the LEA which may be applicable to 
any claims or loss shall be deemed excess and the RTC’s insurance primary despite any conflicting 



 

2017-2018  9 | P a g e  
 

provisions in the RTC’s policy. Coverage shall be maintained with no Self-Insured Retention above 
$100,000 without the prior written approval of the LEA. 

B.  Workers' Compensation Insurance in accordance with provisions of the California Labor Code adequate to 
protect the RTC from claims that may arise from its operations pursuant to the Workers' Compensation Act 
(Statutory Coverage). The Workers’ Compensation Insurance coverage must also include Employers 
Liability coverage with limits of $1,000,000/$1,000,000/$1,000,000. 

C.  Commercial Auto Liability coverage with limits of $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence if 
the RTC does not operate a student bus service. If the RTC provides student bus services, the required 
coverage limit is 2,000,000 Combined Single Limit per Occurrence. 

D.  Sexual Molestation and Abuse Coverage, unless that coverage is afforded elsewhere in the Commercial 
General Liability or Professional liability policy by endorsement, with minimum limits of  $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and $1,000,000 general aggregate. 

If LEA or CONTRACTOR determines that a change in insurance coverage obligations under this section 
is necessary, either party may reopen negotiations to modify the insurance obligations. 

16. INDEMNIFICATION AND HOLD HARMLESS 

To the fullest extent allowed by law, CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold LEA and its Board Members, 
administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, volunteers, and subcontractors (“LEA Indemnities”) harmless 
against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 
out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 
proximately caused by negligence, intentional act, or willful act or omission of CONTRACTOR, including, 
without limitation, its agents, employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it 
(excluding LEA and LEA Indemnities). The duty and obligation to defend shall arise immediately upon tender 
of a claim or lawsuit to the CONTRACTOR. The LEA and the Member District(s) shall have the right in their 
sole discretion to select counsel of its choice to provide the defense at the sole cost of the CONTRACTOR or 
the applicable insurance carrier.  
 
To the fullest extent allowed by law, LEA shall indemnify and hold CONTRACTOR and its Board Members, 
administrators, employees, agents, attorneys, and subcontractors (“CONTRACTOR Indemnities”) harmless 
against all liability, loss, damage and expense (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) resulting from or arising 
out of this Master Contract or its performance, to the extent that such loss, expense, damage or liability was 
proximately caused by the negligent or willful act or omission of LEA, including, without limitation, its agents, 
employees, subcontractors or anyone employed directly or indirectly by it (excluding CONTRACTOR and/or 
any CONTRACTOR Indemnities). 
LEA represents that it is self-insured in compliance with the laws of the state of California, that the self- insurance 
covers district employees acting within the course and scope of their respective duties and that its self-insurance 
covers LEA’s indemnification obligations under this Master Contract. 

17. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Nothing herein contained will be construed to imply a joint venture, partnership or principal-agent relationship 
between the LEA and CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide all services under this Agreement as an 
independent contractor, and neither party shall have the authority to bind or make any commitment on behalf of 
the other. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be deemed to create any association, partnership, joint 
venture or relationship of principal and agent, master and servant, or employer and employee between the parties 
or any affiliates of the parties, or between the LEA and any individual assigned by CONTRACTOR to perform 
any services for the LEA. 

If the LEA is held to be a partner, joint venturer, co-principle, employer or co-employer of CONTRACTOR, 



 

2017-2018  10 | P a g e  
 

CONTRACTOR shall indemnify and hold harmless the LEA from and against any and all claims for loss, 
liability, or damages arising from that holding, as well as any expenses, costs, taxes, penalties and interest 
charges incurred by the LEA as a result of that holding. 

18. SUBCONTRACTING; EXHIBIT R 

CONTRACTOR shall not assign or enter into subcontracts for any of the services contemplated, including 
transportation, under this Contract without first obtaining written approval from SELPA (EXHIBIT R). Such 
subcontract(s) or assignment(s) and approval(s) shall be attached and made part of this Contract. 

In the event LEA determines that it can provide the subcontracted service(s) at a lower rate, LEA may elect to 
provide such service(s). 

CONTRACTOR shall incorporate all of the provisions of this Master Contract in all subcontracts, to the fullest 
extent reasonably possible. Furthermore, when CONTRACTOR enters into subcontracts for the provision of 
special education and/or related services (including without limitation transportation) for any student, 
CONTRACTOR shall cause each subcontractor to procure and maintain insurance during the term of each 
subcontract. Such subcontractor’s insurance shall comply with the provisions of Section 15. Each subcontractor 
shall furnish the LEA with original endorsements and certificates of insurance effecting coverage required by 
Section 15. The endorsements are to be signed by a person authorized by that insurer to bind coverage on its 
behalf. The endorsements are to be on forms as required by the LEA. All endorsements are to be received and 
approved by the LEA before the subcontractor’s work commences. The Commercial General Liability and 
Automobile Liability policies shall name the LEA/SELPA and the LEA Board of Education as additional 
insured. 

As an alternative to the LEA's forms, a subcontractor’s insurer may provide complete, certified copies of all 
required insurance policies, including endorsements affecting the coverage required by this Master Contract. All 
Certificates of Insurance may reference the LEA contract number, name of the school or agency submitting the 
certificate, indication if NPS or NPA, and the location of the school or agency submitting the certificate. In 
addition, all subcontractors must meet the requirements as contained in Section 45 Clearance Requirements and 
Section 46 Staff Qualifications of this Master Contract. 

19. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST 

CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA upon request a copy of its current bylaws and a current list of its Board 
of Directors (or Trustees), if it is incorporated. CONTRACTOR and any member of its Board of Directors (or 
Trustees) shall disclose any relationship with LEA that constitutes or may constitute a conflict of interest 
pursuant to California Education Code section 56042 and including, but not limited to, employment with LEA, 
provision of private party assessments and/or reports, and attendance at IEP team meetings acting as a student’s 
advocate. Pursuant to California Education code section 56042, an attorney or advocate for a parent of an 
individual with exceptional needs shall not recommend placement at CONTRACTOR’s facility if the attorney 
or advocate is employed or contracted by the CONTRACTOR, or will receive a benefit from the 
CONTRACTOR, or otherwise has a conflict of interest. 

Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, LEA shall neither execute an ISA with 
CONTRACTOR nor amend an existing ISA for a student when a recommendation for special education and/or 
related services is based in whole or in part on assessment(s) or reports provided by CONTRACTOR to the 
student without prior written authorization by LEA. This paragraph shall apply to CONTRACTOR regardless 
of when an assessment is performed or a report is prepared (i.e. before or after the student is enrolled in 
CONTRACTOR’s school/agency) or whether an assessment of the student is performed or a report is prepared 
in the normal course of the services provided to the student by CONTRACTOR. To avoid conflict of interest, 
and in order to ensure the appropriateness of an Independent Educational Evaluation (hereinafter referred to as 
“IEE”) and its recommendations, the LEA may, in its discretion, not fund an IEE by an evaluator who provides 



 

2017-2018  11 | P a g e  
 

ongoing service(s) or is sought to provide service(s) to the student for whom the IEE is requested. Likewise, the 
LEA may, in its discretion, not fund services through the evaluator whose IEE the LEA agrees to fund. When 
no other appropriate assessor is available, LEA may request and if CONTRACTOR agrees, the CONTRACTOR 
may provide an IEE. 

When CONTRACTOR is a Nonpublic Agency, CONTRACTOR acknowledges that its authorized 
representative has read and understands Education Code section 56366.3 which provides, in relevant part, that 
no special education and/or related services provided by CONTRACTOR shall be paid for by LEA if provided 
by an individual who was an employee of LEA within the three hundred and sixty five (365) days prior to 
executing this contract. This provision does not apply to any person who is able to provide designated instruction 
and services during the extended school year because he or she is otherwise employed for up to ten months of 
the school year by LEA. 

CONTRACTOR shall not admit a student living within the jurisdictional boundaries of the LEA on a private 
pay or tuition free “scholarship” basis and concurrently or subsequently advise/request parent(s) to pursue 
funding for the admitted school year from the LEA through due process proceedings. 

20. NON-DISCRIMINATION 

CONTRACTOR shall not unlawfully discriminate on the basis of gender, nationality, race or ethnicity, religion, 
age, sexual orientation, gender identity, gender expression, or disability or any other classification protected by 
federal or state law, in employment or operation of its programs. 

 
EDUCATIONAL PROGRAM 
 

21. FREE AND APPROPRIATE PUBLIC EDUCATION (FAPE) 

LEA shall provide CONTRACTOR with a copy of the IEP including the Individualized Transition Plan 
(hereinafter referred to as “ITP”) of each student served by CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall provide to 
each student special education and/or related services (including transition services) within the nonpublic school 
or nonpublic agency consistent with the student’s IEP and as specified in the ISA. If CONTRACTOR is a NPS, 
CONTRACTOR shall not accept a student if it cannot provide or ensure the provision of the services outlined 
in the student’s IEP. If student services are provided by a third party (i.e. Related Services Provider), 
CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if provision of services cease. 

 

Unless otherwise agreed to between CONTRACTOR and LEA, CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the 
provision of all appropriate supplies, equipment, and/or facilities for students, as specified in the student’s IEP 
and ISA. CONTRACTOR shall make no charge of any kind to parents for special education and/or related 
services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA (including, but not limited to, screenings, assessments, or 
interviews that occur prior to or as a condition of the student’s enrollment under the terms of this Master 
Contract). LEA shall provide low incidence equipment for eligible students with low incidence disabilities when 
specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Such equipment remains the property of the SELPA/LEA and shall be 
returned to the SELPA/LEA when the IEP team determines the equipment is no longer needed or when the 
student is no longer enrolled in the nonpublic school. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that facilities are adequate 
to provide LEA students with an environment which meets all pertinent health and safety regulations. 
CONTRACTOR may charge a student’s parent(s) for services and/or activities not necessary for the student to 
receive a free appropriate public education after: (a) written notification to the student’s parent(s) of the cost and 
voluntary nature of the services and/or activities; and (b) receipt by the LEA of the written notification and a 
written acknowledgment signed by the student’s parent(s) of the cost and voluntary nature of the services and/or 



 

2017-2018  12 | P a g e  
 

activities. CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all LEA requirements concerning parent acknowledgment of financial 
responsibility. 

Voluntary services and/or activities not necessary for the student to receive a free appropriate public education 
shall not interfere with the student’s receipt of special education and/or related services as specified in the 
student’s IEP and ISA unless the LEA, CONTRACTOR, and PARENT agree otherwise in writing. 

22. GENERAL PROGRAM OF INSTRUCTION 

All nonpublic school and nonpublic agency services shall be provided consistent with the area of certification 
specified by CDE Certification and as defined in California Education Code section 56366 et seq., and shall 
ensure that facilities are adequate to provide LEA students with an environment, which meets all pertinent health 
and safety regulations. 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR’s general program of instruction shall: (a) utilize 
evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent with LEA’s standards regarding the particular course 
of study and curriculum; (b) include curriculum that addresses mathematics, literacy and the use of educational, 
assistive technology and transition services; (c) be consistent with CDE’s standards regarding the particular 
course of study and curriculum; (d) provide the services as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. Students shall 
have access to: (a) State Board of Education (SBE) - adopted Common Core State Standards (“CCSS”) for 
curriculum and the same instructional materials for kindergarten and grades 1 to 8, inclusive; and provide 
standards – aligned core curriculum and instructional materials for grades 9 to 12, inclusive, used by a local 
education agency (LEA), that contracts with the nonpublic school: (b) college preparation courses; (c) 
extracurricular activities, such as art, sports, music and academic clubs; (d) career preparation and vocational 
training, consistent with transition plans pursuant to state and federal law and; (e) supplemental assistance, 
including individual academic tutoring, psychological counseling, and career and college counseling. 

When CONTRACTOR serves students in grades nine through twelve inclusive, LEA shall provide to 
CONTRACTOR a specific list of the course requirements to be satisfied by the CONTRACTOR leading toward 
graduation or completion of LEA’s diploma requirements. CONTRACTOR shall not award a high school 
diploma to students who have not successfully completed all of the LEA’s graduation requirements. 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, CONTRACTOR’s general 
program of instruction and/or services shall utilize evidence-based practices and predictors and be consistent 
with LEA and CDE guidelines and certification, and provided as specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. The 
nonpublic agency providing Behavior Intervention services shall develop a written plan that specifies the 
nature of their nonpublic agency service for each student within thirty (30) days of enrollment and shall be 
provided in writing to the LEA. School-based services may not be unilaterally converted by CONTRACTOR 
to a substitute program or provided at a location not specifically authorized by the IEP team. Except for 
services provided by a CONTRACTOR that is a licensed children’s institution, all services not provided in the 
school setting require the presence of a parent, guardian or adult caregiver during the delivery of services, 
provided such guardian or caregiver have a signed authorization by the parent or legal guardian to authorize 
emergency services as requested. Licensed Children’s Institution (LCI) CONTRACTORS shall ensure that 
appropriate and qualified residential or clinical staff is present during the provision of services under this 
Master Contract. CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify LEA in writing if no parent, guardian or adult 
caregiver is present. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA a written description of the services and location 
provided prior to the effective date of this Master Contract. CONTRACTORS providing Behavior Intervention 
services must have a trained behaviorist or trained equivalent on staff. It is understood that Behavior 
Intervention services are limited per CDE Certification and do not constitute as an instructional program. 
When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall not provide transportation nor subcontract 
for transportation services for students unless the LEA and CONTRACTOR agree otherwise in writing. 



 

2017-2018  13 | P a g e  
 

23. INSTRUCTIONAL MINUTES 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, the total number of instructional minutes per school day provided 
by CONTRACTOR shall be at least equivalent to the number of instructional minutes per school day provided 
to students at like grade level attending LEA schools and shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in 
accordance with the student’s IEP. 

For students in grades kindergarten through 12 inclusive, unless otherwise specified in the student’s IEP and 
ISA, the number of instructional minutes, excluding breakfast, recess, lunch and pass time shall be at the same 
level that Ed. Code. prescribes for the LEA. 

The total number of annual instructional minutes shall be at least equivalent to the total number of annual 
instructional minutes provided to students attending LEA schools in like grade level unless otherwise specified 
in the student’s IEP. 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, the total number of minutes per 
school day provided by CONTRACTOR shall be specified in the student’s ISA developed in accordance with 
the student’s IEP. 

24. CLASS SIZE 

When CONTRACTOR is a NPS, CONTRACTOR shall ensure that the number of pupils loaded to a class shall 
not exceed twelve (12) pupils for grades K – 5, and fourteen (14) pupils for grades 6 – 13.  CONTRACTOR 
shall provide written notice to each LEA with students enrolled in a class that exceeds twelve (12) pupils. 

If CONTRACTOR provides special education for individuals with exceptional needs between the ages of three 
(3) and five (5) years, inclusive, CONTRCTOR shall comply with the appropriate instructional adult to child 
ratios pursuant to California Education Code § 56440 et seq. 

In the event a nonpublic school is unable to fill a vacant teaching position responsible for direct instruction to 
students, and the vacancy has direct impact on the California Department of Education Certification of that 
school, the nonpublic school shall develop a plan to assure appropriate coverage of students by first utilizing 
existing certificated staff. The nonpublic school and the LEA may agree to one 30 school day period per contract 
year where class size may be increased to assure coverage by an appropriately credentialed teacher. Such an 
agreement shall be in writing and signed by both parties. This provision does not apply to a nonpublic agency. 

25. CALENDARS; EXHIBIT K 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA/SELPA a school 
calendar with the total number of billable days not to exceed 180 days, plus extended school year billable days 
equivalent to the number of days determined by the LEA’s extended school year calendar. Billable days shall 
include only those days that are included on the submitted and approved school calendar, and/or required by the 
IEP (developed by the LEA) for each student. CONTRACTOR shall not be allowed to change its school calendar 
and/or amend the number of billable days without the prior written approval of the LEA. Nothing in this Master 
Contract shall be interpreted to require the LEA to accept any requests for calendar changes. 

Unless otherwise specified by the students’ IEP, educational services shall occur at the school site. A student 
shall only be eligible for extended school year services if such are recommended by his/her IEP Team and the 
provision of such is specifically included in the ISA. Extended school year shall consist of nineteen (19) 
instructional days, unless otherwise agreed upon by the IEP Team convened by the LEA. Any days of extended 
school year in excess of nineteen (19) billable days must be mutually agreed to, in writing, prior to the start of 
the extended school year. 

Student must have actually been in attendance during the regular school year and/or during extended school year 
and actually received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible for 



 

2017-2018  14 | P a g e  
 

payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other times 
when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any nonpublic 
school service. Any instructional days provided without this written agreement shall be at the sole financial 
responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

CONTRACTOR shall observe the same legal holidays as LEA. Those holidays are Labor Day, Veteran’s Day, 
Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day, New Year’s Day, Martin Luther King, Jr. Day, President’s Day, Memorial 
Day and Independence Day. With the approval of LEA, CONTRACTOR may revise the date upon which 
CONTRACTOR closes in observance of any of the holidays observed by the LEA. 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, CONTRACTOR shall be provided with a LEA- 
developed/approved calendar prior to the initiation of services. CONTRACTOR herein agrees to observe 
holidays as specified in the LEA-developed/approved calendar. CONTRACTOR shall provide services pursuant 
to the LEA-developed/approved calendar; or as specified in the LEA student’s IEP and ISA. Unless otherwise 
specified in the LEA student’s ISA, CONTRACTOR shall provide related services to LEA students on only 
those days that the LEA student’s school of attendance is in session and the LEA student attends school. 
CONTRACTOR shall bill only for services provided on billable days of attendance as indicated on the LEA 
calendar unless CONTRACTOR and the LEA agree otherwise, in writing. Student must have actually been in 
attendance and/or received services on a billable day of attendance in order for CONTRACTOR to be eligible 
for payment. It is specifically understood that services may not be provided on weekends/holidays and other 
times when school is not in session, unless agreed to by the LEA, in writing, in advance of the delivery of any 
nonpublic agency service provided by CONTRACTOR. Any instructional days provided without this written 
agreement shall be at the sole financial responsibility of the CONTRACTOR. 

26. DATA REPORTING; EXHIBITS A-G & J-R 

CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide to the LEA all data related to student information and billing information 
with LEA. CONTRACTOR shall agree to provide all data related to any and all sections of this contract and 
requested by and in the format required by the LEA. It is understood that all nonpublic school and agencies shall 
utilize the Special Education Information System (SEIS) or comparable system approved by the LEA and 
SELPA for all IEP development and progress reporting. Additional progress reporting may be required by the 
LEA. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with appropriate software, user training and proper internet 
permissions to allow adequate access. The LEA shall provide the CONTRACTOR with approved forms and/or 
format for such data including, but not limited to, invoicing, attendance reports and progress reports. The LEA 
may approve use of CONTRACTOR’S provided forms at their discretion. 

27. LEAST RESTRICTIVE ENVIRONMENT/DUAL ENROLLMENT 

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall follow all LEA policies and procedures that support Least Restrictive 
Environment (“LRE”) options and/or dual enrollment options if available and appropriate, for students to have 
access to the general curriculum and to be educated with their nondisabled peers to the maximum extent 
appropriate. 

CONTRACTOR and LEA shall ensure that LRE placement options are addressed at all IEP team meetings 
regarding students for whom ISAs have been or may be executed. This shall include IEP team consideration of 
supplementary aids and services, goals and objectives necessary for placement in the LRE and necessary to 
enable students to transition to less restrictive settings. 

When an IEP team has determined that a student should be transitioned into the public school setting, 
CONTRACTOR shall assist the LEA in implementing the IEP team’s recommended activities to support the 
transition. 



 

2017-2018  15 | P a g e  
 

28. STATEWIDE ACHIEVEMENT TESTING 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, per implementation of Senate Bill 484, CONTRACTOR shall 
administer all Statewide assessments within the California Assessment of Student Performance and Progress 
(“CAASPP”), Desired Results Developmental Profile (“DRDP”), California Alternative Assessment (“CAA”), 
achievement and abilities tests (using LEA-authorized assessment instruments), the Fitness Gram, the California 
English Language Development Test (“CELDT”), the English Language Proficiency Assessments for California 
(“ELPAC”), and as appropriate to the student, and mandated by LEA pursuant to LEA and state and federal 
guidelines. 

CONTRACTOR is subject to the alternative accountability system developed pursuant to Education Code 
section 52052, in the same manner as public schools. Each LEA student placed with CONTRACTOR by the 
LEA shall be tested by qualified staff of CONTRACTOR in accordance with that accountability program. LEA 
shall provide test administration training to CONTRACTOR’S qualified staff. CONTRACTOR shall attend LEA 
test training and comply with completion of all coding requirements as required by LEA; or at sole discretion of 
the LEA, the LEA will administer the tests. 

29. MANDATED ATTENDANCE AT LEA MEETINGS 

CONTRACTOR shall attend District mandated meetings when legal mandates, and/or LEA policy and 
procedures are reviewed, including but not limited to the areas of: curriculum, high school graduation, standards-
based instruction, behavior intervention, cultural and linguistic needs of students with disabilities, dual 
enrollment responsibilities, LRE responsibilities, transition services, and standardized testing and IEPs. LEA 
shall provide CONTRACTOR with reasonable notice of mandated meetings. Attendance at such meetings does 
not constitute a billable service hour(s). 

30. POSITIVE BEHAVIOR INTERVENTIONS AND SUPPORTS; EXHIBIT O & L 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of Education Code section 56521.1 and 56521.2. LEA 
students who exhibit behaviors that interfere with their learning or the learning of others must receive timely and 
appropriate assessments and positive supports and interventions in accordance with the federal law and it’s 
implementing regulations. If the Individualized Education Program (“IEP”) team determines that a student’s 
behavior impedes his or her learning or the learning of others, the IEP team is required to consider the use of 
positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with 
Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. This 
could mean that instead of developing a Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”), the IEP team may conclude it is 
sufficient to address the student’s behavioral problems through the development of behavioral goals and 
behavioral interventions to support those goals. 
 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written policy pursuant to California Education Code section 56521.1 
regarding emergency interventions and behavioral emergency reports (EXHIBIT L). CONTRACTOR shall 
ensure that all of its relevant staff members are trained annually in crisis intervention and emergency procedures 
as related to appropriate behavior management strategies. Training includes certification with an approved 
SELPA crisis intervention program. Evidence of such training to applicable or relevant staff shall be submitted 
to the LEA at the beginning of the school year. New hires will be in direct supervision of trained staff until the 
person is trained as referenced above; new hires will be trained within ninety (90) days, unless otherwise agreed 
to in writing by the SELPA. 
 

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.1, emergency interventions shall not be used as a substitute for a BIP, 
and shall not be employed longer than necessary to contain the behavior. Emergency interventions may only be 
used to control unpredictable, spontaneous behavior that poses clear and present danger of serious physical harm 



 

2017-2018  16 | P a g e  
 

to the individual with exceptional needs, or others, and that cannot be immediately prevented by a response less 
restrictive than the temporary application of a technique used to contain the behavior. If a situation requires 
prolonged use of emergency intervention, staff must seek assistance from the school site administrator or a law 
enforcement agency. 

CONTRACTOR shall complete a behavior emergency report when an emergency occurs that is defined as a 
serious, dangerous behavior that staff has determined to present a clear and present danger to others. It requires 
a non-violent physical intervention to protect the safety of student, self, or others and a physical intervention 
has been used; or a physical intervention has not been used, but an injury or serious property damage has 
occurred. Personal Safety Techniques may or may not have been used. The SELPA Behavioral Emergency 
Report (EXHIBIT L) is to be completed by CONTRACTOR the same day of the use of an emergency 
intervention with a student with exceptional needs or if serious property damage is caused by a student with 
exceptional needs.  The LEA must be faxed and/or e-mailed a copy of the Behavioral Emergency Report no 
later than the end of the day that the emergency intervention was used or if serious property damage occurs. 
CONTRACTOR shall notify Parent within twenty-four (24) hours. If the student’s IEP does not contain a 
Behavior Intervention Plan (“BIP”) or Positive Behavior Intervention Plan (“PBIP”), an IEP team shall 
schedule a meeting to review the behavior emergency report, determine if there is a necessity for a functional 
behavioral assessment (Exhibit O), and to determine an interim plan. If the student already has a BIP, the IEP 
team shall review and modify the BIP if a new serious behavior has been exhibited or existing behavioral 
interventions have proven to be ineffective. If a Behavioral Emergency Report was written regarding a student 
with exceptional needs who did have a behavioral intervention plan then CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA 
Administrator so that the incident is referred to the IEP team to review and determine if the incident constitutes 
a need to modify the positive behavioral intervention plan. 

Pursuant to Education Code section 56521.2, CONTRACTOR shall not authorize, order, consent to, or pay for 
the following interventions, or any other interventions similar to or like the following: (1) Any intervention 
that is designed to, or likely to, cause physical pain, including, but not limited to, electric-shock (2) An 
intervention that involves the release of noxious, toxic, or otherwise unpleasant sprays, mists, or substances in 
proximity to the face of the individual. (3) An intervention that denies adequate sleep, food, water, shelter, 
bedding, physical comfort, or access to bathroom facilities. (4) An intervention that is designed to subject, used 
to subject, or likely to subject, the individual to verbal abuse, ridicule, or humiliation, or that can be expected 
to cause excessive emotional trauma. (5) Restrictive interventions that employ a device, material, or objects 
that simultaneously immobilize all four extremities, including the procedure known as prone containment, 
except that prone containment or similar techniques may be used by trained personnel as a limited emergency 
intervention. (6) Locked seclusion, unless it is in a facility otherwise licensed or permitted by state law to use a 
locked room. (7) An intervention that precludes adequate supervision of the individual. (8) An intervention that 
deprives the individual of one or more of his or her senses. (b) In the case of a child whose behavior impedes 
the child’s learning or that of others, the individualized education program team shall consider the use of 
positive behavioral interventions and supports, and other strategies, to address that behavior, consistent with 
Section 1414(d)(3)(B)(i) and (d)(4) of Title 20 of the United States Code and associated federal regulations. 
(Added by Stats. 2013, Ch. 48, Sec. 43. Effective July 1, 2013.) 

All restraint practices must be reviewed and revised when they have an adverse effect on a student and are 
used repeatedly for an individual child, either on multiple occasions within the same classroom or multiple 
uses by the same individual. CONTRACTOR shall notify the student’s parent/guardian when any type of 
physical or mechanical restraint or seclusion has been used. Upon the use of any type of physical or 
mechanical restraint or seclus 

ions of a District student, CONTRACTOR shall complete a BER per the reporting and notification 
requirements listed above. 



 

2017-2018  17 | P a g e  
 

31. STUDENT DISCIPLINE; EXHIBIT M 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and abide by a written policy for student discipline that is consistent with state 
and federal law and regulations. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA within five (5) days and provide all related 
written documentation each time a pupil is suspended, including the reason for said suspension on SELPA 
Suspension & Expulsion Data Collection Form (EXHIBIT M). 

When CONTRACTOR seeks to remove a student from his/her current educational placement for disciplinary 
reasons, CONTRACTOR shall immediately submit a written discipline report to the LEA and a manifestation 
IEP team meeting shall be scheduled. Written discipline reports shall include, but not be limited to: the student’s 
name; the time, date, and description of the misconduct; the disciplinary action taken by CONTRACTOR; and 
the rationale for such disciplinary action. A copy of the student’s behavior plan, if any, shall be submitted with 
the written discipline report. CONTRACTOR and LEA agree to participate in a manifestation determination at 
an IEP meeting upon the tenth (10th) day of suspension. LEA shall notify and invite CONTRACTOR 
representatives to the IEP team meeting where the manifestation determination will be made. 

32. IEP TEAM MEETINGS 

An IEP team meeting shall be convened at least annually to evaluate: (1) the educational progress of each 
student placed with CONTRACTOR, including all state assessment results pursuant to the requirements of 
Education Code section 52052; (2) whether or not the needs of the student continue to be best met at the 
nonpublic school; and (3) whether changes to the student’s IEP are necessary, including whether the student 
may be transitioned to a public school setting. (California Education Code sections 56366 (a) (2) (B) (i) and 
(ii)) and pursuant to California Education Code section 56345 (b) (4).) The notice shall be provided at least ten 
(10) days prior to the meeting except as otherwise permitted by law.  At least twenty (20) days before any 
IEP/ITP meeting, CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA if the pupil’s parent/guardian requires a translator. 

If the LEA student is to be transferred from a NPS setting into a regular class setting in a public school for any 
part of the school day, the IEP team shall document, if appropriate, a description of activities provided to 
integrate the student into the regular education program, including the nature of each activity as well as the time 
spent on the activity each day or week and a description of the activities provided to support the transition of the 
student from the special education program into the regular education program. Each student shall be allowed to 
provide confidential input to any representative of his or her IEP team. Except as otherwise provided in the 
Master Contract, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall participate in all IEP team meetings regarding students for 
whom ISAs have been or may be executed. At any time during the term of this Master Contract, the parent, the 
CONTRACTOR or the LEA may request a review of the student’s IEP, subject to all procedural safeguards 
required by law, including reasonable notice given to, and participation of, the CONTRACTOR in the meeting. 
Every effort shall be made to schedule IEP team meetings at a time and place that is mutually convenient to 
parent, CONTRACTOR and LEA. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA assessments and written assessment 
reports by service providers upon request and/or pursuant to LEA policy and procedures. It is understood that 
attendance at an IEP meeting is part of CONTRACTOR’S professional responsibility and is not a billable service 
under this Master Contract. 

It is understood that the CONTRACTOR shall utilize the approved electronic IEP system of the LEA for all IEP 
planning and progress reporting at the LEA’s discretion. The SELPA shall provide training for any NPS and 
NPA to assure access to THE APPROVED SYSTEM. The NPS and/or NPA shall maintain confidentiality of all 
IEP data on THE APPROVED SYSTEM and shall protect the password requirements of the system. When a 
student dis-enrolls from the NPS, the NPS/NPA shall discontinue use of THE APPROVED SYSTEM for that 
student. 

Changes in any student’s educational program, including instruction, services, or instructional setting provided 
under this Master Contract, may only be made on the basis of revisions to the student’s IEP. In the event that 
the CONTRACTOR believes the student requires a change of placement, the CONTRACTOR may request a 
review of the student’s IEP for the purposes of consideration of a change in the student’s placement. Student is 



 

2017-2018  18 | P a g e  
 

entitled to remain in the last agreed upon and implemented placement unless parent agrees otherwise or an 
Interim Alternative Educational Setting is deemed lawful and appropriate by LEA or OAH consistent with 
Section 1415 (k)(1)(7) of Title 20 of the United States Code.  

33. SURROGATE PARENTS AND FOSTER YOUTH 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with LEA surrogate parent assignments. A pupil in foster care shall be defined 
pursuant to California Education Code section 42238.01(b). The LEA shall annually notify the CONTRACTOR 
who the LEA has designated as the educational liaison for foster children. When a pupil in foster care is enrolled 
in a nonpublic school by the LEA any time after the completion of the pupil’s second year of high school, the 
CONTRACTOR shall schedule the pupil in courses leading towards graduation based on the diploma 
requirements of the LEA unless provided notice otherwise in writing pursuant to Section 51225.1. 

34. DUE PROCESS PROCEEDINGS 

CONTRACTOR shall fully participate in special education due process proceedings including mediations and 
hearings, as requested by LEA. CONTRACTOR shall also fully participate in the investigation and provision of 
documentation related to any complaint filed with the State of California, the Office of Civil Rights, or any other 
state and/or federal governmental body or agency. Full participation shall include, but in no way be limited to, 
cooperating with LEA representatives to provide complete answers raised by any investigator and/or the 
immediate provision of any and all documentation that pertains to the operation of CONTRACTOR’s program 
and/or the implementation of a particular student’s IEP/Individual and Family Service Plan (“IFSP”). 

35. COMPLAINT PROCEDURES 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain and adhere to its own written procedures for responding to parent complaints. 
These procedures shall include annually notifying and providing parents of students with appropriate information 
(including complaint forms) for the following: (1) Uniform Complaint Procedures pursuant to Title 5 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 4600 et seq.; (2) Nondiscrimination policy pursuant to Title 5 of the 
California Code of Regulations section 4960 (a); (3) Sexual Harassment Policy, California Education Code 231.5 
(a) (b) (c); (4) Title IX Student Grievance Procedure, Title IX 106.8 (a) (d) and 106.9 (a); and (5) Notice of 
Privacy Practices in compliance with Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (“HIPAA”). 
CONTRACTOR shall include verification of these procedures to the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall work with and 
notify LEA within 24 hours of any parent complaint. 

36. STUDENT PROGRESS REPORTS/REPORT CARDS AND ASSESSMENTS 

CONTRACTOR shall send to LEA progress reports relating to goals and objectives in a pupil’s IEP and other 
data required for review. With written notification to district, CONTRACTOR may send progress reports 
electronically to LEA.  Progress reports shall be sent to parents at intervals required by federal and state law 
(e.g., progress report and report card periods in pupil’s district of residence), as required by a pupil’s IEP, and 
within five (5) business days of LEA’s request. 

 
The CONTRACTOR shall also provide an LEA representative access to supporting documentation used to 
determine progress on any goal or objective, including but not limited to log sheets, observation notes, data 
sheets, pre/post tests, rubrics and other similar data collection used to determine progress or lack of progress on 
approved goals, objectives, transition plans or behavior intervention plans. The LEA may request such data at 
any time within five (5) years of the date of service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide this data supporting 
progress within five (5) business days of request. Additional time may be granted as needed by the LEA. 
CONTRACTOR shall complete academic or other evaluations of the student ten (10) days prior to the student’s 
annual or triennial review IEP team meeting for the purpose of reporting the student’s present levels of 



 

2017-2018  19 | P a g e  
 

performance at the IEP team meeting as required by state and federal laws and regulations and pursuant to LEA 
policies, procedures, and/or practices. CONTRACTOR shall make available its reports, documents, and 
projected goals to share with members of the IEP team five (5) business days prior to the IEP meeting. 
CONTRACTOR shall maintain supporting documentation such as test protocols and data collection, which shall 
be made available to LEA within five (5) business days of request. 

The CONTRACTOR is responsible for all evaluation costs regarding the updating of goals and objectives, 
progress reporting and development of present levels of performance. All assessments resulting from an 
assessment plan shall be provided by the LEA unless the LEA specifies in writing a request that CONTRACTOR 
perform such additional assessment. Any assessment and/or evaluation costs may be added to the ISA and/or 
approved separately by the LEA and CONTRACTOR with a mutual agreement.  

It is understood that all billable hours must be in direct services to pupils as specified in the ISA. For Nonpublic 
Agency services, supervision provided by a qualified individual as specified in Title 5 Regulation, subsection 
3065, shall be determined as appropriate and included in the ISA. Supervision means the direct observation of 
services, data review, case conferencing and program design consistent with professional standards for each 
professional’s license, certification, or credential. 

CONTRACTOR shall not charge the student’s parent(s) or LEA for the provision of progress reports, report 
cards, evaluations conducted in order to obtain present levels of performance, interviews, and/or meetings. It is 
understood that all billable hours have limits to those specified on the ISA consistent with the IEP. It is 
understood that copies of data collection notes, forms, charts and other such data are part of the pupil’s record 
and shall be made available to the LEA upon written request. 

37. TRANSCRIPTS; EXHIBIT N 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall prepare transcripts at the close of each 
semester, or upon student transfer, for students in grades nine (9) through twelve (12) inclusive, and submit them 
on LEA approved forms to the student’s school of residence for evaluation of progress toward completion of 
diploma requirements as specified in LEA Procedures (EXHIBIT N), unless otherwise agreed to by the IEP 
team. CONTRACTOR shall submit to the LEA names of students and their schools of residence for whom 
transcripts have been submitted as specified by the LEA. 

38. STUDENT CHANGE OF RESIDENCE; EXHIBIT P 

Within five (5) school days after CONTRACTOR becomes aware of a student’s change of residence, 
CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA of the student’s change of residence as specified in LEA Procedures 
(EXHIBIT P). Upon enrollment, CONTRACTOR shall notify parents in writing of their obligation to notify 
CONTRACTOR of the student’s change of residence. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide upon request 
by LEA, documentation of such notice to parents. 

When the CONTRACTOR becomes aware of an emergency change of placement (e.g. hospitalization, 
juvenile hall, etc.), CONTRACTOR shall verbally notify LEA immediately (within 24 hours) and shall 
confirm the same in writing within five (5) business days. 

When CONTRACTOR becomes aware that a pupil placed into an LCI by another governmental agency and 
attending its NPS has changed residency, CONTRACTOR shall verbally notify LEA immediately (within 24 
hours) and shall confirm the same in writing with five (5) business days on LEA approved forms. 

If CONTRACTOR had knowledge or should reasonably have had knowledge of the student’s change of 
residence boundaries and CONTRACTOR fails to follow the procedures specified in this provision, LEA shall 
not be responsible for the costs of services delivered after the student’s change of residence. 



 

2017-2018  20 | P a g e  
 

39. WITHDRAWAL OF STUDENT FROM PROGRAM 

CONTRACTOR shall immediately report electronically and in writing to the LEA within five (5) business days 
when an LEA student is withdrawn without prior notice from school and/or services, including student’s change 
of residence to a residence outside of LEA service boundaries, and student’s discharge against professional 
advice from a Nonpublic Schools/Residential Treatment Center (“NPS/RTC”). CONTRACTOR shall assist 
LEA to verify and clear potential dropouts three (3) times per year, as required by law. 

40. PARENT ACCESS 

CONTRACTOR shall provide for reasonable parental access to students and all facilities including, but not 
limited to, the instructional setting, recreational activity areas, meeting rooms and student living quarters. 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with any known court orders regarding parental visits and access to LEA students. 

CONTRACTOR operating programs associated with a NPS/RTC shall cooperate with a parent’s reasonable 
request for LEA student therapeutic visits in their home or at the NPS/RTC. CONTRACTOR shall require that 
parents obtain prior written authorization for therapeutic visits from the CONTRACTOR and the LEA at least 
thirty (30) days in advance. CONTRACTOR shall facilitate all parent travel and accommodations and for 
providing travel information to the parent as appropriate. Payment by LEA for approved travel-related expenses 
shall be made directly through the LEA. 

CONTRACTOR providing services in the student’s home as specified in the IEP shall assure that at least one 
parent of the child, or an adult caregiver with written and signed authorization to make decisions in an 
emergency, is present. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall be provided to the LEA prior 
to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization in emergency situations. The 
parent shall inform the LEA of any changes of caregivers and provide written authorization for emergency 
situation. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the NPS/NPA service 
provider. 

For services provided in a pupil’s home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or 
LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns 
reported to parents, both verbal and written, shall also be provided to the LEA. 

41. SERVICES AND SUPERVISION AND PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 

If CONTRACTOR provides services on LEA public school campuses, CONTRACTOR shall comply with Penal 
Code Section 627.1 et. seq., and LEA procedures regarding visitors to school campuses specified by LEA policy 
and in the LEA procedures, and the procedures of the campus being visited. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible 
for purchase and provision of the supplies and assessment tools necessary to implement the provision of services 
on LEA public school campuses. 

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed along with all 
procedures for being on campus consistent with school and LEA policy. It is understood that the public school 
credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the educational program and all nonpublic agency service 
providers shall work collaboratively with the classroom teacher, who shall remain in charge of the instructional 
program. 

It is understood, that all employees, subcontractors and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency 
shall adhere to customary professional standards when providing services. All practices shall be within the scope 
of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each profession. Reports 
regarding student progress shall be consistent with the provision of the contract. 

CONTRACTOR providing services outside of the student’s school as specified in the IEP shall ensure that at 
least one parent of the child or an adult caregiver with written and signed authority to make decisions in an 
emergency is present during provision of services. The names of any adult caregiver other than the parent shall 



 

2017-2018  21 | P a g e  
 

be provided to the LEA prior to the start of any home based services, including written and signed authorization 
in emergency situations. The adult caregiver cannot also be an employee or volunteer associated with the 
NPS/NPA service provider. All problems and/or concerns reported by CONTRACTOR to parents or guardians, 
in either verbal or written form, shall be reported to the LEA.  

42. LICENSED CHILDREN’S INSTITUTION (“LCI”) CONTRACTORS AND RESIDENTIAL 
TREATMENT CENTER (“RTC”) CONTRACTORS 

If CONTRACTOR is a licensed children’s institution (hereinafter referred to as “LCI”), CONTRACTOR shall 
adhere to all legal requirements regarding educational placements for LCI students as stated in Education Code 
56366 (a) (2) (C), 56366.9 (c) (1), Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b), AB 1858 (2004), AB490 (Chapter 
862, Statutes of 2003), AB 1261 (2005), AB 1166 Chapter 171 (2015), AB 167 Chapter 224 (2010), AB 216 
Chapter 324 (2013), AB 379 Chapter 772 (2015), AB 1012 Chapter 703 (2015), and the procedures set forth in 
the LEA Procedures. An LCI shall not require that a pupil be placed in its nonpublic school as a condition of 
being placed in its residential facility. 

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a residential 
treatment center (hereinafter referred to as “NPS/RTC”), CONTRACTOR shall adhere to all legal requirements 
under the Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (IDEA), 20 U.S.C. section 1412(a)(1)(A) and Education 
Code section 56000, et seq.; amended and reorganized by the Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Improvement Act of 2004 (IDEIA), 20 U.S.C. section 1401(29); Education Code section 56031; Cal. Code 
Regs., title 5, section 3001 et seq., Cal. Code Regs., title 2, section 60100 et seq. regarding the provision of 
counseling services, including residential care for students to receive a FAPE as set forth in the LEA student’s 
IEPs. 

If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic, nonsectarian school that is owned, operated by, or associated with a LCI, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA, on a quarterly basis, a list of all students, including those identified as 
eligible for special education. For those identified special education students, the list shall include: 1) special 
education eligibility at the time of enrollment and; 2) the educational placement and services specified in each 
student’s IEP at the time of enrollment. 

Unless placement is made pursuant to an Office of Administrative Hearings order or a lawfully executed 
agreement between LEA and parent, LEA is not responsible for the costs associated with nonpublic school 
placement until the date on which an IEP team meeting is convened, the IEP team determines that a nonpublic 
school placement is appropriate, and the IEP is signed by the student’s parent or another adult with educational 
decision-making rights. 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates 
a program outside of this State shall be certified or licensed by that state to provide, respectively, special 
education and related services and designated instruction and related services to pupils under the federal 
Individuals with Disabilities Education Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.). 

43. STATE MEAL MANDATE 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR and LEA shall satisfy the State Meal Mandate 
under California Education Code sections 49530, 49530.5 and 49550. 

44. MONITORING 

CONTRACTOR shall allow LEA representatives access to its facilities for periodic monitoring of each student’s 
instructional program and shall be invited to participate in the formal review of each student’s progress. LEA 
shall have access to observe each student at work, observe the instructional setting, interview CONTRACTOR, 



 

2017-2018  22 | P a g e  
 

and review each student’s records and progress. Such access shall include unannounced monitoring visits. When 
making site visits, LEA shall initially report to CONTRACTOR's site administrative office. CONTRACTOR 
shall be invited to participate in the review of each student’s progress. If CONTRACTOR is also an LCI and/or 
NPS/RTC, LEA shall annually evaluate whether CONTRACTOR is in compliance with Education Code section 
56366.9 and Health and Safety Code section 1501.1(b). 

CONTRACTOR shall participate in any LEA and CDE compliance review, if applicable, to be conducted as 
aligned with the CDE Onsite Review and monitoring cycle in accordance with California Education Code section 
56366.1(j). This review will address programmatic aspects of the nonpublic school, compliance with relevant 
state and federal regulations, and Master Contract compliance. CONTRACTOR shall conduct any follow-up or 
corrective action procedures related to review findings. 

CONTRACTOR understands that LEA reserves the right to institute a program audit with or without cause. The 
program audit may include, but is not limited to, a review of core compliance areas of health and safety; 
curriculum/instruction; related services; and contractual, legal, and procedural compliance. 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall collect all applicable data and prepare the 
applicable portion of a School Accountability Report Card as appropriate in accordance with California 
Education Code Section 33126. 

 

PERSONNEL 

45. CLEARANCE REQUIREMENTS 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code sections 44237, 35021.1 
and 35021.2 including, but not limited to: obtaining clearance from both the California Department of Justice 
(hereinafter referred to as “CDOJ”) and clearance from the Federal Bureau of Investigation (hereinafter referred 
to as "FBI") for CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers who will have or likely may have any direct 
contact with LEA students. CONTRACTOR hereby agrees that CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers 
shall not come in contact with students until CDOJ and FBI clearance are ascertained. CONTRACTOR shall 
certify in writing to LEA that none of its employees, and volunteers, unless CONTRACTOR determines that 
the volunteers will have no direct contact with students, or subcontractors who may come into contact with 
students have been convicted of a violent or serious felony as those terms are defined in California Education 
Code section 44237(h), unless despite the employee’s conviction of a violent or serious felony, he or she has 
met the criteria to be eligible for employment pursuant to California Education Code section 44237 (i) or (j). 
Clearance certification shall be submitted to the LEA. 

The passage of AB 389 amends Education Code sections 44237 and 56366.1 as to the verification that the 
CONTRACTOR has received a successful criminal background check clearance and has enrolled in subsequent 
arrest notification service, as specified, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, nonsectarian 
school or agency. Further this bill deletes the exemption for applicants possessing a valid California state 
teaching credential or who are currently licensed by another state agency that requires a criminal record 
summary, from submitting two (2) sets of fingerprints for the purpose of obtaining a criminal record summary 
from the Department of Justice and the Federal Bureau of Investigation. Notwithstanding the restrictions on 
sharing and destroying criminal background check information, CONTRACTOR, upon demand, shall make 
available to the LEA evidence of a successful criminal background check clearance and enrollment in 
subsequent arrest notification service, as provided, for each owner, operator, and employee of the nonpublic, 
nonsectarian school or agency. CONTRACTOR is required to retain the evidence on-site, as specified, for all 
staff, including those licensed or credentialed by another state agency. Background clearances and proof of 
subsequent arrest notification service, as required by California Penal Code section 11105.2, for all staff shall 
be provided to the LEA upon request. 



 

2017-2018  23 | P a g e  
 

46. STAFF QUALIFICATIONS 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by 
CONTRACTOR to provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services hold a license, 
certificate, permit, or other document equivalent to that which staff in a public school are required to hold in 
the service rendered consistent with Education Code section 56366.1(n)(1) and are qualified pursuant to Title 
34 of the Code of Federal Regulations sections 200.56 and 200.58, and Title 5 of the California Code of 
Regulations sections 3001(y), 3064 and 3065. Such qualified staff may only provide related services within the 
scope of their professional license, certification or credential and ethical standards set by each profession, and 
not assume responsibility or authority for another related services provider or special education teacher’s scope 
of practice. 

CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all staff are appropriately credentialed to provide instruction and services to 
students with the disabling conditions placed in their program/school through documentation provided to the 
CDE (5 CCR 3064 (a)). 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, an appropriately qualified person shall serve as curricular and 
instructional leader, and be able to provide leadership, oversight and professional development. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with personnel standards and qualifications regarding instructional aides and 
teacher assistants respectively pursuant to federal requirements and California Education Code sections 45340 
et seq. and 45350 et seq. Specifically, all paraprofessionals, including but not limited to, instructional aides and 
teacher assistants, employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or subcontracted by CONTRACTOR to 
provide classroom and/or individualized instruction or related services, shall possess a high school diploma (or 
its recognized equivalent) and at least one of the following qualifications: (a) completed at least two (2) years 
of study at an institution of higher education; or (b) obtained an associate’s (or higher) degree; or (c) met a 
rigorous standard of quality and can demonstrate, through a formal state or local assessment (i) knowledge of, 
and the ability to assist in instructing, reading, writing, and mathematics; or (ii) knowledge of, and the ability 
to assist in instructing, reading readiness, writing readiness, and mathematics readiness, as appropriate. 
CONTRACTOR shall comply with all laws and regulations governing the licensed professions, including but 
not limited to, the provisions with respect to supervision. 

In addition to meeting the certification requirements of the State of California, a CONTRACTOR that operates 
a program outside of this state and serving a student by this LEA shall be certified or licensed by that state to 
provide special education and related services to pupils under the federal Individuals with Disabilities Education 
Act (20 U.S.C. Sec. 1400 et seq.). 

47. VERIFICATION OF LICENSES, CREDENTIALS & OTHER DOCUMENTS; EXHIBIT C 

CONTRACTOR shall submit to LEA a staff list (EXHIBIT C), and copies of all current licenses, credentials, 
certifications, permits and/or other documents which entitle the holder to provide special education and/or 
related services by individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired or sub-contracted by 
CONTRACTOR. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all licenses, credentials, permits or other documents are on 
file at the office of the County Superintendent of Schools. CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA in writing within 
thirty (30) days when personnel changes occur which may affect the provision of special education and/or 
related services to students as specified in the LEA Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall provide the LEA with 
the verified dates of fingerprint clearance, Department of Justice clearance and Tuberculosis Test clearance for 
all employees, approved subcontractors and/or volunteers prior to such individuals starting to work with any 
student. 

CONTRACTOR shall monitor the status of licenses, credentials, certifications, permits and/or other 
documents for all individuals employed, contracted, and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR. 
CONTRACTOR shall notify CDE in writing within forty-five (45) days when personnel changes occur which 
may affect the provision of special education and/or related services to LEA students. CONTRACTOR shall 



 

2017-2018  24 | P a g e  
 

notify LEA within thirty (30) days if any such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, 
revoked, rescinded, challenged pursuant to an administrative or legal complaint or lawsuit, or otherwise 
nullified during the effective period of this Master Contract. The LEA shall not be obligated to pay for any 
services provided by a person whose such licenses, certifications or waivers are expired, suspended, revoked, 
rescinded, or otherwise nullified during the period which such person is providing services under this Master 
Contract. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes in credentialing/licensed staff may result in 
suspension or revocation of CDE certification and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the 
LEA. 

48. STAFF ABSENCE 

When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and/or related services provider, and CONTRACTOR’s service 
provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as 
determined by LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service 
providers. It is understood that the parent of a student shall not be deemed to be a qualified substitute for their 
student. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides 
documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within forty-five 
(45) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not 
“bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing 
by CONTRACTOR and authorized LEA representative. 

49. STAFF PROFESSIONAL BEHAVIOR WHEN PROVIDING SERVICES AT SCHOOL OR 
SCHOOL RELATED EVENTS OR AT SCHOOL FACILITY AND/OR IN THE HOME 

It is understood that all employees, subcontractors, and volunteers of any certified nonpublic school or agency 
shall adhere to the customary professional and ethical standards when providing services. All practices shall 
only be within the scope of professional responsibility as defined in the professional code of conduct for each 
profession as well as any LEA professional standards as specified in Board policies and/or regulations when 
made available to the CONTRACTOR. 

For services provided on a public school campus, sign in/out procedures shall be followed by nonpublic agency 
providers working in a public school classroom along with all other procedures for being on campus consistent 
with school and district policy. Such policies and procedures shall be made available to the CONTRACTOR. 
It is understood that the public school credentialed classroom teacher is responsible for the instructional 
program. 

For services provided in a pupil’s home as specified in the IEP, CONTRACTOR must assure that the parent or 
LEA approved responsible adult is present during the provision of services. All problems and/or concerns 
reported to parents, both verbal and written shall also be provided to the LEA. 

 

  



 

2017-2018  25 | P a g e  
 

HEALTH AND SAFETY MANDATES 

50. HEALTH AND SAFETY 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable federal, state, local, and LEA laws, regulations, ordinances, 
policies, and procedures regarding student and employee health and safety. CONTRACTOR shall comply with 
the requirements of California Education Code sections 35021 et. seq., 49406, and Health and Safety Code 
Section 3454(a) regarding the examination of CONTRACTOR’s employees and volunteers for tuberculosis. 
CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation for each individual volunteering, employed, contracted, 
and/or otherwise hired by CONTRACTOR of such compliance before an individual comes in contact with a 
student. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with OSHA Blood-Borne Pathogens Standards, 29 code of Federal 
Regulations (CFR) section 1910.1030, when providing medical treatment or assistance to a student. 
CONTRACTOR further agrees to provide annual training regarding universal health care precautions and to 
post required notices in areas designated in the California Health and Safety Code. 

51. FACILITIES AND FACILITIES MODIFICATIONS 

CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and/or related services to students in facilities that comply 
with all applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances related, but not limited to: disability 
access; fire, health, sanitation, and building standards and safety; fire warning systems; zoning permits; and 
occupancy capacity. When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, CONTRACTOR shall conduct fire drills as 
required by Title 5 California Code of Regulations section 550. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for any 
structural changes and/or modifications to CONTRACTOR’s facilities as required complying with applicable 
federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and ordinances. Failure to notify the LEA and CDE of any changes 
in, major modification or relocation of facilities may result in the suspension or revocation of CDE certification 
and/or suspension or termination of this Master Contract by the LEA. 

52. ADMINISTRATION OF MEDICATION 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with the requirements of California Education Code section 49423 when 
CONTRACTOR serves a student that is required to take prescription and/or over-the-counter medication during 
the school day. CONTRACTOR may designate personnel to assist the student with the administration of such 
medication after the student’s parent(s) provides to CONTRACTOR: (a) a written statement from a physician 
detailing the type, administration method, amount, and time schedules by which such medication shall be taken; 
and (b) a written statement from the student’s parent(s) granting CONTRACTOR permission to administer 
medication(s) as specified in the physician’s statement. CONTRACTOR shall maintain, and provide to LEA 
upon request, copies of such written statements. CONTRACTOR shall maintain a written log for each student 
to whom medication is administered. Such written log shall specify the student’s name; the type of medication; 
the date, time, and amount of each administration; and the name of CONTRACTOR’s employee who 
administered the medication. CONTRACTOR maintains full responsibility for assuring appropriate staff 
training in the administration of such medication consistent with physician’s written orders. Any change in 
medication type, administration method, amount or schedule must be authorized by both a licensed physician 
and parent. 

53. INCIDENT/ACCIDENT REPORTING 

CONTRACTOR shall submit on the same day, electronically, any serious accident or incident report to the 
LEA. CONTRACTOR shall properly submit required accident or incident reports pursuant to the procedures 
specified in LEA Procedures. 



 

2017-2018  26 | P a g e  
 

54. CHILD ABUSE REPORTING 

CONTRACTOR hereby agrees to annually train all staff members, including volunteers, so that they are 
familiar with and agree to adhere to its own child and dependent adult abuse reporting obligations and 
procedures as specified in California Penal Code section 11164 et seq. and Education Code 44691. To protect 
the privacy rights of all parties involved (i.e. reporter, child and alleged abuser), reports will remain confidential 
as required by law and professional ethical mandates. A written statement acknowledging the legal requirements 
of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to such reporting shall be submitted to the LEA. 

55. SEXUAL HARASSMENT 

CONTRACTOR shall have a Sexual and Gender Identity harassment policy that clearly describes the kinds of 
conduct that constitutes sexual harassment and that is prohibited by the CONTRACTOR’s policy, as well as 
federal and state law. The policy should include procedures to make complaints without fear of retaliation, and 
for prompt and objective investigations of all sexual harassment complaints. CONTRACTOR further agrees to 
provide annual training to all employees regarding the laws concerning sexual harassment and related 
procedures pursuant to Government Code 12950.1. 

56. REPORTING OF MISSING CHILDREN 

CONTRACTOR assures LEA that all staff members, including volunteers, are familiar with and agree to adhere 
to requirements for reporting missing children as specified in California Education Code section 49370. A 
written statement acknowledging the legal requirements of such reporting and verification of staff adherence to 
such reporting shall be properly submitted to the LEA. The written statement shall be submitted as specified by 
the LEA. 

 

FINANCIAL 

57. ENROLLMENT, CONTRACTING, SERVICE TRACKING, ATTENDANCE REPORTING, 
AND BILLING PROCEDURES; EXHIBITS E, F, G &J 

CONTRACTOR shall assure that the school or agency has the necessary financial resources to provide an 
appropriate education for the students enrolled and will distribute those resources in such a manner to implement 
the IEP and ISA for each and every student. 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all LEA procedures concerning enrollment, contracting, attendance 
reporting, service tracking and billing including requirements of electronic billing as specified by the LEA 
Procedures. CONTRACTOR shall be paid for the provision of special education and/or related services 
specified in the student’s IEP and ISA. All payments by LEA shall be made in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Master Contract and governed by all applicable federal and state laws. 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain separate registers for the basic education program (EXHIBIT E or G), each 
related service, and services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides and bus aides 
(EXHIBIT F). The copies of attendance registers/service records and Invoice payment demand shall be 
submitted to LEA within thirty (30) days after the end of each attendance calendar month in which services are 
rendered, except in November, December, March, June, when attendance registers/service records must be 
faxed or scanned and emailed to the LEA on the last school day of the month. Original attendance forms (i.e., 
roll books for the basic education program, service tracking documents and notes for instructional assistants, 
behavioral intervention aides, bus aides, and each related service) shall be completed by the actual service 
provider whose signature shall appear on such forms and shall be available for review, inspection, or audit by 
LEA during the effective period of this contract and for a period of five (5) years thereafter. CONTRACTOR 



 

2017-2018  27 | P a g e  
 

shall verify the accuracy of minutes of reported attendance that is the basis of services being billed for payment. 

CONTRACTOR shall submit invoices (EXHIBIT J) and related documents to LEA for payment, for each 
calendar month when education or related services were provided. Invoices and related documents shall be 
properly submitted electronically and in addition, on an LEA form with signatures in the manner prescribed by 
LEA in the LEA Procedures. At a minimum, each invoice must contain the following information: month of 
service; specific days and times of services coordinated by the LEA approved calendar unless otherwise 
specified in the IEP or agreed to by the LEA; name of staff who provided the service; approved cost of each 
invoice; total for each service and total for the monthly invoice; date invoice was mailed; signature of NPS/NPA 
administrator authorizing that the information is accurate and consistent with the ISA, CDE certificates and 
staff notification; verification that attendance report is attached as appropriate; indication of any made-up 
session consistent with this contract; verification that progress reports have been provided consistent with the 
ISA (monthly or quarterly unless specified otherwise on the ISA); and name or initials of each student for when 
the service was provided. 

In the event services were not provided, rationale for why the services were not provided shall be included. 

Such an invoice is subject to all conditions of this contract. At the discretion of the LEA, an electronic invoice 
may be required provided such notice has been made in writing and training provided to the CONTRACTOR 
at no additional charge for such training. 

Invoices shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the attendance accounting period in 
which the services were rendered. LEA shall make payment to CONTRACTOR based on the number of 
billable days of attendance and hours of service at rates specified in this contract within forty-five (45) days of 
LEA’s receipt of properly submitted hard copy of invoices prepared and submitted as specified in California 
Education Code Section 56366.5 and the LEA. CONTRACTOR shall correct deficiencies and submit 
rebilling invoices no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the invoice is returned by LEA. LEA shall pay 
properly submitted re-billing invoices no later than forty-five (45) days after the date a completely corrected 
re-billing invoice is received by LEA. 

Upon approval of said payment demand, LEA shall make payment in an amount equal to the number of 
creditable days of attendance multiplied by the agreed upon unit amount.  Payment shall be made within 
forty-five (45) days of LEA’s receipt of payment demand except when approval is denied and LEA exercises 
its right to withhold. Should the LEA or SCOE fail to comply, the nonpublic nonsectarian school or nonpublic 
agency may require the LEA, or county office to pay an additional amount of 1 1/2 percent of the unpaid 
balance per month until full payment is made.  

In no case shall initial payment claim submission for any Master Contract fiscal year (August-July) extend 
beyond December 31st after the close of the fiscal year. In no case shall any rebilling for the Master Contract 
fiscal year (August-July) extend beyond six (6) months after the close of the fiscal year unless approved by the 
LEA to resolve billing issues including re-billing issues directly related to a delay in obtaining information from 
the Commission on Teacher Credentialing regarding teacher qualification, but no later than twelve (12) months 
from the close of the fiscal year. If the billing or re- billing error is the responsibility of the LEA, then no limit 
is set provided that the LEA and CONTRACTOR have communicated such concerns in writing during the 12-
month period following the close of the fiscal year. LEA will not pay mileage for NPA employee. 

58. RIGHT TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT 

LEA may withhold payment to CONTRACTOR when: (a) CONTRACTOR has failed to perform, in whole or 
in part, under the terms of this contract; (b) CONTRACTOR has billed for services rendered on days other than 
billable days of attendance or for days when student was not in attendance and/or did not receive services; (c) 
CONTRACTOR was overpaid by LEA as determined by inspection, review, and/or audit of its program, work, 
and/or records; (d) CONTRACTOR has failed to provide supporting documentation with an invoice, as required 



 

2017-2018  28 | P a g e  
 

by EC 56366(c)(2); (e) education and/or related services are provided to students by personnel who are not 
appropriately credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (f) LEA has not received prior to school closure or 
contract termination, all documents concerning one or more students enrolled in CONTRACTOR’s educational 
program; (g) CONTRACTOR fails to confirm a student’s change of residence to another district or confirms 
the change or residence to another district, but fails to notify LEA within five (5) days of such confirmation; or 
(h) CONTRACTOR receives payment from Medi-Cal or from any other agency or funding source for a service 
provided to a student. It is understood that no payments shall be made for any invoices that are not received by 
six (6) months following the close of the prior fiscal year, for services provided in that year. 

Final payment to CONTRACTOR in connection with the cessation of operations and/or termination of a Master 
Contract will be subject to the same documentation standards described for all payment claims for regular 
ongoing operations. In addition, final payment may be withheld by the LEA until completion of a review or 
audit, if deemed necessary by the LEA. Such review or audit will be completed within ninety (90) days. The 
final payment may be adjusted to offset any previous payments to the CONTRACTOR determined to have been 
paid in error or in anticipation of correction of documentation deficiencies by the CONTRACTOR that remain 
uncorrected. 

The amount which may be withheld by LEA with respect to each of the subparagraphs of the preceding 
paragraph are as follows: (a) the value of the service CONTRACTOR failed to perform; (b) the amount of 
overpayment; (c) the entire amount of the invoice for which satisfactory documentation has not been provided 
by CONTRACTOR; (d) the amount invoiced for services provided by the individual not appropriately 
credentialed, licensed, or otherwise qualified; (e) the proportionate amount of the invoice related to the 
applicable pupil for the time period from the date the violation occurred and until the violation is cured; or (f) 
the amount paid to CONTRACTOR by Medi-Cal or another agency or funding source for the service provided 
to the student. 

If LEA determines that cause exists to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR, LEA shall, within ten (10) 
business days of this determination, provide to CONTRACTOR written notice that LEA is withholding 
payment. Such notice shall specify the basis or bases for LEA’s withholding payment and the amount to be 
withheld. Within thirty (30) days from the date of receipt of such notice, CONTRACTOR shall take all 
necessary and appropriate action to correct the deficiencies that form the basis for LEA’s withholding payment 
or submit a written request for extension of time to correct the deficiencies. Upon receipt of CONTRACTOR’s 
written request showing good cause, LEA shall extend CONTRACTOR’s time to correct deficiencies (usually 
an additional thirty (30) days), otherwise payment will be denied. If after subsequent request for payment has 
been denied and CONTRACTOR believes that payment should not be withheld, CONTRACTOR shall send 
written notice to LEA specifying the reason it believes payment should not be withheld. LEA shall respond to 
CONTRACTOR’s notice within thirty (30) business days by indicating that a warrant for the amount of 
payment will be made or stating the reason LEA believes payment should not be made. If LEA fails to respond 
within thirty (30) business days or a dispute regarding the withholding of payment continues after the LEA’s 
response to CONTRACTOR’s notice, CONTRACTOR may invoke the following escalation policy. 

After forty-five (45) business days: The CONTRACTOR may notify the Authorized LEA’s Representative of 
the dispute in writing. The LEA Authorized Representative shall respond to the CONTRACTOR in writing 
within fifteen (15) business days. 

After sixty (60) business days: Disagreements between the LEA and CONTRACTOR concerning the Master 
Contract may be appealed to the County Superintendent of Schools or the State Superintendent of Public 
Instruction pursuant to the provisions of California Education Code Section 56366(c) (2). 

59. PAYMENT FROM OUTSIDE AGENCIES 

CONTRACTOR shall notify LEA when Medi-Cal or any other agency is billed for the costs associated with 
the provision of special education and/or related services to students. Upon request, CONTRACTOR shall 



 

2017-2018  29 | P a g e  
 

provide to LEA any and all documentation regarding reports, billing, and/or payment by Medi-Cal or any other 
agency for the costs associated with the provision of special education and/or related services to students. 

60. PAYMENT FOR ABSENCES 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STAFF ABSENCE 
Whenever a classroom teacher employed by CONTRACTOR is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide an 
appropriately credentialed substitute teacher in the absent teacher’s classroom in accordance with California 
Education Code section 56061. CONTRACTOR shall provide to LEA documentation of substitute coverage 
pursuant to the LEA Procedures. Substitute teachers shall remain with their assigned class during all 
instructional time. LEA will not pay for instruction and/or services unless said instruction or service is provided 
by an appropriately credentialed substitute teacher. 

Whenever a related service provider is absent, CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 
7 of this agreement and as determined by LEA) substitute, or a make-up schedule as outlined in Section 6, 
paragraph three of this contract. LEA will not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or 
CONTRACTOR provides documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service 
provider within forty-five (45) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided 
unless otherwise agreed in student’s IEP. 

NONPUBLIC SCHOOL STUDENT ABSENCE 
If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic school, no later than the tenth (10th) cumulative day of a student’s unexcused 
absence, CONTRACTOR shall notify the LEA of such absence as specified in the LEA Procedures. 

Criteria for a billable day for payment purposes is one (1) day of attendance as defined in California Education 
Code, sections 46010, 46010.3 and 46307. LEA shall not pay for services provided on days that a student’s 
attendance does not qualify for Average Daily Attendance (ADA) reimbursement under state law. Per Diem 
rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted on a pro rata basis in 
accordance with the actual proportion of the school day the student was served. LEA shall not be responsible 
for payment of related services for days on which a student’s attendance does not qualify for Average Daily 
Attendance (“ADA”) reimbursement under state law, nor shall student be eligible for make-up services. 

 NONPUBLIC AGENCY STAFF ABSENCE 
When CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency and CONTRACTOR’s service provider is absent, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide a qualified (as defined in Section 7 of this agreement and as determined by 
LEA) substitute, unless LEA provides appropriate coverage in lieu of CONTRACTOR’s service providers. 
LEA shall not pay for services unless a qualified substitute is provided and/or CONTRACTOR provides 
documentation evidencing the provision of “make-up” services by a qualified service provider within thirty 
(30) calendar days from the date on which the services should have been provided. CONTRACTOR shall not 
“bank” or “carry over” make up service hours under any circumstances, unless otherwise agreed to in writing 
by CONTRACTOR and LEA. In the event services were not provided, reasons for why the services were not 
provided shall be included. 



 

2017-2018  30 | P a g e  
 

NONPUBLIC AGENCY STUDENT ABSENCE 
If CONTRACTOR is a nonpublic agency, it shall notify LEA of the absence of a student no later than the fifth 
(5th) consecutive service day of the student’s absence, as specified in the LEA Procedures. LEA shall not be 
responsible for the payment of services when a student is absent. 

61. INSPECTION AND AUDIT 

The CONTRACTOR shall maintain and the LEA shall have the right to examine and audit all of the books, 
records, documents, accounting procedures and practices and other evidence that reflect all costs claimed to 
have been incurred or fees claimed to have been earned under this Agreement. 

CONTRACTOR shall provide access to LEA to all records including, but not limited to: student records as 
defined by California Education Code section 49061(b); registers and roll books of teachers; daily service logs 
and notes or other documents used to record the provision of related services; Medi-Cal/daily service logs and 
notes used to record provision of services provided by instructional assistants, behavior intervention aides, bus 
aides, and supervisors; absence verification records (parent/doctor notes, telephone logs, and related 
documents); bus rosters; staff lists specifying credentials held, business licenses held, documents evidencing 
other qualifications, , dates of hire, and dates of termination; staff time sheets; non-paid staff and volunteer 
sign-in sheets; transportation and other related service subcontracts; school calendars; bell/class schedules when 
applicable; liability and worker’s compensation insurance policies; state nonpublic school and/or agency 
certifications; by-laws; lists of current board of directors/trustees, if incorporated; other documents evidencing 
financial expenditures; federal/state payroll quarterly reports Form 941/DE3DP; and bank statements and 
canceled checks or facsimile thereof. Such access shall include unannounced inspections by LEA. 
CONTRACTOR shall make available to LEA all budgetary information including operating budgets submitted 
by CONTRACTOR to LEA for the relevant contract period being audited. 

CONTRACTOR shall make all records available at the office of LEA or CONTRACTOR’s offices (to be 
specified by LEA) at all reasonable times and without charge. All records shall be provided to LEA within five 
(5) working days of a written request from LEA. CONTRACTOR shall, at no cost to LEA, provide assistance 
for such examination or audit. LEA’s rights under this section shall also include access to CONTRACTOR’s 
offices for purposes of interviewing CONTRACTOR’s employees. If any document or evidence is stored in an 
electronic form, a hard copy shall be made available to the LEA, unless the LEA agrees to the use of the 
electronic format. 

CONTRACTOR shall obtain from its subcontractors and suppliers written agreements to the requirements of 
this section and shall provide a copy of such agreements to LEA upon request by LEA. 

If an inspection, review, or audit by LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm 
determines that CONTRACTOR owes LEA monies as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing or failure to 
perform, in whole or in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, LEA shall provide to 
CONTRACTOR written notice demanding payment from CONTRACTOR and specifying the basis or bases 
for such demand. Unless CONTRACTOR and LEA otherwise agree in writing, CONTRACTOR shall pay to 
LEA the full amount owed as a result of CONTRACTOR’s over billing and/or failure to perform, in whole or 
in part, any of its obligations under this Master Contract, as determined by an inspection, review, or audit by 
LEA, a state agency, a federal agency, and/or an independent agency/firm. CONTRACTOR shall make such 
payment to LEA within thirty (30) days of receipt of LEA’s written notice demanding payment. 

62. RATE SCHEDULE; EXHIBIT A 

The attached rate schedule (EXHIBIT A) limits the number of students that may be enrolled and maximum 
dollar amount of the contract. It may also limit the maximum number of students that can be provided specific 
services. Per Diem rates for students whose IEPs authorize less than a full instructional day may be adjusted 
proportionally. In such cases only, the adjustments in basic education rate shall be based on the required 



 

2017-2018  31 | P a g e  
 

minimum number of minutes per grade level as noted in California Education Code Section 46200-46208. 

Special education and/or related services offered by CONTRACTOR shall be provided by qualified personnel 
as per State and Federal law, and the codes and charges for such educational and/or related services during the 
term of this contract, shall be as stated in Exhibit A. 

63. DEBARMENT CERTIFICATION 

By signing this agreement, the CONTRACTOR certifies that: 

(a) The CONTRACTOR and any of its shareholders, partners, or executive officers are not presently debarred, 
suspended, proposed for debarment, or declared ineligible for the award of contracts by any Federal agency, 
and 

(b) Have not, within a three-year period preceding this contract, been convicted of or had a civil judgment 
rendered against them for: commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with obtaining, attempting 
to obtain, or performing a Federal, state or local government contract or subcontract; violation of Federal or 
state antitrust statutes relating to the submission of offers; or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, 
bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false statements, tax evasion, or receiving stolen 
property; and are not presently indicted for, or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a Government entity 
with, commission of any of these offenses.  

 



 

32 | P a g e  
 

CONTRACT SIGNATURE PAGE 

64. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 

During the term of this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall provide special education and DIS in 
accordance with Individual Service Agreements (EXHIBIT B) executed by CONTRACTOR and 
SELPA Member Districts at the rate shown on the attached rate sheet ( EXHIBIT A).  

Daily Program Rates for pupils whose individual education program (IEP) authorizes less than a full 
instructional day shall be reduced proportionately (pupil’s instructional day in minutes/minutes in 
full instructional day) x Daily Program Rate as shown on the attached Rate Schedule Exhibit A, 
unless otherwise specified in ISA.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract Submittal Requirements 

1.) Please sign and return original contract with the following documents by 8/11/17 : 

This Contract includes the attached General Provisions, Exhibits A – R, and any ISAs executed 
by CONTRACTOR and SELPA Member Districts.  No payment shall be due under this Contract 
for special education or DIS provided to any pupil unless and until a SELPA member district and 
CONTRACTOR execute an ISA for such pupil.   

Date:  Date:  

Signature: 
 

Signature:
 

Tony Roehrick Melissa Willa 

Superintendent Gateway Learning Group 

1000 Yulupa Avenue 1663 Mission Street Suite 400 

Santa Rosa, CA  95405 San Francisco, CA  94103 

707-542-7375 877-264-6747 



 

33 | P a g e  
 

2) Description of any changes to the crisis intervention training, including restraint procedures, or a 
statement that they have not changed (Section 30).  

3) EXHIBIT C, Current Staff List 

4) EXHIBIT A, rate schedule, with initials. 

Return contract with original signature and above documents to: 

Name of Contract Contact: Cathy Myhers 
Contract Contact’s Title: Director of Student Services 

Contract Contact’s Phone: 707-542-7375 
Address for Contract Submission: 1000 Yulupa Avenue 

Santa Rosa, CA  95405 
 

 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.9 

Subject:  RVUSD Governance Handbook 2017-18 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent  

Background: Each year, the Governing Board reviews its protocols that guide how we operate as 
a governance team.  Last January, the Governing Board reviewed its protocols and 
made several adjustments.  On August 10, 2017, the Governing Board met to 
review the revised protocols.   

Highlights: The key revisions suggested in January include ensuring Trustees have adequate 
time to review and ask questions regarding items on Board agendas.  The Trustees 
also strengthened language to ensure confidential information is maintained. The 
Governing Board did not make any substantial changes to the proposed revisions 
presented on August 10.   

Challenges: N/A  

Analysis: N/A  

Next Steps: The Governing Board is asked to approve the 2017-18 Governance Handbook.  
The Board is also asked to review its protocols each January.     

   
 
 
Attachments: RVUSD Governance Handbook 2017-18 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 

 

RVUSD	Governance	Handbook	2017‐18	
	

Board	of	Trustees	 Superintendent	

Carol	Lynn	Wood,	President	
Cynthia	Evers,	Clerk	
Mike	Cook,	Trustee		
Jeff	Gospe,	Trustee	

Chris	Rafanelli,	Trustee		

 

Dr.	Tony	Roehrick   	

	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

2 Governance	Handbook	

Table	of	Contents		
I.	A	Unified	Commitment	to	Serve	the	Community		

District	Vision	and	Mission ........................................................................................................ 3	

		

II.	Shared	Understanding	of	Governance	Roles	 ......................................................................... 	4		

Working	As	An	Effective	Team	 ................................................................................................ 4	

An	Effective	Trustee	 ................................................................................................................... 4	

III.	Governance	Leadership	Culture			

Using	Board	Meetings	as	Strategic	Leadership	Tools.......................................................... 4	

Board	and	Superintendent	Communication .......................................................................... 5	

Requesting	Information	 ............................................................................................................ 5	

Board/Board	Communication .................................................................................................. 5	

Role	of	President	 ......................................................................................................................... 6	

Role	of	Clerk	 ................................................................................................................................. 7	

Bringing	up	New	Ideas ............................................................................................................... 7	

Use	of	Study	Sessions/Forums ................................................................................................. 7	

Handling	Community	or	Staff	Concerns	and/or	Complaints	 ............................................ 8	

Self	Monitoring	of	Governance	Team	Effectiveness ............................................................ 8	

Board	Obligations ........................................................................................................................ 9	

IV.			Appendices				

Appendix	A	–	Effective	Governance	 ..................................................................................... 10	

Appendix	B	–	Governance	Roles	 ........................................................................................... 11	

The	Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	Governance	Handbook	was	developed	at	an	
effective	governance	workshop	conducted	in	January	2014	with	the	assistance	of	Babs	
Kavanaugh,	Governance	Consultant.	

The	purpose	of	the	governing	handbook	is	to…	

 Ensure	that	all	efforts	are	focused	on	the	best	interests	of	our	students.	
 Articulate	a	clear	understanding	of	the	role	and	responsibilities	of	board	members	and	

the	superintendent.			
 Document	the	norms	and	operating	protocols	that	support	governance	effectiveness.			
 Promote	a	productive	governance	system	that	is	based	on	trust	and	honest	and	open	

communication.	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

3 Governance	Handbook	

	

I.	Unified	Commitment	To	Lead	And	Serve	The	Community		

The	foundation	of	effective	governance	is	the	common	focus	governing	board	members	
share	that	transcends	individual	differences	to	fulfill	a	greater	purpose.	A	unity	of	purpose	
exists	when	the	commitment	to	achieving	these	goals	becomes	the	guiding	principle	for	all	
trustees.		

The	focused	efforts	of	Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	are	reflected	in	the	District	
vision,	mission,	and	annual	goals	and	objectives	adopted	by	the	RVUSD	Board.		

Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	Vision	Statement	

Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	provides	all	students	an	exemplary	academic	education	
and	the	foundation	to	become	productive	citizens	of	their	community.	

Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	Mission	Statement	
The	Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District	pursues	excellence	in	education	through	a	
differentiated	curriculum	focusing	on	rigor,	relevance,	and	relationships.	The	District	
provides	a	solid	foundation	for	every	student	through	the	development	of	critical	thinking,	
communication,	collaboration,	and	creativity.	

II.	Shared	understanding	of	Governance	Roles			

Rincon	Valley	Union	District	Governance	Team	
Working	As	An	Effective	Team	
The	Rincon	Valley	Governance	Team	identified	the	characteristics	of	effective	trustees	and	
effective	teams.			

Effective	Governance	Teams			
 Have	a	unity	of	purpose	
 Understand	the	needs	and	interests	of	all	constituents	
 Always	place	the	best	interests	of	the	district	first	
 Are	knowledgeable	of	resources	and	protocols		
 Demonstrate	open	and	honest	communication		
 Are	open	to	new	ideas	and	to	new	ways	of	doing	things	
 Collectively	stand	by	decisions			

	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

4 Governance	Handbook	

Trustees	demonstrate	effectiveness	
 Problem	Solve:	Look	at	multiple	sides	of	an	issue	
 Commitment:	Take	time	to	learn,	to	become	a	part	of	the	school	community,	to	be	

prepared	
 Patience:	Understand	change	comes	slowly	
 Cooperate:	Promote	an	environment	of	‘give	and	take’.	It	takes	at	least	three	trustees	to	

move	an	issue	forward	
 Listen:	Open	to	learning	from	all	stakeholders	
 Courage:	Once	all	sides	of	an	issue	have	been	heard,	make	the	decision	and	move	on			
 Courteous:	Take	the	time	to	learn	new	things	and	to	learn	from	one	another		

III.	Governance	Leadership	Culture		

Effective	boards	make	governance	intentional	and	invest	in	structures	and	practices	that	
can	be	thoughtfully	adapted	to	changing	circumstances.	Effective	governance	teams	discuss	
and	agree	on	the	meeting	norms	and	formal	structures	and	protocols	used	by	the	board	
and	superintendent	that	guide	the	operation	of	the	governance	team.	The	following	
protocols	were	developed	to	support	and	promote	the	effectiveness	of	the	governance	
team.	The	protocols	were	developed	for	and	by	the	members	of	the	governance	team,	and	
may	be	modified	over	time	as	needed.	

Protocols	to	Facilitate	Governance	Leadership	

Using	Board	Meetings	as	Strategic	Leadership	Tools 

Rationale	 The	board’s	purpose	is	to	establish	the	direction	for	the	district,	to	set	goals,	to	
maintain	the	focus	on	curriculum	and	instruction	and	to	inform	the	community.		
Board	meetings	are	opportunities	to	inform,	educate	and	demonstrate	to	the	
community	the	values	of	the	district	and	the	strategic	direction.	 

Protocol  Board	meetings	provide	an	opportunity	to	articulate	the	board	position	
and	reasoning	behind	a	decision	in	a	positive	manner.	

 Board	meetings	serve	as	a	tool	for	clarifying	processes	to	staff	and	the	
community.	The	board	will	make	explicit	those	processes,	such	as	
textbook	adoption.	

 In	order	to	clarify	and	make	explicit	the	district	focus,	topics	on	the	
agenda	will	be	linked	to	educational	issues.	A	strategic	reason	will	be	
stated	for	Items	placed	on	the	regular	calendar	agenda.		

 As	possible,	board	meeting	agenda	items	will	be	linked	to	the	District	
goals	and	objectives. 

 The	board	members	share	accountability	for	board	deliberations	that	
spend	the	‘right’	amount	of	time	on	the	‘right’	things	while	valuing	the	
input	of	each	member	of	the	governance	team.		

 Board	members	require	adequate	time	to	consider	information	provided	

 



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

5 Governance	Handbook	

during	board	meetings.		Trustees	also	require	opportunities	to	ask	
reasonable	questions	that	serve	to	enhance	their	understanding	of	
particular	issues.		The	Board	President	is	responsible	for	monitoring	time	
allocated	to	information	items.	

 To	further	support	board	members	in	being	able	to	absorb	the	content	of	
the	board	packets,	trustees	shall	be	provided	the	full	packet	by	the	end	of	
the	day	Friday	prior	to	the	Tuesday	board	meeting.		

	

Board	/	Superintendent	Communication 

Rationale		 Critical	to	the	effectiveness	of	the	governance	team	are	open	channels	of	
communication	between	the	superintendent	and	the	trustees.		 

Protocol  Trustees	agree	to	always	give	advance	warning	to	the	superintendent	and	
President	about	potential	issues.		

 Trustees	will	bring	all	district	operations	topics,	issues	and	concerns	to	
the	Superintendent.		

 Trustees	will	inform	the	superintendent	when	they	contact	District	staff	
and	visit	schools,	outside	of	the	assigned	schools	and	school	events.	 

		

Protocol Requesting	Information		 

Rationale	 Critical	to	making	informed	and	wise	decisions	is	timely	access	to	information.		
The	superintendent	will	be	responsive	to	requests	for	information,	while	
balancing	management	of	staff	time	that	maintains	the	focus	on	district	
priorities.		 

Protocol  As	standard	practice,	board	members	will	receive	appropriate	background	
information	for	board	action	items	in	advance	of	the	board	meeting.			

 Trustees	will	make	every	attempt	to	discuss	concerns	and	questions	about	
the	materials	in	the	board	packet	before	the	board	meeting.		

 Trustees	will	contact	the	superintendent	or	copy	the	superintendent	when	
asking	questions	or	requesting	additional	information	on	board	meeting	
agenda	items.	

 As	appropriate,	the	superintendent	may	distribute	answers	to	all	trustees.	
 Board	members	will	self‐monitor	to	ensure	one	trustee’s	request	for	

information	does	not	divert	an	inappropriate	amount	of	time	from	staff	
efforts	to	achieve	district	goals.	The	superintendent	may	bring	requests	
for	information	requiring	inordinate	amounts	of	time	to	the	board	to	
determine	whether	the	full	board	supports	the	request.		 

	

	

	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

6 Governance	Handbook	

Board	/	Board	Communication 

Rationale	 Effective	communication	and	an	open	exchange	of	ideas	are	important	to	our	
Governance	Team.	The	governance	team	demonstrates,	to	the	public,	that	the	
board	maintains	focus	on	district	priorities	through	professional	and	respectful	
deliberation.	

Protocol  Trustees	recognize	that	each	board	member	brings	unique	skills,	values	
and	beliefs	to	the	board	table.		

 Trustee	will	listen	openly	and	respectfully	to	one	another,	and	will	strive	
to	not	take	discussions	personally.		

 Trustees	recognize	the	value	and	importance	of	speaking	as	one	voice	to	
the	public,	the	community,	and	staff.		

 Trustees	are	knowledgeable	about	and	operate	within	Brown	Act	
guidelines.	

 Trustees	will	share	with	one	another	and	the	superintendent	information	
they	hear	in	the	community.		 

	

Role	of	President 

Rationale	 The	board	president	serves	as	the	facilitator	for	board	communication	and	
board	business.	
 The	board	president	sets	the	tone	and	shapes	the	public’s	perception	of	

the	school	board.			
 The	board	president	facilitates	the	board	meeting,	balancing	input	and	

discussion	with	accomplishing	the	business	of	the	meeting. 

Protocol The	role	of	the	board	president	is	to:	

 Confer	with	the	superintendent	before	the	board	meeting	to	prepare,	as	
necessary	for	the	board	meeting.		

 Facilitate	the	board	meeting,	supporting	the	effective	flow	of	the	
discussion	and	encouraging	input	from	all	trustees	while	staying	on	task	
and	moving	forward.	

 The	board	president	facilitates	the	compilation	of	the	superintendent’s	
annual	performance	evaluation.	

 The	board	president	serves	as	the	primary	spokesperson	for	the	board	on	
board	decisions.	When	Trustees	are	contacted	by	the	media,	they	will	
direct	the	request	to	the	board	president.		

 Trustees	will	contact	the	board	president	about	any	board	related	
business	and	will	contact	the	superintendent	about	any	district	
operations.		

 The	superintendent	and	the	board	president	will	prepare	the	annual	
board	meeting	calendar. 

 



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

7 Governance	Handbook	

Role	of	the	Clerk	 

Protocol  Performs	the	functions	of	the	President	when	absent.	
 Attends	agenda	settings	and	helps	with	clerical	responsibilities	of	the	

Board. 

	

	

Bringing	Up	New	Ideas 

Rationale	 The	governance	team	looks	for	ways	to	improve	and	encourages	fresh	and	
innovative	thinking.	The	governance	team	agrees	to	a	process	that	will	support	
bringing	forward	new	ideas	while	maintaining	the	focus	on	district	goals	and	
consistency	of	leadership.	 

Protocol When	bringing	forward	a	new	idea,	trustees	will	proceed	according	to	these	
guidelines:		
 Step	1:	Introduction.	Introduce	the	concept/idea	to	the	superintendent,	

board	president..			
 If	the	idea	is	brought	to	the	superintendent,	the	superintendent	will	bring	

the	item	to	the	Agenda	Setting	meeting.		If	the	idea	is	brought	to	the	board	
president,	the	board	president	will	bring	it	to	the	Agenda	Setting	meeting.	

 Step	2:	Communication.		The	superintendent	will	include	‘new	ideas’	in	
the	Friday	Update	as	appropriate 

	
	

Use	of	Study	Sessions/Conversation	Meeting	 

Rationale	 Study	sessions	and	conversation	meetings	provide	opportunities	for	additional	
discussion	and	review	of	district	and	board	business,	to	study	issues	in	depth,	
and	to	discuss	and	understand	the	short	and	long	term	issues	and	challenges	
facing	the	District.			The	topics	are	usually	those	where	additional	discussion	
and	education	is	needed	to	make	important	decisions.	 

Protocol  Study	sessions	and	conversation	meetings	are	public	meetings	subject	to	
the	provisions	of	the	Brown	Act	and	no	action	is	taken.	The	meetings													
focus	on	one	issue	to	allow	for	deeper	thinking	and	discussion.		

 Study	sessions	provide	opportunities	for	additional	discussion	and	review	
of	district	and	board	business,	to	study	issues	in	depth,	and	to	discuss	and	
understand	the	short	and	long	term	issues	and	challenges	facing	the	
district.		

 Conversation	meetings	involve	agreeing	on	guiding	principles	and	
developing	criteria	to	be	used	for	problem	solving,	action	planning,	
and/or	decision‐making	on	major	district	issues	in	order	for	the	
governance	team	to	be	pro‐active	rather	than	reactive.	

 	Study	sessions/conversation	meetings	will	be	scheduled	annually,	or	as	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

8 Governance	Handbook	

Use	of	Study	Sessions/Conversation	Meeting	 

needed,	to	gather	representative	opinions	and	perspectives	and	expand	
input	on	topics	key	to	the	educational	quality	of	the	school	district.						

	

	

Handling	Community	or	Staff	Concerns	and/or	Complaints 

Rationale	 Board	members	want	to	be	accessible,	responsive,	consistent	and	fair	in	dealings	
with	listening	to	complaints	and	concerns.	The	board	values	open	
communication	and	timely	resolution	of	issues. 

Protocol  	When	approached	by	a	staff	member	or	member	of	the	public	with	an	
issue	or	concern,	board	members	will	listen	openly	to	ensure	the	person	
feels	valued	and	heard.	

 A	trustee	will	remind	staff	of	the	district	complaint	process	and	the	role	of	
individual	board	members.	

 A	trustee	may	ask	with	whom	the	person	has	already	spoken,	to	guide	the	
person	to	the	appropriate	level	of	authority.	

 Trustees	agree	to	not	become	involved	in	personnel	issues,	because	the	
board	may	become	the	“court	of	last	resort”	in	the	complaint	process.	

 Trustees	will	contact	the	Superintendent	and	Board	President,	as	
appropriate,	about	the	communication	and/or	complaint.	 

 Trustees	understand	their	responsibility	and	are	committed	to	maintain	
confidential	information.	 

 
 

Self	Monitoring	of	Governance	Team	Effectiveness 

Rationale	 Conducting	a	governance	self‐evaluation	demonstrates	accountability	to	the	
community	and	the	intention	of	the	governance	team	to	strengthen	and	improve	
governance	practices. 

Protocol  The	governance	team	will	develop	a	system	and	customized	process	that	
supports	continual	striving	for	excellence.			

 During	the	annual	mid‐year	goal	review	meeting,	the	board	will	review	
governance	team	agreements	and	processes	and	participate	in	a	
governance	self‐evaluation	process.			

	



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

9 Governance	Handbook	

Board	Obligations 

Protocol	–	
Agreement 

Board	Responsibilities	
 Board	Meetings,	Study	Sessions	
 Goal	Setting	and	Mid‐Year	Goal	Review	Meetings	
 Board	Administrative	Retreats	
 Superintendent	Evaluations	
 Maintain	Confidential	Information	

Professional	Development		
Sonoma	County	Board	Professional	Development	
California	School	Boards	Association	(CSBA)	Conference	(even	years)	

District	Committees	
During	the	organization	meeting	held	each	December,	trustees	will	discuss	and	
accept	committee	assignments.	To	support	continuity,	the	length	of	the	
assignments	will	be	for	two	years.		Each	trustee	agrees	to	attend	the	committee	
meetings	and	report	back	to	the	board	during	the	board	comments	section	of	
the	board	meeting.		eg:	
 Curriculum	and	Instruction	
 CSEA	Negotiation	Team	
 RVUTA	Negotiation	Team	
 Technology	Committee	
 Rincon	Valley	Education	Foundation	Liaison	
 County	Committee	Representative	
 Facilities	Committee	

District	Events		
A	coordinated	effort	will	be	made	to	ensure	board	presence	at	District	events.	
The	Administration	will	bring	the	schedule	of	events	to	the	August	Board	
meeting.	The	board	agrees	that	at	least	two	trustees	will	attend	the	following	
events	each	year.		
 Welcome	Back	address	
 Music	Concerts	–	Winter	and	Spring	
 Foundation	Fund‐raising	Events	
 End	–of‐Year	Recognitions	/	Retirement	Celebration	

School	Site	Visitations	
The	board	believes	in	the	importance	of	visiting	school	sites	to	continue	to	
expand	trustee’s	knowledge	of	the	programs	and	the	needs	of	the	students	and	
the	staff.			
 Annually,	each	September,	trustees	will	choose	responsibility	for	one	or	

two	of	the	school	sites.	Trustees	agree	to	attend	the	Back	to	School,	Open	
House	and	other	school	events,	as	possible,	at	their	adopted	sites.		

 Trustees	agree	to	contact	the	principal	about	plans	to	visit	a	school.	
 Trustees	will	keep	the	superintendent	informed	of	what	is	working	well,	

and	any	issues	or	concerns.



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

10 Governance	Handbook	

	

Appendix	A				

Effective	Governance1	

Governance	–	A	Definition	

School	district	governance	is	the	act	of	transforming	the	needs,	wishes	and	desires	of	
the	community	into	policies	that	direct	the	community’s	schools.	

As	the	governance	team	fulfills	responsibilities	in	the	areas	of	setting	direction,	human	
resources,	policies,	student	learning	and	achievement,	finance,	judicial	appeals,	collective	
bargaining,	and	community	relations	and	advocacy,	the	way	in	which	governance	team	
members	perform	the	governance	role	is	critical.		

Whether	in	the	boardroom,	out	in	the	community	or	at	home,	board	members	are	always	
trustees	for	the	district.		The	integrity	of	the	school	district’s	educational	program	is	
dependent	upon	the	responsible	and	professional	manner	in	which	each	board	member,	
and	the	board	collectively,	fulfills	governance	roles	and	responsibilities	with	the	
superintendent.	The	demeanor	of	governance	team	members	sends	an	important	a	
message	to	the	public.	

Utilizing	effective	governance	techniques,	private	citizens,	once	elected	to	school	boards,	
work	with	the	superintendent	to	keep	all	district	efforts	focused	on	student	learning.		
Effective	governance	tenets	encompass	the	basic	characteristics	and	behaviors	that	enable	
governance	team	members	to	effectively	create	a	climate	for	excellence	in	a	school	district.		

The	community	elects	school	board	members	to	set	and	monitor	the	direction	of	the	school	
district,	but	the	district	superintendent	will	translate	all	efforts	into	action.		It	is	therefore	
vital	that	the	board	and	superintendent	have	a	respectful	and	productive	working	
relationship	based	on	trust	and	open	communications.	

Working	as	a	group,	board	members	and	the	superintendent	leverage	the	efforts	of	the	
professional	staff	by	setting	a	direction	for	the	district	reflective	of	the	community’s	wishes	
for	its	children,	by	creating	a	supportive	framework	for	action	in	the	district,	by	holding	the	
system	accountable	through	mutually	agreed	upon	mechanisms,	by	providing	support	to	
students	and	staff	through	behaviors	and	actions,	and	by	demonstrating	community	
leadership	on	behalf	of	children,	district	schools	and	public	education.	When	this	is	done	
effectively,	the	chances	of	a	climate	for	excellence	being	created	in	which	students	thrive	
increases	dramatically.	

 
1	California	School	Boards	Association		



Rincon	Valley	Union	School	District 

11 Governance	Handbook	

Appendix	B		

Governance	Roles2	

Effective	teams	value	and	respect	their	essential	roles,	reach	mutual	agreement	on	the	
roles	of	the	board	and	superintendent,	and	strive	to	operate	within	them.	

There	are	important	distinctions	to	be	made	between	the	board’s	role	and	that	of	the	
superintendent	and	staff.		Boards	and	superintendents	must	team	together	to	ensure	a	
district	has	effective	leadership.	Just	as	board	members	should	govern	and	not	manage	a	
school	district,	superintendents	should	not	administer	a	district	in	isolation	from	the	
representatives	whom	the	public	has	entrusted	with	the	schools.	School	board	‘trustees”	
are	the	representatives	of	the	people,	elected	to	ensure	a	community’s	schools	educate	the	
community’s	children	in	accordance	with	the	wishes	of	the	local	community.	

Board	members	have	collective,	not	individual	authority.		Authority	to	make	decisions	is	
only	granted	to	the	board	as	a	whole.		The	full	board	gives	direction	to	the	superintendent,	
most	commonly	at	board	meetings.		Individual	board	members	do	not	have	the	authority	to	
direct	the	superintendent,	unless	otherwise	agreed	to	by	the	board	and	superintendent.	

The	role	of	the	school	boards	is	not	to	run	the	schools,	but	to	see	that	the	schools	are	well	
run.	When	a	board	member	inadvertently	takes	over	the	staff	role,	he/she	is	in	essence	
vacating	his	board	seat	and	effectively	undercutting	his	ability	to	govern.		He/she	is	
forfeiting	the	ability	to	hold	the	superintendent	responsible	for	the	way	the	board’s	policy	
direction	is	translated	into	action	by	the	professional	staff.		

	
	

 
2	2	California	School	Boards	Association 



Rincon Valley Union School District 
Board of Trustees 

Agenda Item Summary 
 
Meeting Date: September 12, 2017 

Agenda Item: Action Item 14.10 

Subject: Board and District Goals for 2017-18 Cover Sheet and Revised Governance 
Calendar 

Submitter:  Dr. Tony Roehrick, Superintendent 

Background: Each year, the Governing Board adopts specific goals for the District and for itself 
as a governance team.  On August 10, 2017, the Governing Board met to review 
the goals it adopted in June 2017. 

Highlights: A result of the Board’s discussion in August was a recognition that the goals 
document was lengthy and it was difficult to easily pull out the specific goals the 
Board had established.  As a result, the Board directed staff to develop a one-page 
cover document to list just the goals.  The Board also discussed the possibility of 
developing an additional goal that states the District’s current focus.  This is 
included as goal 22 on the attached document.  In addition, the Board determined a 
need to schedule additional study sessions for the year.  A revised Governance 
Calendar reflects these discussions. 

Challenges:  N/A 

Analysis:  N/A 

Next Steps: The Board should confirm the revised Governance Calendar reflects its intent.   
   

   
 
 
Attachments: RVUSD Draft 2017-18 District and Board Goals Cover Sheet  

RVUSD Governance Calendar, Revised August 10, 2017 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None 
  
Recommendation: For discussion only 
 



 Rincon Valley Union School District 
           2017-18 District and Board Goals 	 	 	

	
Over-arching Goal: Continuously improve instructional programs to fully engage students, 
enabling them to be successful in rigorous academic programs, the arts, health and wellness.  
Guide students in their development of collaborative communication, responsible decision-
making skills, and innovation.   
 

1. Every student has access to highly qualified teachers, standards aligned instructional 
materials, and facilities in good repair.  

2. Every student has access to the full range of courses offered by the District. 

3. Every student is enrolled in a school that promotes a positive school climate that results 
in a safe learning environment.   

4. Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP English language arts standard with special attention to 3rd grade 
students.    

5. Increase the percent of all students, including significant subgroups, meeting or 
exceeding the CAASPP Math standard with special attention to 6th grade students.  

6. Every English learner moves at least one level on the California English learner 
assessment (CELDT or ELPAC) and is on target and within timelines, as defined by State 
and local criteria, to become Reclassified as Fluent English Proficient (RFEP).   

7. Ensure that all students have access to high quality visual and performing art programs at 
the district, school, and classroom level. 

8. Increase student access to, and competence with, technology. 

9. Increase enrollment in Home Study Program.  

10. Provide an appropriately challenging program for gifted and talented students. 

11. Increase student awareness of health and wellness factors. 

12. Study and plan for revision of the middle school program. 

13. Provide safety training for all staff. 

14. Develop well-managed budgets. 

15. Increase contributions from Rincon Valley Ed Foundation.   

16. Implement the Master Facility Plan. 

17. Ensure adequate options are present to meet the District’s future land needs. 

18. Maintain performance and reliability of technology at all school sites and district office. 

19. Increase capacity of administrative and Governance team. 

20. Increase the capacity of parents/ guardians to create a positive technology climate outside 
of school for their children. 

21. Strengthen home-to -school two-way communication system so that parent/community 
input is increased and acted upon. 

22. Strengthen all aspects of the organization with emphasis on teaching and learning, 
capacity of all employees, and infrastructure.  



 

                                              Rincon Valley Union School District  Governance Calendar 2017-2018          8/10/17              
JOB AREAS AUG. 8 AUG. 10 SEPT. 12 OCT. 10 Oct. 19 NOV. 14 DEC. 7 DEC. 12 JAN. 9 JAN. 12 FEB. 13    MAR. 13 APR. 10 APR. 21 MAY 8 May  ? JUNE 12 June ? 

 

GOAL 1 
 
Curriculum, 
Instruction, 
Assessment 
Support 
 
 

 

D-Social-
Emotional 
Learning 

 
 
 

Board 
Study 

Session 

 
 
 
 

10:00 – 
3:00 pm 

 
 
 
 

Preview 
Goals 

 
 

Project 
Schedule 

 
Trustee 

Handbook 
& Protocols 

 
 
 
 

Governance 
Professional 
Development 

Plan (4a) 
 
 

 

 

Trustee 
School & 

Committee 
Assignments 

 

 

Cyber 
Safety 

 

Facilities 
Plan 

 

 

D-Supt. 
Evaluation 
and Goals 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D-Summer 
Intervention  

D-Student Support 
Model 

P/R-Sufficient 
Textbooks 

D-CAASPP Results  

 

D-Home Study 
Enrollment 

D-PE Testing 
Results 

D-Single School 
Plans   Progress 

  

D-Middle School 
Programs 

D-Personnel 
Report 

D-Site Visits 
Report 

Board 
Study 
Session 

D-ELA/Math 

 
D- GATE 

Identification 
Report  

A-SSP 2016-17 

 

CAASP Update 

 

 

 

 

Board 
Study 

Session 

 

D-Site Visits Report 

 

D- Science Program 

D-Attendance 
Report 
 
D-Student 
Discipline Report 
 
D – Music 

Program 
Report  

 
A-SARC 

 

Board 
Study 
Session 
 

Afternoon
 

 
 
 
Closed 
Session  
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Music for 
All 
 
 
 
 

Facilities 

D-EL Report 

D-Special Ed 
Update 

 

D-Site Visits 
Report 

 

   Study 
Session 

3:00 – 5:00
 
D- Instructional 
     Technology    

Summary  
 
D-ELA/Math 
 

D- Library /Lab 
Plan  

D-Summer School 
Plan 

D-Student Health 
Initiatives 

D-Site Visits Report 

 

Govern 
Admin 
Retreat 

D- Arts Report 

 

D-Student Climate 
Survey 

D-Student Support 
Summary 

D-Home Study 
Report 

D-GATE Report 

Board 
Closed 
Session 

D-Student 
Discipline Annual 
Review    

D-ELA /Math 

D-EL Report 

D-Attendance 
Report 

 
D-Site Visits 

Report 

Board  
Closed 
Session

GOAL 2 
 
Professional 
Development 
 

D -Before 
school 
activities  

D-Professional 
Develop. Report 

D-New Teacher 
Training 

D-Teacher 
Evaluation 
Report 

5:00 – 
8:00 pm 

D-Professional 
Develop. Report 

 

 
  5:00 -

8:00 
pm 

 

D-Safety 
Training Plan  

D-Diff/Cert 
Report  

D-Professional 
Develop. 
Report   

 
D-Teacher 

Evaluation 
Process  

8:30 – 
3:00 pm 

D-Professional 
Develop. 
Report 

 

11:00 – 
4:00 pm 

 
6:00 –  
8:00 pm

 

GOAL 3 
 
Finances 
 
Facilities 
 

D - Facility 
Report 

 
C-Project 

Approvals 
 
C-CARS Ap.1 
 

R/A-GANN Limit  

A-Unaudited Actual 
Report 

 

C-RESIG Annual 
Report 

 
 

A-Facility Plan 
2018 

ELA/ELD 

Implemen 

R/A-Annual 
Accounting 
Developer 
Fees  

C-Section 125 
American 
Fidelity  

 

 

 

Topics 

TBD 

D-Qtrly Update 
Construction 
Schedule  

P/A RVCS Charter 
Renewal 

 

A-1st Interim Report 

A-Audit Report   
2015-16 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
D-Citizens’ 

Oversight 
Annual Report 

 
C- CARS Ap. II 

A-2nd Interim  
 
D-Qtrly Update 

Construction 
Schedule  

A-Safe Schools 
Plans 

P/A-Developer 
Fees Increase  

   

 
 
 
A-Food Service 

Contract 

Goal 
Setting 

A-District Program 
Fees 

 
 
P/A-Education 

Protection 
Account 

 
P-Preliminary 

Budget 
 
 

Superinten
dent’s 
Evaluation 
– Meetings 
with Staff 

R/C – Budget 
Transfers  

 

A-Budget 

 

D-Qtrly Update 
Construction 
Schedule  

 

 

GOAL 4 
 
Governance, 
 

Communication 

C-Procl 
Attendance  
Awareness 
 
D-LCAP 

Revisions 

D – Admin 
Professional 
Dev. Plan 

C-MOU Schools of 
Hope 

C- Org  Chart 

D- RVCS 
Charter 
Renewal 

 
A-Parent Clubs 
 
 

Math 
A- 
RVCS Charter 
Renewal 

 

 
D – LCAP Review 

and Update 
 
A-Annual 

Organization 
 

D-RVCS 
Marketing 

 

D – Admin 
Professional 
Dev. Update  

 
D-K , KB 

Registration 

 

D-State of 
Schools 
Report  

 
D- RVCS 

Registration 
A-CSBA 

Delegate 
 
Note: Form 700 

Due 4/1 

D – LCAP Review 
and Update 

 
 

D-Community 
Input Summary 
Report  

 
R – Community 

Service 
Recognition 

 
D-Board Goals 
 
P-LCAP 

 

A-LCAP 
 
A-Board Goals 
 
Note: Form 470 

due August 1  
 

                 

Program 
Reports 

D-Student 
Transfers 

D-RVEF D-Transportation   
 

D-Technology 
D-After School  

Programs 
 
D- RVP 

 D-Food Service   
  D-RVEF  

 
 
 
 
Human 
Resources 
 

A-New Hires 
Resignations 
Leave of 
Absence 

R/A-Emp. of month  

A-Personnel 
approvals 

R/A-Emp. of 
month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

 

 

GATE 

R/A-Emp. of 
month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

 

 

 

R/A-Emp. of month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals  

R/A-Emp. of 
month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

R/A-Emp. of 
month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

C-Annual 
Criteria Order 
of 
Termination 
Cert. Class. 

 

Closed 
Session/A-
Leaves/Shared 
Contracts 

Closed/A – 
Certificated 

Lay-offs 

R/A-Emp. Of 
month  

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

R/A-Emp. of month  

R/A Classified 
Layoffs 

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

 

R/A-Emp. of 
month  

R/A-Emp. of Year 

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

A-Declaration of  
Need full qual. 

Supt. 
Evaluation – 

staff 
feedback 

A-Personnel 
Approvals 

A-Supt. 
Evaluation and 
Contract 

A-Admin contracts 

 

Supt.  

Evaluation

 
Policy  
Review 

CSBA Policy 
Updates 

C-Williams  

CSBA Policy 
Updates 

C-Williams Qrtly 
Report   

 
CSBA Policy 
Updates 

C-Williams Qrtly 
Report 

 
CSBA Policy 
Updates 

C-Williams Qrtly 
Report    CSBA Policy 

Updates  

Collective 
Bargaining 

Closed 
Session 
Report 

Closed Session 
Report – 5:00 p.m. 

Closed Session 
Report 

D-Sunshine 
Proposals 

 Closed Session 
Report 

 

Closed Session 
Report 

Closed Session 
Report 

Closed Session 
Report- 

Closed Session 
Report-5:00 p.m. 

A-District & 
RVCS 

Calendars 

Closed Session 
Report  Closed Session 

Report  Closed Session 
Report 

 

Key: C = Consent / D = Discussion/Information / A = Action /  P = Public Hearing / R = Resolution 


	Board Agenda 9-12-17
	Bd Min. 8-8-17
	Board Study Session Minutes 8.10.17
	Bd min spec 8-15-17
	Schools of Hope
	rvusdorgchart2017_18
	rvusdorgchart2017_18.vsdx
	Page-1


	7-17 Packet w-o notes
	Purchase Orders
	Warrants
	17-18 PUBLIC HEARING-Instructional Mtls RVUSD[1]
	Letter for Rodolfo Castro
	Ms. Dranow
	Info Item 13.1 Lease-Leaseback
	Ltr to Pandolfo (RVUSD) re Lease-Leaseback Project Timeline
	Info Item 13.2 Summer Intervention
	EL Academy Enrollment by School
	EL Academy Attendance by Day
	Info Item 13.3 a C & I Home Study Enrollment
	Info Item 13.3 b New Teacher Training
	New Teacher Meetings 2017-18
	Info Item 13.3 c CAASPP Results
	2017 CAASPP Initial Analysis District-Schools
	Info Item 13.3 d PE Testing Results
	2017 Physical Fitness Test Results
	2016 Physical Fitness Test Results
	Info Item 13.4 a Student Support Model
	Student Suport Model
	Info Item 13.4 b AED status update
	Info Item 13.4 c Parent University
	Info Item 13.5 Prof Devel Site Admin
	Admin PD 2017-18
	Action 14.1
	17-18 Resolution Instructional Mtls RVUSD
	Action Item 14.2 Unaudited Actuals
	2016-17 Unaudited Actuals Packet
	Action Item 14.3 Gann Limit
	2017-18 # GannLimit resolution for 2016-17 unaudited actuals (1)
	Action Item 14.4 Issuance of Bonds
	DOCSSF_139212v3 - Authorizing Resolution - Rincon Valley USD (Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B) (1)
	DOCSSF_139217v3 - Purchase Contract - Rincon Valley USD (Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds, Series B)
	DOCSSF_ POS-Rincon Valley Union School District (Election of 2014 General Obligation Bonds SeriesB)
	Action Item 14.5 Revised Salary Schedules
	17-18 Confidential_w_longevity
	17-18 supervisor_w_longevity
	Action Item 14.6 Asst Supt Student Services Job Description
	Assistant Supt Student Services JD
	Action Item 14.7 Asst Supt Student Services Contract
	Contract for Cathy Myhers 2017-2019
	Action Item 14.8  Behavioral Contracts
	Gateway Master Contract 17-18
	Action Item 14.9 Governance Handbook
	RVUSD_Governance_Handbook_2017-18
	Action Item 14.10 Board Goals and Governance Calendar
	Goals Cover Sheet-Draft
	Governance Calendar 2017-18-Revised 8-10-17



